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THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE VI OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018.
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SECTION I - GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates, requires or implies, the following terms shall have the following meanings
in this Red Herring Prospectus. References to statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines and policies will be deemed to
include all amendments, modifications or re-enactments notified thereto.

P

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”, “Statement of Special Tax

Benefits”, “Industry Overview”, “Key Industry Regulations and Policies”, “Financial Statements”, “Outstanding
Litigation and Other Material Developments”, will have the meaning ascribed to such terms in these respective

sections.

In case of any inconsistency between the definitions given below and the definitions contained in the General
Information Document (as defined below), the definitions given below shall prevail.

The words and expressions used but not defined in this Red Herring Prospectus will have the same meaning as
assigned to such terms under the Companies Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI
Act”), the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA, the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations made thereunder,
as applicable.

General Terms

Term Description

“KVS Castings | Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to KVS Castings Limited, a company
Limited” or “KVS |incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013, vide Corporate Identification Number
Castings”, “We” or |U27100UR2019PLC012217 and having registered office at B-25, 29, Industrial Estate
“us” or “the Issuer” or | Bazpur Road, Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur, Uttarakhand, India, 244713
“the/our Company”
“we”, “us” or “our” Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company.
“you”, “your”, or |Prospective Investor in this issue
“yours”

Company Related Terms

Terms Description

Articles / Articles of Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to the Articles of Association of KVS

Association Castings Limited, as amended from time to time.

Associate Companies A body corporate in which any other company has a significant influence, but which
is not a subsidiary of the company having such influence and includes a joint venture
company.

Audit Committee The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as the Company’s Audit Committee
is in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
and disclosed as such in the chapter titled “Our Management” on page 169 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

Auditors/ Statutory The Statutory Auditors of our Company, M/s Arora Gupta & Co., Chartered

Auditors Accountants having firm registration number 021313C.

Board of Directors /The Board of Directors of KVS Castings Limited, including all duly constituted

Board/ Director(s) committees thereof.

Central Registration| It’s an initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in Government Process

Centre (CRC) Re-engineering (GPR) with the specific objective of providing speedy incorporation
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related services in line with global best practices. For more details, please refer
http://www.mca.gov.in/MinistryV2/central+registration+centre+content+page.html

Companies Act

The Companies Act, 2013

Chief Financial |The Chief Financial Officer of our Company being Mr. Raj Kumar Arora.

Officer

Company  Secretary |The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company being Ms. Shweta

and Compliance | Mehrotra.

Officer

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Director The Director(s) of our Company, unless otherwise specified.

Equity Shares Equity Shares of our Company of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each unless otherwise
specified in the context thereof.

Equity Shareholders Persons holding equity shares of our Company.

Group Companies

In terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the term “Group Companies” includes companies
(other than promoters and subsidiary) with which there were related party transactions
as disclosed in the Restated Financial Statements as covered under the applicable
accounting standards, and any other companies as considered material by our Board, in
accordance with the Materiality Policy, as described in “Our Group Companies” on page
199 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

HUF

Hindu Undivided Family.

Independent Director

A Non- executive, Independent Director as per the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations.

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.
ISIN International Securities Identification Number, in this case being INE163701019.
Key Managerial | Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of the SEBI Regulations and the

Personnel /  Key

Managerial Employees

Companies Act, 2013. For details, see section entitled “Our Management” on page 169
of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Legal Advisors to the
Issue

The Legal Advisors being, Mr. Manesh Agarwal, Advocate having registration number
UP4724/98.

MOA / Memorandum / | Memorandum of Association of KVS Castings Limited.

Memorandum of

Association

Non-Residents A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA.

Nomination and The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as the Company’s Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee is in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thercunder and disclosed as such in the chapter titled “Our
Management” on page 169 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

NRIs / Non-Resident
Indians

An Individual resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and who is a citizen of
India, or a Person of Indian Origin as defined under FEMA.

Peer Review Auditor

Peer Review Auditor having a valid Peer Review certificate No. 014699 in our case
being M/s Arora Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN:021313C) having their
office at T-2, Gole Market, Near Gurudwara Singh Sabha, Rudrapur- 263153,
Uttarakhand.

Person or Persons

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated
organization, body corporate, corporation, Company, partnership, limited liability
Company, joint venture, trust or any other entity or organization validity constituted
and/or incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context
requires.

Promoters Our

Promoters

or

Mr. Arpan Jindal, Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, Ms. Rekha Agarwal, Ms. Venu Jindal
and M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited.

Promoters Group

The companies, individuals and entities (other than companies) as defined under
Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, which is provided in the
chapter titled “Our Promoters Group”. For further details refer to page 197 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.
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Registered Office The Registered office of our company which is located at B-25, 29, Industrial Estate
Bazpur Road, Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur, Uttarakhand, India, 244713.

Restated Financial| The Restated Financial statements of our Company, which comprises the restated

Statements statement of Assets and Liabilities for the year ended as at March 31, 2025, March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2023 and the restated statements of profit and loss and the restated
cash flows for the year ended as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
of our Company prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act and
restated in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and the Revised
Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the
ICAI, together with the schedules, notes and
annexure thereto.

ROC Registrar of Companies, Uttarakhand.

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the SEBI Act, 1992.

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as amended from time to time.

SEBI (ICDR) SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as

Regulations amended.

SEBI Insider Trading The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations Regulations, 2015 as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI
from time to time.

SEBI (LODR) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as

Regulations amended.

SEBI (Takeover) SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as

Regulations or SEBI amended from time to time.

(SAST) Regulations

Stakeholders’ The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as the Company’s Stakeholders’

Relationship Committee

Relationship Committee is in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder and disclosed as such in the chapter titled “Our
Management” on page 169 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Stock Exchange/ Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, the SME Platform of BSE Limited.

Exchange

Subsidiary For details of our Subsidiary, refer section titled “History and Certain Corporate
Matters” beginning on page no. 163 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Subscribers to MOA Initial Subscriber to the MOA being Mr. Arpan Jindal, Mr. Devendra Kumar

Agarwal, Mr. Puneet Mohindra on behalf of M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited,
Mr. Braham Prakash Goel on behalf of M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited,
Mr. Sumit Agarwal on behalf of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial
Corporation Private Limited, Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Agarwal on behalf of M/s Sharma
Investments Limited and Mr. Dinesh Goel on behalf of M/s Tomar Investments Limited.

Issue Related Terms

Terms Description \

Abridged Prospectus Abridged Prospectus to be issued as per SEBI ICDR Regulations and appended to the
Application Form.

Acknowledgement The slip or document issued by a Designated Intermediary to a Bidder as proof of

Slip registration of the Bid cum Application Form.

Allocation Note Shares which will be Allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment by the
Designated Stock Exchange.

Allotment/  Allot/ Unless the context otherwise requires, allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the

Allotted Fresh Issue to the successful Applicants.

Allotment Advice Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Bidders who have been or are to be
Allotted the Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the
Designated Stock Exchange.
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Allottee The successful applicant to whom the Equity Shares are being / have been allotted.

Anchor Investor A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion in
accordance with the requirements specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Draft
Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus and who has Bid for an amount of
at least Rs. 200 lakhs.

Anchor Investor | The price at which Equity Shares will be allocated to the Anchor Investors in terms of the

Allocation Price

Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which will
be decided by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager
during the Anchor Investor Bid/Offer Period.

Anchor Investor
Application Form

The application form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor Investor
Portion, and which will be considered as an application for Allotment in terms of the
Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus.

Anchor
Bidding Date

Investor

The day, being one Working Day prior to the Bid/Offer Opening Date, on which Bids
by Anchor Investors shall be submitted, prior to and after which the Book Running Lead
Manager will not accept any Bids from Anchor Investors, and allocation to Anchor
Investors shall be completed.

Anchor
Offer Price

Investor

The final price at which the Equity Shares will be issued and Allotted to Anchor
Investors in terms of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus and the
Prospectus, which price will be equal to or higher than the Offer Price but not higher
than the Cap Price. The Anchor Investor Offer Price will be decided by our Company in
consultation with the BRLM.

Anchor
Portion

Investor

Up to 60% of the QIB Portion, which may be allocated by our Company, in consultation
with the BRLM, to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, out of which one third shall be reserved for domestic Mutual
Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above
the Anchor Investor Allocation Price, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Applicant/ Investor

Any prospective investor who makes an application for Equity Shares of our
Company in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus

Application Amount

The amount at which the Applicant makes an application for Equity Shares of our
Company in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Application Form

The Form in terms of which the prospective investors shall apply for our Equity Shares
in the Issue.

ASBA/ Application
Supported by
Blocked Amount.

Applications Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) means an application for
Subscribing to the Issue containing an authorization to block the application money in a
bank account maintained with SCSB.

ASBA Account

Account maintained with an SCSB and specified in the Application Form which will
be blocked by such SCSB or account of the RIIs blocked upon acceptance of UPI
Mandate request by Rlls using the UPI mechanism to the extent of the appropriate Bid
/ Application Amount in relation to a Bid / Application by an ASBA Applicant.

ASBA Application
Location(s)/ Specified
Cities

Locations at which ASBA Applications can be uploaded by the SCSBs, namely
Mumbai, New Delhi, Chennai, Kolkata, Ahmedabad, Hyderabad, Pune, Baroda and
Surat.

ASBA
applicant

Investor/ASBA

Any prospective investor(s)/applicants(s) in this Issue who apply(ies) through the
ASBA process.

Banker(s) to the Issue/
Public Issue Bank/ Refund
Banker.

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Banker to an Issue
with whom the Public Issue Account will be opened and in this case being Yes Bank
Limited.

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which Equity Shares will be Allotted to the successful Applicants under
the issue and which is described under chapter titled “Issue Procedure” beginning
on page 273 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Bid

An indication to make an Offer during the Bid/Offer Period by an ASBA Bidder
pursuant to submission of the ASBA Form, or during the Anchor Investor Bidding Date
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by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to the submission of a Bid cum Application Form, to
subscribe to or purchase the Equity Shares at a price within the Price Band, including all
revisions and modifications thereto as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations in
terms of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum
Application Form.

Bidder

Any investor who makes a Bid pursuant to the terms of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form, and unless
otherwise stated or implied, includes an Anchor Investor.

Bid Amount

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form and, in
the case of RIBs Bidding at the Cut off Price, the Cap Price multiplied by the number
of Equity Shares Bid for by such RIBs and mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form
and payable by the Bidder or blocked in the ASBA Account of the ASBA Bidder, as
the case may be, upon submission of the Bid

Bid cum Application

Anchor Investor application form or ASBA form (with and without the use of UPL, as

Form may be applicable), whether physical or electronic, which will be considered as the
application for Allotment in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus.

Bid Lot 2000 Equity Shares and in multiples of 2000 Equity Shares thereafter.

Bidding/Collection Centres at which the Designated intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms, i.e

Centres Designated SCSB Branch for SCSBs, specified locations for syndicate, broker centre

for registered brokers, designated RTA Locations for RTAs and designated CDP
locations for CDPs.

Book Building

The book building process, as described in Part A, Schedule XIII of the SEBI ICDR

Process Regulations, in terms of which the Issue will be made

Book Running Lead The book running lead manager to the Issue, namely Narnolia Financial Services

Manager or BRLM/ Limited (NFSL).

Lead Manager or LM

Business Day Monday to Friday (except public holidays).

CAN or The note or advice or intimation sent to Anchor investors indicating the Equity Shares

Confirmation of which will be Allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment by the designated

Allocation Note stock exchange.

Cap Price The higher end of the Price Band, above which the Offer Price and Anchor Investor Offer
Price will not be finalised and above which no Bids will be accepted. The Cap Price
shall be atleast 105% of the Floor Price.

Client ID Client Identification Number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to
Demat account.

Collecting Depository A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered with

Participants or CDPs SEBI and who is eligible to procure Applications at the Designated CDP Locations in
terms of circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10,2015,
Issued by SEBI.

Controlling Branch Such branch of the SCSBs which coordinate Applications under this Issue by the ASBA
Applicants with the Registrar to the Issue and the Stock Exchange and a list of which is
available at http://www.sebi.gov.in, or at such other website as may be prescribed by
SEBI from time to time.

Demographic Details The demographic details of the Applicants such as their address, PAN, occupation and
bank account details.

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms from the ASBA

Designated Branches Applicants and a list of which is available at www.sebi.gov.in, or at such other
website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Designated Date The date on which relevant amounts blocked by SCSBs are transferred from the ASBA

Accounts to the Public Offer Account or the Refund Account, as the case may be, and
the instructions are issued to the SCSBs (in case of RIls using UPI Mechanism,
instruction issued through the Sponsor Bank) for the transfer of amounts blocked by the
SCSBs in the ASBA Accounts to the Public Offer Account or the Refund Account, as the
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case may be, in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus following which Equity Shares will
be Allotted in the Offer.

Designated
Intermediaries/ Collecting
Agent

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by RIls authorizing an SCSB to block the
Application Amount in the ASBA Account, Designated Intermediaries shall mean
SCSBs. In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by RIls where the Application Amount
will be blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by such RII using the UPI
Mechanism, Designated Intermediaries shall mean syndicate members, sub-syndicate
members, Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs. In relation to ASBA Forms submitted
by QIBs and NIBs, Designated Intermediaries shall mean SCSBs, syndicate members,
sub- syndicate members, Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs.

Designated CDP)| Such locations of the CDPs where Applicant can submit the Application Forms to
Locations Collecting Depository Participants. The details of such Designated CDP Locations, along
with names and contact details of the Collecting Depository Participants eligible to
accept Application Forms are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e.
www.bsesme.com
Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms (other than ASBA
Forms submitted by RIIs where the Application Amount will be blocked upon
Designated SCSB acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by such RII using the UPI Mechanism), a list of
Branches which is available on the website of SEBI at Intermediaries [www.sebi.gov.in] or at such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from
time to time.
Designated  Stock SME Platform of BSE Limited. (BSE SME)
Exchange
Draft Red Herring This Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated November 27, 2024, issued in accordance with
Prospectus Section 26 and 32 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and
filed with BSE SME for obtaining In- Principle Approval.
Eligible NRIs NRIs from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an issue or

invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom this Red Herring Prospectus
constitutes an invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares offered herein.

SME Platform of BSE

The SME Platform of BSE Limited (BSE) for listing equity shares offered under

Limited (BSE) Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulation which was approved by SEBI as an SME
Exchange.
FII/  Foreign Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors)

Institutional Investors

Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India.

First/ Sole Applicant The applicant whose name appears first in the Application Form or Revision Form.

Floor Price The lower end of the Price Band, subject to any revision thereto, at or above which the
Offer Price and the Anchor Investor Offer Price will be finalized and below which no
Bids will be accepted.

General Information The General Information Document for investing in public issues prepared and issued

Document / GID

in accordance with the circular (CIR/CFD/DIL/12/2013) dated October 23, 2013,
notified by SEBI and certain other amendments to applicable laws and updated pursuant
to the circular (CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015) dated November 10, 2015, the
circular (CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2016) dated January 1, 2016
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26) dated January 21, 2016 and circular
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138) dated November 1, 2018 notified by SEBI and
included in the chapter “Issue Procedure” on page no. 273 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

and

Issue/ Issue Size/ Initial

Public Issue/ Initial Public

Initial Public Issue of up to 49,70,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully
paid up of our Company for cash at a price of Rs. [®]/- per Equity Share (including a

Page 7 of 327



http://www.bsesme.com/
http://www.sebi.gov.in/

LS

Foundry Division

Offer/Initial Public | premium of Rs. [@]/- per Equity Share) aggregating Rs. [®] Lakhs.

Offering/ IPO

Issue Agreement/ The agreement/MOU dated September 25, 2024 and Addendum to the agreement dated

Memorandum of July 25, 2025, between our Company and the BRLM, pursuant to which certain

Understanding (MOU) | arrangements are agreed to in relation to the Issue.

Issue Closing Date The date on which Issue closes for subscription i.e. September 26, 2025

Issue Opening Date The date on which Issue opens for subscription i.e. September 30, 2025

Issue Period The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date inclusive of both
the days during which prospective investors may submit their application.

Issue Price The final price at which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful ASBA Bidders in

terms of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus which will be
decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM, on the Pricing Date, in
accordance with the Book-Building Process and in terms of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus. Equity Shares will be Allotted to Anchor Investors
at the Anchor Investor Offer Price, which will be decided by our Company in
consultation with the BRLM, on the Pricing Date, in accordance with the Book-Building
Process and in terms of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus.

Issue Proceeds Proceeds from the Issue will be, being Rs. [®] Lakhs.
Listing Agreement The equity listing agreement to be signed between our Company and BSE Limited.
Market Maker Market Makers appointed by our Company, being M/s Prabhat Financial Services

Limited having SEBI registration number INZ000169433 who have agreed to receive
or deliver the specified securities in the market making process for a period of three
years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for any other period as may be
notified by SEBI from time to time.

Market Making | The Agreement entered into between the BRLM, Market Maker and our Company dated

Agreement September 06, 2025.

Market Maker The Reserved Portion up to 2,54,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully

Reservation paid for cash at a price of Rs. [®]/- per equity share aggregating Rs. [®] Lakh for the
Market Maker in this Issue.

Mutual Fund(s) A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996,
as amended from time to time.

Net Issue/ Offer The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) up to 47,16,000 Equity

Shares of Rs. 10/- each of Issuer at Rs. [®] /- (including share premium of Rs. [®] /- per
equity share aggregating to Rs. [@] /- Lakhs.

Net Proceeds The Issue Proceeds, less the Issue related expenses, received by the Company. For
information about use of the Issue Proceeds and the Issue expenses, please refer to the
chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 81 of this Red Herring

Prospectus.
Non-Institutional All Applicants that are not Qualified Institutional Buyers or Individual Investors who
Applicants have applied for Equity Shares for an amount more than Rs. 2,00,000.
OCB / Overseas Corporate Company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to
Body the extent of at least 60% by NRIs, including overseas trust in which not less than 60%

of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly as defined under
FEMA. OCB:s are not allowed to invest in this Issue.

Payment through | Payment through ECS / NECS, Direct Credit, RTGS or NEFT, as applicable.
electronic  transfer of

funds

Price Band The price band ranging from the Floor Price of Rs. 53/- per Equity Share to the Cap

Price of Rs. 56/- per Equity Share, including any revisions thereto. The Price Band and
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minimum Bid Lot, as decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM, will be
advertised in all editions of [e] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper)
and all editions of [e] (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper, all editions
of [e] being the regional language of Uttarakhand, where our Registered Office is
located), at least two Working Days prior to the Bid/Offer Opening Date with the
relevant financial ratios calculated at the Floor Price and at the Cap Price, and shall be
made available to the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of uploading on their respective
websites.

Pricing Date The date on which our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, will finalize the Offer
Price.
Prospectus The Prospectus to be filed with the ROC containing, inter alia, the Issue opening and

closing dates and other information.

Public Issue Account

Account opened with the Banker to the Issue/Public Issue Bank i.e. Yes Bank Limited
by our Company to receive monies from the SCSBs from the bank accounts of the
ASBA Applicants on the Designated Date.

Qualified Institutional

Buyers / QIBs

As defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, including public financial institutions as
specified in Section 4A of the Companies Act, scheduled commercial banks, mutual
fund registered with SEBI, FII and sub-account (other than a sub- account which is a
foreign corporate or foreign individual) registered with SEBI, multilateral and bilateral
development financial institution, venture capital fund registered with SEBI, foreign
venture capital investor registered with SEBI, state industrial development corporation,
insurance company registered with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority,
provident fund with minimum corpus of Rs. 2,500 Lakh, pension fund with minimum
corpus of Rs. 2,500 Lakh, NIF and insurance funds set up and managed by army, navy
or air force of the Union of India, Insurance funds set up and managed by the Department
of Posts, India.

Red
Prospectus/RHP

Herring

The Red Herring Prospectus dated September 21, 2025 issued in accordance with
Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, which will not have complete particulars of the Offer Price and the size of
the Offer, including any addenda or corrigenda thereto. The Red Herring Prospectus will
be filed with the RoC at least three days before the Bid/Offer Opening Date.

Refund Account

Account(s) to which monies to be refunded to the Applicants shall be transferred from
the Public Issue Account in case listing of the Equity Shares does not occur.

Refund Bank

The bank(s) which is/are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Banker(s) to
the Issue, at which the Refund Account for the Issue will be opened in case listing of the
Equity Shares does not occur, in this case being Yes Bank Limited.

Refunds through
electronic transfer of
funds

Refunds through electronic transfer of funds means refunds through ECS, Direct Credit
or RTGS or NEFT or the ASBA process, as applicable

Registrar/ Registrar to the
Issue

Registrar to the Issue being Skyline Financial Services Private Limited. For more
information, please refer “General Information” on page 52 of this Red Herring

Prospectus.

Registrar Agreement The agreement dated September 25, 2024 and addendum to the agreement dated July
25, 2025, entered between our Company and the Registrar to the Offer in relation to
the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Offer pertaining to the Offer.

Regulations Unless the context specifies something else, this means the SEBI (Issue of Capital and

Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time.

Individual Investors

Individual investors (including HUFs, in the name of Karta and Eligible NRIs) who
apply for the minimum application size.
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Revision Form

The form used by the Applicants to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares or the
Application Amount in any of their Application Forms or any previous Revision
Form(s). QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not allowed to withdraw or lower
their Application Amounts (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Application
Amount) at any stage. Individual Applicants can withdraw or revise their Application
until Offer Closing Date).

SCSB

Shall mean a Banker to an Issue registered under SEBI (Bankers to an Issue)
Regulations, 1994, as amended from time to time, and which offer the service of making
Application/s Supported by Blocked Amount including blocking of bank account and a
list of which is available
http://www.sebi.gov.in/cms/sebi_data/attachdocs/1480483399603.html or at such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

on

Sponsor Bank

Sponsor Bank means a Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI which is appointed by
the Issuer to act as a conduct between the Stock Exchanges and NPCI in order to push
the mandate collect requests and / or payment instructions of the investors into the
UPL. In this case being Yes Bank Limited.

“Syndicate Agreement”

The agreement dated September 06, 2025, entered into between our Company, the
BRLM and the Syndicate Members in relation to the procurement of Bids by the
Syndicate.

“Syndicate Member(s)” |Syndicate member(s) as defined under Regulation 2(1) (hhh) of the SEBI ICDR
Syndicate Regulations, namely NEXGEN Financial Solutions Private Limited.

“Syndicate” or “Members | Together, the BRLM and the Syndicate Members.

of the Syndicate”

Underwriters Underwriters to this Issue is Narnolia Financial Services Limited and Prabhat Financial

Services Limited

Underwriting Agreement

The agreement dated September 25, 2024 and Addendum to the Underwriting
Agreement September 06, 2025.

UPl/ Unified Payments
Interface

Unified Payments Interface (UPI) is an instant payment system developed by the NPCI.
It enables merging several banking features, seamless fund routing & merchant
payments into one hood. UPI allows instant transfer of money between any two persons
bank accounts using a payment address which uniquely identifies a person’s bank a/c

Working Days

In accordance with Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working days
means, all days on which commercial banks in the city as specified in this Red Herring
Prospectus are open for business.

However, in respect of announcement of price band and bid/ Offer period, working day
shall mean all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which
commercial banks in the city as notified in the Red Herring Prospectus are open for
business.

In respect to the time period between the bid/ Offer closing date and the listing of the
specified securities on the stock exchange, working day shall mean all trading days of
the stock exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays in accordance with circular
issued by SEBI.

Conventional Terms / General Terms / Abbreviations/ Industry related terms

Abbreviation Full Form

X or “Rs.” or |Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India
“Rupees” or “INR”
Alc Account
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ACIT Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax

ACS Associate Company Secretary

AGM Annual General Meeting

AS Accounting Standards as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

ASBA Applications Supported by Blocked Amount

AY Assessment Year

Bn Billion

BIS Bureau of Indian Standards

BSE BSE Limited (BSE)

BSE Bombay Stock Exchange of India

BSE SME SME Platform of BSE

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CIN Corporate Identification Number

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax

CS Company Secretary

DCS Distributed Control System

DGFT Directorate General of Foreign Trade

DIN Director Identification Number

DP Depository Participant

DPDP Act Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023

ECS Electronic Clearing System

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

EMDEs Emerging Markets and Developing Economies

EPS Earnings Per Share

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended from time to time, and the
regulations framed there under

Flls Foreign Institutional Investors (as defined under Foreign Exchange Management
(Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident outside India) Regulations, 2000)
registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India

FPIs Foreign Portfolio Investors as defined under Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019 and as amended thereunder.

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board

F&NG Father and Natural Guardian

FY/Fiscal/Financial Period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated

Year

GDP Gross Domestic Product

Gol/Government Government of India

GST Goods and Service Tax

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

I.T. Act Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

ICSI Institute of Company Secretaries of India

MAPIN Market Participants and Investors’ Integrated Database

Merchant Banker Merchant Banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992

MoF Ministry of Finance, Government of India

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NA Not Applicable

NAV Net Asset Value

NGT National Green Tribunal
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NPV Net Present Value

NRE Account Non-Resident External Account

NRIs Non-Resident Indians

NRO Account Non-Resident Ordinary Account

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

OCB Overseas Corporate Bodies

OSp Other Service Provider

p-a. per annum

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio

PAC Persons Acting in Concert

PAN Permanent Account Number

PAT Profit After Tax

PCB Pollution Control Board

PSU Public Sector Undertaking

QA/QC Quality Assurance / Quality Control

QIC Quarterly Income Certificate

RBI The Reserve Bank of India

ROE Return on Equity

RONW Return on Net Worth

Rs. Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

RERA Real Estate Regulatory Authority

SCRA Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to time
SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to time.
Sec. Section

SPV Special Purpose Vehicle

STT Securities Transaction Tax

US/United States United States of America

USD/US$/ $ United States Dollar, the official currency of the Unites States of America
UPl/  Unified Unified Payments Interface (UPI) is an instant payment system developed by the NPCI.

Payments Interface

It enables merging several banking features, seamless fund routing & merchant payments
into one hood. UPI allows instant transfer of money between any two persons bank
accounts using a payment address which uniquely identifies

a person’s bank a/c.

UPI Circulars

SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018,
SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, SEBI
circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI
circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26,2019, SEBI circular
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 8, 2019, SEBI circular
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020 dated March 30, 2020, SEBI circular
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021, SEBI
circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, SEBI
circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021, SEBI
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, SEBI circular
no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022 and any
circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in this regard.

subsequent

UPIID

ID created on Unified Payment Interface (UPI) for single-window mobile payment system
developed by the National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI).

UPI Mandate Request

The request initiated by the Sponsor Bank and received by an RII using the UPI
Mechanism to authorize blocking of funds on the UPI mobile or other application
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UPI Mechanism The bidding mechanism that may be used by a RIB to make an application in the Issue
in accordance with SEBI circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138) dated
November 1, 2018

UPI PIN Password to authenticate UPI transaction

VCF / Venture | Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India

CapitalFund (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012) registered with SEBI under
applicable laws in India.

WEO World Economic Outlook

The words and expressions used but not defined in this Red Herring Prospectus will have the same meaning as
assigned to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (the
“SEBI Act”), the SCRA, SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 the Depositories
Act and the rules and regulations made thereunder.

Technical / Industry related Terms

Term Description

ACIT Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
APQP Advanced Product Quality Planning
BOM Bill of Material

CMM Coordinate Measuring Machine

CNC Computer Numerical Control

CFT Core Functional Team

CRC Cold Rolled Cuttings

FIFO First In, First Out

GCS Green Compression Strength

HMC Horizontal Machining Centre

HTS Hot Tensile Strength

HP Horsepower

IATF International Automotive Task Force
ISO International Organization for Standardization
Kg Kilogram

KV Kilovolts

KVA Kilo-volt-amperes

MM Millimeter

MT Metric ton

MS Mild Steel

P.O. Purchase Order

PTOs Power Take-offs

RDSO Research Design and Standards Organisation
RFQ Request for Quote

SJS Simultaneous Jolt and Squeeze Machine
TPH Tons per Hour

TCS Traction Control System

UTM Universal Testing Machine

VMC Vertical Machining Center

Notwithstanding the foregoing:

1. In the section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association” beginning on page number 314 of the

Red Herring Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

2. In the chapters titled “Summary of Offer Documents" and “Our Business " beginning on page numbers 18

and 122 respectively, of the Red Herring Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such

terms in that section,
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3. In the section titled “Risk Factors ' beginning on page number 25 of the Red Herring Prospectus, defined
terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

4. In the chapter titled “Statement of Tax Benefits” beginning on page number 99 of the Red Herring
Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section;

5. In the chapter titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations” beginning on page number 214 of the Red Herring Prospectus, defined terms shall have the
meaning given to such terms in that section.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Certain Conventions

All references in the Red Herring Prospectus to “India” are to the Republic of India. All references in the Red
Herring Prospectus to the “U.S.”, “USA” or “United States” are to the United States of America.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Red Herring Prospectus are to the page number
of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Financial Data

Unless stated or the context requires otherwise, the financial information and financial ratios in this Red Herring
Prospectus are derived from our Restated Financial Statements which comprise the restated statement of assets
and liabilities as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023, the restated statement of profits and
loss (including other comprehensive income), and the restated statement of cash flows for the year ended March
31, 2025, March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023 together with the summary statement of significant accounting
policies, and other explanatory information thereon, each derived from the audited financial statements of our
Company as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023, each prepared in accordance with GAAP,
and restated in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time,
and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the ICAI and included
in "Summary of Financial Information", "Restated Financial Statements" and "Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" on page 48, 212 and 214, respectively.

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 01 and ends on March 31 of next year. Unless stated
otherwise, all references in this Red Herring Prospectus to the terms Fiscal or Fiscal Year or Financial Year or
FY are to the 12 months ended March 31 of such year. Unless stated otherwise, or the context requires otherwise,
all references to a "year" in this Red Herring Prospectus are to a calendar year.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and US GAAP. The Company has not attempted
to quantify their impact on the financial data included herein and urges you to consult your own advisors
regarding such differences and their impact on the Company’s financial data. Accordingly, to what extent, the
financial statements included in this Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices / Indian GAAP. Any reliance by
persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Red Herring
Prospectus should accordingly be limited. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our
Business”, “Management‘s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated on the basis of the
Company’s restated financial statements prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act and Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as stated in the report of our
Peer Reviewed Auditors, set out in the section titled “Restated Financial Statements” beginning on page 212 of
this Red Herring Prospectus.

Currency and units of presentation

In this Red Herring Prospectus, All references to:
o ‘Rupees’ or ‘X’ or ‘Rs.” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.
o ‘U.S.$’, ‘U.S. Dollar’, ‘USD’ or ‘U.S. Dollars’ are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the
United States of America.
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In this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has presented certain numerical information. All figures have been
expressed in "lakhs" of units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to be represented in
lakhs. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and ten lakhs represents 10,00,000 and one crore represents 1,00,00,000 and
ten crores represents 10,00,00,000. However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party
industry sources may be expressed in denominations other than lakhs, such figures have been expressed in this
Red Herring Prospectus in such denominations as provided in their respective sources.

Exchange Rates

This Red Herring Prospectus may contain conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that
have been presented solely to comply with the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions
should not be construed as a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted
into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate, or at all.

Unless otherwise particularly stated in the Red Herring prospectus, the following table set forth, for period
indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between the Rupee and other foreign currencies:
(Amount in Rupees)
Exchange Rate as on
March 31, 2025%* March 31, 2024* ‘ March 31, 2023
1 USD 85.58 83.37 82.22
Source: RBI/ Financial Benchmark India Private Limited (www.fbil.org.in)

*%Since March 31, 2025, was a Holiday, the exchange rate was considered as on March 28, 2025, being the last
working day prior to March 31, 2025.
* Since March 31, 2024, was a Sunday, the exchange rate was considered as on March 28, 2024, being the last
working day prior to March 31, 2024.

Currency

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry data used throughout the Red Herring Prospectus has been obtained or derived
from industry and government publications, publicly available information and sources. Industry publications
generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to
be reliable but that their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured.
Although our Company believes that industry data used in the Red Herring Prospectus is reliable, it has not been
independently verified. Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in the Red Herring
Prospectus is meaningful depends on the reader's familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used
in compiling such data. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct
our business, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements contained in the Red Herring Prospectus that are not statements of historical facts constitute
forward-looking statements. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and results of operations,
business, objectives, strategies, plans, goals and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-
looking statements include statements as to our business strategy, our revenue and profitability, planned projects
and other matters discussed in this Red Herring Prospectus regarding matters that are not historical facts. These
Jforward-looking statements and any other projections contained in the Red Herring Prospectus (whether made
by us or any third party) are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections.

These forward-looking statements can generally be identified by words or phrases such as “will”, “aim”, “will
likely result”, “believe”, “expect”, “will continue”, “anticipate”, ‘‘estimate”, “intend”, “plan”,

“contemplate”, “seek to”, ‘future”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”, “should”, “will pursue” and similar
expressions or variations of such expressions.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include but are not
limited to:

= our inability to capitalize the opportunities and growth in the ferrous casting industry;

= our dependency on the Auto Components industry;

= termination of lease agreements with respect to the properties used by our company;

= our dependency on significant power requirements for continuous running of our manufacturing units;

= our dependency on third party transportation providers for the timely delivery of raw materials

= our dependency on our management team and certain management personnel;

= our dependence on limited number of customers for a significant portion of our revenues;

= our ability to successfully identify customer requirements and preferences and gain customer
acceptance for our services;

= our ability to successfully implement strategy, growth and expansion plans

= our ability to respond to new innovations in our industry

= our ability to adapt with the technological advancements;

= conflict of interest with affiliated companies, the promoter group and other related parties;

= general social and political conditions in India which have an impact on our business activities or
investments;

= impact of Covid 19 pandemic or any future pandemic;
= market fluctuations and industry dynamics beyond our control;
= developments affecting the Indian economy;

For a further discussion of factors that could cause our current plans and expectations and actual results to differ,
please refer to the chapters titled “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning on page 25, 122 and 214, respectively of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

Forward looking statements reflect views as of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus and not a guarantee of
future performance. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially
different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ
from those that have been estimated. Neither our Company / our directors nor the BRLM, nor any of its affiliates
have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to
fruition. In accordance with SEBI requirements, our Company and the BRLM will ensure that investors in India
are informed of material developments until such time as the listing and trading permission is granted by the
Stock Exchange(s).
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SECTION II - SUMMARY OF OFFER DOCUMENTS

The following is a general summary of the terms of the Offer and is not exhaustive, nor does it purport to contain a
summary of all the disclosures in this Red Herring Prospectus or all details relevant for prospective investors. This
summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information
appearing elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus, including in “Definitions and Abbreviations”, “Risk Factors”,
“The Issue”, “Capital Structure”, “Objects of the issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Our Promoters”,
“Promoter Group”, “Summary of our Financial Statements”, “Issue Procedure”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material
Developments” and “Terms of the Articles of Association” beginning on pages 2, 25, 45, 62, 81, 102, 122, 188, 197,
48, 273, 234 and 314 respectively.

SUMMARY OF OUR BUSINESS OVERVIEW

As the Foundry Division of the KVS Premier Group, Our Company specializes in quality ferrous castings. Our
Company is involved in the manufacturing and production of Cast Iron and Ductile Iron castings. We deliver
comprehensive casting solutions tailored to meet our customers' needs. From cast iron to stainless steel, we offer a
total casting solution under one roof, with a portfolio of more than 150 products, including Suspension Brackets,
Brake Drums, Gear Box Housing, Pump Body, Oil Filters and more.

We ensure maintaining the required quality standards, we are accredited with certifications in IATF 16949:2016, ISO
9001:2015 and Certified by the RDSO (Research and development organization under the Ministry of Railways in
India).

We are the castings supplier for various industries, including:

Automobile including passenger and commercial vehicles
Railway

Heavy Machinery and Equipment

Energy and Power Generation

Infrastructure and Construction

Agricultural Machinery includes Tractor

VVVYVVYVY

SUMMARY OF OUR INDUSTRY

Global Iron Casting Industry/ Ferrous Casting Industry

The iron casting market, valued at USD 151.77 billion in 2024, is forecasted to grow consistently, reaching USD
161.78 billion in 2025 and ultimately achieving USD 269.7 billion by 2033, at a steady CAGR of 6.6%. Iron casting
is a manufacturing system wherein molten iron is poured into molds to create numerous additives with specific shapes
and properties. This system is broadly used throughout more than one industries due to the fabric’s energy, sturdiness,
and value-effectiveness.

Source: https://www.businessresearchinsights.com/market-reports/iron-casting-market-121372)

India Foundry market/ Indian Ferrous Casting Market

The India Foundry Market size is estimated at USD 25.57 billion in 2025, and is expected to reach USD 42.61 billion
by 2030, at a CAGR of 11.13% during the forecast period (2025-2030).During the COVID-19 pandemic in December
2020, more than 400 small foundries in Coimbatore shut their doors due to rising raw material prices. The shutdown
affected lakhs of employees working in and with the foundries, as well as in other industries such as pumps, textile
machines, automobiles, and other engineering sectors. Moreover, in March 2022, several foundry units in Kolhapur
were temporarily closed and declared three to four days of holiday for their employees due to a sharp increase in raw
material prices caused by the Russia-Ukraine war.

(Source: https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-foundry-market).
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PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY

The promoters of our Company are Mr. Arpan Jindal, Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, Ms. Rekha Agarwal, Ms. Venu
Jindal and M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited. For detailed information
please refer to the chapter titled “Our Promoters” on page number 188 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

ISSUE SIZE

The issue size comprises of fresh issue of up to 49,70,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up
of the Company for cash at price of Rs. [@] /- per Equity Share (including premium of Rs. [@]/- per Equity Share)
aggregating total issue size amounting to Rs. [e] Lakhs, of which up to 2,54,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of
10/- each at a price of X [®] aggregating to X [@] Lakhs will be reserved for subscription by Market Maker (“Market
Maker Reservation Portion”) and Net Issue to Public of up to 47,16,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of 210/- each
at a price of X [e] aggregating to I[e] Lakhs (hereinafter referred to as the “Net Issue”) The Issue and the Net Issue
will constitute 26.50% and 25.15% respectively of the Post Issue paid up Equity Share Capital of Our Company.

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Our Company intends to utilize the Net Proceeds for the following objects:

S. Particulars (Rupees in Lakhs)
No

1. Capital Expenditures 2,150.00
2. General Corporate Purposes™ [e]
Net Issue Proceeds [e]

“Subject to finalization of basis of allotment

* To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the
RoC and the amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 15% of the amount raised
by our Company or Rs. 10 Crores, whichever is lower.

AGGREGATE PRE-ISSUE SHAREHOLDING OF THE PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP AS
A PERCENTAGE OF THE PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL OF THE ISSUER:

Promoters
1. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 9.49% 13,08,515 6.98%
2. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 9.48% 13,06,793 6.97%
3. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 9.48% 13,06,424 6.97%
4. | Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 9.17% 12,63,292 6.74%
5. | M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural 35,75,610 25.94% 35,75,610 19.07%
Industrial Corporation Private Limited
Total — A 87,60,634 65.83% 87,60,634 46.72%
Promoter Group
6. | M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steel Private 20,82,923 15.11% 20,82,923 11.11%
Limited
7. | M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 24,60,287 17.85% 24,60,287 13.12%

Page 19 of 327



s

Foundry Division

8. ‘ M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited 3,280 0.02% 3,280 0.02%
Total- B 45,46,490 34.17% 45,46,490 24.24%
Grand Total (A+B) 1,33,07,124 96.55% 1,33,07,124 70.96%
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
On the basis of Restated Financials:
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year |For the Year For the Year
ended 31 March, jended 31 March, ended 31March,
2025 2024 2023
Share Capital 1,378.33 32.46 32.46
Net Worth 3,444.97 2,578.54 1,983.43
Revenue from operation 5,010.94 5,415.75 5,726.34
Profit after Tax 662.53 595.10 483.84
EPS Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) 4.81 447 3.64
NAV per Equity Share (in Rs.) 24.99 794.46 611.11
Total borrowings
- Long Term - 28.13 295.04
- Short Term 371.79 30.00 202.74

QUALIFICATIONS OF AUDITORS

There are no qualifications of our Statutory Auditor which have not been given effect to in the Restated Financial
Statements.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS & MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

A summary of pending legal proceedings and other material litigations involving our Company is provided below:
(Amount in Rupees)

| civil Criminal | Tax Actions by
By/Against . A : regulatory
Proceedings | Proceeding | Proceedings -
authorities
By - - - - -
Company Against 1 - - 67,424.00
By 2 - - -
Promoter Against - 2 - 46,871.00
Group By - - - 12,29,866.00
Companies/E |\ inst 1 19 - 7,33,97,918.00
ntities
Directors By - - - -
other than Against i i i i i
promoters

Note: To the extent ascertainable
For further details please refer to the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations & Material Developments” beginning
on page 234 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

RISK FACTORS

For details relating to risk factors, please refer to the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 25 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.
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SUMMARY OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES OF OUR COMPANY

The details of the Contingent Liabilities are as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars For the period ended
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Bank Guarantee/LC Discounting for which FDR margin Nil Nil 12.85
money has been given to the bank as Security
Total Nil Nil 12.85

For further details refer “Financial Statements as Restated” beginning on page no. 212 of this Red Herring
Prospectus on the Company.

SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

a) Controlling Companies/ Firms Nil

b) Key Management Personnel (KMP) i) Devendra Kumar Agarwal

i) Arpan Jindal

iii) Raj Kumar Arora (CFO)

iv) CS Shweta Mehrotra (Company
Secretary)

i) Smt. Rekha Agarwal

ii) Smt. Venu Jindal

1) M/s Anunpurna Steels Private Limited
i1) M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited
iii) M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructure
Industrial Corporation Private Limited

iv) M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private
Limited

v) M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited

vi) M/s Kumaun Plastic Waver’s
Laminators

vii) M/s KVS Premier Foundation

viii) M/s KVS Infraatech LLP

c¢) Relative of Key Management Personnel

d) Enterprises where KMP and their relative have significant
influence

B) Transactions with related parties are as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Nature of Nature of Name of the Party For the year | For the year For the year
Transaction Relationship ended 31 | ended 31 ended 31
March,2025 March,2024 | March,2023
Director's Shri Arpan Jindal 22.28 13.80 13.80
Remuneration
Salary CS Shweta 240 - -
Salary Raj Kumar Arora 7.34 - -
Unsecured Loans Arpan Jindal - - 7.12
Received Shri Devendra - - 8.40
Kumar Agarwal
Unsecured Loan Key Shri Devendra - 114.73 0.84
Repaid Management Kumar Agarwal
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Unsecured Loan Personnel Shri Arpan Jindal - 97.22 0.71
Repaid
Paid against imprest Shri Arpan Jindal 17.76 48.33 -
balance
Lease Rent Paid - - - -
Interest Paid on Shri Arpan Jindal - 4.64 -
Unsecured Loan Shri Devendra - 5.55 -
Kumar Agarwal
Sale of Investment Smt Rekha Agarwal 72.30 - -
in Shares of DFPL | Relative of Key
Sale of Investment Management Renu Jindal 72.30 - -
in Shares of DFPL Personnel
Lease Rent Paid Smt Veenu Jindal 0.90 - -
Freight Received - - - -
Unsecured Loan - - - -
Received
Unsecured Loans - - - -
Repaid
Lease Rent - - - -
Received
Job Work Charges - - - -
Paid
Sales to Related M/s Kashi
Party Vishwanath Steels 127.24 - -
Private Limited
Purchase from M/s Kashi 447.18 335.72 -
Related Party . Vishwanath Steels
Enterprises . ..
. ‘ where KMP & Private L1m1.ted
Securities Deposits . . M/s Kashi 1,020.33 - -
. their relative .
against Leasehold have significant Vishwanath Steels
Factory Land influence Private Limited
Lease Rent Paid KVS Infratech and 32.34 13.38 13.38
Annapurna Steels
Unsecured Loan Devarpan Foods 162.00 275.00 46.62
given Private Limited
Repayment of M/s Kashi - 65.00 43.75
Unsecured loan Vishwanath Steels
given Private Limited
CSR Expenses M/s KVS Premier 17.00 - -
Paid Foundation
Interest Received Devarpan Foods 10.76
on Unsecured Private Limited 6.57 -
Loan Given
Investment KVS Infratech - 1.28 -
LLP

C) Balances outstanding are as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Nature of Relationship | Nature of

Transaction

March, 2025
M/s Devarpan Enterprises where | Loan - 213.90 -
Foods Private KMP & their relative | Outstanding
Limited have significant
influence
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M/s KVS Enterprises where | Investment - 28.02 -
Infratech LLP KMP & their relative

have significant

influence

For Further details of Related Party Transaction, please refer to Annexure VIII in the chapter titled ‘“Restated
Financial Statements” beginning on page 212 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of the Promoter Group, our directors
and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company during a period of
six (6) months immediately preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION OF EQUITY SHARES BY OUR PROMOTERS IN
LAST ONE YEAR

The weighted average cost of acquisition of equity shares by our promoters in last one year which has been
calculated by taking average amount paid by them to acquire our equity shares is as follows:

Name of the Promoter Number of Equity Shares Weighted Average Price* (in
acquired in one year preceding Rs.)

the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus

Mr. Arpan Jindal 12,54,100 Nil
Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 12,35,920 Nil
Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,05,560 Nil
Ms. Venu Jindal 12,62,980 Nil
M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural .

Industrial Corporation Private Limited 34,88,400 Nil

Note: As certified by M/s Arora Gupta & Co. Chartered Accountants, dated June 17,2025.

AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION

The average cost of acquisition per Equity Share by our promoters which has been calculated by taking the average
amount paid by them to acquire our Equity Shares, is as follows:

Name of the Promoter No. of Shares held Average cost of Acquisition* (in
Rs.)
Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 0.42
Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 5.40
Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 0.01
Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 Negligible
M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural 35,75,610 10.20
Industrial Corporation Private Limited

Note: As certified by M/s Arora Gupta & Co. Chartered Accountants, dated June 17,2025.

DETAILS OF PRE-ISSUE PLACEMENT

Our Company does not contemplate any issuance or placement of Equity Shares from the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus until the listing of the Equity Shares.
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ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST ONE
YEAR

Our company has not issued any equity shares other than cash in the last one year except the following:

S.N.  Date of allotment Type of allotment Number of shares issued ‘
1. June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue 1,29,82,560

*The number of shares has been issued at face value of Rs 10/- per share.

For Further Information regarding the Equity Shares issued by the company for consideration other than cash, please
refer to the Chapter Titled “Capital Structure” on page 62 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

SPLIT / CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST ONE YEAR

Our Company has not done any sub-division or consolidation of its Equity shares in the last one year.

EXEMPTION FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY PROVISIONS OF SECURITIES LAWS, IF ANY,
GRANTED BY SEBI

Our Company has not filed or granted any exemption application with SEBI as on date of Red Herring Prospectus.
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SECTION III- RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Red Herring Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties summarized below, before making an
investment in our Equity Shares. The risks described below are relevant to the industries our Company is engaged
in, our Company and our Equity Shares. To obtain a complete understanding of our Company, you should read
this section in conjunction with the chapters titled “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning on page numbers 122 and 214, respectively, of this
Red Herring Prospectus as well as the other financial and statistical information contained in this Red Herring
Prospectus. Prior to making an investment decision, prospective investors should carefully consider all of the
information contained in the section titled “Financial Information, as Restated” beginning on page number 212
of this Red Herring Prospectus.

If any one or more of the following risks as well as other risks and uncertainties discussed in the Red Herring
Prospectus were to occur, our business, financial condition and results of our operation could suffer material
adverse effects, and could cause the trading price of our Equity Shares and the value of investment in the Equity
Shares to materially decline which could result in the loss of all or part of investment. Prospective investors
should pay particular attention to the fact that our Company is incorporated under the laws of India and is
therefore subject to a legal and regulatory environment that may differ in certain respects from that of other
countries.

This Red Herring Prospectus also contains forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of
many factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in the Red Herring Prospectus. These
risks are not the only ones that our Company faces. Our business operations could also be affected by additional
factors that are not presently known to us or that we currently consider to be immaterial to our operations. Unless
specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify financial or other
implication of any risks mentioned herein.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, in this section, references to “we”, “us” and “our”
are to KVS Castings Limited.

Materiality

The Risk factors have been determined based on their materiality, which has been decided based on following
factors:

1. Some events may not be material individually but may be material when considered collectively.
2. Some events may have an impact which is qualitative though not quantitative.
3. Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in the future.
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Classification of Risk Factors

Litigation and Financial
Related Risk

— Internal Risk Factors Business Related Risk

— Issue Related Risk
Risk —

Industry Related Risk

—  External Risk Factors

Others

Internal Risk Factors

1. We are majorly dependent on the performance of the Automobile Sector in India. Any adverse changes in the
conditions affecting these markets can adversely impact on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our business is majorly dependent on the performance of the Automobile Sector in India. Our product portfolio
has been focused on supplying castings components to automobile manufacturers in India. In the event of a
decrease in demand for the Automobile Products in India, or any developments that render the sale of castings
components in this market less economically viable, our business, operational results, and financial condition may
be more severely impacted compared to a more diversified portfolio across different segments of the Automobile
components market.

The Automobile market in India is subject to unique market and regulatory developments that may differ
significantly from those in other parts of the world. We cannot guarantee that the demand for our products in India
will grow or remain stable in the future. Factors influencing the automobile market include changes in government
policies, economic conditions, demographic trends, employment and income levels, and interest rates. These
factors may negatively impact on the demand for and valuation of our products. Such influences, among others,
may contribute to fluctuations in the prices and demand for our products in India, potentially adversely affecting
our business, operational results, and financial condition. However, we are continuously diversifying our business
into other sectors such as Defense, Power Transmission, Railways, and Farm.

2. We are majorly dependent on the Auto Component products, any decline in the demand for these products can
affect our revenue and result of operations.

Our Company is majorly dependent on auto components products as it contributes approx. 80% revenue. If the
demand for this product declines due to changes in market trends, customer preferences, or technological
advancements, the company's revenue can be severely impacted, dependency on one product makes the company's
revenue stream highly volatile and sensitive to any disruptions in the product's market.
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(Rupees in lakhs)
For the period For the period For the period
Particulars ended 31 | ended 31 | ended 31
March, 2025 March, 2024 March, 2023
Auto  components (Commercial and 3,733.44 4,561.83 4,589.62
passenger)
Revenue from Operation 5,010.94 5,415.75 5,726.34
% of Revenue from Operation 74.50 84.23 80.15

However, we are continuously diversifying our business into other sectors such as Defense, Power Transmission,
Railways, and Farm.

For further details related to this refer to the Chapter “Our Business” on page no. 122 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

3. There are outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Group Company. Any adverse
decision in such proceedings may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

We are involved in certain legal proceedings which are pending at different levels of adjudication before various
courts, tribunals, enquiry officers, and appellate authorities.

We cannot provide assurance that these legal proceedings will be decided in our favour. Any adverse decisions in
any of the proceedings may have a significant adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition. A summary of the pending civil and other proceedings involving the Company, Promoters
and Group Companies is provided below:

(Amount in Rupees)
Actions by

Civil Criminal Tax

By/Against Proceedings | Proceeding @ Proceedings regulat.o.r Y

authorities
By - - - - -
Company Against 1 - ; ; 67,424.00
By 2 - - - -
Promoter Against - ) 2 ) 4,26,871.00
Group By - 2 - - 12,29,866.00
Companies/Entities Against 1 - 19 - 7,33,97,918.00
Directors other than By - - - - -
promoters Against - - - - -

Note: To the extent ascertainable
For further details please refer to the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations & Material Developments” beginning on page
234 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable and include amounts
claimed jointly and severally. If any new developments arise, such as a change in Indian law or rulings against us
by appellate courts or tribunals, we may need to make provisions in our financial statements that could increase
our expenses and current liabilities. For further details of legal proceedings involving the Company, Promoters
and Group Companies, please see “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” beginning on page 234
of this Red Herring Prospectus.

4. We had negative cash flow from investing and financing activities in the past and may continue to have negative

cash flows in the future.

The table given below set forth our cash flows for the last three (3) Financial Years.
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(Rupees in lakhs)
For the Financial| For the Financial For the Financial
Particulars Year ended 31 | Year ended 31 | Year ended 31
March, 2025 March, 2024 March, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities 1,053.03 511.35 323.92
Cash flow from investing activities (1,854.11) (50.86) (328.17)
Cash flow from financing activities 504.83 (471.72) 79.67

Our company had negative cash flow from Investing activities largely due to capital expenditures on property,
plant and machinery. Further our company had negative cash flows from financing activities for the financial year
ended March 31,2024 largely due to repayment of long-term and short-term borrowings. Any such negative cash
flow in the future could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. However, the
company has maintained positive cash flow from operating activities. For more details, kindly refer to page no.212
in the chapter title “Financial Information as restated”.

5. Our contingent liabilities as stated in our Restated Financial Statements could adversely affect our financial
conditions.

Below are the contingent liabilities as disclosed in our Restated Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable accounting standards:

Contingent Liabilities and Provisions:

(Rupees in lakhs)
Particul For the period ended
ATEICHEAES March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Bank Guarantee/LC Discounting for which FDR Nil Nil 12.85
margin money has been given to the bank as Security
Total Nil Nil 12.85

Although as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus we have no contingent liabilities, there may be no
assurance in future that no contingent liabilities arises which would impact the revenue and financial position of
our company. For further information about the contingent liabilities, please refer to the chapter titled “Financial
Information” on page 212 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

6. We have significant power requirements for continuous running of our manufacturing units. Any disruption
to our operations on account of interruption in power supply or any irregular or significant hike in power
tariffs may have an effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our manufacturing unit’s requires significant electricity requirements and currently we have availed a power
connection from Uttarakhand Power Corporation Limited for our manufacturing unit premises. Further any
interruption in the supply of power may temporarily disrupt our operations. Since we have a high-power
consumption, any unexpected or unforeseen increase in the tariff rates can increase the operating cost of our
manufacturing units and thereby cause an increase in production cost, which will affect our results of operations
and financial condition. However, for uninterrupted supplies to our customers ,we are maintaining sufficient stock
to avoid any line stoppage at customers ends due to any power failure.

7. The properties used by the Company for the purpose of its operations are not owned by us. Any termination of
the relevant lease or leave and license agreements could adversely affect our operations.

Our company does not have owned properties for the purpose of operations. The place of business of the company
as given below has been taken on lease by our company. Any termination of the relevant lease or leave and license
agreements in connection with such properties or our failure to pay Annual Lease rental, the same could adversely
affect our operations. Periodic renewals of such lease may increase our costs, since it is subject to rent escalation.
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Our failure to pay fixed annual lease charges per annum for our registered office and manufacturing units could
adversely affect our operations.

?el:seo:f Address of Property (z?al;i((ii/ Area
M/s Kumaon | Plot No B-25 & 26, Government Vears Registered
Plastic Industrial Area, Bazpur Road, Kashipur- | Leased | 2,235 Sq (W of office and
Weavers & 244713, (U S Nagar) Uttarakhand Yards 5 6/'1'0)2020) Manufacturing
Laminators Plant Unit -1
Governor of| Plot No. B-29, Industrial Area, Bazpur 2372 Sq 9 Years .

2. Uttarakhand | Road, Kashipur,244713 Leased Yards (w.ef Registered
’ pur, 15/02/1977)* | office
M/s Plot No B-27 and B-28, Government 15 Vears
3. | Annapurna Industrial ~ Area, Bazpur  Road, Leased |2,499 Sq (w.e.l Manufacturing
Steels Private | Kashipur-244713, (U S Nagar) Yards 01/'0'4)2023) Plant Unit -1
Limited Uttarakhand
M/S KVS Plot No B-20, Government Industrial 578°S 5 Years (w.e.f. Manufacturin
4. |Infraatech Area, Bazpur Road, Kashipur-244713, | Leased Yar dsq 01/04/2021 Plant Unit _1g
LLP (U S Nagar) Uttarakhand
5 | Govemor of PlotNo.C-25, C-26,and C-27, Lenog 24935 ?\?V o Years y ronufacturing
* | Uttarakhand | Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand Yards D) 6/'0'8)1977)* Plant Unit -1
M/s  Kashi 20 Years
6. | Vishwanath |Village Baghelewala, Tehsil Kashipur, Leased |10,357.6 (wef Manufacturing
Steels Pvt Distt, Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand Sq Yards 01/‘0'8)202 4) Plant Unit -2 @
Ltd.
*These properties has been taken on lease by our company pursuant to the supplementary lease deed dated October 06,
2023.
Note:
1. Our registered office is located at Unit No. B-25 and B-29 with separate agreements for each unit from
different parties.
2. The property mentioned under manufacturing unit-1 have been acquired by different lessors, thus mentioned
under different heads.
3. The manufacturing activities has not been commenced yet and the installation of new plant and machineries

is still pending in Manufacturing unit 2.

8. Under-utilization of our current manufacturing facility and any inability to effectively utilize our proposed
manufacturing capacity could have an adverse effect on our business, future prospects, and future financial
performance.

The details of capacity utilization by our Company in the past period are shown below:

(In MTPA except %)
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 m

Installed Capacity (In MTPA)* 7,200 7,200 7,200
Actual Production (In MTPA) 5487 5,885 6,113
Capacity Utilization (In %) 76.20% 81.74% 84.90%

*MTPA stands for metric tons per annum

Our ability to maintain profitability depends on our ability to optimize the product mix to support high-margin

products and utilization of full capacity of our manufacturing facilities. Our capacity utilization levels are

dependent on the availability of raw materials, industry/market conditions as well as the requirements of our

customers. In the event we face disruptions at our manufacturing facilities including as a result of unexpected

events or temporary schedule maintenance, or we are unable to procure sufficient raw materials could result in

operational inefficiencies which could impact on our actual production and eventually revenue which may affect
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the results of operations and financial conditions. Currently, we are not utilising our capacity at maximum. We
are at 75-85%. We have continuously improved our capacity utilization.

9. Our top ten customers contributed significant portion of our revenues during the current and previous financial
years. Any loss of business from one or more of them may adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

At present, we derive most of our revenue from our top 10 customers.
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the | For the | For the
Financial Financial Financial

Year ended | Year ended | Year ended
March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

2025 2024 2023

Revenue from Operations 5010.90 5,415.75 5,726.34
Top One (1) Customer 946.00 1,070.31 1,036.15
Top Five (5) Customers 3308.19 4,231.30 3,959.91
Top Ten (10) Customers 4227.44 5,402.05 5,474.44
% of Top One (1) Customers to Revenue from 18.88% 19.76% 18.09%
Operations*

% of Top Five (5) Customers to Revenue from 66.02% 78.13% 69.15%
Operations*

% of Top Ten (10) Customers to Revenue from 84.36% 99.75% 95.60%
Operations*

*The % has been derived by dividing the total amount received from top one, five or ten customers with the
Revenue from operations of the company in the relevant year as mentioned in the Profit and Loss Statement as
given in restated financials of the company.

As our business is currently concentrated among relatively few significant customers, we may experience
reduction in cash flows and liquidity if we lose one or more of our major customers or if the amount of business
from one or more of them is significantly reduced for any reason, including as a result of a dispute with or
disqualification by a major customer. However, to mitigate this risk, we are continuously diversifying and adding
new customers related to different industries such as Defense, Power Transmission, Railways, and Farm to
maintain our revenue.

For further details related to our top ten (10) customers for the financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31,
2024, and March 31, 2023, refer to the Chapter “Our Business” of this Red Herring Prospectus.

10.M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Pvt. Ltd. (KVSPL), a group company of KVS Castings Limited, was imposed a
penalty of Rs. 6,00,000 by SEBI for involvement in illiquid stock options at BSE, we cannot assure that we will
not face such situation in future which could affect our business, financial condition and increased regulatory
scrutiny.

M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Pvt. Ltd (KVSPL), a group company of KVS Casting Limited, was penalized by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for engaging in the dealing of illiquid stock options at the
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), as per adjudication order EAD-5/MC/VS/2018-19/37 dated December 10, 2018.
A penalty of Rs. 6,00,000/- was imposed, which was duly paid on December 31, 2018.

While the penalty has been settled, this incident may affect KVS Castings Limited and its group companies in

terms of business operation, financial condition and increased regulatory scrutiny. Such issues could impact
investor confidence, and the group’s ability to engage in specific financial or trading activities in the future.
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Further, we cannot assure that we will not face such situation in future which could affect our business, financial
condition and increased regulatory scrutiny.

11.0ur Top 10 Suppliers contribute a significant portion of our raw material purchased during previous 3
financial years. Any dispute with one or more of them may adversely affect our business operations.

Our company procures raw materials from various suppliers. As mentioned in the table provided below, around
60% to 70% of total raw material purchased is sourced from our top 10 suppliers.

The details of raw material purchased from our top 10 suppliers for the three preceding financial year is mentioned
as follows:

Top 1, Top 5 and 10 Suppliers

(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the @ For the | For the
Financial Financial Financial Year

Year ended Year ended | ended March
March 31, March 31, | 31,2023

2025 2024

Total Raw Material Purchase 1850.69 2,152.59 2,478.39
Top One (1) Supplier 598.47 724.62 456.49
Top 5 (Five) Suppliers 1420.31 1,646.66 1,445.04
Top ten (10) Suppliers 1732.81 1,833.06 1,545.70
% of Top One (1) Suppliers to Total Raw material 32.34% 39.53% 29.53%
Purchased®

% of Top Five (5) Suppliers to Total Raw material 76.74% 76.50% 58.31%
Purchased®

% of Top Ten (10) Suppliers to Total Raw material 93.63% 85.16% 62.37%
Purchased*

*The % has been derived by dividing the total amount received from top one, five or ten Suppliers with the Total
Raw Material Purchased of the company in the relevant year as mentioned in the Profit and Loss Statement as
given in restated financials of the company.

Though we have not faced any instances of difficulty in procuring the raw material. However, we cannot assure
you that we will not face any such situations, or the procurement of raw material will be on commercially viable
terms. Furthermore, any dispute with any of the suppliers may damage our relationship with existing and potential
suppliers, and in any such event our operations will be adversely affected. Further it will also affect our
profitability and reputation in the market.

12.Majority of our state-wise revenues from operations for the years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024, and
March 31, 2023 is majorly derived from Uttarakhand. Any adverse developments affecting our operations in
this state could have an adverse impact on our revenue and results of operations.

Our business operations span various regions across India. Despite this diversified presence, we have a
significance dependency on Uttarakhand which contributes 71.65 %, 73.07 %, and 82.87 %, to our total revenue
for the Financial Years ending on March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively.

(Rupees in lakhs)

State March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount | % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total
revenue revenue revenue

Uttarakhand 3,590.34 71.65 | 3,957.44 73.07 | 474527 82.87

Page 31 of 327



NS

Foundry Division

Our heavy reliance on one geographic location may expose us to regional economic fluctuations, regulatory
changes, and local market dynamics. Adverse conditions such as economic downturns, political instability, or
natural disasters specific to that region could significantly impact our revenue stream and also any decline in the
economic prosperity or changes in regulations within that particular region could negatively affect our financial
performance.

13.0ur operations rely on third-party transporters for the timely delivery of raw materials from our suppliers and
the efficient distribution of our products to clients. Any failure on the part of these transporters to fulfill their
obligations may significantly impact on our business, financial condition, and operational results.

Our Company is involved in the manufacturing and production of Cast Iron and Ductile Iron castings. The success
of our endeavors is contingent upon the seamless procurement and transportation of raw materials essential for
the casting processes and the efficient distribution of our products to clients. This supply chain is inherently
exposed to diverse uncertainties and risks. Furthermore, the transit of raw materials is susceptible to potential
losses or damages arising from accidents or natural disasters. Delays in the delivery of raw materials and our
products to our client also pose a risk, potentially impacting on our business and operational outcomes negatively.
The inability to sustain an uninterrupted and efficient supply chain may exert a material and adverse influence on
our business, financial condition, and operational results.

14.Our Company may incur penalties or liabilities for non-compliances with certain provisions of the GST Act,
Income Tax Act, and other applicable laws in the last 5 Years.

Our Company have incurred penalties or liabilities for non-compliance with certain provisions including lapsed/
made delay in certain filings and/or erroneous filing/ non-filing of e-forms under Company Act 2013 and other
applicable laws in the past years. Such non-compliances/delay Compliances/ erroneous filing/ Non-Filing/ Non-
Registration may incur the penalties or liabilities which may affect the results of operations and financial
conditions of the company in near future. The details of late filings in past years are given below:

Financial Year Return Type Return Period Filing Date ?fe:l?;esd No.

GST
2019-2020 GSTR-3B Mar-20 24-June-20 20-May-20 0
GSTR-3B Apr-20 24-June-20 23-May-20 0
2020-2021 GSTR-3B Jan-21 20-Feb-21 23-Feb-21 3
GSTR-3B Mar-21 20-Apr-21 24-Apr-21 4
GSTR-3B Sep-21 20-Oct-21 25-Oct-21 5
2021-2022 GSTR-3B Oct-21 20-Nov-21 24-Nov-21 4
GSTR-3B Nov-21 20-Dec-21 21-Dec-21 1
2022-2023 GSTR-3B Feb-23 20-Mar-23 22-Mar-23 2
2023- 2024 GSTR-9C 2023-24 31-Dec-24 26-Feb-25 57
2024-2025 GSTR-1 Dec-24 11-Jan-25 13-Jan-25 2
2024-2025 GSTR-3B Dec 24 20-Jan-25 21-Jan-25 1
ESI
2021-2022 ESI Oct-21 . 15-Nov-21 16-Nov-21 1
EPF
2020-2021 PF Apr-20 15-May-20 29-May-20 14
2021-2022 PF Oct-21 15-Nov-21 20-Nov-21 5
2022-2023 PF Oct-22 15-Nov-22 21-Nov-22 6
Income Tax Return
30-Nov- 2020
2019-20 Extended to 15
ITR-6 2019-20 Feb-2021 11-Feb-21 0
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31- Oct-21
2020-21 Extended to
ITR-6 2020-21 15-March-2022 15-Mar-22 0
TDS Return
31-Oct-20
2020-2021 TDS Jul-20 Extended to 21-Nov-20 0
31-March-2021
31-Oct-20
TDS Aug-20 Extended to 21-Nov-20 0
31-March 2021
31-Oct-20
TDS Sep-20 Extended to 21-Nov-20 0
31-March 2021
2024-2025 TDS Feb-25 31-May-25 02-Jun-25 2
TDS Mar-25 31-May-25 02-Jun-25 2

The delay in filing of GST, ESI, EPF and Income tax returns which is mentioned above were mainly due to
technical glitches and business process challenge.

To ensure that company does not faces similar situations of delay, the company has taken following steps to
address such delays:

a) The company has appointed Mr. Raj Kumar Arora as Chief Financial Officer for the due compliance.

b) Training and development sessions for the staff.

¢) Purchase of software.

15.0ur company was not able to spend the CSR expenditure for the financial year 2022-23 within the timeline as
per the Companies Act 2023 and relevant rule made thereunder.

Our company was undertaking to spend the CSR expenditure towards an ongoing project being implemented by
KVS Premier Foundation. The amount of Rs. 6,45,000 was required to be spent by March 31, 2024. However,
our company failed to spend the expenditure within the timeline. However, there has been no action taken from
the concerned authorities, we cannot assure you that the same would not be arise in future. Further, any such action
or notice from concerned authorities may lead to penal action involving fine, penalties or such other adverse action
as authority may deem fit which will impact on our Brand image, profitability and growth of the company.
However, to make this non-compliance good, the company directly transferred the amount required to be spent to
KVS Premier Foundation dated September 24, 2024.

16.Any loss of or breakdown of operations at our manufacturing facility may have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our manufacturing facilities are subject to operating risks, such as the breakdown or failure of machines, or
processes, performance below expected levels of output or efficiency, obsolescence, natural disasters, industrial
accidents and the need to comply with the directives of relevant government authorities. The occurrence of any of
these risks could significantly affect our operating results. We are required to carry out planned shutdowns of our
plants for maintenance, statutory inspections and testing. Although precautions are taken to minimize the risk of
any significant operational issues at our manufacturing facilities. Our business, financial condition and results of
operations may be adversely affected by any disruption of operations at our facilities, including due to any of the
factors mentioned above.

17.0ur business is manpower intensive and any unavailability of our employees, strikes, work stoppages, demand
in salary increased or changes in regulations governing to employees may have an adverse impact on our cash
flows and results of operations.
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Our operations rely significantly on our employees, whose availability is critical to our success. As on March 31
,2025, our company has 121 permanent employees. Any shortages, strikes, demand in salary increases, or
regulatory changes affecting our employees could negatively impact our cash flow and operational performance.
Challenges may also arise due to disputes or disagreements within the workforce, which could lead to disruptions
in operations.

We adhere to laws and regulations concerning employee welfare, including minimum wages, working conditions,
and insurance benefits. Any changes to these laws, such as mandated wage increases or enhanced workplace
facilities, could have a negative impact on our business operations and financial performance. While these events
have not occurred in the past, these restrictions could limit our operational flexibility, thereby adversely impacting
our business, prospects, results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition.

For further details regarding the Employees, see “Our Business” on page 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus.
. (>

18.The intellectual property, including our company’s logo === are not owned by us. Any changes,
disputes, or termination of agreements to use the said registered trademark could disrupt the company's ability
to operate under established brand identity.

Our company does not own any trademark in our own name. We are currently using the registered trademark of
our group company, M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited, vide an agreement dated April 1, 2024. Any
conflict of interest or changes or termination of these agreements could hamper our company's ability to operate
as our reputation is being established under this trademark. Furthermore, any additional costs associated with
securing or maintaining the rights to use the brand can affect the company’s business operations, goodwill and
financial stability.

For further details on the trademarks, please refer to the chapter titled- Our Business on page 122 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

19.0ur Company have made delays in compliance with certain statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Such non- compliances / delayed filings may attract penalties and prosecution against the Company and its
directors which could impact the financial position of the Company to that extent.

Our Company have made certain delayed filings. The details of delayed filings are given as follows:

S. Particulars Due Date Delayed days Filing date | Additional Fees
No. (in rupees)

1. BEN-2 27.02.2021 91 Days 29.05.2021 6,000

2. AOC+4 10.09.2024 29 Days 09.10.2024 3,100

3. MGT-14 09.04.2025 54 Days 02.05.2025 1,200

There may be recurrences of similar discrepancies in the future that could subject our company to penal
consequences under applicable laws. Any such action may adversely impact our business, reputation, and results
of operation. However, to mitigate these risks our compliance team meticulously follows a detailed compliance
calendar providing for compliances under various applicable laws, including but not limited to the Companies
Act.

The delay in filing of ROC filings which is mentioned above were mainly due to business process challenge and
operational deficiencies.

To ensure that company does not faces similar situations of delay, the company has taken following steps to address
such delays:
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a) The company has appointed Ms. Shweta Mehrotra as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for
the due compliance.
b) Prior planning and preparing compliance calendar.

20.Increased cost of raw materials for inventory and, in particular, of Iron Scrap and Mild Steel Scrap may affect
our business and results of operations.

The principal raw materials used by us to manufacture castings are Iron Scrap and Mild Steel Scrap. For further
details, please refer “Our Business” on page 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus. The prices and supply of raw
materials may depend on various factors beyond our control, including economic conditions, exchange rates,
competition, consumer demand, production levels, and transportation costs. In the event that any of our suppliers
of raw materials curtail, discontinue or delay their delivery of raw materials to us, we will be required to replace
such suppliers. There can be no assurance that we will be able to replace such suppliers on commercially
acceptable terms, or at all, which could adversely affect our production schedule, volumes and results of our
operations. Further, if we are unable to pass such increased costs to our customers, this could have a material
adverse effect on our financials, business and results of operations.

21.The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters could be lower than the Issue Price.

Our Promoters’ average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares in our Company is lower than the Issue Price decided
by the Company in consultation with the Lead Manager. For further details regarding average cost of acquisition
of Equity Shares by our Promoters in our Company and build-up of Equity Shares by our Promoters in our
Company, please refer to the chapters “Capital Structure” beginning on pages 62 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

22.We have issued Equity Shares during the last one year at a price that may be below the Issue Price.

We have issued Equity Shares during the last one year at a price that may be below the Issue Price.

Date of Allotment | Number of Face Value Issue Price | Nature of | Nature

Equity Shares | ) ® Consideration allotment
allotted
August 31, 2024 4,76,200 10.00 42.00 Cash Preferential Issue

23.We require certain approvals and licenses in the ordinary course of business and the failure to successfully
obtain/renew such registrations would adversely affect our operations, results of operations and financial
condition.

We are governed by various laws and regulations for our business and operations. We are required, and will
continue to be required, to obtain and hold relevant licenses, approvals and permits at state and central government
levels for doing our business. The approvals, licenses, registrations and permits obtained by us may contain
conditions, some of which could be onerous. Additionally, we will need to apply for renewal of certain approvals,
licenses, registrations and permits, which expire or need to update pursuant to conversion of company.

Although we have obtained applicable approvals, licenses, registrations and permits from the relevant authorities.
There can be no assurance that the relevant authority will issue an approval or renew expired approvals within the
applicable time period or at all. Any delay in receipt or non-receipt of such approvals, licenses, registrations and
permits could result in cost and time overrun or which could affect our related operations. Furthermore, under
such circumstances, the relevant authorities may initiate penal action against us, restrain our operations, impose
fines/penalties or initiate legal proceedings for our inability to renew/obtain approvals in a timely manner or at
all. For further details regarding the material approvals, licenses, registrations and permits, which have not been
obtained by our Company or are, pending renewal, see “Government and Other Approvals” on page 247 of this
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Red Herring Prospectus.
24. Our company’s Board of Directors does have any experience of listed companies.

Our company’s Board of Directors consists of both executive and non-executive directors. Our directors do not
have any experience of listed companies. This inexperience gives rise to risks including but not limited to
compliance risk making us more prone to fines and penalties or notices from regulatory authorities which in turn
give rise to reputational risk and governance risk. Furthermore, directors may not provide effective guidance or
give erroneous disclosures or intimation as required.

25.0ur Company has entered into certain related party transactions in the past and may continue to do so in the
future.

Our Company has entered into several related party transactions with our Promoters, individuals and entities
forming a part of our promoter group relating to our operations. In addition, we have in the past also entered into
transactions with other related parties. However, the related party transactions entered into with Promoters/
Directors/ Promoter Group is in compliance with Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws
and we confirm that the future transactions shall be in compliance with Companies Act, SEBI Regulation etc.

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Financial Information — Restated Financial Information —
“Annexure VIII” Restated Statement of Related Party Transactions”. While we believe that all our related party
transactions have been conducted on an arm’s length basis as per the Companies Act, 2013, we cannot assure you
that we may not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into with unrelated parties.
There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or taken together, will not have an adverse effect
on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition, including because of potential conflicts
of interest or otherwise. In addition, our business and growth prospects may decline if we cannot benefit from our
relationships with them in the future. The transaction with related parties is as follows:

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Nature of Nature of Name of the Party | For the year For the year | For the year
Transaction Relationship ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
March,2025 March,2024 | March,202 3
Director's Shri Arpan 22.28 13.80 13.80
Remuneration Jindal
Salary CS Shweta 240 - -
Salary Raj Kumar 7.34 - -
Arora
Unsecured Loans Arpan Jindal - - 7.12
Received Shri Devendra - - 8.40
Kumar Agarwal
Unsecured Loan Shri Devendra - 114.73 0.84
Repaid Kumar Agarwal
Unsecured Loan Shri Arpan Jindal - 97.22 0.71
Repaid Key
Paid against imprest | Managemen Shri Arpan Jindal 17.76 48.33 -
balance t Personnel
Lease Rent Paid - - - -
Interest Paid on Shri Arpan Jindal - 4.64 -
Unsecured Loan Shri Devendra - 5.55 -
Kumar Agarwal
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Sale of Investment in Smt Rekha 72.30 - -
Shares of DFPL __Relative of Key Agarxyal
Sale of Investment in Management Renu Jindal 72.30 - -
Shares of DFPL Personnel
Lease Rent Paid Smt Veenu Jindal 0.90 - -
Freight Received - - - -
Unsecured Loan - - - -
Received
Unsecured Loans - - - -
Repaid
Lease Rent Received - - - -
Job Work Charges - - - -
Paid
Sales to Related M/s Kashi
Party Vishwanath Steels 127.24 - -
Private Limited
Purchase from M/s Kashi 447.18 335.72 -
Related Party Vishwanath Steels
Enterprises Private Limited
Securities Deposits | where KMP & M/s Kashi 1,020.33 - -
against Leasehold theirrelative | Vishwanath Steels
Factory Land have significantt  Private Limited
Lease Rent Paid influence KVS Infratech and 32.34 13.38 13.38
Annapurna Steels
Unsecured Loan Devarpan Foods 162.00 275.00 46.62
given Private Limited
Repayment of M/s Kashi - 65.00 43.75
Unsecured loan given Vishwanath Steels
Private Limited
CSR Expenses Paid M/s KVS 17.00 - -
Premier
Foundation
Interest Received on Devarpan Foods 10.76
Unsecured Loan Private Limited 6.57 -
Given
Investment KVS Infratech - 1.28 -
LLP

26.0ur Company’s operation and growth is dependent upon successful implementation of our business strategies.

The success of our business depends substantially on our ability to implement our business strategies effectively,

within the budgeted framework and in a timely manner. We have successfully executed our business strategies in

the past but there can be no guarantee that we can implement the same on time and within the estimated budget

going forward, or that we will be able to meet the expectations of our targeted customers. Changes in regulations

applicable to us may also make it difficult to implement our business strategies. Failure to implement our business

strategies would have a material adverse effect on our business and the results of operations. For more details

kindly refer to chapter “Our Business” beginning on page no. 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

27.0ur success is dependent on our Individual Promoters, senior management and skilled manpower. Our inability
to attract and retain key personnel or the loss of services of our Individual Promoters or Managing Director
and Directors may have an adverse effect on our business prospects.
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Our Individual Promoters, managing director and senior management have significantly contributed to the growth
of our business, and our future success is dependent on the continued services of our senior management team.
Mr. Arpan Jindal, Managing Director, Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, Non-Executive Director are having
experience of 16 years and 33 years respectively in Castings Industries including Automobile castings and other
castings which turn out beneficial for the Company. An inability to retain any key managerial personnel may have
an adverse effect on our operations. Our ability to execute contracts and to obtain new clients also depends on our
ability to attract, train, motivate and retain highly skilled professionals, particularly at managerial levels. We might
face challenges in recruiting suitably skilled personnel, particularly as we continue to grow and diversify our
operations. In the future, we may also not be unable to compete with other larger companies for suitably skilled
personnel due to their ability to offer more competitive compensation and benefits. The loss of any of the members
of our senior management team, our directors or other key personnel or an inability on our part to manage the
attrition levels may materially and adversely impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
growth prospects. However, the Company continuously provides training to subordinates and employees.

28. Our failure to identify and understand evolving industry trends and preferences and to develop new products
to meet our customers' demands may materially adversely affect our business.

Changes in consumer preferences, regulatory or industry requirements or in competitive technologies may render
certain of our products obsolete or less attractive. Our ability to anticipate changes in technology and regulatory
standards and to successfully develop and introduce new and enhanced products on a timely basis is a significant
factor in our ability to remain competitive. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to secure the
necessary technological knowledge, through technical assistance agreements or otherwise, that will allow us to
develop our product portfolio in this manner.

If we are unable to obtain such knowledge in a timely manner, or at all, we may be unable to effectively implement
our strategies, and our business and results of operations may be adversely affected. Moreover, we cannot assure
you that we will be able to achieve the technological advances that may be necessary for us to remain competitive
or that certain of our products will not become obsolete.

We are also subject to the risks generally associated with new product introductions and applications, including
lack of market acceptance, delays in product development and failure of products to operate properly.

29.If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to successfully manage or
accurately report our financial risk.

Internal controls are checks and measures providing reasonable assurance about the achievement of objectives set
by the board of the company, ensuring integrity of financial and other reporting and helping in detection and
prevention of frauds. There are chances of circumventing such controls due to collusion or human error.

Even though our company has not encountered any instances of failure of the internal control system during the
preceding 3 financial years or during the stub period, we cannot provide assurance that such instances will not
occur in the near future. We also cannot be assured that efficiency and effectiveness of internal control will be
always maintained or we will be able to implement adequate measures to rectify or mitigate any such deficiencies
in internal control. If internal control weaknesses are not identified or necessary changes are not carried out, it
may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

30.Certain Agreements, deeds or licenses and certificates may be in the previous name of the company, we have
to update the name of our company in all the statutory approvals and certificates due to the conversion of our
Company.

Our company, KVS Castings Limited was converted into public limited company vide special resolution passed

Page 38 of 327



MUS

Foundry Division

in the Extra-Ordinary Meeting of the company held on July 02, 2024. Our certain agreements, deeds or licenses
and certificates may be in the name of the erstwhile name of the company KVS Castings Private Limited, and we
would require to update all of them and we have initiated the process to update them all. However, we cannot
guarantee that we will be able to update all these in a timely manner and in case of failure to do so, it may affect
our company’s business and operations. Further, we may also face legal and financial complications, increased
compliance costs, which may have an adverse effect on our company’s financial condition and performance.

31.There is no monitoring agency appointed by Our Company and the deployment of funds are at the discretion
of our Management and our Board of Directors, though it shall be monitored by our Audit Committee.

We intend to use the Net Proceeds for the purposes described in chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 81
of the Red Herring Prospectus. The funding requirements mentioned as a part of the objects of the Issue have not
been appraised by any bank or financial institution. The deployment of the funds as stated under chapter “Objects
of the Issue” is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not subject to monitoring by any external
independent agency.

As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 appointment of monitoring agency is required only for Issue size above
Rs. 5,000 Lakh. Hence, we have not appointed a monitoring agency to monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds.
However, the Audit Committee of our Board will monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds. Further, our Company
shall inform about material deviations in the utilization of Issue proceeds to the stock exchange and shall also
simultaneously make the material deviations / adverse comments of the audit committee public.

32.Certain key performance indicators for certain listed industry peers included in this Red Herring Prospectus
have been sourced from public sources and there is no assurance that such financial and other industry
information is complete.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, we have included certain key performance indicators,
comprising financial and operational information, for certain listed industry peers, in the “Basis for Issue Price”
beginning on page 90 of the Red Herring Prospectus. Although this information is sourced from and relied upon
on the audited financial statements of the relevant listed industry peers as available on the websites of the Stock
Exchanges, including the annual reports of the respective companies submitted to Stock Exchanges, there is no
assurance that this information with respect to industry peers is either complete. There may be different
methodologies and formulas used to compute the various ratios.

33.0ur Company’s future funding requirements, in the form of further issue of capital or other securities and/or
loans that might be availed by us, may turn out to be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending
upon the terms and conditions on which they are raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any further issue of Equity
Shares or convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders, and such issuance may
be done on terms and conditions, which may not be favorable to the existing shareholders. If such funds are raised
in the form of loans or debt or preference shares, then it may substantially increase our fixed interest/dividend
burden and decrease our cash flows, thus adversely affecting our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

34.Industry information included in this Red Herring Prospectus has been derived from an industry report from
various websites. The reliability on the forecasts of the reports could be incorrect and would significantly impact
our operations.

We have relied on the reports of certain independent third parties for purposes of inclusion of such information in
this Red Herring Prospectus. These reports are subject to various limitations and based upon certain assumptions
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that are subjective in nature. We have not independently verified data from such industry reports and other sources.
Although we believe that the data may be considered to be reliable, their accuracy, completeness and underlying
assumptions are not guaranteed and their dependability cannot be assured. While we have taken reasonable care
in the reproduction of the information, the information has not been prepared or independently verified by us or
any of our respective affiliates or advisors and, therefore, we make no representation or warranty, express or
implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of such facts and statistics. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective
collection methods or discrepancies between published information and market practice and other problems, the
statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced for other economies and should
not be unduly relied upon. Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or compiled on the same basis or with
the same degree of accuracy as may be the case elsewhere. Statements from third parties that involve estimates
are subject to change, and actual amounts may differ materially from those included in this Red Herring
Prospectus.

35.0ur insurance policy may not be adequate to cover all the losses which a business could incur. Any inability to
maintain adequate cover from material adverse incidents may adversely affect our operation and profitability.

We do not procure insurance policies for the goods that are managed and transported by our company and for the
plant and machineries that we are having, exposing us to potential financial losses in the event of damage, loss, or
other unforeseen incidents during transportation or warehouses. This lack of coverage presents a risk to our
operations and financial stability.

We have obtained some insurance policies in connection with our business as given in chapter titled “Our
Business” on page 122. While we are of the opinion that the insurance coverage which our Company maintains
would be reasonably adequate to cover the normal risks associated with the operations of our business, we cannot
assure you that any claim under the insurance policies maintained by us will be honoured fully, in part or on time,
or that we have taken out sufficient insurance to cover all our losses. Our Company’s insurance policies may not
provide adequate coverage in certain circumstances and are subject to certain deductibles, exclusions and limits
on coverage. In addition, our insurance coverage expires from time to time. We apply for the renewal of our
insurance coverage in the normal course of our business, but we cannot assure you that such renewals will be
granted in a timely manner, at acceptable cost or at all. To the extent that we suffer loss or damage for which we
did not obtain or maintain insurance, and which is not covered by insurance or exceeds our insurance coverage or
where our insurance claims are rejected, the loss would have to be borne by us and our results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

36.0ur ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash flows,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in our financing arrangements.

Our Company has not paid any dividend in last three Financials Years viz. Fiscals 2023, 2024 and 2025. We may
retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a result, we may
not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of
dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that our Board of Directors
deem relevant, including among others, our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, business
prospects and any other financing arrangements. Accordingly, realization of a gain on shareholders investments
may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that our
Equity Shares will appreciate in value. For details of our dividend history, see “Dividend Policy” beginning on
page 211 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

37.1n the event there is any delay in the completion of the Offer, or delay in schedule of implementation, there
would be a corresponding delay in the completion of the objects of this offer which would in turn affect our
revenues and results of operations.
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The funds that we receive would be utilized for the objects of the offer as has been stated in the chapter titled
“Objects of The Issue” on Page no. 81 of this Red Herring Prospectus. The proposed schedule of implementation
of the objects of the issue is based on our management‘s estimates. If the schedule of implementation is delayed
for any other reason whatsoever, including any delay in the completion of the Issue, it may adversely affect our
revenues and results of operations.

38.Any variation in the utilization of the Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Red Herring Prospectus shall be subject
to certain compliance requirements, including prior approval of the shareholders of our Company.

We propose to utilize the Net Proceeds for raising funds for capital expenditure, working capital Requirement and
general corporate purpose. For further details of the proposed objects of the Issue, please refer the chapter titled
“Objects of the Issue” beginning on Page No. 81 of this Red Herring Prospectus. At this juncture, we cannot
determine with any certainty if we would require the Net Proceeds to meet any other expenditure or fund any
exigencies arising out of the competitive environment, business conditions, economic conditions or other factors
beyond our control. In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, we cannot undertake any variation
in the utilization of the Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Red Herring Prospectus without obtaining the approval
of shareholders of our Company through a special resolution. In the event of any such circumstances that require
us to vary the disclosed utilization of the Net Proceeds, we may not be able to obtain the approval of the
shareholders of our Company in a timely manner, or at all. Any delay or inability in obtaining such approval of
the shareholders of our Company may adversely affect our business or operations.

Further, our Promoter or controlling shareholders would be required to provide an exit opportunity to the
shareholders of our Company who do not agree with our proposal to modify the objects of the Issue, at a price
and manner as prescribed by SEBI. Additionally, the requirement on Promoter or controlling shareholders to
provide an exit opportunity to such dissenting shareholders of our Company may deter the Promoters or
controlling shareholders from agreeing to the variation of the proposed utilization of the Net Proceeds, even if
such variation is in the interest of our Company. Further, we cannot assure you that the Promoters or the controlling
shareholders of our Company will have adequate resources at their disposal at all times to enable them to provide
an exit opportunity.

In light of these factors, we may not be able to vary the objects of the Issue to use any unutilized proceeds of the
Issue, if any, even if such variation is in the interest of our Company. This may restrict our Company’s ability to
respond to any change in our business or financial condition by re-deploying the unutilized portion of Net
Proceeds, if any, which may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

External Risk Factors

39.There are certain restrictions on daily movements in the price of Equity Shares, which may adversely affect a
shareholder’s ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Equity Shares at a particular point in time.

Following the Issue, we will be subject to a daily circuit breaker imposed by Stock Exchange, which does not
allow transactions beyond specified increases or decreases in the price of the Equity Shares. This circuit breaker
operates independently of the index-based, market-wide circuit breakers generally imposed by SEBI on Indian
stock exchanges. The percentage limit on our circuit breakers will be set by the stock exchange based on the
historical volatility in the price and trading volume of the Equity Shares. This circuit breaker will limit the upward
and downward movements in the price of the Equity Shares. As a result of this circuit breaker, no assurance can
be given regarding your ability to sell your Equity Shares or the price at which you may be able to sell your Equity
Shares at any particular time.

40.After this Issue, the price of the Equity Shares may be highly volatile, or an active trading market for the Equity
Shares may not develop.

The price of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges may fluctuate as a result of the factors, including:
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Volatility in the Indian and global capital market;

Company’s results of operations and financial performance;

Performance of Company’s competitors,

Adverse media reports on Company or pertaining to our Industry;

Changes in our estimates of performance or recommendations by financial analysts; and
Significant developments in India’s economic and fiscal policies;

Current valuations may not be sustainable in the future and may also not be reflective of future valuations for our
industry and our Company. There has been no public market for Equity Shares and the prices of the Equity Shares
may fluctuate after this Issue. There can be no assurance that an active trading market for the Equity Shares will
develop or be sustained after this Issue or that the price at which the Equity Shares are initially traded will
correspond to the price at which the Equity Shares will trade in the market subsequent to this Issue. Listing and
quotation does not guarantee that a market for our Equity Shares will develop or, if developed, the liquidity of
such market for the Equity Shares. There has been significant volatility in the Indian stock markets in the recent
past, and the trading price of our Equity Shares after this Issue could fluctuate significantly as a result of market
volatility or due to various internal or external risks, including but not limited to those described in this Red
Herring Prospectus. A decrease in the market price of our Equity Shares could cause you to lose some or all of
your investment.

41.Market price of our share will be decided by market forces and issue price of equity share may not be indicative
of the market price our share price after the issue.

After listing and trading permission of equity shares, the price of the shares shall be driven by free market forces.
The market price of a company's share is determined by the forces of supply and demand in the stock market.
These forces are influenced by a variety of factors, including the company's financial performance, industry trends,
economic conditions, and investor sentiment.

When a company issues equity shares, it sets an issue price based on various factors such as the company's
valuation, the prevailing market conditions, and the demand for its shares. However, the issue price is not
necessarily indicative of the market price of the shares after the issue.

Once the shares are listed on the stock exchange, their price is determined by the forces of supply and demand in
the market. If there is strong demand for the shares, the price may rise above the issue price, and if there is weak
demand, the price may fall below the issue price.

Therefore, while the issue price of equity shares provides a starting point for the company's valuation, it is not
necessarily a reliable indicator of the market price of the shares after the issue. Investors should carefully evaluate
all relevant factors and information before making investment decisions in the stock market.

42.Outbreaks of contagious diseases, such as the recent outbreak of COVID-19, may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

India experienced multiple waves of COVID-19 which had impacted global supply chains and resulted in
shortages of materials and components used in the manufacturing operations and an inability to meet the
manufacturing targets and this impact continues till date. The COVID-19 pandemic had resulted in restrictions on
travel and transportation and prolonged closures of workplaces, businesses and schools, with employees being
asked to work from home and citizens being advised to stay at home. Consequently, there was a significant
disruption in attendance at the manufacturing facilities. There can be no assurance that any future outbreak of
contagious diseases will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, cash flows and prospects.

43.Changes in the laws, regulations and Government Policy could adversely affect economic conditions in India
generally and our business in particular.

Our business, and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may be affected by interest rates, changes
in Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments in or
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affecting India, changes in law or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and
regulations in India applicable to us. For instance, the Government has proposed a comprehensive national goods
and services tax (“GST”) regime that will combine taxes and levies by the Central and state Governments into a
unified rate structure. Given the limited availability of information in the public domain concerning the GST, we
are unable to provide any assurance as to the tax regime following implementation of the GST. For further details
please refer to the chapter “Government and Other Approvals” on page 247 for details of the laws currently
applicable to us. Elimination or substantial change of policies or the introduction of policies that negatively affect
the Company’s business could cause its results of operations to suffer. Any significant change in India’s economic
policies could disrupt business and economic conditions in India generally and the Company’s business in
particular.

44.A4 slowdown in economic growth in India could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance, growth
and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health of the economy in
which we operate. Demand for our products and services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in
domestic, regional and global economies. Economic growth in the country in which we operate is affected by
various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade movements, namely export demand,
global economic uncertainty and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates. Consequently, any future
slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and cashflows.

45.Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial condition.

Inflation is typically impacted by factors such as governmental policies, regulations, commodity prices, liquidity
and global economic environment. Any change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation
policies could adversely affect the inflation rates. Continued high rates of inflation may increase our costs such as
salaries, travel costs and related allowances, which are typically linked to general price levels. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to pass on any additional costs to our clients or that our revenue will increase
proportionately corresponding to such inflation. Accordingly, high rates of inflation in India could have an adverse
effect on our profitability and, if significant, on our financial condition

46.Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of our Equity Shares.

Capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares within 12 months in an Indian company are generally taxable
in India. Any gain realised on the sale of listed equity shares on a stock exchange held for more than 12 months
will not be subject to capital gain being long term capital gain amounting to upto one lakhs rupees provided
Securities Transaction Tax (“STT”) is paid on the transaction. STT is levied on and collected by a domestic stock
exchange on which equity shares are sold. Any gain realised on the sale of equity shares held for more than 12
months to an Indian resident, which are sold other than on a recognized stock exchange and on which no STT has
been paid, is subject to long term capital gains tax in India. Further, any gain realised on the sale of listed equity
shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains
arising from the sale of equity shares is exempt from taxation in India where an exemption from taxation in India
is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is resident. Generally, Indian tax
treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be
liable to pay tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on a gain on the sale of equity shares.

47.Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause our Company’s business to

suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. in recent years. The extent and
severity of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal
rainfall or other natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations as well as the price of the Equity
Shares. Our operations may be adversely affected by fires, natural disasters and/or severe weather, which can
result in damage to our property or inventory and generally reduce our productivity and may require us to evacuate
personnel and suspend operations. Any terrorist attacks or civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic

Page 43 of 327



MUS

Foundry Division

and political events in India could have a negative effect on us. Such incidents could also create a greater
perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect
on our business and the price of the Equity Shares.

48.Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries could
adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our Equity Shares.

Any major hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that are
beyond our control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business. Incidents such as
the terrorist attacks, other incidents may adversely affect the Indian stock markets where our Equity Shares will
trade the global equity markets as well generally. Such acts could negatively impact business sentiment as well as
trade between countries, which could adversely affect our Company’s business and profitability. Additionally,
such events could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including the
Equity Shares.
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SECTION IV- INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

Issue of Equity Shares by our Company

Up to 49,70,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each
fully paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [e]/- per Equity Share
aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

Of which:

Reserved for Market Makers

Up to 2,54,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [e]/- per Equity Share
aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

Net Issue to the Public

A. QIB portion ™

Of which:

Up to 47,16,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®]/- per Equity Share
aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

Not more than 23,52,000 Equity Shares

Of which:

(a) Anchor Investor Portion

Up to 14,10,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully
paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity Share
aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

(b) Net QIB Portion (assuming the

Up to 9,42,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each

anchor Investor Portion is fully | fully paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity Share
subscribed) aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.
Of which:

(i) Available for allocation to Mutual
Funds only (5% of the Net QIB Portion)

Up to 42,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully
paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity Share
aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

(i) Balance of QIB Portion for all QIBs
including Mutual Funds

Up to 9,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each
fully paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity Share
aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

B. Non — institutional portion ™

Not Less than 7,08,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/-
each fully paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity
Share aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

Of which:

(a) one third of the portion available to non
institutional investors shall be reserved for
applicants with application size of more than
two lots and up to such lots equivalent to not
more than %10 lakhs;

Not Less than 2,34,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/-
each fully paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity
Share aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

(b) two third of the portion available to non-
institutional investors shall be reserved for
applicants with application size of more than
%10 lakhs

Not Less than 4,74,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/-
each fully paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity
Share aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

C. Individual Investor portion who
applies for minimum application size**

Not Less than 16,56,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/-
each fully paid-up for cash at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity
Share aggregating to Rs. [e] Lakh.

Pre-and Post-Issue Equity Shares:

Equity Shares prior to the Issue

1,37,83,324 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
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Equity Shares after the Issue 1,87,53,324 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Use of Proceeds Please see the chapter titled “Objects of the issue” on page 81 of
this Red Herring Prospectus for information about the use of Net
Proceeds.

#Subject to finalization of basis of allotment

** As per the Regulation 253 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital And Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2025, as present issue is a Book Building issue the
allocation is the net offer to the public category shall be made as follows:

a)  Not less than Thirty five percent to individual investor;
b)  Not less than Fifteen percent to non-institutional investor

¢)  Not more than fifty percent to qualified institutional buyers, five percent of which shall be allocated to mutual
funds.

Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in clauses (a) or (b) may be allocated to
applicants in the other category.

Provided further that in addition to five percent allocation available in terms of clause I, mutual funds shall be eligible for
allocation under the balance available for qualified institutional buyers.

Our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, may allocate up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a
discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The QIB Portion will accordingly be reduced for the
Equity Shares allocated to Anchor Investors. One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual
Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price.
In the event of under-subscription in the Anchor Investor Portion, the remaining Equity Shares shall be added to the Net
QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Mutual Funds
only, and the remainder of the Net QIB Portions shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders
(other than Anchor Investors), including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price. In
the event the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than as specified above, the balance Equity Shares available for
Allotment in the Mutual Fund Portion will be added to the Net QIB Portion and allocated proportionately to the QIB Bidders
(other than Anchor Investors) in proportion to their Bids. For details, see “Issue Procedure” on page 273.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price, under-subscription, if any, in any category except the QIB
Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories, as applicable, at
the discretion of our Company in consultation with the BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange, subject to applicable
law.

Notes

1) The Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time.
The issue is being made by our company in terms of Regulation 229 (2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulation, read with Rule
19(2)(b)(i) of SCRR wherein not less than 25% of the post issued paid-up equity share capital of our company are being
offered to the public for subscription.

2)  The Issue has been authorized by our Board pursuant to a resolution passed at its meeting held on July 24, 2025,
superseded by earlier resolution dated September 25, 2025, and by our Shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed
at the EGM held on July 25, 2025, superseded by earlier resolution dated September 25, 2024. This Issue is made in
terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time. For further details please
refer to the section titled “Issue Structure” beginning on page no. 309 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

3)  Inthe event of over-subscription, allotment shall be made on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids received at or
above the Issue Price. Allocation to investors in all categories, except the Individual Investor Portion who applies for
minimum application size, shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid bids received at or above the Issue
Price. The allocation to each Individual Investor who applies for minimum application size shall not be less than the
minimum Bid Lot, and subject to availability of Equity Shares in the Individual Investor Portion who applies for

Page 46 of 327



;ML

Foundry Division

9)

J)

minimum application size, the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be allocated on a proportionate basis.

In the event of an under-subscription in the issue and compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR, our Company and
the BRLM shall first ensure Allotment of Equity Shares offered pursuant to the Fresh issue by the Issuer.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, under-subscription, if any, in any category, except in
the QIB Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories of

Bidders at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Book Running Lead Manager and the
Designated Stock Exchange, subject to applicable laws

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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SUMMARY OF OUR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RESTATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. As at 315 March, As at 31t March, As at 31 March,
2025 2024 2023
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Equity Share Capital 2 1,378.33 32.46 32.46
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 2,066.62 2,546.08 1,950.98
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 4 - 28.13 295.04
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities 5 30.25 23.82 22.16
(c) Long-Term Provisions - - -
Current liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 6 371.79 30.00 202.74
(b) Trade Payables 7
gﬂgg;g;ﬂ;;‘;t;tggigglfm“ of micro 167.18 82.83 89.25
enterprises; and
(iigt htgca&laguésitgﬁ)ding dues of creditors 173.48 99 38 293 72
enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Other Current Liabilities 8 118.77 36.39 41.92
(d) Short-Term Provisions 9 468.57 255.76 272.59
TOTAL 4,774.99 3,134.86 3,200.87
1 ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 878.30 840.96 816.33
(i1) Capital Work in Progress 11 545.85 - -
(b) Non-Current Investments 10 34.35 178.17 176.04
(c) Other Non-Current Assets 12 1,493.71 125.19 118.53
Current assets
(a) Inventories 13 249.26 450.55 417.25
(b) Trade Receivables 14 1,179.79 684.46 1,042.96
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 15 147.61 443.86 455.10
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 246.13 411.67 174.66
TOTAL 4,774.99 3,134.86 3,200.87

This space has been left blank intentionally
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RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Note For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
No. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1 Revenue from Operations 17 5,010.94 5,415.75 5,726.34
11 Other Income 18 32.28 54.57 34.86
11 Total Income (I + IT) 5,043.22 5,470.31 5,761.20
v Expenses

(a) Cost of Material Consumed 19 1,853.00 2,187.79 2,491.81
(b) Changes in Inventories of 20 171.01 (10.82) (67.22)

Finished Goods, work in
Progress and Stock in Trade

(c) Employee Benefits 21 136.44 112.14 122.05

Expenses

(d) Finance Costs 23 8.83 32.07 39.05

(e) Depreciation and 24 78.47 71.99 67.67

Amortisation Expenses

(f) Other Expenses 25 1,903.04 2,281.07 2,463.52

Total Expenses 4,150.79 4,674.23 5,116.89
A\ Profit before exceptional and 892.43 796.09 644.31

extraordinary items and tax

(11 -1V)

VI | Exceptional Items & - - -
Extraordinary items

VII | Profit Before Tax (V + VI) 892.43 796.09 644.31
VIII | Tax Expense:
(a) Current Tax 223.47 199.33 158.73
(b) Deferred Tax 6.43 1.66 1.74
Total Tax Expense 229.90 200.98 160.47
IX Profit After Tax (VII - VIII) 662.53 595.10 483.84
X Earnings Per Share (of Rs. 10
each):
(a) Basic 27 4.81 4.47 3.64
(b) Diluted 27 4.81 4.47 3.64
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RESTATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year ended | For the year ended
o March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit before tax 892.43 796.09 644.31
Adjustments for:

Depreciation & amortization expense 78.47 71.99 67.67
Interest expense on borrowings 8.83 32.07 39.05
Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 (7.65) 0.00
Interest on FD and RD (11.76) (30.34) (21.96)
Interest on Security Deposits (8.95) (9.13) (2.10)
Interest on Unsecured loans (10.80) (6.57) (10.92)
Profit Received from partnership firm (0.75) (0.85) 0.12
Operating Profit before working capital 947.47 845.59 716.17
changes

Changes in operating assets and

liabilities:

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 247.16 (200.76) (98.72)
Increase/(decrease) in other current

liabilities (6.32) (5.53) (10.34)
Increase/(decrease) in Short Term Provisions 212.81 (20.68) 137.13
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (495.33) 358.50 (143.57)
Increase/(decrease) in long term provision - - (4.81)
Decrease/(increase) in Short Term loans and 165.54 (237.02) (101.99)
advances

Decrease/(increase) in Inventories 201.29 (33.31) (11.22)
Cash generated from operations 1,272.62 706.80 482.65
Income taxes refunded/ (paid) (219.59) (195.45) (158.73)
Net cash flow from operations (A) 1,053.03 511.35 323.92
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of /Advances for property, plant &

equipment and Intangible assets (661.65) (0847) (135.46)
Profit received from partnership Firm 0.75 0.85 (0.12)
Interest on FD and RD 11.76 30.34 21.96
Interest on Security Deposits 8.95 9.13 2.10
Interest on Unsecured loans 10.80 6.57 10.92
Investment Realized/(Purchased) 143.82 (2.13) (157.60)
Proceed from sale of property, Plant & - 9.50 -
Equipment

aDses:Zisease/(increase) in other Non- current (1368.53) (6.66) (69.97)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,854.11) (50.86) (328.17)
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 200.00 - -
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long-Term (28.13) (266.92) 94.67
Borrowings

Interest paid (8.83) (32.07) (39.05)
Increas&?/(decrease) in Short Term 341.79 (172.74) 24.05
Borrowings

Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing 504.83 471.72) 79.67
activities ( C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (A+B+C) (296.27) (11.23) 75.42
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 443 .86 455.10 379.68
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the closing 147.61 443.86 455.10
of the year
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Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Cash Flow Statement comprise of following (Refer Note 1-17):

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash in hand 1.50 1.62 2.69
Cheques in hand - - -
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 1.57 66.96 1.13
In deposit accounts with original maturity of 144.54 375.27 451.27
less than 3 months
147.61 443.86 455.10
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Brief Information on Company and Issue

Registered Office B-25, 29, Industrial Estate Bazpur Road, Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur,
Uttarakhand, India, 244713

Tel.: +91 7535910007; Fax: N.A.

E-mail: cs.kepl@kvspremier.com

Website: https://kvscastings.com/

DETCROE L0 e B8 June 10, 2019

CIN U27100UR2019PLCO012217

Company Category Company Limited by Shares

Registrar of Companies, Uttarakhand

Mezzanine Floor 78, Rajpur road, Office No. 259, Shri Radha Palace Dehradun The
e o K000 ik Mall, PIN-248001, Uttarakhand

Tel.: 0135-2745012 - 01352745013

E-mail: roc.uttarakhand@mca.gov.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

Company Ms. Shweta Mehrotra

Secretary and B-25, 29, Industrial Estate Bazpur Road, Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur,
Compliance Uttarakhand, India, 244713

Officer Tel.: + 91 7535910007 ; Fax: N.A.

E-mail: cs.kepl@kvspremier.com

Chief Financial Mr. Raj Kumar Arora

Officer B-25, 29, Industrial Estate Bazpur Road, Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur,
Uttarakhand, India, 244713

Tel.: +91 7535910007, Fax: N.A.

E-mail: raj.arora@kvspremier.com

Designated SME Platform of BSE Limited

Stock Address: 25" floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai — 400001. Website:
Exchange https://www.bsesme.com

Anchor Bid Opens on: September 25, 2025*

Bid/ Issue Program Bid/Issue Opens September 26, |Bid/Issue Closes On: | September 30, 2025
On: 2025

*Qur Company in consultation with the BRLM have consider participation by Anchor Investors in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Anchor Investor Bid/Issue Period shall be one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue
Opening Date.

Note: Applications and any revisions to the same will be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time) during the Issue Period at the Application Centres mentioned in the Application Form, or in the
case of ASBA Applicants, at the Designated Bank Branches except that on the Issue Closing Date applications will
be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. and 3.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time). Applications will be accepted only on
Working Days.
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DETAILS OF INTERMEDIARIES PERTAINING TO THIS ISSUE AND OUR COMPANY

Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue Registrar to the Issue ‘

N I' ® P e
arnolia Skyling
Narnolia Financial Services Limited Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
Address: 201, 2" Floor, Marble Arch, 236 B A.J.CBose | Address: D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Road, Kolkata, West Bengal- 700020, India Phase - I, New Delhi-110020
Tel No.: 033- 40501500 Telephone: +91-11-40450193-97
Fax No.: Not Available Fax No: +91-11-26812683
Email: ipo@narnolia.com Email: compliances@skylinerta.com
Website: www.narnolia.com Website: www.skylinerta.com
Contact Person: Mr. Rajveer Singh Contact Person: Mr. Pawan Bisht
SEBI Registration No. INM000010791 SEBI Registration Number: INR000003241
M/s Arora Gupta & Co Mr. Manesh Agarwal
Address: T-02, Gole Market, Rudrapur, U.S. Nagar, | Address: Civil Court Compound, Kashipur, District,
Uttarakhand 263153 U.S. Nagar (Uttarakhand)
Tele. No: +91 9012474456 Tele. No: +91 8218563573, + 91 9412088651
E-mail: aroragupta.ca@gmail.com E-mail: maneshagrawalksp@gmail.com
Contact Person: Mr. Amit Arora Contact Person: Mr. Manesh Agarwal
Peer Review No.: 014699 Registration No.: UP4724/98

Firm Registration No.: 021313C

Banker to the company Underwriter to Issue ‘
Narnolia

Punjab National Bank Narnolia Financial Services Limited
Address: Mid Corporate Centre, Bazpur Road, | Address: 201, 2" Floor, Marble Arch, 236 B A.J.C
Kashipur, Uttarakhand-244713 Bose Road, Kolkata, West Bengal- 700020, India
Tele. No.: +91- 8198800820 Tel No.: 033- 40501500
Fax No.: N.A. Email: ipo@narnolia.com
E-mail: mcc9000@pnb.co.in Website: www.narnolia.com
Website: https://www.pnbindia.in/ Contact Person: Mr. Rajveer Singh
Contact Person: Mr. Govind SEBI Registration No. INM000010791
Banker to the Issue Market Maker and Underwriter to the Issue ‘
i
SN2
Yes Bank Limited Prabhat Financial Services Limited

Address: Yes Bank House, Off Western Express | Address: 205, Navjeevan Complex, 29 Station Road,

Highway, Santacruz East Mumbai, Mumbai City- | Station Road (Jaipur), Jaipur, Rajasthan-302006, India
400055

Tel No.: 8979216062 Tel No.: 0141-4162029
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Email id: upiipo@yesbank.in

Email: pfslindia@hotmail.com

Contact Person: Mr. Faisal Khan

Website: https://www.pfslindia.co.in

Website: www.yesbank.in

Contact Person: Shri Prakash Kabra

SEBI Registration No.: INBI00000935

SEBI Registration No. INZ000169433

Syndicate Member

NEXGEN

NEXGEN FINANCIAL
LIMITED

Address: 709, Madhuban Building, 55, Nehru Place,
New Delhi-110019

Tel No.: +91 1141407600

Fax No.: Not Available

Email: ipo@nexgenfin.com

Website: www.nexgenfin.com

Contact Person: Ms. Pooja Khattar

SEBI Registration No. INM000011682

SOLUTION PRIVATE

DETAILS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

S.N.

Name DIN Category Designation

Address of the Director

1. Managing 530 Nand Niwas Ramnagar Road
Mr. Arpan Jindal 00223527 Executive : Kashipur, Udham Singh Nagar
Director Uttarakhand-244713
2. | Mr. Devendra 00753173 Non-Executive Director 530, Nand Niwas, Ramnagar Road,
Kumar Agarwal Katoratal Poorvi, Kashipur, Udham
Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand- 244713
3. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 02212986 Non- Executive Director 530, Nand Niwas Ramnagar Road
Katoratal Poorvi Kashipur Udham
Singh Nagar Uttarakhand-244713
4. | Ms. Venu Jindal 10648138 Non- Executive Director 530 Ram Nagar Katoratal Poorvi
Kashipur Udham Singh Nagar
Uttarakhand- 244713
5. | Mr. Puneet 07169233 Non- Executive Director Basant Vihar, Giri Taal, Kahipur,
Mohinder Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur,
Uttrakhand-244713
6. | Mr.Jaswinder Singh | 03311764 Non- Executive | Independent | AD-20 Mansarovar Apartments, Plot
Ahluwalia Director No.3, Sector 5, Dwarka, Southwest
Delhi, Delhi, 110075
7. | Mr. Madhup Misra 10706343 Non- Executive | Independent | B-2, Ward 24, IGL Colony, Bazpur
Director Road, Kashipur, Udham Singh
Nagar, Uttarakhand- 244713
8. | Mr. Sudhir Agarwal | 08602216 Non- Executive | Additional Sai Vihar, Phase 1-2 Taimurpur
Independent | Deepa, Near Mittal Petrol Pump,
Director Bairaj Road, Bijnor, Uttar Pradesh-
246701

For further details of our directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page 169

of this Red Herring prospectus.
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Investors may contact our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and/or the Registrar to the Offer, Skyline
Financial Services Private Limited and/or the BRLM, i.e., Narnolia Financial Services Limited, in case of any pre-
Offer or post-Offer related problems, such as non-receipt of letters of Allotment, credit of allotted Equity Shares in
the respective beneficiary account, unblocking of amount in ASBA, etc.

All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the
relevant SCSB to whom the Application was submitted (at ASBA Bidding Locations), giving full details such as
name, address of the applicant, number of Equity Shares applied for, Application Amount blocked, ASBA Account
number and the Designated Branch of the relevant SCSBs where the Application was submitted by the ASBA
Applicants.

For all Issue related queries and for redressal of complaints, Applicants may also write to the BRLM. All
complaints, queries or comments received by Stock Exchange/SEBI shall be forwarded to the BRLM, who shall
respond to the same.

SELF-CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS

The lists of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the Applications Supported by Blocked
Amount (ASBA) Process are provided on the website of SEBI. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs
collecting the Bid Cum Application Forms, please refer to the below mentioned SEBI link.
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

REGISTERED BROKERS

Bidders can submit Bid cum Application Forms in the Offer using the stock brokers network of the Stock
Exchanges, i.¢., through the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. The list of the Registered Brokers, including
details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the website of the SEBI

(www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to time. For details on Registered Brokers, please refer
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes.

REGISTRAR TO OFFER AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept Bid cum Applications forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including
details such as address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided on the website of the SEBI on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes, as updated from time to time.

COLLECTING DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept Bid cum Application Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including
details such as name and contact details, are provided on the website of Stock Exchange. The list of branches of
the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum Application Forms from the
Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to time.

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER/STATEMENT OF
INTER SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Since Narnolia Financial Services Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager (BRLM) to the Offer and all
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the responsibilities relating to co-ordination and other activities in relation to the Offer shall be performed by them.
CREDIT RATING

This being an issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

IPO GRADING

Since the Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of SEBI ICDR Regulations, there is no requirement of
appointing an [PO grading agency.

EXPERT OPINION
Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinion:

Our Company has received written consent dated September 10, 2024, from Peer Review Auditor namely, M/s
Arora Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 021313C) and written consent dated September 10, 2024, from
legal advisor namely, Mr. Manesh Agarwal, Advocate, to include their name as an expert as defined under Section
2(38) of the Companies Act, read with Section 26(5) of the Companies Act 2013.

The report of the peer review auditor on Statement of Tax Benefits and report on Restated Financials for the
financial years ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 included in this Red Herring Prospectus.

Further, Mr. Manesh Agarwal, Advocate, has given its legal due diligence report, as included in this Red Herring
Prospectus, in relation to the Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments dated August 28, 2025, along
with Annexure A. The Due Diligence Report dated August 25, 2025, by M/s Nishi & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, confirming the secretarial compliances status as included in this Red Herring Prospectus.

Aforementioned consents have not been withdrawn as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. However, the
term — expert shall not be construed to mean an — expert as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

All the intermediaries, including Lead Manager/ BRLM, have relied upon the appropriacy and authenticity of the
same.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE
Since this is not a debenture issue, appointment of debenture trustee is not required.
APPRAISAL AND MONITORING AGENCY

As per regulation 262(1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement of monitoring agency is not mandatory if the
Issue size is up to Rs. 5,000 Lakh. Since the Issue size is below Rs. 5,000 Lakh, our Company has not appointed
any monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Audit Committee
of our Company, would be monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of the issue.

BOOK BUILDING PROCESS

The book building, in the context of the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Draft
Red Herring Prospectus/ Red Herring Prospectus within the Price Band, which will be decided by our Company,
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in consultation with the BRLM, and will be advertised in [e] editions of the English national newspaper, [®]
editions of the Hindi national newspaper, and [®] editions in Regional newspaper where our Registered Office is
located, each with wide circulation, at least two working days prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening Date. The Offer
Price shall be finalized after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. The principal parties involved in the Book Building
Process are:

All Bidders (except Anchor Investors) shall mandatorily participate in the Offer only through the ASBA process.
Pursuant to the UPI Circulars, Individual investors who applies for minimum application size may also participate
in this Offer through UPI in the ASBA process. In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs bidding in
the QIB Portion and Non-Institutional Bidders bidding in the Non-Institutional Portion are not allowed to withdraw
or lower the size of their Bids (in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage.
Individual investors who applies for minimum application size can revise their Bids during the Bid/ Offer Period
and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/ Offer Closing Date.

Each Bidder by submitting a Bid in Offer, will be deemed to have acknowledged the above restrictions and the
terms of the Offer.

Our Company will comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and any other directions issued by SEBI in relation
to this Issue. In this regard, our Company has appointed the BRLM to manage this Issue and procure Bids for this
Issue. The Book Building Process is in accordance with guidelines, rules and regulations prescribed by SEBI and
are subject to change from time to time. Bidders are advised to make their own judgement about an investment
through this process prior to submitting a Bid.

The process of Book Building is in accordance with the guidelines, rules and regulations prescribed by SEBI under
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Bidding Processes are subject to change from time to time. Investors are
advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to submitting a Bid in this Offer.

Bidders should note that this Offer is also subject to obtaining (i) final approval of the RoC after the Prospectus is
filed with the RoC; and (ii) final listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges, which our Company
shall apply for after Allotment.

For further details, please refer to the chapters titled “Issue Structure” and “Issue Procedure” beginning on pages
309 and 273 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus.

ILLUSTARTION OF BOOK BUILDING PROCESS AND THE PRICE DISCOVERY PROCESS

For an illustration of the Book Building Process and the price discovery process, please refer to the chapter titled
“Issue Procedure” on page 273 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

Our Company and BRLM to the issue hereby confirm that the Issue is 100% Underwritten. The Underwriting
agreement is dated September 25, 2024 and Addendum to the Underwriting Agreement dated September 06, 2025.
Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the obligations of the Underwriters are subject to certain
conditions specified therein. The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following number
of specified securities being offered through this Issue:

(Rupees In Lakhs)
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Name, Address, Telephone, Fax, and Email of the Indicative No. Amount % of the Total
Underwriter of Equity Underwritten | Issue Size

Shares to Be Underwritten
Underwritten*

Narnolia

Narnolia Financial Services Limited

Address: 201, 2" Floor, Marble Arch, 236 B A.J.C
Bose Road, Kolkata, West Bengal- 700020, India
Tel No.: 033-40501500 7,45,997 [e] 15.01%

Fax No.: Not Available

Email: ipo@narnolia.com

Website: www.narnolia.com

Contact Person: Mr. Rajveer Singh
SEBI Registration No. INM000010791

Wy
PRABHA'Il

Prabhat Financial Services Limited

Address: 205, Navjeevan Complex, 29 Station Road,
Station Road (Jaipur), Jaipur, Rajasthan-302006, India 42.24,003 [e] 84.99%
Tel No.: 0141-4162029

Email Id: pfslindia@hotmail.com
Contact Person: Shri Prakash Kabra
Website: https://www.pfslindia.co.in
SEBI Registration No.: INZ000169433

In the opinion of our Board of Directors of the Company, the resources of the abovementioned Underwriter is
sufficient to enable them to discharge the underwriting obligations in full. The above-mentioned Underwriter is
registered with SEBI under Section 12(1) of the SEBI Act or registered as brokers with the Stock Exchanges.

FILING OF PROSPECTUS

A soft copy of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus shall be filed with the
SME platform of BSE Limited (BSE SME).

A soft copy of the Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus shall be filed with SEBI through SEBI Intermediary
Portalat https://siportal.sebi.gov. in as per Regulation 246(1) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Pursuant to
Regulation 246(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI shall not issue any observation on the offer document.

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus along with the documents required to be filed under Section
26 read with Section 32 of the Companies Act will be delivered to the Registrar of Companies, Uttarakhand,
Mezzanine Floor 78, Rajpur road, Office No. 259, Shri Radha Palace Dehradun The Mall, PIN-248001.

GREEN SHOE OPTION
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No green shoe option is contemplated under the Issue.
CHANGE IN THE AUDITOR DURING LAST 3 YEAR

The following changes have taken place in the Auditors during the last three years preceding the date of this Red
Herring Prospectus:

Name of the Auditor Date of Date of Reason for Change
Appointment | Resignation

M/s Vimal & Associates, Chartered The firm was not peer-
Accountants reviewed, and the company
Address:  Station  Road, Kashipur | July 8, 2019 May 21, 2024 has a requirement for
Uttarakhand-UR- 244713 certification of accounts by
FRN: 004275C a peer-reviewed CA firm

M/s Arora Gupta & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Address: T-2, Gole Market, Near
Gurudwara Singh Sabha, Rudrapur-263153,
Uttarakhand

FRN: 021313C

May 21, 2024 NA NA

WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE

Our company in consultation with the BRLM, reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time after the
Issue Opening Date but before the Board meeting for Allotment. In such an event, our Company would issue a
public notice in the newspapers, in which the pre-Issue advertisements were published, within two (2) days of the
Issue Closing Date or such other time as may be prescribed by SEBI, providing reasons for not proceeding with
the Issue. The BRLM, through the Registrar to the Issue, shall notify the SCSBs to unblock the bank accounts of
the ASBA Applicants within one (1) day of receipt of such notification. Our Company shall also promptly inform
BSE SME on which the Equity Shares were proposed to be listed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is also
subject to obtaining the final listing and trading approvals from BSE SME, which our Company shall apply for
after Allotment. If our Company withdraws the Issue after the Issue Closing Date and thereafter determines that it
will proceed with an IPO, our Company shall be required to file a fresh Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

DETAILS OF THE MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENT FOR THIS OFFER

Our Company and the BRLM have entered into a tripartite agreement dated September 06, 2025 with M/s Prabhat
Financial Services Limited, the Market Maker for this Issue, duly registered with BSE SME to fulfill the obligations
of Market Making:

The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, and its amendments from time to time and the circulars issued by the BSE and SEBI regarding this
matter from time to time. Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making arrangement:

1. The Market Maker shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in a day. The same shall
be monitored by the stock exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform the exchange in advance for
each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker.

2. The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market Maker Spread Requirements and
other particulars as specified or as per the requirements of BSE Limited and SEBI from time to time.
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The minimum depth of the quote shall be Rs.1,00,000. However, the investors with holdings of value less than
Rs.1,00,000 shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) in that
scrip provided that he sells his entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to
the selling broker.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the
quotes given by him.

There would not be more than five Market Makers for a script at any point of time and the Market Makersmay
compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.

On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and thereafter the trading will
happen as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered
price during the pre-open call auction.

The Marker maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so.
There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw
temporarily/fully from the market — for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable
reasons require prior approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable
reasons. The decision of the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving a one month notice or on
mutually acceptable terms to the Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market
Maker(s). In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of
the compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the BRLM to arrange for another Market
Maker in replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date
of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of
regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Further, our Company and the BRLM reserve the right to
appoint other Market Makers either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market
Maker subject to the total number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed five or as specified by the
relevant laws and regulations applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement is
available for inspection at our registered office from 11.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on working days.

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: SME Platform of BSE will have all margins
which are applicable on the BSE Main Board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme
Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. BSE can impose any other margins as deemed
necessary from time-to-time.

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Maker: SME Platform of BSE will monitor the obligations on
a real time basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and/or non- compliances. Penalties / fines
may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market Makers, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in
a particular security as per the specified guidelines. These penalties/ fines will be set by the Exchange from time
to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the Market Maker(s) in case he is not present in the market
(offering two way quotes) for at least 75% of the time. The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as
suspension in market making activities / trading membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties/ fines/
suspension for any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by the Market Makers from time to time.

Price Band and Spreads: Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012,
limits on the upper side for Markets Makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on
the issue size and as follows:
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Issue Size Buy quote exemption threshold Re-Entry threshold for buy
(including mandatory initial quote (including mandatory
inventory of5% of the Issue Size) initial inventory of 5% ofthe

Issue Size)
Up to Rs. 20 Crore 25% 24%
Rs.20 Crore to Rs.50 Crore 20% 19%
Rs.50 Crore to Rs.80 Crore 15% 14%
Above Rs.80 Crore 12% 11%

The Marketing Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above shall be
subject to the applicable provisions of law and/or norms issued by SEBI/BSE from time to time.

The trading shall take place in the TFT segment for the first 10 days from commencement of trading. The
price band shall be 20% and the Market Maker Spread (difference between the sell and the buy quote) shall be
within 10% or as intimated by Exchange from time to time.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus is set forth below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Sr. . Aggregate Aggregate value at
No. Particulars Nominal value
A. Authorized Share Capital
2,25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,250.00 -
B. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before
the Issue
1,37,83,324 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,378.33 -
Present Issue in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus*
Issue up to 49,70,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 497.00 [e]
10/- each at a premium of Rs. [@] /- per share
of which:**
) Reservation for Market Maker- Up to 2,54,000 Equity 25.40 [e]
Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity
Share reserved as Market Maker Portion.
(1D Net Issue to the Public — Up to 47,16,000 Equity Shares of 471.60 [e]
Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity Share.
C. Of the Net Issue to the Public

) Allocation to Qualified Institutional Buyer — 23,52,000 235.20 [e]
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. [®] per
Equity Share.
Of Which:
(a) Anchor Investor- Up to 14,10,000 Equity Shares of 141.00 [o]

face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up for cash at price
of Rs. [®] /- per Equity Share

(b) Net QIB Portion (assuming the anchor Investor 94.20 [o]
Portion is fully subscribed)- Up to 9,42,000 Equity
Shares of face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up for cash
at price of Rs. [®] /- per Equity Share

(D Allocation to Individual Investors who applies for 165.60 [e]
minimum application size— 16,56,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. [®] per Equity Share shall be
available for allocation for Investors applying for a
minimum application Size.

(II1) | Allocation to Non-Institutional Investors— 7,08,000 70.80 [e]
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. [®] per
Equity Share shall be available for allocation for Investors
applying for a value of above Rs.2.00 Lakhs.

D. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital after the

Issue

1,87,53,324 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,875.33
E. Securities Premium Account

Before the Issue 238.07

After the Issue [e]

* The present Issue has been authorized pursuant to a resolution of our Board of Directors dated July 24, 2025
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superseding the earlier resolution September 25, 2024, and by Special Resolution passed under Section 62(1)(c) of
the Companies Act, 2013 at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the members held on July 25, 2025 superseding
the earlier resolution September 25, 2024.

Our Company has only one class of share capital i.e. Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each only. All
Equity Shares are fully paid-up. Our Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of this

Red Herring prospectus.

**4llocation to all categories shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid Applications received at or
above the Issue Price. Under subscription, if any, in any of the categories, would be allowed to be met with spillover
from any of the other categories or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation
with the Lead Manager and Stock Exchange. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be affected in accordance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

1. Details of increase in Authorized Share Capital:

Since the incorporation of our Company, the authorized share capital of our Company has been altered in the
manner set forth below:

No. of Face Cumulative Cumulative Whether
Shares Value (in | No. of Shares | Authorised Share AGM/EGM
Rs.) Capital (in Rs.)
1. On Incorporation* 1,50,000 10.00 1,50,000 15,00,000 N.A.
June 15, 2020%* 1,60,00,000 = 10.00 1,61,50,000 16,15,00,000 NCLDTagder
3. June 13, 2024 63,50,000 10.00 2,25,00,000 22,50,00,000 EGM

*The date of incorporation of our Company is June 10, 2019.

**Pursuant to the NCLT order dated June 15, 2020, M/s Kamlapati Infrastructure Limited (Transferor-1), M/s
Sidhivinayak Horticulture Limited (Transferor-2), M/s Sharma Investments Limited (Transferor-3) and M/s Tomar
Investments Limited (Transferor-4) has been merged into our Company (Transferee) and Authorised Share capital
has been increased from Rs.15,00,000 to Rs.16,15,00,000.

2. History of Paid-up Equity Share Capital of our Company:
Date of No. of Face Issue | Nature Nature of Cumulative Cumulative | Cumulative

. Allotment Equity value | Price | of Allotment number of = Paid-up Securities
Shares (Rs.) (Rs.) | conside Equity Capital (Rs.) premium
allotted ration Shares (Rs.)

1.| *Incorporation 1,50,000 10.00 10 Cash Incorporation 1,50,000 15,00,000 NA
Cancellation of
cross holding
December 31 Other pursuant to
2. ’ (15,000) 10.00 10 than order of 1,35,000 13,50,000 NA
2020 .
Cash | Amalgamation
passed by
NCLT
Pursuant to
December 31, | 56254 | 1000 @ 10 | Other order of 1,91,254 | 19,12,540
3. than Amalgamation NA
2020
Cash passed by
NCLT
Jan Other | o nversionof | 324,564 | 3245640 | 5,95,89,570
4. naty 1,33,310 | 10.00 | 457 | than onversion o o s 7007
03,2022 Unsecured Loan
Cash
June Other
5. 4 1,29,82,560 | 10.00 | NA than Bonus Issue 1,33,07,124 | 13,30,71,240 85,68,880
19, 2024
Cash
6 August 476200 | 1000 | 42 | Cash | Creferential 1y 3003304 13,78,33,240
‘ 31,2024 e ‘ Issue T 2T 2,38,07,280

*The date of incorporation of our Company is June 10, 2019.

As per the financial statements of the company for the financial year 2023-24, the company had the closing balance
of securities premium reserve of Rs.5,95,90,000.00/- and Surplus in Profit and Loss of Rs. 13,87,02,749.53/-
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aggregating to Rs. 19,82,92,319.53/-. Our company issued 1,29,82,560 Equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each
aggregating to Rs. 12,98,25,600/- on June 19, 2024, from the securities premium reserve of Rs. 5,10,20,690/- and
Surplus in Profit and Loss of Rs. 7,88,04,910/-.

Note:

1.  Initial Subscribers to the MOA to 1,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10.00/- each as per the details
given below:

S. No.‘ Name of Allottee

‘ No. of Shares issued

1. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 52,500
2. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 52,500
3. Mr. Braham Prakash Goel on behalf of M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels 15,000
Private Limited
4. | Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Agarwal on behalf of M/s Sharma Investments Limite: 7,500
5. | Mr. Sumit Agarwal on behalf of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural 7,500
Industrial Corporation Private Limited
6. | Mr. Dinesh Goyal on behalf of M/s Tomar Investments Limited 7,500
7. | Mr. Puneet Mohindra on behalf of M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 7,500
Total 1,50,000

2. The Company thereafter cancel 15,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10.00/- on cancellation of cross
holding pursuant to order of Amalgamation passed by NCLT, each as per the details given below:

S. No. ‘ Name of Allottee ‘ No. of Shares Issued ‘
1. | M/s Sharma Investments Limited 7,500
2. | M/s Tomar Investments Limited 7,500

Total 15,000

3.  The Company thereafter issued 56,254 Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10.00/- each on December 31, 2020,
pursuant to order of Amalgamation passed by NCLT, mentioned in detail below:

S. No. ‘ Name of Allottee ‘ No. of Shares Issued

1. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 24,803
2. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 24,027
3. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 4,173
4. Mr. Arpan Jindal 1,915
5. Ms. Rekha Agarwal 864
6. Ms. Venu Jindal 312
7. M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private 80
Limited
8. M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited 80
Total 56,254

4. The Company thereafter Issued 1,33,310 Equity shares of face Value Rs.10.00/- and issue price Rs. 457.00/-
each on January 03, 2022, pursuant to Conversion of Loan into Equity Share, mentioned in detail below:
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S. No. ‘ Name of Allottee ‘ No. of Shares Issued ‘
1. | M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private 79,630
Limited
2. | M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 28,480
3. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 14,200
4. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 11,000
Total 1,33,310

The Company thereafter Issued 1,29,82,560 Equity shares of face value Rs. 10.00/- each on June 19, 2024, for
other than cash consideration by way of Bonus Issue in proportion of 40 (Forty) Equity Shares for every 1 (one)
Equity shares, mentioned in detail below:

S. No.| Name of Allottee No. of Shares issued

1. | M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited 34,888,400
2. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 28,34,920
3. | M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 24,00,280
4. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 21,76,600
5. | M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 20,32,120
6. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 34,560
7. Ms. Venu Jindal 12,480
8. | M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited 3,200

Total 1,29,82,560

As per the financial statements of the company for the financial year 2023-24, the company had the closing
balance of securities premium reserve of Rs.5,95,90,000.00/- and Surplus in Profit and Loss of Rs.
13,87,02,749.53/- aggregating to Rs. 19,82,92,319.53/-. Our company issued 1,29,82,560 Equity shares of
face value Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 12,98,25,600/- on June 19, 2024, from the securities premium
reserve of Rs. 5,10,20,690/- and Surplus in Profit and Loss of Rs. 7,88,04,910/-.

The Company thereafter Issued 4,76,200 Equity shares of face value Rs.10.00/- and issue price Rs. 42.00/- each
on August 31, 2024, for a cash consideration by way of Preferential Issue, mentioned in detail below:

* | Name of Allottee

No. of Shares

S
No.
1. | Ms. Anjali Gupta 1,18,200
2. | Mr. Surendra Kumar Singhal 1,00,000
3. | Ms. Kavita Jain 50,000
4. | Mr. Adheesh Kabra 48,000
5. | Mr. Ritesh Kumar Gupta 44,000
6. | Mr. Sai Krishna Moya 24,000
7. | Mr. Rajesh Kumar 24,000
8. | Ms. Minakshiben Pinakin Shah 24,000
9. | Shinohub Traders LLP 24,000
10. | Mr. Pankaj Kumar 10,000
11. | Mr. Vineet Parekh 10,000
Total 4,76,200
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3. Shareholding of the Promoters of our Company
As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, Our Promoters, Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, Mr. Arpan Jindal, Ms. Rekha Agarwal, Ms. Venu Jindal and M/s
Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited holds 13,06,793, 13,08,515, 13,06,424, 12,63,292 and 35,75,610 Equity Shares
respectively, representing 9.48 % ,9.49 %, 9.48 % 9.17 % and 25.94% of the pre-issue paid up share capital of our Company.

Details of Build-up of shareholding of the Promoters
Date of Allotment /

Face Value Issue/

acquls%tlon ! Nature (Allotment/ Number of per Equity Transfer price | Consideration (cash/ Name of 0 of P.re-Issue
transaction and . . : Transferor / capital of
when made fully transfer) Equity Shares Share (in per Egulty other than cash) Transferee Cumulative Shares
aid u Rs.) Share (in Rs.)
Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal
Incorporation Subscriber to MOA 52,500 10 10 Cash N.A. 0.38%
Pursuant to order of N.A.
December 31, 2020 | Amalgamation passed by 4,173 10 10 Other than cash 0.03%
NCLT
January 03, 2022 Conversion of 14,200 10 457 Other than cash N-A. 0.10%
Unsecured Loan
June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue 28,34,920 10 Nil Other than Cash N.A. 20.57%
Transferee- Rekha
July 08, 2024 Transfer (15,99,000) 10 Nil Other than Cash (Gift) | Agarwal and Venu (11.60%)
Jindal
Total 13,06,793 9.48%
Mr. Arpan Jindal
Incorporation Subscriber to MOA 52,500 10 10 Cash N.A. 0.38%
Pursuant to order of
December 31, 2020 Amalgamation passed 1,915 10 10 Other than Cash N.A. 0.01%
by NCLT
June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue 21,76,600 10 Nil Other than Cash N.A. 15.79%
July 08, 2024 Transfer (9,22,500) 10 Nil Other than Cash (Gift) Transﬁf;g; Venu (6.69%)
Total 13,08,515 9.49%
Ms. Rekha Agarwal
December 31,2020 | fursuant o order of 864 10 10 Other than Cash NA. 0.01%
Amalgamation passed
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by NCLT
June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue 34,560 10 Nil Other than Cash N.A. 0.25%
. Transferor-
July 08, 2024 Transfer 12,71,000 10 Nil Other than Cash (Gift | /o 4ra Kumar 9.22%
Deed)
Agarwal
Total 13,06,424 9.48%
Ms. Venu Jindal
Pursuant to order of
December 31, 2020 Amalgamation passed 312 10 10 Other than Cash N.A. Nil
by NCLT
June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue 12,480 10 Nil Other than Cash N.A. 0.09%
Transferor-
July 08, 2024 Transfer 12,50,500 10 Nil Other than Cash (Gifyy | APan Jindal and 9.07%
Devendra Kumar
Agrwal
Total 12,63,292 9.17%
M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited
Incorporation Subscriber to MOA 7,500 10 10 Cash N.A. 0.05%
Pursuant to order of Other than Cash
December 31, 2020 Amalgamation passed 80 10 10 N.A. Nil
by NCLT
January 03, 2022 Conversion of 79,630 10 457 Other than Cash N.A. 0.58%
Unsecured Loan
June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue 34,88,400 10 Nil Other than Cash N.A. 25.31%
Total 35,75,610 25.94%

*The date of incorporation of our Company is June 10, 2019.

All the Equity Shares held by our Promoters were fully paid-up on the respective dates of acquisition of such Equity Shares. None of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are
under pledged.
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4. Our shareholder Pattern

The table below represents the shareholding pattern of our Company as per Regulation 31 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as on Red Herring

Prospectus:
Categ Category of No.of = No. of fully Total no. of Sha.reh Number of Voting Rights held in each class No. of Shareholdin No. of locked-in| No. of shares Number of
o olding et o o
ory shareholder share paid-up shares held as a % of securities* shares gasa % pledged or shares held in
Code holder = equity rlvin of to ta‘i underlying assuming otherwise dematerialize
shares held Y Outstanding full encumbered dform
g no. of s q
Convertible conversion
Depo shares s
. Securities of
sitor (calcul " . q
(including convertible
y ated as .
warrants) securities (as
Rece per ‘ a % of
ipts SCRA, . o
1957) diluted share
. capital) As a
Asa % )
of % of
(A+B+ A+B+C2)
C2) No. of Voting Rights
q O,
Class X Class Total Total as a No. (a) Asa % R
. shares
Y % of of held (b)
(A+B+C) shares
held (b)
I /4 bi7¢ w v VI VII= v+ vii IX X XI=VIX XII X1 X1
V+VI
(A) Promoters and 8 1,33,07,124 - - 1,33,07,124 96.55% | 1,33,07,124 - | 1,33,07,124 96.55% - 96.55% - - 1,33,07,124
Promoter Group
(B) Public 11 4,76,200 - - 4,76,200 3.45% 4,76,200 - 4,76,200 3.45% - 3.45% - - 4,52,200
(c) Non-Promoter-Non - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Public
(1) Shares underlying - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
DRs
@) Shares held by ) } ) ) ) ) } ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Employee Trusts
Total - - 1,37,59,324
ot 19 1,37,83,324 1,37,83,324 100% 1,37,83,324 1,37,83,324 100% - 100% o

*A4s of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus 1 Equity Shares holds I vote.
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Note:
= In terms of SEBI circular bearing No. CIR/ISD/3/2011 dated June 17, 2011 and SEBI circular bearing No. SEBI/CIR/ISD/ 05 /2011, dated September 30, 2011, the Equity
Shares held by the Promoters/Promoters Group Entities and 50% of the Equity Shares held by the public shareholders, shall be dematerialized. All the Equity shares of
the Company are in dematerialized form. However, only one public shareholder have shares in physical form.
L1 Our Company will file the shareholding pattern of our Company, in the form prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, one day prior to the
listing of the equity shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the website of SME Platform of BSE Limited before commencement of trading of such Equity
Shares.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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5. As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no partly paid-up shares/outstanding convertible
securities/warrants in our Company.

6. Following are the details of the holding of securities of persons belonging to the category ‘“Promoter and
Promoter Group” and “public” before and after the Issue:

Pre issue Post issue
Sr. Name of shareholder No. of As a % of No. of As a % of
No. equity Issued equity Issued
Shares Capital Shares Capital
o Promoters
1. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 9.49% 13,08,515 6.98%
2. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 9.48% 13,06,793 6.97%
3. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 9.48% 13,06,424 6.97%
4. | Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 9.17% 12,63,292 6.74%
5. | M/s Kumaun Garhwal 35,75,610 25.94% 35,75,610 19.07%
Infrastructural Industrial
Corporation Private Limited
TOTAL - A 87,60,634 65.83% 87,60,634 46.72%
Promoter Group
6. | M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steel 20,82,923 15.11% 20,82,923 11.11%
Private Limited
7. | M/ Annapurna Steels Private 24,60,287 17.85% 24,60,287 13.12%
Limited
8. | M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited 3,280 0.02% 3,280 0.02%
TOTAL -B 45,46,490 34.17% 45,46,490 24.24%
Public
9. | Public 4,76,200 3.45% 4.76,200 2.54%
10. | IPO - - 49,70,000 26.50%
TOTAL (C) 4,76,200 3.45% 54,46,200 29.04%
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 1,37,83,324 100.00% | 1,87,53,324 100.00%

7. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription to Equity Shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table
below:

Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 042
Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 5.40
Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 0.01
Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 Negligible
M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural 35,75,610 10.20
Industrial Corporation Private Limited

* As certified by M/s Arora Gupta & Co. Chartered Accountants dated June 17,2025.
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8.  Details of Major Shareholders:

A. List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on the date of Red Herring
Prospectus:

N) No. of Equity % of Paid-up
No. Name of shareholders Shares held Capital

L M{s Kum'aug Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation 35.75.610 25.04%
Private Limited

2. | M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 24,60,287 17.85%
3. | M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 20,82,923 15.11%
4. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 9.49%
5. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 9.48%
6. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 9.48%
7. | Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 9.17%

Total 1,33,03,844 96.52%

B. List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on ten days prior to
dated August 22, 2025:

Sr. No. of Equi % of Paid-u
No,| ame of shareholders Shares h(ildty Capital :
L M{s Kum.au?l Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation 35.75.610 25.04%
Private Limited
2. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 24.,60,287 17.85%
3. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 20,82,923 15.11%
4. Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 9.49%
5. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 9.48%
6. Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 9.48%
7. Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 9.17%
Total 1,33,03,844 96.52%

C. List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on date one year prior to
the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. Name of shareholders No. of Equity % of Paid-up
No. Shares held Capital
1. | M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation
Private Limited 35,75,610 26.87%
2. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 9.82%
3. | M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 24.60,287 18.49%
4. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 9.83%
5. | M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 20,82,923 15.65%
6. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 9.82%
7. | Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 9.49%
Total 1,33,03,844 99.98%
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D. List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on date two years prior
to the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Name of shareholders

No. of Equity % of Paid-up
Shares held Capital

L. M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial
Corporation Private Limited 87210 26.87%
2. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 70873 21.84%
3. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 60007 18.49%
4. Mr. Arpan Jindal 54415 16.77%
5. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 50803 15.65%
Total 3,23,308 99.61%

*The Company has not issued any convertible instruments like warrants, debentures etc. since its

incorporation and there are no outstanding convertible instruments as on date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

9. Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation reserve or reserves without accrual of cash
resources.
10. Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares during a period of one year preceding the date of this Red

Herring Prospectus at a price lower than the Issue Price except the following:

Name of Allottees

No. of
Shares
Allotted

Issue
Issue
Price

Date of
Allotme
nt

Reason for
Allotment

Benefit
occurred to
Issuer

(Rs.)

1. | Ms. Anjali Gupta 1,18,200 10 42.00 | August Preferential
31, 2024 Issue
2. | Mr. Surendra Kumar 1,00,000 10 42.00 | August Preferential
Singhal 31,2024 Issue
3. | Ms. Kavita Jain 50,000 10 August 31, | Preferential
42.00
2024 Issue
4. | Mr. Adheesh Kabra 48,000 10 42.00 |August31, | Preferential
2024 Issue
5. | Mr. Ritesh Kumar Gupta 44,000 10 42.00 |August31, | Preferential .
Business
2024 Issue Growth and
T an
6. | Mr. Sai Krishna Moya 24,000 10 | 42.00 | August 31, | Preferential O,W .
Working Capital
2024 Issue .
- - Requirement
7. | Mr. Rajesh Kumar 24,000 10 42.00 |August31, | Preferential
2024 Issue
8. | Ms. Minakshiben Pinakin 24,000 10 42.00 | August31,| Preferential
Shah 2024 Issue
9. | Shinohub Traders LLP 24,000 10 | 42.00 | August31,| Preferential
2024 Issue
10. | Mr. Pankaj Kumar 10,000 10 | 42.00 |August31, | Preferential
2024 Issue
11. | Mr. Vineet Parekh 10,000 10 | 42.00 | August31,| Preferential
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‘ ‘ ‘ 2024 Issue

Total 4,76,200

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Except as disclosed in this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company presently does not have any intention or
proposal to alter its capital structure for a period of six (6) months from the date of opening of the Issue, by way
of spilt/consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or further issue of Equity Shares (including issue of
securities convertible into Equity Shares) whether preferential or otherwise. However, during such period or a
later date, it may issue Equity Shares or securities linked to Equity Shares to finance an acquisition, merger or
joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement if an opportunity of such nature
is determined by its Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

We have 19 (Nineteen) shareholders as on dated August 22, 2025.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters holds a total of 87,60,634 Equity Shares
representing 65.83% of the pre-issue paid up share capital of our Company.

None of our Promoters, their relatives and associates, persons in Promoter Group or the directors of the Company
which is a promoter of the Company and/or the Directors of the Company have purchased or sold any securities
of our Company during the past six months immediately preceding the date of filing this Red Herring Prospectus.

The members of the Promoters Group, our directors and the relatives of our directors have not financed the
purchase by any other person of securities of our Company, other than in the normal course of the business of
the financing entity, during the six months immediately preceding the date of filing this Red Herring Prospectus.

Details of Promoter’s Contribution locked in for 3 years:

As per Sub-Regulation (1) of Regulation 236 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, an aggregate of 20% of
the post-Issue Capital shall be considered as Promoter’s Contribution.

Our Promoters have granted consent to include such number of Equity Shares held by them as may constitute
20.00% of the post-issue Equity Share Capital of our Company as Promoters Contribution and have agreed not
to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner Promoters Contribution from the date of filing
of this Red Herring Prospectus until the completion of the lock-in period specified above.

In terms of clause (a) of Regulation 238 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, Minimum Promoters
Contribution as mentioned above shall be locked-in for a period of 3 years from the date of commencement of
commercial production or date of allotment in the Initial Public Offer, whichever is later.

Explanation: The expression “date of commencement of commercial production” means the last date of the
month in which commercial production of the project in respect of which the funds raised are proposed to be

utilized as stated in the offer document, is expected to commence.

We further confirm that Minimum Promoters Contribution of 20.00% of the post issue paid-up Equity Shares
Capital does not include any contribution from Alternative Investment Fund.

The Minimum Promoters Contribution has been brought into to the extent of not less than the specified minimum
lot and has been contributed by the persons defined as Promoters under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.
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The lock-in of the Minimum Promoters Contribution will be created as per applicable regulations and procedure

and details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the Equity Shares.

The details of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters, which are locked in for a period of 3 years from the date
of Allotment in the Offer are given below:

P t
Date of Issue/ . Z;ce:ssg
Transaction and No. of Face Acquisition P .
Nature of ) . Offer Lock in
Name of Promoter when . Equity | Value | Price per . .
Transaction ) paid-up Period
made fully Shares | (Rs.) Equity caital
paid-up Share (Rs.) ( %l: )
Mr. Arpan Jindal June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue | 12,66,000 10 NA 6.75%
Mr. Devendra Kumar June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue |12,66,000 10 NA 6.75%
Agarwal 3 Years
M/s Kumaun Garhwal | June 19, 2024 Bonus Issue | 12,66,000 10 NA 6.75%
Infrastructural Industrial
Corporation Private Limited
Total 37,98,000 20.25%

The Equity Shares that are being locked in are not ineligible for computation of Promoters contribution in terms
of Regulation 237 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Equity Shares offered by the Promoters for the minimum
Promoters contribution are not subject to pledge. Lock-in period shall commence from the date of allotment of
Equity Shares in the Public Issue.

We confirm that the minimum Promoters contribution of 20.00% which is subject to lock-in for 3 years does
not consist of:

a) Equity Shares acquired during the preceding three years for consideration other than cash and revaluation of
assets or capitalization of intangible assets;

b) Equity Shares acquired during the preceding three years resulting from a bonus issue by utilization of
revaluation reserves or Unrealised profits of the issuer or from bonus issue against equity shares which are
ineligible for minimum Promoters contribution;

¢) Equity Shares acquired by Promoters during the preceding one year at a price lower than the Issue Price;

d) The Equity Shares held by the Promoters and offered for minimum 20% Promoters Contribution are not
subject to any pledge.

e) Equity Shares for which specific written consent has not been obtained from the shareholders for inclusion
of their subscription in the minimum Promoters Contribution subject to lock-in.

Promoters’ Minimum | Eligibility Status of Equity Shares forming

Contribution Conditions part of Promoters Contribution
237 (1) (a) (1) Specified securities acquired during | The Minimum Promoter’s contribution does
the preceding three years, if they are | not consist of such Equity shares which have
acquired for consideration other than | been acquired for consideration other than
cash and revaluation of assets or | cash and revaluation of assets or
capitalisation of intangible assets is | capitalisation of intangible assets. Hence
involved in such transaction Eligible
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237.(1) (2) (1)

Specified securities acquired during
the preceding three years, resulting
from a bonus issue by utilisation of
revaluation reserves or unrealised
profits of the issuer or from bonus
issue against equity shares which are
ineligible for minimum promoters’
contribution.

The Minimum Promoter’s contribution does
not consist of such Equity shares. Hence
Eligible.

237 (1) (b)

Specified securities acquired by the
promoters and alternative investment
funds or foreign venture capital
investors or scheduled commercial
banks or public financial institutions
or insurance companies registered
with Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India [or
any non-individual public
shareholder holding at least five per
cent. of the post-issue capital or any
entity (individual or non-individual)
forming part of promoter group other
than the promoter(s)], during the
preceding one year at a price lower
than the price at which specified
securities are being offered to the
public in the initial public offer:

The Minimum Promoter’s contribution does
not consist of such Equity shares. Hence
Eligible.

237 (1) ()

Specified securities allotted to the
promoters and alternative investment
funds during the preceding one year
at a price less than the issue price,
against funds brought in by them
during that period, in case of an issuer
formed by conversion of one or more
partnership firms or limited liability
partnerships, where the partners of
the erstwhile partnership firms or
limited liability partnerships are the
promoters of the issuer and there is no
change in the management.

The Minimum Promoter’s contribution does
not consist of such Equity shares. Hence
Eligible.

237 (1) (d)

Specified securities pledged with any
creditor.

The Minimum Promoter’s contribution does
not consist of such Equity shares. Hence
Eligible.

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, our Company confirms that certificates of
Equity Shares which are subject to lock in shall contain the inscription “Non-Transferable” and specify the lock-

in period and in case such equity shares are dematerialized, the Company shall ensure that the lock in is recorded
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17.

18.

by the Depository.
Equity Shares locked-in for One Year

In addition to above Equity Shares that are locked-in for three years as the minimum Promoters’ contribution,
the promoters and public pre-issue shareholding of Equity Share capital of our Company, i.e. 99,85,324 Equity
Shares shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of Allotment in the Public Issue. Further, such
lock-in of the Equity Shares would be created as per the bye laws of the Depositories.

Pledge of Locked in Equity Shares:

In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the locked-in Equity Shares held by our
Promoters can be pledged as a collateral security for a loan granted by a scheduled commercial bank or a public
financial institution or a systemically important non-banking finance company or a housing finance company,
subject to the following:

e In case of Minimum Promoters’ Contribution, the loan has been granted to the issuer company or its
subsidiary (ies) for the purpose of financing one or more of the Objects of the Issue and pledge of equity
shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

e In case of Equity Shares held by Promoters in excess of Minimum Promoters’ contribution, the pledge of
equity shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

e However, lock-in shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall not be
eligible to transfer the equity shares till the lock-in period specified has expired.

Transferability of Locked in Equity Shares:

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and subject to provisions of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as applicable:

e The Equity Shares held by our Promoters and locked in as per Regulation 238 of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018 may be transferred to another Promoters or any person of the Promoters® Group or to a
new promoter(s) or persons in control of our Company, subject to continuation of lock-in for the remaining
period with transferee and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer them till the lock- in period
stipulated has expired.

e The equity shares held by persons other than promoters and locked in as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations, 2018 may be transferred to any other person (including Promoter and Promoters’
Group) holding the equity shares which are locked-in along with the equity shares proposed to be transferred,
subject to continuation of lock-in for the remaining period with transferee and such transferee shall not be
eligible to transfer them till the lock- in period stipulated has expired.

Our Company, our Promoters, our Directors and the BRLM to this Offer have not entered into any buy-back,
standby or similar arrangements with any person for purchase of our Equity Shares from any person.

Our Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash or out of revaluation of reserves, including
Bonus Shares, at any point of time since Incorporation except the following:
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No. of Face | Issue
. Reason for Benefit
Name of Allottees Shares Value @ Price Allotment occurred to Issuer
Allotted (Rs.) (Rs.)
M/s Kumaun Garhwal 34,88,400 10 NA June Bonus Issue
Infrastructural Industrial 19, 2024
1. | Corporation Private
Limited
Mr. Devendra Kumar 28.,34,920 10 NA June Bonus Issue
> Agarval 19,2024
; M/s Annapurna Steels 24,00,280 10 NA June Bonus Issue
* | Private Limited 19, 2024
A Mr. Arpan Jindal 21,76,600 10 NA June Bonus Issue Capitalizations
' 19, 2024 of reserve
s M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels | 20,32,120 10 NA June Bonus Issue
" | Private Limited 19, 2024
6 Ms. Rekha Agarwal 34,560 10 NA June Bonus Issue
' 19, 2024
Ms. Venu Jindal 12,480 10 NA June Bonus Issue
7 19, 2024
o M/s KVS Ispat Private 3,200 10 NA June Bonus Issue
| Limited 19,2024
Total 1,29,82,560
19. Our Company has not allotted any Equity Shares pursuant to any scheme approved under Sections 230 to 234

of the Companies Act, 2013 except the following.

Pursuant to the NCLT order dated June 15, 2020, M/s Kamlapati Infrastructure Limited (Transferor-1), M/s
Sidhivinayak Horticulture Limited (Transferor-2), M/s Sharma Investments Limited (Transferor-3) and M/s
Tomar Investments Limited (Transferor-4) has been merged into our Company (Transferee) and Authorised
Share capital has been increased from Rs.15,00,000 to Rs.16,15,00,000. Further, our Company issued 56,254
Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10.00/- each on December 31, 2020, pursuant to order of Amalgamation
passed by NCLT, details are as follows:

S. No.

Name of Allottee

No. of Shares Issued

1. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 24,803
2. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 24,027
3. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agrwal 4,173
4. Mr. Arpan Jindal 1915
5. Ms. Rekha Agarwal 864
6. Ms. Venu Jindal 312
7. M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private 80
Limited
8. M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited 80
Total 56,254
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20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Our Company has not re-valued any of its assets. However, the company has not issued any Equity Shares
(including bonus shares) by capitalizing any revaluation reserves. For more details, please refer to the chapter
“financial statements as restated” on the page 212 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme / Employee Stock Purchase Scheme for our
employees, and we do not intend to allot any shares to our employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme /
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme from the proposed issue. As and when options are granted to our employees
under the Employee Stock Option Scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

There are no safety net arrangements for this public Offer.

As on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to
convert debentures, loans or other financial instruments into our Equity Shares.

As per Regulation 268(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, an over-subscription to the extent of 10% of the
Issue can be retained for the purpose of rounding off to the nearest integer during finalizing the allotment, subject
to minimum allotment lot. Consequently, the actual allotment may go up by a maximum of 10% of the Issue, as
a result of which, the post issue paid up capital after the Issue would also increase by the excess amount of
allotment so made. In such an event, the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and subject to lock-in shall be
suitably increased to ensure that 20% of the post issue paid-up capital is locked-in.

All the Equity Shares of our Company are fully paid up as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. Further,
since the entire money in respect of the Offer is being called on application, all the successful applicants will be
allotted fully paid-up equity shares.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this Issue.

There is no Buyback, stand by, or similar arrangement by our Company/Promoters/Directors/BRLM for
purchase of Equity Shares issued / offered through this Red Herring Prospectus.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, none of the shares held by our Promoters/ Promoter Group are
pledged with any financial institutions or banks or any third party as security for repayment of loans.

Investors may note that in case of over-subscription, the allocation in the Issue shall be as per the requirements
of Regulation 253 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as amended from time to time.

Under subscription, if any, in any category, shall be met with spill-over from any other category or combination
of categories at the discretion of our Company, in consultation with the BRLM and BSE.

The Issue is being made through Book Building Method.

BRLM to the Issue viz. Narnolia Financial Services Limited and its associates do not hold any Equity Shares of
our Company.

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of this Issue.

Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity Shares,
unless otherwise permitted by law.
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. Our Company shall comply with such accounting and disclosure norms as specified by SEBI from time to time.

. Our Company is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to issuance of securities since

inception till the date of filing of Red Herring Prospectus.

. An Applicant cannot make an application for more than the number of Equity Shares being Issued/Offered

through this Red Herring Prospectus, subject to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant
laws applicable to each category of investors.

. No payment, direct or indirect in the nature of discount, commission, and allowance or otherwise shall be made

either by us or our Promoters to the persons who receive allotments, if any, in this Offer.

Our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group will not participate in this Issue.
Our Company has not made any public issue since its incorporation.

Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by the Promoters and the Promoter Group
between the date of filing the Red Herring Prospectus and the Offer Closing Date shall be reported to the Stock
Exchange within twenty-four hours of such transaction.

For the details of transactions by our Company with our Promoter Group, Group Companies for the financial
years ended on March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 & March 31 2023 Fiscals, please refer to paragraph titled
—Related Party Transaction in the chapter titled “Restated Financial Statements” beginning on page number
212 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

None of our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel holds Equity Shares in our Company, except as stated in
the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page number 169 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Issue includes a public Issue of Upto 49,70,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each of our Company at
an Issue Price of [®] per Equity Share.

Requirement of Funds
We intend to utilize the net proceeds of the Issue to meet the following objects: -

1. To meet out the Capital Expenditures; and
2. To meet out the General Corporate Purposes

(Collectively referred as the “objects”)

We believe that listing will enhance our corporate image and visibility of brand name of our Company. We also
believe that our Company will receive the benefits from listing of Equity Shares on the SME Platform of BSE Limited
(BSE SME). It will also provide liquidity to the existing shareholders and will also create a public trading market for
the Equity Shares of our Company.

The main objects clause of our Memorandum of Association (MOA) enables our Company to undertake its existing
activities and these activities which have been carried out now by our Company are valid in terms of the objects
clause of our Memorandum of Association (MOA). Further the objects clause and objects incidental and ancillary to
the main objects clause of our Subsidiary, enables to undertake their existing business activities

REQUIREMENT OF FUNDS

The proceeds of the Issue, after deducting Issue-related expenses, are estimated to be Rs. [®] Lakhs (the “Net Issue
Proceeds™).

The following table summarizes the requirement of funds:

S. No.  Particulars Rupees in Lakhs

1 Gross Issue Proceeds [e]*
2 | Less: Issue Related Expenses [®]*
Net proceeds [®]*

"Subject to finalization of basis of allotment
*To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC.

UTILISATION OF FUNDS:

Fund Requirements

Our funding requirements are dependent on a number of factors which may not be in the control of our management,
changes in our financial condition and current commercial conditions. Such factors may entail rescheduling and / or

revising the planned expenditure and funding requirement and increasing or decreasing the expenditure for a
particular purpose from the planned expenditure.
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We intend to utilize the proceeds of the Fresh Issue, in the manner set forth below:

(Rupees in Lakhs, except %)
% of

(1)
Particulars Gross /0 Of Net
Proceeds
Proceeds
1. Capital Expenditures 2,150.00 [o] [e]
2. General Corporate Purposes™ [e] [e] [e]
Net Issue Proceeds [®] [e] [e]

* To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the
RoC and the amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 15% of the amount raised
by our Company or Rs. 10 Crores, whichever is lower.

Means of Finance: -We intend to finance our Objects of Issue through Net Proceeds which is as follows:

Particulars ‘Estimated Amount in Lakhs

Net Proceeds [e]
Total [o]

The objects detailed above are intended to be funded from the proceeds of the Issue while any remaining funding
needs will be met through the company's internal accruals. Accordingly, we confirm that there is no requirement for
us to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance,
excluding the amount to be raised from the proposed Issue.

The fund requirement and deployment are based on internal management estimates and have not been appraised by
any bank or financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to change in light of changes
in external circumstances or costs, other financial conditions, business or strategy, as discussed further below.

DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS

1. Capital Expenditure towards purchase of plant and machineries

Our Company intends to deploy amount of Rs. 2,776.34 Lakhs towards capital expenditures, out of which Rs.
2,150.00 Lakhs will be source from Net Proceeds and Rs. 626.34 Lakhs from internal sources.

Out of Rs. 626.34 Lakhs, the company made an advance payment of Rs. 551.11 Lakhs towards capital expenditure
for plants and machineries mentioned under the object to the issue, from internal accruals.

Further, the advance payment made by the company will not be part of the Net Proceed.
The utilization will be for the Capital expenditures towards purchase of plant and machineries with advanced
Technology Equipment required for manufacturing of products relating to Ductile Iron (SG)/ Cast Iron (CI)/ Steel

castings for Automobile and Non-Automobile Sectors such as Railways, Defence, Tractors.

Further, the details and description of land for the proposed capital expenditure are as follows:

S. No. Name of Address of Owned/Leased Area Tenure/Term Usage

| Y Property
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1. M/s  Kashi | Village Leased 10,357.60 | 20 Years Manufacturing Plant
Vishwanath | Baghelewala, Sq. Yards | (w.e.f. Unit -2
Steels Private | Tehsil 01/08/2024)
Limited Kashipur,

Total Area of the land, where the manufacturing facility -2 will be setup is 10,357.60 Sq. Yards. However,
approximately 80% i.e., 8,286.08 Sq. yards of the total area, is proposed to be utilized for the present expansion
(construction of the building and installation of plant and machineries).

No second-hand or used machinery is proposed to be purchased out of the Net Proceeds.
The rationale for purchasing the machine with the proceeds from the mentioned issue is as follows:

As the company has observed a consistent demand for Automobile and Non-Automobile, ferrous casting products
and machining services from both existing and potential customers, there has been a notable increase in the overall
production requirements of the company. In light of this, the company is actively engaged in a process to elevate its
production capacity from the current level to meet the increased demand. To fulfill this imperative, an investment of
Rs. 2,776.34 lakhs from the aforementioned proceeds are earmarked for the acquisition of the below mentioned
machineries which will be used in the new plant (Unit 2). The company is strategically planning to automate its
processes, aiming to utilize optimum capacity for ensuring timely product deliveries with the expected quality
standards. Currently equipped with a capacity of up to 600 metric tons per month for Sand Casting (Ductile Iron (SG)
and Cast Iron (CI) and Machining components. The company is going to install a new plant and machineries which
will increase our capacity by 1000 metric tons capacity per month. Through this enhancement, the company
underscores its ability to anticipate technological and regulatory changes, successfully developing and introducing
new and improved products in a timely manner. This capability is identified as a significant factor and helps the
company to cater the increased demand of existing and new customers.

Description and Purpose of Machinery:

For manufacturing of Casting product, we need to increase the manufacturing process for that required various
machinery as listed below., the details of the machineries to be procured by the company are as follows:

a) Disa Match High Pressure Moulding Machine:

To produce Ductile Iron (SG) and Cast-Iron casting components like Brake Drum, Wheel Hub, Steering Housing,
Railway Brake system parts, Timing Case, Drum Changer, EV vehicle front / Rear Axle and others. This is the latest
featured moulding machine which has the capability to increase productivity with safety while maintaining and
improving the quality of the castings. With this machine we can make intricate castings for different sectors.

b) Sand Plant Equipments and Conveying System:

This is an advanced PLC (Programmable Logic Controller) based equipment to prepare Green Sand as per
specification with highest grade of quality so as to help in making sound casting with minimum rejection. The
conveying system is an underground as well as over the ground fully automatic and PLC controlled belt conveyer
system to carry prepared green sand to Molding Machine and back to Shakeout.

¢) Centrifugal Sand Mixer Tm 285-160:

This is a high speed fully automatic and PLC controlled Sand Mixing system to prepare molding sand for Molds. A
highly advanced mixer machine capable of doing self-examination/ testing of all sand parameters required for making
best quality sand.

d) Dust Extraction System:

To keep dust free environment near sand plant / molding machine, Dust Extraction System will be installed.
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e) CNC and VMC Machines:

CNC/VMC are the machines where the material or part is held in place and rotated by the main spindle as the cutting
tool that works on the material is mounted and moved on various axes.

f) Melting Furnace:

Melting furnaces are used to melt solid materials like CRCA (Cold rolled cutting) scrap mixed with other Alloys to
make the final liquid metal as per the customer’s specification and then given to the moulding line for pouring into the
mould boxes made through Moulding Machine.

g) Furnace Transformers:

Transformers are used to control input and output of electric supplies coming from Grid lines. We will install the
furnace transformer with the capacity of 3600 KVA, 33 KV/375.

We intend to buy following under the capital expenditures, the tentative costs are given below along with the
quotations from vendors::

(Rupees In Lakhs)
S. No.| Machine Description Qty. | Supplier Name PO Date Validity Amount of
Date Purchase
1. | DISA Match 24/28 HPML - |1 Set DISA India Limited | 29.10.2024 NA 1,135.00
Moulding Machine System and
19.05.2025
2. | Sand Plant Equipments and 1 Set | Savelli Machinery India 25.01.2025 NA 461.86
Conveyor System Pvt.Ltd
3. | Centrifugal Sand Mixer TM 1 Set | Savelli Machinery Indial 25.01.2025 NA 166.36
240-110 Pvt.Ltd
4. | SMC (Sand Multi Controller) 1 Set | Savelli Machinery India 25.01.2025 NA 80.00
Pvt.Ltd
5 | Dust Extraction System 1 Set Neo airtech India 25.01.2025 NA 145.00
Private Limited
6. | CNC Machine 10 Ace Designers 08.05.2025 NA 213.00
Limited
7. | VMC Machines 6 Ace Designers 08.05.2025 NA 227.82
Limited
8. | 3250 KW /1000 KG Tetra 1 Set | Electrotherm India 05.03.2025 NA 283.00
Track Induction Furnaces Limited
(Melting Furnace)
9 3600 KVA, 33 KV/375V | Set Electrotherm India 05.03.2025 NA 64.30
" | Furnace Transformer, ONAN Limited
type
Total 2,776.34
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As on the date of Red Herring Prospectus, our company has paid advances to the following Vendors against

the Purchase Order as mentioned above:

Vendor Machine Description Amount of Amount Remaining
Purchase Utilize from Amount (In
Internal Lakhs)
Accruals (In
Lakhs)
1. | DISA India DISA Match 24/28 HPML -
Limited Moulding Machine System 1,135.00 170.1 964.90
2. | Savelli Machinery | Sand Plant Equipment and Conveyor 461.86
India Pvt.Ltd System ’ 27621 432,01
Centrifugal Sand Mixer TM 240-110 166.36 ) ’
SMC (Sand Multi Controller) 80.00
3. Nejo A1rt.ech India | Dust Extraction System 145.00 16.90 128.10
Private Limited
4. A.ce. Designers | CNC Machine and VMC Machine 440.82 33.60 40722
Limited
5. | Electrotherm India | e 3250 KW /1000 KG Tetra Track 283.00 18.10 264.90
Limited Induction Furnaces (Melting
Furnace)
e 3600 KVA, 33 KV/375 V Furnace 64.30 3620 28.10
Transformer, ONAN type
Total 2,776.34 551.11 2,225.23
Less: To be utilized from Internal Accruals 75.23
Net Utilized from IPO Proceeds 2,150.00

Notes: The purchase price mentioned is exclusive of GST and other applicable taxes.

2. General Corporate Purpose

Our Company intends to deploy the balance Net Proceeds aggregating Rs. [ @] Lakh for General Corporate Purposes
subject to such utilization not exceeding 15% of the amount raised by our Company or 10 crores, whichever is
lower, in compliance with the SEBI Regulations, including but not limited or restricted to, strategic initiatives,
strengthening our marketing network & capability, meeting exigencies, brand building exercises in order to
strengthen our operations. Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in
utilizing the proceeds earmarked for General Corporate Purposes.

3. Issue related Expenses

The expenses for this Issue include issue management fees, underwriting fees, registrar fees, legal advisor fees,
printing and distribution expenses, advertisement expenses, depository charges, listing fees to the Stock Exchange,
selling commission payable to members of the Syndicate and miscellaneous expenses. The total expenses for this
Issue are estimated not to exceed Rs. [®] Lakh.

Particular Amount % of Total
rti
AEHEEEEES (Rs. in Lakhs) *| Expenses

1 Book Running Lead manager(s) fees including underwriting [e] [e]
commission.
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2 Brokerage, selling commission and upload fees. [e] [e]
3 Registrars to the issue [e] [e]
4 Legal Advisors [e] [e]
5 Printing, advertising and marketing expenses [e] [e]
6 Regulators including stock exchanges [e] [e]
7 Others, if any [e] [e]
(Peer Review Auditors, and other misc. expenses like printing &
stationery etc.)
Total [o] [e]

* To be incorporated in the Prospectus after finalisation of the Issue Price.
Structure for commission and brokerage payment to the SCSBs Syndicate, RTAs, CDPs and SCSBs:

1. Issue expenses including applicable taxes.

2. Selling commission payable to the members of the CDPs, RTA, SCSBs on the portion of RII, NII would be as
follows:

e Portion for RIIs 0.01% (exclusive of GST) valid per allotment
e Portion for NllIs 0.01% (exclusive of GST) valid per allotment.

3. Percentage of the amount received against the Equity Shares Allotted (i.e. the product of the number of Equity
Shares and the Issue Price)

4. The members of RTA and CDPs will be entitled to application charges of Rs. 5/- (plus applicable taxes) as per
valid allotment. The terminal from which the application form has been uploaded will be taken into account in
order to determine the total application charges payable to the relevant RTA/CDP.

5. Registered Brokers will be entitled to a commission of Rs. 5/- (plus applicable taxes), per allotment, procured
from RII, NII and submitted to the SCSBs for processing. The terminal from which the application has been
uploaded will be taken into account in order to determine the total processing fees payable to the relevant
Registered Broker.

6. SCSBs would be entitled to a processing fee of Rs. 5/- (Plus applicable taxes) for processing the application
forms, for valid allotments, procured by the members of the Registered Brokers, RTAs and CDPs and
submitted to them.

Proposed Schedule of Implementation:

The proposed year wise break up of deployment of funds and Schedule of Implementation of Net Issue Proceeds is
as under:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount to be | Expenses Amount to Amount to be
funded from | incurred till be deployed deployed and
Net Proceeds March 31, | and utilized utilized in F.Y.
2025 in F.Y. 2024- | 2025-26
25
1. | Capital Expenditure 2,150.00 NIL NIL 2,150.00
2. | General Corporate Purposes* [e] [e] [e] [o]

Total

[e]

[e]

[e]

[]

*To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC
and the amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 15% of the amount raised by our

Company or 10 crores, whichever is lower.
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Further to the extent our Company is unable to utilize any portion of the Net Proceeds towards the Object, as per the
estimated schedule of deployment specified above; our Company shall deploy the Net Issue Proceeds in the
subsequent Financial Years towards the Object.

In case of any increase in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for the Objects, such additional funds for a
particular activity will be met by way of means available to our Company, including from internal accruals. If the
actual utilization towards any of the Objects is lower than the proposed deployment such balance will be used for
future growth opportunities including funding existing objects, if required. In case of delays in raising funds from
the Issue, our Company may deploy certain amounts towards any of the above-mentioned Objects through a
combination of Internal Accruals or Unsecured Loans (Bridge Financing) and in such case the Funds raised shall be
utilized towards repayment of such Unsecured Loans or recouping of Internal Accruals. However, we confirm that
no bridge financing has been availed as on date, which is subject to being repaid from the Issue Proceeds. We further
confirm that no part proceed of the Issue shall be utilised for repayment of any Part of unsecured loan outstanding as
on date of Red Herring Prospectus.

The above requirement of funds are based on our current business plan, internal management estimates based on the
prevailing market conditions, and also based on quotations obtained from certain vendor, quotations from vendors
for the estimated costs relating to the warehouse and security deposits for proposed warehouse, delivery hubs, rapid
delivery points, etc. These funding requirements or deployments have not been appraised by any bank or financial
institution. We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment from time to time on account of various
factors, such as change in costs, including due to inflation or increase in the rate of taxation or change in the rate of
currency exchange, revision in quotations at the time of actual expenditure, change in financial and market conditions,
our management’s analysis of economic trends and our business requirements, changes in technology, ability to
identify and consummate new business initiatives as well as general factors affecting our results of operations,
financial condition, business and strategy and interest/exchange rate fluctuations or other external factors, which may
not be within the control of our management. This may entail rescheduling (including preponing the deployment of
Net Proceeds) and revising the funding requirement for a particular Object or increasing or decreasing the amounts
earmarked towards any of the aforementioned Objects at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance
with applicable law.

In case of any surplus amount after utilization of the Net Proceeds towards any of the aforementioned Objects, we
may use such surplus amount towards (i) other Objects as set out above; and/ or (ii) general corporate purposes,
provided that (a) the total amount to be utilized towards general corporate purposes does not exceed 25% of the
amount raised by our Company, Further, in case of a shortfall in meeting the aforementioned Objects, we may explore
a range of alternate funding options including utilizing our internal accruals.

APPRAISAL BY APPRAISING AGENCY

None of the Objects have been appraised by any bank or financial institution or any other independent third-party
organization. The funding requirements of our Company and the deployment of the proceeds of the Issue are currently
based management estimates. The funding requirements of our Company are dependent on a number of factors which
may not be in the control of our management, including variations in interest rate structures, changes in our financial
condition and current commercial conditions and are subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances
or in our financial condition, business or strategy.

SHORTFALL OF FUNDS
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Any shortfall in meeting the fund requirements will be met by way of internal accruals and or unsecured Loans.
DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS

The Company has received the Sources and Deployment Funds Certificate dated June 18, 2025, from M/s, Arora Gupta &
Co., Chartered Accountants. The certificate states that the Company has incurred Rs. 16.00 Lakhs towards issue expenses
for initial public offer till June 18, 2025

INTERIM USE OF FUNDS

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to invest the funds in with scheduled
commercial banks included in the second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Our management, in
accordance with the policies established by our Board of Directors from time to time, will deploy the Net Proceeds.
Further, our Board of Directors hereby undertake that full recovery of the said interim investments shall be made
without any sort of delay as and when need arises for utilization of process for the objects of the issue.

BRIDGE FINANCING FACILITIES

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus, which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds. However, depending on business exigencies, our
Company may consider raising bridge financing for the Net Proceeds for Object of the Issue.

MONITORING UTILIZATION OF FUNDS

As the Net Proceeds of the Issue will be less than Rs. 5,000 Lakh, under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations it is not
mandatory for us to appoint a monitoring agency. Our Board and the management will monitor the utilization of the
Net Proceeds through its audit committee. Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations 2015, our Company shall on half-yearly basis disclose to the Audit Committee the
applications of the proceeds of the Issue. On an annual basis, our Company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized
for purposes other than stated in this Red Herring Prospectus and place it before the Audit Committee. Such
disclosures shall be made only until such time that all the proceeds of the Issue have been utilized in full. The
statement will be certified by the Statutory Auditors of our Company.

No part of the Issue Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoter, our Directors, Key
Management Personnel or companies promoted by the Promoter, except as may be required in the usual course of
business.

VARIATION IN OBJECTS

In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, our Company
shall not vary the objects of the Issue without our Company being authorised to do so by the Shareholders by way of
a special resolution through postal ballot. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing
of such special resolution (the Postal Ballot Notice or E-Voting) shall specify the prescribed details as required under
the Companies Act and applicable rules. The Postal Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be published in the
newspapers, one in English and one in the vernacular language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is
situated. Our Promoters will be required to provide an exit opportunity to such Shareholders who do not agree to the
above stated proposal, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with such terms and
conditions, including in respect of pricing of the Equity Shares, in accordance with our Articles of Association, the
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Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS

No part of the issue proceeds will be paid as consideration to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel,
associates or group companies except in the normal course of business and as disclosed in the sections titled Our

Promoters, Our Promoters Group and Our Management as mentioned on page no. 188, 197 and 169 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE

Investors should read the following summary with the section titled “Risk Factors”, the details about our Company
under the section titled "Our Business" and its financial statements under the section titled "Financial Information of
the Company" beginning on page 25, 122, and 212 respectively of the Red Herring Prospectus. The trading price of
the Equity Shares of our Company could decline due to these risks and the investor may lose all or part of his
investment.

The Price Band/ Issue Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead
Manager on the basis of the assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares through the Book Building Process
and on the basis of qualitative and quantitative factors. The face value of the Equity Shares is X 10/- each and the Issue
Price.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS
Some of the qualitative factors which form the basis for computing the price, are:

Timely and safe deliveries

In-house manufacturing Facilities

Experienced management team and a motivated and efficient work force;
Cordial relations with our clients;

AN~

For further details, refer to the heading chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 122 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

Information presented below relating to the Company is based on the Restated Financial Statements. Some of the
quantitative factors which form the basis or computing the price are as follows:

1. Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Financial Year EPS (Basic & Weight
Diluted)

2024-25 4.84 3
2023-24 447
2022-23 3.64 1
Weighted Average EPS 4.52

Note:

a) EPS Calculations have been done in accordance with Ind AS 33 - Earning per share issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

b) Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of
Equity Shares outstanding during the period.

c) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares is the number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of
the year/period adjusted by the number of Equity Shares issued during year/period multiplied by the time
weighting factor. The time weighing factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding
as a proportion of total number of days during the year.

d) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
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effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.
2. Price to Earnings (P/E) ratio in relation to Issue Price of Rs. [e#]/- per Equity Share of face value Rs.

10/- each fully paid up.

Particulars P/E Ratio

P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated for FY 2023-2024

[e]

P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated for FY 2022-2023

[e]

P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated for FY 2021-2022 [e]
P/E ratio based on the Weighted Average EPS, as restated [e]
*Not Annualized
Industry P/E*
Highest 40.13
Lowest 18.25
Average 29.19

3. Return on Net Worth (RONW)

Financial Year Return on Net Worth (%) ‘ Weight

2024-25 22.00 3
2023-24 26.09 2
2022-23 27.78 1
Weighted Average 24.33%
*Not Annualized
Note:

a) Return on Net Worth (%) = Net Profit after tax attributable to owners of the Company, as restated /Net

worth as restated as at year end.

b) Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted RoNW divided by the aggregate of weights i.e.

(RoNW x Weight) for each year/Total of weights

c) Net worth is the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital of the Company and reserves and surplus,

excluding revaluation reserves and attributable to equity holders.

4. Net Asset Value per Equity Share

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Net Asset Value (NAV)
2024-25 24.99
2023-24 794.46
2022-23 611.11
NAYV after the Issue- At Cap Price [e]
NAYV after the Issue- At Floor Price [e]
NAYV after the Issue- Issue Price [e]

Note: Net Asset Value has been calculated as per the following formula:

NAV = Net worth excluding preference share capital and revaluation reserve/Outstanding number of

Equity shares outstanding during the year or period.

5. Comparison with industry peers
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PAT
(Rs. In
Lakhs)

NAV

Name of the company PE RONW (R
.

Ratio | (%) Per share)

1 | KVS Castings Limited 10.00 [o] 450 | [e] | 22.00% | 24.99 | 662.53

Peer Group*
2. Universal Auto Foundry Limited 10.00 66.95 | 1.98 33.81 | 3.34% 58.70 235.37

3. Thaai Casting Limited 10.00 106.25 | 5.07 20.95 | 13.97% 36.31 1,173.37
Note: Industry Peer may be modified for finalisation of Issue Price before filing Red Herring Prospectus with ROC.
* Sourced from Annual Reports, Unaudited Financials, NSE& BSE.

Notes:

e (Considering the nature and turnover of business of the Company, the peers are not strictly comparable.
However, the same have been included for broader comparison.

e The figures for KVS Castings Limited are based on the restated results for the Year ended March 31, 2025.

e The figures for the peer group are based on standalone restated results for the period ending March 31,
2025.

e Current Market Price (CMP) is the closing price of respective scrip as on September 01, 2025.

For further details see the section titled Risk Factors beginning on page 25 and the financials of the Company
including profitability and return ratios, as set out in the section titled Auditors Report and Financial Information
of Our Company beginning on page 212 of this Red Herring Prospectus for a more informed view.

Key financial and operational performance indicators (“KPIs”)

Our company considers that KPIs included herein below have a bearing for arriving at the basis for Offer Price.
The KPIs disclosed below have been approved by a resolution of our Audit Committee dated May 23, 2025. Further,
the KPIs herein have been certified by M/s Arora Gupta & Co., chartered accountants, by their certificate date
June 19, 2025 vide UDIN 25514828BMOFPF8590. Additionally, the Audit Committee on its meeting
dated May 23, 2025, have confirmed that other than verified and audited KPIs set out below, our company has not
disclosed to earlier investors at any point of time during the three years period prior to the date of the Red Herring
Prospectus.

For further details of our key performance indicators, see “Risk Factors, “Our Business”, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 25, 122 and 214 respectively.
We have described and defined them, where applicable, in “Definitions and Abbreviations” section on page no. 2.
Our Company confirms that it shall continue to disclose all the KPIs included in this section “Basis for Offer Price”,
on a periodic basis, at least once in a year (or for any lesser period as determined by the Board of our Company),
for a duration that is at least the later of (i) one year after the listing date or period specified by SEBI; or (ii) till the
utilization of the Net Proceeds. Any change in these KPIs, during the aforementioned period, will be explained by
our Company as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

6. Key metrics like revenue growth, EBIDTA Margin, PAT Margin and few balance sheet ratio are
monitored on a periodic basic for evaluating the overall performance of our Company.
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(Rupees in Lakhs, except EPS, % and ratios)

Particulars Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
ended March ended March ended March 31,
31, 2025 31,2024 2023
Revenue from operations @ 5,010.94 5,415.75 5,726.34
Growth in Revenue from Operations (7.47%) (5.42%) 23.59%
)
EBITDA® 984.48 900.14 751.03
EBITDA Margin (%) ¢ 19.65% 16.62% 13.12%
EBITDA Growth Period on Period® 9.37% 19.85% 151.38%
ROCE (%)® 23.78% 31.64% 30.66%
Current Ratio” 1.40 3.98 232
Operating Cash flow® 1,053.92 511.35 323.92
PAT 9 662.53 595.10 483.84
ROE/ RoNWU9 22.00% 26.09% 27.78%
Eps (11) 4.81 447 3.64
Notes:

) Revenue from operations is the total revenue generated by our Company from its operation.

@ Growth in revenue in percentage, year on year

©) EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depreciation + Interest Expenses

@ EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations

©) EBITDA growth rate year on year

© ROCE: Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBIT divided by capital employed, which is defined as
shareholders’ equity plus long-term debt less Revaluation Reserve.

) Current Ratio: Current Asset over Current Liabilities

® Operating Cash Flow: Net cash inflow from operating activities.

@ PAT is mentioned as PAT for the period

(19 ROE/RoNW is calculated as PAT divided by shareholders’ equity

) EPS is mentioned as EPS for the period

KPI ‘ Explanation

Revenue from operation Revenue from Operations is used by our management to track the revenue profile
of the business and in turn helps to assess the overall financial performance of
our Company and volume of our business.

Revenue Growth Rate % Revenue Growth Rate informs the management of annual growth rate in revenue
of the company on consideration to the previous period

EBITDA EBITDA provides information regarding the operational efficiency of the
business.

EBITDA Margin (%) EBITDA Margin (%) is an indicator of the operational profitability and financial

performance of our business

EBITDA Growth Rate % EBITDA Growth Rate inform the management of annual growth rate in
EBIDTA of company on consideration to previous period

ROCE % ROCE provides how efficiently our Company generates earnings from the
capital employed in the business.

Current Ratio Current ratio indicate the company’s ability to bear its short term obligations.

Operating Cash Flow Operating cash flow shows whether the company is able to generate cash from
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day-to-day business.

PAT Profit after Tax is an indicator which determines the actual earning available to
equity shareholders.

ROE/RoNW ROE/RoNW (%) is an indicator which shows how much company is generating
from its available shareholders’ funds

EPS Earning per shares is the company’s earnings available of one share of the
Company for the period

7. GAAP Financial Measures

GAAP Financial measures are numerical measures which are disclosed by the issuer company in accordance with
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) applicable for the issuer company i.e., measures disclosed
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) or Accounting Standards (“AS”) notified in accordance
with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act”). These measures are generally disclosed in
the financial statements of the issuer company.

(Rupees in lakhs)

Financial Year
ended March

Financial Year
ended March

Particulars Financial Year

ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024 31, 2023

Revenue from operations 5,010.94 5,415.75 5,726.34
Profit after tax 662.53 595.10 483.84
Cash flow from operating activities 1,053.92 511.35 323.92
Cash Flow from investing activities (1,854.11) (50.86) (328.17)
Cash Flow from financing activities 504.83 (471.72) 79.67
Net Change in Cash and cash (296.27) (11.23) 75.42
equivalents

8. Non- GAAP Financial measures

Non-GAAP Financial measures are numerical measures of the Technical Guide on Disclosure and Reporting of
KPIs issuer company’s historical financial performance, financial position, or cash flows that:

i. Exclude amounts, or are subject to adjustments that have the effect of excluding amounts, that are included in
the most directly comparable measures calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP in the financial
statements of the issuer company; or

ii. Include amounts or are subject to adjustments that have the effect of including amounts, that are excluded from
the most directly comparable measures so calculated and presented. Such adjustment items should be based
on the audited line items only, which are included in the financial statements. These Non-GAAP Financial
measures are items which are not defined under Ind AS or AS, as applicable. Generally, if the issuer company
takes a commonly understood or defined GAAP amount and removes or adds a component of that amount that
is also presented in the financial statements, the resulting amount is considered a Non-GAAP Financial
measure. As a simplified example, if the issuer company discloses net income less restructuring charges and
loss on debt extinguishment (having determined all amounts in accordance with GAAP), the resulting
performance amount, which may be labelled “Adjusted Net Income,” is a Non-GAAP Financial measure.
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(Rupees in Lakhs, except %)

Particulars Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
ended March 31, ended March 31, ended March 31,
2025 2024 2023
EBITDA 984.48 900.14 751.03
Gross margin 27.54% 19.31% 15.12%
EBITDA margin 19.65% 16.62% 13.12%
Working capital 523.02 1,490.05 1189.74
PAT Margin 13.22% 10.99% 8.45%
Net worth 3444.95 2578.53 1,983.43

Apart from the above, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification dated March 24, 2021, has issued
certain amendments to the Schedule III to the Act. Pursuant to these amendments, the below ratios are also
required to be presented in the financial statements of the companies:

On the basis of Restated financial statements

Particulars Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
ended March ended March ended March
31, 2025 31,2024 31,2023
Current ratio 1.40 3.98 2.32
Debt-equity ratio 0.11 0.02 0.25
Debt service coverage ratio 27.21 7.85 21.09
Inventory turnover ratio 14.32 12.48 13.91
Trade receivables turnover ratio 5.38 6.27 5.90
Trade payables turnover ratio 7.08 7.62 5.73
Net capital turnover ratio 9.58 3.64 4.81
Net profit ratio 13.22% 10.99% 8.45%
Return on equity ratio 22.00% 26.09% 27.78%
Return on capital employed 23.78% 31.64% 30.66%
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9. Comparison of KPI with listed industry peers

(Rupees in Lakhs, except%)

Particulars KYVS Castings Limited Universal Auto foundry Limited Thaai Casting Limited
Mar-25 Mar-24 Mar-23 Mar-25 Mar-24 Mar-23 Mar-25 Mar-24 Mar-23
Revenue from 5,010.94 5,415.75 5,726.34 19335.40 20,250.84 23,617.72 10,651.27 7,096.14 4,896.06
Operations
Growth in Revenue
from Operations @ (7.47%) (5.42%) 23.59% (4.52%) (14.26%) 45.39% 50.10% 44.94% 27.71%
EBITDA (3) 984.48 900.14 751.03 1698.67 1,585.32 2,556.20 2,719.72 1,972.46 1,236.45
EBITDA Margin (4) 19.65% 16.62% 13.12% 8.79% 7.83% 10.82% 25.53% 27.80% 25.25%
PAT (5) 662.53 595.10 483.84 235.37 489.24 1,048.92 1,173.37 1,066.01 503.71
PAT Margin (6) 13.22% 10.99% 8.45% 1.22% 2.42% 4.44% 11.02% 15.02% 10.29%
Net Worth (7) 3444.95 2,578.53 1,983.43 7052.63 7,295.55 5,803.29 8397.32 7,223.95 1617.31
**4]l the information for listed industry peers mentioned above are on a standalone basis and is sourced from their respective audited/ unaudited financial results and/or annual
report.
Notes:

@ Revenue from Operations as appearing in the Restated Financial Statements/ Annual Reports of the respected companies.

@ Growth in Revenue from Operations (%) is calculated as Revenue from Operations of the relevant period minus Revenue from Operations of the preceding period,
divided by Revenue from Operations of the preceding period

@ EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depreciation + Finance Cost.

@ EBITDA Margin’ is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations.

@ PAT is the profit for the period from continuing operations.

© PAT Margin’ is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by Revenue from Operations.

@ Net worth means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the profits and securities premium account excluding the
reserves creating out of revaluation of assets.
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2. Weighted average cost of acquisition

(a) The price per share of our Company based on the primary/ new issue of shares

The details of the Equity Shares excluding shares issued under ESOP/ESOS and issuance of bonus shares during
the 18 months preceding the date of this Red-Herring Prospectus where such issuance is equal to or more than
5 per cent of the fully diluted paid-up share capital of the Issuer Company (calculated based on the pre-issue
capital before such transaction), in a single transaction or multiple transactions combined together over a span
of rolling 30 days:

Date of No. of Issue Price Nature of Nature of
Allotment Equity Adjusted consideration = Allotment
Shares after Bonus
allotted - Isswue
1. | *Incorporation 1,50,000 10 10 0.24 Cash Incorporation
2. | December 31, (15000) Cancellation of cross holding pursuant to order of Amalgamation
2020 passed by NCLT
3. December 31, 56,254 10 10 0.24 Other than Cash| Pursuant to
2020 order of
Amalgamation
passed by
NCLT
4. |January 03,2022| 1,33,310 10 457 11.15 Other than cash | Conversion of
Unsecured Loan

*The date of incorporation of our Company is June 10, 2019
(b) The price per share of our Company based on the secondary sale/ acquisition of shares

There are no secondary sale / acquisitions of Equity Shares, where the promoters, members of the promoter group
or shareholder(s) having the right to nominate director(s) in the board of directors of the Company are a party to
the transaction (excluding gifts), during the 18 months preceding the date of this RHP, where either acquisition
or sale is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluted paid up share capital of the Company (calculated based on
the pre-issue capital before such transaction/s and excluding employee stock options granted but not vested), in a
single transaction or multiple transactions combined together over a span of rolling 30 days.

(c) Weighted average cost of acquisition, floor price and cap price:
Type of transaction Weighted  Weighted average Floor Price | Cap Price

average cost of cost of acquisition
acquisition after Bonus

(X per equity shares
shares) adjustments (X
per equity shares

Welghted ‘a'szrage cost of primary / new 1.49 Nil (o] [o]
issue acquisition*®
Weighted average cost of secondary Nil Nil [o] [e]
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‘ acquisition®*
*Calculated for last 18 months
**Calculated for Transfer of Equity Shares.

Explanation for Offer Price / Cap Price being 5.30 times and 5.60 times price of weighted average cost of
acquisition of primary issuance price / secondary transaction price of Equity Shares (set out in (d) above)
in view of the external factors which may have influenced the pricing of the Offer.

Not Applicable.
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Statement of Special Tax Benefits
To,
The Board of Directors,
KYVS Castings Limited (Formerly known as KVS Castings Private Limited)
B-25,29, Industrial Estate, Bazpur Road,
Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur, Uttarakhand-244713, India

Dear Sir,

Subject: Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits Available to the KVS Castings Limited and its
shareholders prepared in accordance with the requirements under Schedule VI-PART A, Clause (9) (L)
of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended (the ""Regulations")

We hereby confirm that the enclosed annexure, prepared by “KVS Castings Limited” (‘the Company”) states
the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company under the
Income — tax Act, 1961 (“‘Act’) as amended time to time, the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the
Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the State Goods and Services Tax Act as passed by respective
State Governments from where the Company operates and applicable to the Company, presently in force in
India for inclusion in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (“DRHP”) / Red Herring Prospectus (“RHP”) /
Prospectus for the proposed public offer of equity shares, as required under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (“ICDR Regulations™).

Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed
under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive the
tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which based on the business imperatives, the company
may or may not choose to fulfil.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure cover only special tax benefits available to the Company and
its Shareholders and do not cover any general tax benefits. Further, these benefits are neither exhaustive nor
conclusive and the preparation of the contents stated is the responsibility of the Company’s management. We
are informed that this statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and hence is
neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of
the tax consequences, the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant
with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the issue. We are neither
suggesting nor are we advising the investor to invest money or not to invest money based on this statement.
Our views are based on the existing provisions of the Act and its interpretations, which are subject to change
or modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative or judicial decisions. Any such change,
which could also be retroactive, could have an effect on the validity of our views stated herein. We assume no
obligation to update this statement on any events subsequent to its issue, which may have a material effect on
the discussions herein.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:
e the Company or its Shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future;
e the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits, where applicable have been/would be met;
e The revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein.
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We hereby give our consent to include enclosed statement regarding the tax benefits available to the Company
and to its shareholders in the DRHP for the proposed public offer of equity shares which the Company intends
to submit to the Securities and Exchange Board of India provided that the below statement of limitation is
included in the offer document.

Limitations

Our views expressed in the statement enclosed are based on the facts and assumptions indicated above. No
assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views
are based on the information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company and on the basis
of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company and the interpretation of the
existing tax laws in force in India and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do
not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. Reliance on the statement is on the
express understanding that we do not assume responsibility towards the investors who may or may not invest
in the proposed issue relying on the statement.

The enclosed Annexure is intended solely for your information and for inclusion in the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus / Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus or any other issue related material in connection with the
proposed issue of equity shares and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without
our prior written consent.

The certificate is issued solely for the limited purpose to comply with Indian [ICDR Regulations]. Our work
has not been carried out in accordance with auditing or other standards and practices generally accepted in
jurisdictions outside India (including in the United States of America) and accordingly should not be relied
upon as if it had been carried out in accordance with those standards and practices. This report should not be
relied upon by prospective investors outside India (including persons who are Qualified Institutional Buyers
as defined under (i) Rule144A or

(i1) Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended) participating in the Offering. We
accept no responsibility and deny any liability to any person who seeks to rely on this report and who may seek
to make a claim in connection with any offering of securities on the basis that they had acted in reliance on
such information under the protections afforded by United States of America law and regulation or any other
laws other than laws of India.

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

For Arora Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 021313C

S/d

Mr. Amit Arora Partner
Membership No.: 514828
UDIN: 25514828BMOFOT4781

Date: June 17, 2025
Place: Rudrapur
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Annexure to the statement of possible Tax Benefits

Outlined below are the possible Special tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the
tax laws presently forced in India. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a substitute
for professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax
implications of an investment in the Equity Shares particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted
legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may have different interpretation on the benefits, which an
investor can avail.

You should consult your own tax advisors concerning the Indian Tax implications and consequences of
purchasing, owning and disposing of equity shares in your particular situation.

Special Tax Benefits available to the Company under the Act:

The Company is not entitled to any Special tax benefits under the Act.

Special Tax Benefits available to the shareholders of the Company

The Shareholders of the company are not entitled to any Special tax benefits under the Act.

Notes:
1. All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole /
first name holder where the shares are held by joint holders.
2. The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect
tax law benefits or benefit under any other law.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our
views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time
to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We do not assume
responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities
or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally
judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable
to any other person in respect of this statement.

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

For Arora Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 021313C
Peer Review No.: 014699

S/d
Mr. Amit Arora Partner

Membership No.: 514828

Date: June 17, 2025
Place: Rudrapur
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SECTION V — ABOUT THE COMPANY

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section has been extracted from various websites and publicly available documents from
various industry sources. The data may have been re-classified by us for the purpose of presentation. None of the
Company and any other person connected with the Issue have independently verified this information. Industry
sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from believed to
be reliable, but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and their reliability
cannot be assured. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates
and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and publications may also base their
information on estimates, projection forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Accordingly,

investors should not place undue reliance on information.

Global Economy

Global growth, which had remained stable yet underwhelming
through 2024 was projected to remain se in the January 2025,
has now been revised downward amid a sharp deterioration in
global trade dynamics. However, the landscape has shifted
dramatically following the announcement and implementation
of sweeping US tariffs on April 2, 2025, and retaliatory
measures by trading partners. These actions have pushed global
tariff rates to levels not seen in a century, introducing
significant uncertainty and a negative shock to global economic
activity. As a result, a new “reference forecast” incorporating
information as of April 4 projects global growth to decline to
2.8 percent in 2025 and 3.0 percent in 2026 representing a
cumulative downgrade of 0.8 percentage point and falling well
below the 2000-2019 historical average of 3.7 percent. Growth
in advanced economies is expected to slow to 1.4 percent in
2025, with the US decelerating to 1.8 percent 0.9 percentage
point below previous projections due to greater policy
uncertainty and softening demand. The euro area is forecast
to grow by 0.8 percent, while emerging market and developing
economies are projected to grow at 3.7 percent in 2025 and 3.9
percent in 2026, with significant downgrades for economies
most impacted by recent trade actions, such as China. Inflation
is projected to moderate more slowly than anticipated, reaching
4.3 percent in 2025 and 3.6 percent in 2026, reflecting persistent
inflationary pressures in advanced economies

Figure ES.1. US Effective Tariff Rates on All Imports
(Percent)
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Sources: US Bureau of the Census, Historical Statistics of the United States, 1789-1945;
US International Trade Commission; and IMF staff calculations.

Nate: The Jan. 20-Apr. 1 tariffs in 2025 include 20 percent tariffs on China; 25 percent
tariffs on steel and aluminum; 25 percent tariffs on Mexico and Canada; and a

10 percent tariff on Canadian energy imports. A United States-Mexico-Canada
Agreement (USMCA) carve-out is assumed to halve the effective tariff increase for
Canada and Mexico. The April 2 tariffs include auto sector tariffs and country-specific
tariffs, applying exemptions provided in Annex |l of the Executive Order per IMF

staff judgment. The April 9 tariffs include an increase in the tariffs on China to 145
percent and a reduction in other country-specific tariffs to 10 percent. It also includes
exemptions on some electronic products announced on April 11. GATT = General
Agreement on Tariffs and Trade.

Downside risks have intensified considerably, as escalating trade tensions, elevated policy uncertainty, and limited
fiscal and monetary buffers threaten to further weaken global economic resilience. Rapidly shifting policy stances
and deteriorating investor sentiment may trigger further asset repricing, currency volatility, and capital flow
disruptions, particularly in economies already experiencing debt stress. There is growing concern about potential
instability in the international monetary system, while demographic trends such as aging populations and a
shrinking foreign labor force could constrain medium-term grow th and strain fiscal sustainability. The lingering
effects of the recent cost-of-living crisis, coupled with subdued growth prospects and constrained development
assistance, may exacerbate social unrest and deepen challenges for low-income economies. In response, global
policymakers must act with clarity and coordination. Restoring a stable and predictable trade environment,
facilitating debt restructuring, and addressing shared structural challenges are essential. Domestically, countries
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must focus on correcting imbalances, rebuilding policy buffers, and implementing structural reforms in labor,
product, and financial markets to enhance resilience and potential output. Central banks should remain focused on
price and financial stability, adjusting policies with precision in the face of more complex trade-offs, while targeted
foreign exchange interventions and macroprudential tools may be necessary to mitigate emerging vulnerabilities.

Global Prospects and Policies Summary Figure 1.1. Global Inflation Trends
(Percent, year over year)
The analysis explores key trends and uncertainties shaping — World —Us China
—— OtherAEs ~ —— Other EMDEs

the global economy as 2025 approaches, focusing on the

effects of policy changes, trade tensions, and demographic 12— 1. Headline Inflation =
shifts across different regions. The global economic
landscape is increasingly complex and uncertain, leading to
a downward revision of the global growth forecast to 2.8%
for 2025. This adjustment reflects weaker consumption
growth and rising policy uncertainty. The analysis
highlights regional disparities, with advanced economies  0-
expected to grow more slowly, while emerging markets ~f——— ——————— ——— el

may sustain relatively higher growth under favourable 2018 19 20 Al 2 23 2 25
conditions.

Policy Uncertainty Tests Global Resilience: The global economy is facing heightened policy uncertainty,
primarily driven by increased trade tensions and tariff escalations. These disruptions have led to volatility in
financial markets and cautious investment behavior.

The Outlook: A Range of Possibilities: Economic growth projections are clouded by multiple potential scenarios,
depending on trade policy shifts and monetary responses. While some economies are expected to weather
uncertainty better than others, downward risks prevail.

Risks to the Outlook: Tilted to the Downside: The primary risks to economic stability include persistent
inflationary pressures, geopolitical tensions, and financial market fragility. Trade fragmentation and supply chain
adjustments contribute to economic vulnerabilities.

Policies: Navigating Uncertainty and Enhancing Preparedness: Governments and central banks face the
challenge of balancing inflation control with growth stabilization. Strategic fiscal planning and targeted monetary
interventions are necessary to ease macroeconomic trade-offs.

Commodity Special Feature: Market Developments and AI Impact: Commodity markets are undergoing
significant shifts due to evolving global demand patterns. The increasing reliance on artificial intelligence-driven
industries is altering energy consumption and market dynamics.

Figure 2.1. Global Population Aging
(Percent, left axis; years, right axis)

The Rise of the Silver Economy: Global Implications
of Population Aging 40- 45

352 —— Average populat!on growth
The analysis explores the global economic impact of - — werage populaiil
population aging, highlighting both challenges and sch
opportunities. As life expectancy rises and fertility rates fall, a0l
the share of older adults is increasing, slowing population and 152
output growth while straining public finances. However, 105
healthier aging trend-such as better physical and cognitive 05-

-40

-35

-30

health in older individuals-are enabling longer, more 0- 2%
productive working lives. -05-
_‘IOI 1 1 1 1l 1 \20
1980 2000 20 40 60 80 2100

Despite this, global GDP growth is still expected to decline,

Sources: United Nations World Population Prospects; and IMF staff calculations.

Note: The area shaded in blue denotes the interquartile range for population growth
across all countries.
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with aging accounting for most of the slowdown. Targeted

policies, including raising retirement ages, supporting

lifelong health and skills, and closing gender gaps, could help

offset these effects and boost growth.

For low-income countries, stronger institutions and financial access are key to leveraging remaining demographic
advantages. While not all impacts are covered, the analysis emphasizes that smart policies can turn the challenges
of aging into economic opportunities.

Uneven Pace of Global Population Aging: The global population is aging at different rates across regions, with
advanced economies experiencing a faster demographic shift compared to emerging markets. Fertility rates are
declining, and life expectancy is increasing, leading to a higher proportion of older individuals.

Healthy Aging and Implications for Labor Markets: Improved healthcare and lifestyle changes have contributed
to healthier aging, allowing older individuals to remain active in the workforce. Cognitive health and physical well-
being play a crucial role in determining labor market participation among aging populations.

Economic Implications of Global Population Aging: The aging population presents economic challenges,
including slower growth, increased fiscal pressures, and shifts in consumption patterns. However, healthier aging
trends offer opportunities to extend working lives and enhance productivity.

JOURNEYS AND JUNCTIONS: SPILLOVERS FROM MIGRATION AND REFUGEE POLICIES

Figure 3.1. Global Trends
(Percent of GDP, 2010 100, unless noted otherwise)

A

The analysis focuses on the rising global flows of legal
migrants and refugees, particularly toward emerging market
and developing economies, which now host a significant
share—75% of refugees and 40% of migrants. Driven by
geopolitical shocks, natural disasters, and policy changes in
destination countries, these flows have become a key aspect of
globalization, with notable economic implications
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Stricter migration policies in some countries can divert inflows
to others, increasing their migrant population by about 10%
over five years and boosting output by around 0.2%.
However, the overall economic impact is often modest due
to resource strain and skills mismatches, especially for
refugees. Positive effects are greater when incoming
individuals have skills that complement local labor markets

Better integration policies, particularly in emerging
economies, can enhance economic benefits. Investments in
public infrastructure and private sector development are
essential to manage pressures. Model-based analysis shows
that shifts in migration and refugee policies can redistribute
flows and modestly affect GDP, labor markets, and wages
across regions.

The findings emphasize that while migration policy changes
alone can’t address root causes like forced displacement,
improved domestic integration efforts and international
cooperation can help manage flows more effectively and
spread economic impacts more equitably.

Migration and Refugee Patterns and Policies: The global
movement of migrants and refugees has increased

Trade (right scale)
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Sources: Eurostat; Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development; United
Nations Department of Economic and Social Affairs; World Bank, World Development
Indicators; and IMF staff calculations.

Note: Foreign direct investment is smoothed using a three-year moving average. The
shaded area corresponds to the period after the global financial crisis, which coincides
with the period in which globalization started to slow down. FDI = foreign direct
investment; ODA = official development assistance.

Figure 3.2. Migration Perceptions and Preferences
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significantly, with emerging market and developing
economies hosting the majority of displaced populations.
Geopolitical shocks and natural disasters have contributed to
these trends.

A Primer on Spillovers from Migration and Refugee Policy Changes: Migration and refugee policies in one
country can have significant spillover effects on other economies. Stricter policies in one destination often lead to
increased inflows in alternative locations.

Estimating Spillovers from Migration and Refugee Policy Changes: Empirical analysis suggests that tighter
migration policies in one country can increase inflows to another by 10% over five years. The economic impact

varies depending on labor market integration and skill mismatches.

Modeling Spillovers from Migration and Refugee Policy Changes: Economic models indicate that migration
inflows can boost output in receiving economies, but challenges arise in matching skills with labor market needs.

(Source:https:// www.imf.org/en/Publications/ WEO/Issues/2025/04/22/world-economic-outlook-april-2025)
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INDIAN ECONOMY
Introduction

Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY23 helped India overcome the UK to become the fifth-largest
economy after it recovered from the COVID-19 pandemic shock. Nominal GDP for FY25 is estimated at Rs. 33.10
lakh crore (US$ 3.8 trillion) with growth rate of 9.9%, compared to Rs. 30.12 lakh crore (US$ 3.5 trillion) in FY24.
Strong domestic demand for consumption and investment, along with Government’s continued emphasis on capital
expenditure are seen as among the key driver of the GDP in the second half of FY25. In FY25, India’s exports stood
at Rs. 37.31 lakh crore (US$ 433.56 billion), with Engineering Goods (26.88%), Petroleum Products (13.86%) and
electronic goods (8.89%) being the top three exported commodity. Rising employment and increasing private
consumption, supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP growth in the coming months.

Future capital spending of the government in the economy is
expected to be supported by factors such as tax buoyancy, the
streamlined tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment
and rationalisation of the tariff structure, and the digitization
of tax filing.In the medium run, increased capital spending on
infrastructure and asset-building projects is set to increase
growth multipliers. The contact-based services sector has
demonstrated promise to boost growth by unleashing the
pent-up demand. The sector's success is being captured by a
number of HFIs (High- Frequency Indicators) that are
performing well, indicating the beginnings of a comeback

India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three
economic powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.
India's appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable because of the current
period of global unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised by India-focused funds in
2022 are evidence of investor faith in the "Invest in India" narrative.

Market size

Real GDP for FY25 is estimated at Rs. 187.95 lakh crores (US$ 2.2 trillion) with growth rate of 6.5%, compared to
Rs. 176.51 lakh crore (US$ 2.06 trillion) for FY24. As on Jan 2025, there are 118 unicorn startups in India, with a
combined valuation of over Rs. 3.0 lakh crore (US$ 354 billion). The government is also focusing on renewable
sources by achieving 40% of its energy from non-fossil sources by 2030. India is committed to achieving the
country's ambition of Net Zero Emissions by 2070 through a five-pronged strategy, ‘Panchamrit’. Moreover, India
ranked 3rd in the renewable energy country attractive index.

India’s Gross Domestic Production

According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to
boost its rate of employment growth and create 90 million
non-farm jobs between 2023 to 2030 in order to increase sess  Z7or e
productivity and economic growth. The net employment rate '
needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to
achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between same time periods. The
Current Account Deficit (CAD) stood at Rs. 98,095 crore
(US$ 11.5 billion) for Q3 of FY25 as compared to Rs. 88,712 ‘ |
crore (US$ 10.4 billion) in Q3 of FY24. This was largely due P SARS W i Sy

US§ trillion
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to increase in merchandise trade deficit.

Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing
steam in terms of their contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver as
several of India’s trade partners witness an economic slowdown. According to Minister of Commerce and Industry,
Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distribution and Textiles Mr. Piyush Goyal, Indian exports are expected to
reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030.

Recent Developments

India is primarily a domestic demand-driven economy, with consumption and investments contributing to 70% of
the economic activity. With an improvement in the economic scenario and the Indian economy recovering from the
Covid-19 pandemic shock, several investments and developments have been made across various sectors of the
economy. According to World Bank, India must continue to prioritise lowering inequality while also putting
growth-oriented policies into place to boost the economy.

In view of this, there have been some developments that have taken place in the recent past. Some of them are
mentioned below.

e  The HSBC India Manufacturing PMI increased to 58.4 in April 2025, up from 58.1 in March 2025, based on
preliminary estimates. This rise signifies improved operating conditions and represents the most rapid growth
pace observed in the past year. Contributing factors include a notable surge in new export orders, which
experienced their most significant increase in over fifteen years, alongside a faster expansion in overall new
business activity.

e In Q1 CY25, private equity (PE) and venture capital (VC) investments stood at Rs. 1,16,861 crore (US$ 13.7
billion) across 284 deals.

e India saw a robust 10.35% growth in passengers carried by domestic airlines at 431.98 lakh in FY25, from
391.46 lakh in FY24, according to the Directorate General of Civil Aviation (DGCA).

e Asof April 18, 2025, India’s foreign exchange reserves stood at Rs. 58,57,537 crore (US$ 686.70 billion).

¢ India secured 39th position out of 133 economies in the Global Innovation Index 2024. India rose from 81st
position in 2015 to 39th position in 2024. India ranks 3rd position in the global number of scientific
publications.

e The gross GST (Goods and Services Tax) revenue collection stood at Rs. 1.84 lakh crore (US$ 21.57 billion)
in February 2025.

e Between April 2000—December 2024, cumulative FDI equity inflows to India stood at Rs. 89.88 lakh crore
(US$ 1.05 trillion).

e In February 2025, the overall IIP (Index of Industrial Production) stood at 151.3. The Indices of Industrial
Production for the mining, manufacturing and electricity sectors stood at 141.9, 148.6 and 194.0,
respectively.

o According to data released by the Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India’s
Consumer Price Index (CPI) — Combined inflation was 3.34% in March 2025 against 4.85% in March 2024.

e  Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) inflows in FY25 were close to Rs. 1.27 lakh crore (US$ 14.89 billion),
while Domestic Institutional Investors (DII) bought Rs. 6.00 lakh crore (US$ 70.34 billion) in the same
period.

e India's wheat procurement rose 34% YoY, reaching 22.36 MT as of April 28, 2025, with target of 31 MT in
sight. Strong MSP, bonuses, and robust crop output boost sales to government agencies, ensuring food security
and potential for open market intervention.
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Government Initiatives

Over the years, the Indian government has introduced many initiatives to strengthen the nation's economy. The
Indian government has been effective in developing policies and programmes that are not only beneficial for
citizens to improve their financial stability but also for the overall growth of the economy. Over recent decades,
India's rapid economic growth has led to a substantial increase in its demand for exports. Besides this, a number of
the government's flagship programmes, including Make in India, Start-up India, Digital India, the Smart City
Mission, and the Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation, is aimed at creating immense
opportunities in India. In this regard, some of the initiatives taken by the government to improve the economic
condition of the country are mentioned below:

¢ According to a report by Wood Mackenzie in January 2025, India, the United States, and West Asia are
expected to collectively add 100 Gigawatts (GW) of solar capacity by 2025, while China is anticipated to
continue its leadership in the solar industry.

e In July 2024, the Ministry of Finance held the Union Budget and announced that for 2024-25, the total
receipts other than borrowings and the total expenditure are estimated at Rs. 32.07 lakh crore (US$ 383.93
billion) and Rs. 48.21 lakh crore (US$ 577.16 billion), respectively.

e  In February 2024, the Finance Ministry announced the total expenditure in Interim 2024-25 estimated at Rs.
47,65,768 crore (US$ 571.64 billion) of which total capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27
billion).

e OnJanuary 22, 2024, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced the 'Pradhan Mantri Suryodaya Yojana'.
Under this scheme, 1 crore households will receive rooftop solar installations.

e On September 17, 2023, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Central Sector Scheme PM-
VISHWAKARMA in New Delhi. The new scheme aims to provide recognition and comprehensive support
to traditional artisans & craftsmen who work with their hands and basic tools. This initiative is designed to
enhance the quality, scale, and reach of their products, as well as to integrate them with MSME value chains.

e  On August 6, 2023, Amrit Bharat Station Scheme was launched to transform and revitalize 1309 railway
stations across the nation. This scheme envisages development of stations on a continuous basis with a long-
term vision.

e On June 28, 2023, the Ministry of Environment, Forests, and Climate Change introduced the ‘Draft Carbon
Credit Trading Scheme, 2023".

e  From April 1, 2023, Foreign Trade Policy 2023 was unveiled to create an enabling ecosystem to support
o the philosophy of ‘Aatmanirbhar Bharat’ and ‘Local goes Global’.

e To enhance India’s manufacturing capabilities by increasing investment and production in the sector, the
government of India has introduced the Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI) for Pharmaceuticals.

¢  Prime Minister’s Development Initiative for North-East Region (PM-DevINE) was announced in the Union
Budget 2022-23 with a financial outlay of Rs. 1,500 crore (US$ 182.35 million).

e Prime Minister Mr Narendra Modi has inaugurated a new food security scheme for providing free food grains
to Antyodaya Ann Yojna (AAY) & Primary Household (PHH) beneficiaries, called Pradhan Mantri Garib
Kalyan Ann Yojana (PMGKAY) from January 1, 2023.

Road Ahead

India’s economy grew by 6.2% in Q3 FY25. Signs of recovery are now visible, with growth expected to rise to
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7.6% in Q4 FY25—indicating a possible turnaround in the coming months. India's comparatively strong position in
the external sector reflects the country's positive outlook for economic growth and rising employment rates. India
ranked 5th in foreign direct investment inflows among the developed and developing nations listed for the first
quarter of 2022.

India's economic story during the first half of FY24 highlighted the unwavering support the government gave to its
capital expenditure, which, in FY24, stood 37.4% higher than the same period last year. In the Union Budget of
FY26, capital expenditure took lead by steeply increasing the capital expenditure outlay by 10.0 % to Rs.

11.21 lakh crore (USS$ 131.42 billion) over Rs. 10.18 lakh crore (US$ 119.34 billion) in FY25. Stronger revenue
generation because of improved tax compliance, increased profitability of the company, and increasing economic
activity also contributed to rising capital spending levels.

India’s total exports of goods and services rose by 5.5% to a record Rs. 69.8 lakh crore (US$ 820.9 billion) in FY25,
compared to Rs. 65.8 lakh crore (US$ 773.0 billion) in FY24.With a reduction in port congestion, supply networks
are being restored. With a proactive set of administrative actions by the government, flexible monetary policy, and a
softening of global commodity prices and supply-chain bottlenecks, inflationary pressures in India look to be on the
decline overall.

(Source: https://www.ibef.org/economy/indian-economy-overview)
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GLOBAL IRON CASTING MARKET OVERVIEW

The global Iron Casting Market size was USD 161.55
billion in 2025 and market is projected to touch USD
300.48 billion by 2034, exhibiting a CAGR of 6.74%
during the forecast period from 2025 To 2034.

The United States Iron Casting market size is projected at
USD 50.52 billion in 2025, the Europe Iron Casting market
size is projected at USD 38.16 billion in 2025, and the
China Iron Casting market size is projected at USD 48.92
billion in 2025.

Iron casting is a manufacturing system wherein molten
iron is poured into molds to create numerous additives
with specific shapes and properties. This system is broadly
used throughout more than one industries due to the
fabric’s energy, sturdiness, and value-effectiveness. The
number one sorts of iron utilized in casting encompass
Gray Iron, Ductile Iron, Malleable Iron, and Compacted
Graphite Iron (CGI).

300.48
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Iron castings are recognized for their first rate mechanical houses, making them suitable for heavy-duty
applications. These castings can resist excessive temperatures and vicious working situations, making them best for
car, machinery, and infrastructure applications. Compared to different metallic casting processes, iron casting is
exceptionally less expensive, taking into consideration mass production at a lower price.

Iron Casting Market Segmentation By Type :- Based on Type, the global market can be categorized into Gray

Iron Castings, Ductile Iron Castings, and Others.

1. Gray Iron Castings: Gray iron is the most widely
used type of forged iron, recognised for its
amazing machinability, excessive put on
resistance, and damping capacity. It is normally
utilized in programs inclusive of engine blocks,
pipes, machinery additives, and brake rotors.

2. Ductile Iron Castings: Ductile iron, also referred
to as nodular or spheroidal graphite iron, gives
advanced electricity, flexibility, and effect
resistance in comparison to grey iron. It is broadly
utilized in automobile components, pipe fittings,
gears, and heavy-obligation industrial packages
that require durability below excessive stress.

@ Gray Iron Castings
Ductile Iron Casting

@ Others

3. Others: This kind undergoes warmness treatment to enhance its durability and is typically used in pipe
fittings, agricultural equipment, and railroad device. CGI combines the benefits of grey and ductile iron,
providing better electricity and thermal conductivity, making it ideal for diesel engines and excessive-

performance machinery.

By Application: - Based on application, the global market can be categorized into Machinery & Equipment,
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Automotive, Rail, Pipe & Fitting, Valves, and Pumps & Compressors.

1. Machinery & Equipment: Iron castings are widely utilized in industrial equipment and heavy equipment
because of their durability, wear resistance, and potential to face up to high pressure. Components together
with housings, frames, and gears in agricultural, mining, and construction machinery are crafted from forged
iron.

2. Automotive: The car enterprise substantially makes use of iron castings for engine blocks, cylinder heads, brake
additives, and transmission housings. Cast iron gives wonderful warmness resistance and energy, making it
best for excessive-overall performance and heavy-responsibility vehicle additives.

3. Rail: Iron castings are important in railway infrastructure, consisting of wheels, couplers, bogies, and track
components. These components require high sturdiness to withstand heavy masses, vibrations, and continuous
put on.

4. Pipe & Fitting: Ductile iron and grey iron castings are broadly used in water distribution, sewage structures,
and gasoline pipelines. Cast iron pipes and fittings are favored for their corrosion resistance, durability, and
energy in underground and excessive-strain packages.

5. Valves: Cast iron is a favored fabric for manufacturing industrial and business valves because of its resistance
to excessive temperatures and pressure. These valves are utilized in oil and gasoline, water remedy, and chemical
processing industries.

6. Pumps & Compressors: Iron castings play a essential role in pump and compressor production, imparting
strong, strain-resistant housing for fluid and air handling structures. They are usually used in HVAC structures,

water treatment flora, oil refineries, and electricity technology facilities.

(Source: https://www.businessresearchinsights.com/market-reports/iron-casting-market-121372)
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India Foundry Market Analysis

The India Foundry Market size is estimated at USD 25.57 Ina Foundry Market
billion in 2025, and is expected to reach USD 42.61 billion R
by 2030, at a CAGR of 11.13% during the forecast period

(2025-2030). During the COVID-19 pandemic in

December 2020, more than 400 small foundries in !
Coimbatore shut their doors due to rising raw material

prices. The shutdown affected lakhs of employees working
in and with the foundries, as well as in other industries such .
as pumps, textile machines, automobiles, and other p P
engineering sectors. Moreover, in March 2022, several I |
foundry units in Kolhapur were temporarily closed and — o —
declared three to four days of holiday for their employees due 1115 3 L. JSW @
to a sharp increase in raw material prices caused by the : \i

Russia-Ukraine war.

2019-2030

USD 25.57 Billion
UsD42618 USD 42.61 Billion
1013%

AsiaPacific

Americas

UsD25578

Low

e The major foundry clusters in India are located in Batala, Jalandhar, Ludhiana, Agra, Pune, Kolhapur,
Sholapur, Rajkot, Mumbai, Ahmedabad, Belgaum, Coimbatore, Chennai, Hyderabad, Howrah, Kolkata,
Indore, Faridabad, and Gurgaon. Typically, each foundry cluster is known for catering to some specific end-
use markets. For example, the Coimbatore cluster is famous for pump-set castings, the Kolhapur and Belgaum
clusters for automotive castings, the Rajkot cluster for diesel engine castings, and the Howrah cluster for
sanitary castings. The IIF estimates suggest that there are over 7,000 foundry units in the country, with about
3,000 located in Gujarat. The sector provides direct employment to about five lakh people and indirect
employment to 15 lakh people.

e Moreover, the focus on technology upgrades notably drives the growth of the Indian foundry market. For
instance, in India, many foundries use cupolas using LAM Coke. However, these are gradually shifting to
Induction Melting. There is growing awareness about the environment, and many foundries are switching
over to induction furnaces, while some units in Agra are changing over to cokeless cupolas. However, the
major challenges faced in India include a lack of skilled manpower, adequate power supply at competitive
rates, availability due to mining and environmental issues, and the short-term slowdown in demand, which
may hinder medium and longer-term investments.

Growing Automobile Sector is Driving the Foundry Market in India

e The Indian foundry market is primarily driven by rapid industrialization and urbanization, which have
increased the utilization of the metal casting process across the country. The surge in automobile
manufacturing is also a significant factor boosting market growth.

e India stood as one of the world's leading countries in vehicle production. In the financial year 2023, the total
vehicle production in India reached around 25.93 million units, marking an increase from the previous year,
as reported by the Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM). In 2020, the production value
experienced a contraction primarily due to the introduction of the new Bharat Stage VI (BS-VI) emissions
standards on April 1, 2020, and an overall scaled-down production due to the lower stock of the old BS-IV
vehicles. The coronavirus pandemic in India further exacerbated the subsequent decline in production.
according to the Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM), in 2022, India produced
approximately 22.93 million vehicles, encompassing commercial vehicles, passenger cars, tricycles, and two-
wheelers. The automotive industry experienced a 13.63% growth in sales in 2022 compared to 2021.
Specifically, motorcycle sales increased by 4.7% in 2022 over the previous year, according to SIAM.
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Another significant driver for the Indian foundry
market's growth is the increasing government
expenditure on infrastructure expansion, stimulating
demand for various machinery and equipment such as
pumps, cranes, fans, motors, and conveyor belts. This
surge in demand, in turn, amplifies the need for metal
castings.

Consequently, there is an escalated demand for auto
parts necessary for automobile manufacturing. To
address this growing demand for metal castings in
India, foundries are investing in new technology and
equipment. The anticipated benefits from these
investments include lower power consumption,
improved production efficiency, higher utilization
rates, and increased profit margins for Indian foundries.
Therefore, the burgeoning automobile industry is
expected to drive the growth of the Indian foundry
market during the forecast period.

Sales of automobiles, by type, in millions, InIndia, from 20180 2023

Y%

Source: Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM) M\‘

Increasing Government Support for the Indian Foundry market

The Indian Foundry Industry data indicates
approximately 500,000 direct and 15,00,00 indirect
employees, making it a significant source of
employment, primarily for socially and economically
disadvantaged sections. Forecasts suggest the
potential creation of an additional 2 million jobs over
the next decade due to the industry's labor-intensive
nature.

According to the 56th World Casting Census by
Modern Castings USA (January 2023), China, India,
and the US lead global casting production, with
production ramping up after a COVID-induced two-
year hiatus. China reported 54.05 million tonnes of
casting, followed by India as the world's second-
largest producer, with 12.49 million tonnes.

Disbursement amounts in MSMES, by segment, in USD in billion, India, Q1
20220 Q2 2023
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India's foundries are actively upgrading their facilities and technologies to enhance productivity and expand
capacity, responding to escalating demand. A majority of these foundries fall under the MSME sector, which
has demonstrated consistent growth. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (India) and the
India Brand Equity Foundation reported nearly 13.8 million micro-enterprises, constituting 96 percent of the
MSME sector. Small and medium enterprises accounted for three and 0.28 percent, respectively, totaling

more than 14 million registered MSMEs.

In the second financial year of 2023, over two trillion INR (USD 24 billion) was disbursed in the MSME
segment in India, as reported by SIDBI. Reinforced implementation of initiatives like the Public Procurement
Policy, Pradhan Mantri MUDRA Yojana, Make in India, Startup India, and Skill India are catalysts fostering
the growth of the MSME sector. This surge in government support is expected to further propel the foundry

market in the foreseeable future.
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India Foundry Industry Segmentation

A foundry is a factory where castings are produced by melting the metal, pouring the liquid into a mold, and
allowing it to cool and solidify into the desired shape. Foundries are one of the most significant contributors to the
manufacturing recycling movement, melting and recasting millions of tons of scrap metal every year to create new,
durable products. Moreover, many foundries use sand in their molding process. These foundries often use,
recondition, and reuse sand, which is another form of recycling.

The India foundry market is segmented by Material (Ferrous and Non-Ferrous), by End-User (Automotive,
Aerospace, Construction, Machinery, and Other End-Users) and by Type (Sand Casting, Investment Casting, Die
Casting, and Other Types).

By End-user Automotive
Aerospace
Construction
Machinery
Other End-Users
By Type Sand Cash'n.g

Investment Casting
Die Casting

Other Types

By Material Ferrous

Non-Ferrous

The India foundry market report offers the market size and forecast value in (USD) for all the above segments.

(Source: https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-foundry-market)
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GLOBAL AUTOMOTIVE COMPONENTS INDUSTRY

As per MRFR Analysis, the Global Auto Parts Market was valued at 494.07 USD Billion in 2023 and is projected
to reach 700 USD Billion by 2035, growing at a CAGR of 2.94% from 2025 to 2035. The market is significantly
influenced by the rising demand for electric vehicles (EVs) and advancements in manufacturing technologies.

Auto Parts Market Overview:

The global push for sustainability and tighter emissions
rules are driving a shift in the demand for electric vehicle Auto Parts Market

(EV) components in the auto parts market. As more s Y
people choose greener options, this trend shows a
substantial shift in consumer preferences.

CAGR
(2025-2035)

The need for cutting-edge car parts is being driven by the
significant investments made by both new and
established automakers in the development of cutting-
edge technology. Additionally, as e-commerce expands,
distribution channels are changing to give customers

700
CAGR 5086
294% 49407 I I

more online access to a larger selection of auto . l I I I I I

components. 2018 2019 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2031 2032 2033 2035

Market Size in USD Bn

The market has a lot of room to grow, particularly for businesses that specialize in lightweight, high-performance
materials that increase vehicle economy. In order to satisfy consumers who want to customize their cars, the
growing trend of vehicle customisation also creates opportunities for aftermarket parts.

Affordable and dependable auto components are in high demand due to the growth of the middle class worldwide,
especially in emerging nations, which offers manufacturers a big chance to reach new markets.

The use of digital technology, such as the Internet of Things (IoT), in supply chain management and the
manufacturing of auto parts has grown in popularity recently. This involves the application of smart manufacturing
and predictive analytics, which boost productivity and raise the caliber of output.

Additionally, supply chain resilience is becoming more and more important, especially after global events have
disrupted it. With rising investments in recycling and the creation of environmentally friendly materials, the market

is still being shaped by the emphasis on sustainable practices.

These patterns demonstrate how dynamic the auto parts market is and how changing consumer habits and
technology breakthroughs are key factors in bringing about change.

Auto Parts Market Drivers

The Auto Parts Market is experiencing significant growth driven by the increasing consumer demand for electric
vehicles (EVs). According to industry data, global sales of electric cars exceeded 10 million units in 2022, indicating
a year-on-year growth rate of over 60%.

This surge is fueled by various factors including government incentives, rising environmental concerns, and
advances in battery technology. Established organizations such as the International Energy Agency (IEA) are

projecting that the share of electric cars in total car sales will reach over 30% by 2030.

Auto parts manufacturers are adapting by investing in Research and Development to create components specifically
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designed for EVs, from batteries to electric drivetrains, which further bolsters the Auto Parts Market. As automakers
pivot toward more sustainable practices, the demand for specialized auto parts related to EVs will continue to
enhance market prospects.

Auto Parts Market Segment Insights:
Auto Parts Market Type Insights

The Auto Parts Market was a sprawling industry Auto arts Market, By Type, 2024 & 2035
characterized by diverse segments, particularly into Types
which encompassed Engine Components, Transmission
Components, Electrical Parts, Braking Systems, and Body
Parts.

Engine Components held the majority value within the
market at 150.0 USD Billion in 2024 and are expected to
rise substantially to 210.0 USD Billion by 2035, reflecting
their fundamental role in vehicle performance and
efficiency. This segment was critical as engine efficiency
directly impacts vehicle emissions and fuel consumption,
highlighting the ongoing transition towards greener
technology.

-0 w203

Market Size in USD Billion
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Transmission Components, valued at 90.0 USD Billion in 2024 with a projected increase to 120.0 USD Billion by
2035, also represented a significant part of the industry, essential for providing seamless power transfer from the
engine to the wheels, thus affecting overall drivability.

Electrical Parts, at 100.0 USD Billion in 2024, stood as a crucial segment too; with the rise of electric vehicles,
their demand was growing, especially in relation to innovations in automotive electronics, safety features, and
convenience systems, leading to a robust increase to 130.0 USD Billion by 2035.

Braking Systems, valued at 80.0 USD Billion in 2024, will rise to 100.0 USD Billion by 2035, underscoring their
indispensable role in vehicle safety. Efficient braking technology not only enhanced vehicle safety but also
contributed to stability and control, making it a priority for manufacturers and consumers alike.

Lastly, Body Parts, which were valued at 88.6 USD Billion in 2024 and projected to grow to 140.0 USD Billion by
2035, are essential for vehicle aesthetics and structure, thereby facilitating the incorporation of composite materials
and advanced manufacturing technologies.

Each type segment played an essential role in the broader Auto Parts Market by driving innovation and responding
to regulatory demands, contributing to overall market growth based on technological advancement and changing
consumer preferences.

Auto Parts Market Sales Channel Insights

In the Auto Parts Market, the Sales Channel segment plays a pivotal role in shaping market dynamics. The segment
is categorized broadly into Original Equipment Manufacturer, Aftermarket, Retail, and Wholesale, each
contributing uniquely to the market landscape. The Original Equipment Manufacturer channel is crucial as it
supplies parts directly integrated into new vehicles, ensuring quality and reliability.

Meanwhile, the Aftermarket segment is significant, handling replacement parts essential for maintenance and
repairs post-purchase. Retail channels offer direct access to consumers, while Wholesale operations enable a
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broader distribution network, facilitating market accessibility.

The demand for aftermarket components is particularly strong due to the rising trend of vehicle customization and
repair, emphasizing the importance of this segment within the Auto Parts Market.

Additionally, market growth is driven by technological advancements, changing consumer preferences, and a focus
on sustainability, all while navigating challenges such as supply chain disruptions and increasing competition within
the market. The Auto Parts Market data highlights these segments as vital for understanding the industry's evolution
and revenue generation strategies.

Auto Parts Market Material Insights

The Auto Parts Market is undergoing significant transformations primarily driven by advancements in material
science. The market comprises diverse materials such as Metal, Plastic, Rubber, Composites, and Glass, each
contributing uniquely to the overall dynamics of the industry.

Metal remains a dominant choice due to its strength and durability, essential for critical auto components. Plastic,
known for its lightweight and corrosion-resistant properties, is gaining traction, particularly in the production of
interior and exterior parts.

Rubber is predominantly found in tires, seals, and gaskets, proving vital for performance and safety. Composites,
celebrated for their high strength-to-weight ratio, are increasingly popular in performance vehicles, enhancing fuel
efficiency and reducing emissions.

Glass is also a significant segment, especially with the rise of smart windows and safety applications. This diverse
Material segmentation allows manufacturers to optimize performance, reduce costs, and meet stringent regulations
while ensuring consumer safety and satisfaction, further influencing the Auto Parts Market statistics.

Auto Parts Market Vehicle Type Insights

The Auto Parts Market, focusing on the Vehicle Type segment, is a critical area that significantly influences overall
market dynamics. The segment includes various categories such as Passenger Cars, Commercial Vehicles, Two
Wheelers, and Electric Vehicles, each contributing to the rising demand for auto parts.

Passenger Cars form a crucial part of the market, driven by increasing consumer preferences for personal transport,
while Commercial Vehicles benefit from the booming logistics and transportation sectors fueled by global trade
initiatives.

Electric Vehicles are gaining momentum due to rising environmental awareness and government support for
sustainable transport solutions. Two Wheelers also maintain a steady market share, favored for their cost efficiency
and convenience in urban settings.

The interplay among these categories is vital, with Electric Vehicles emerging as a significant growth driver,
anticipated to reshape Auto Parts Market data in the coming years. Overall, the Auto Parts Market segmentation
illustrates a diverse landscape of opportunities and challenges, shaped by technological advancements and evolving
consumer needs.

Auto Parts Market Regional Insights

The Auto Parts Market experienced notable growth across various regional segments in the coming years. In 2024,
North America captured a significant share, valued at 140.0 USD Billion, contributing heavily to the market's
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revenue.

Following closely, Europe held a valuation of 130.0 USD Auto Parts Market, By Regional, 2024 & 2035
Billion, reflecting its robust automotive industry and
established manufacturing ecosystem. The APAC region
stood out with the highest valuation of 160.0 USD Billion
in 2024, driven by the growing middle class and increasing
automotive demand, as it dominates due to its majority
holding in production capabilities.

-0 w205

South America, with a valuation of 40.0 USD Billion, and
the Middle East and Africa (MEA), valued at 38.6 USD
Billion, represented smaller but essential markets that
were gradually developing, focusing on local
manufacturing and sustainable automotive solutions.

Market Size in USD Billion

SouT VEA

ANERICA AMERICA

These regions showcased unique growth opportunities, particularly in adapting to electric vehicle trends and
advancing supply chain efficiencies. The Auto Parts Market data reflected a diversification of products and services
in these regions, driven by technological advancements and evolving consumer preferences, thereby influencing
the overall market growth dynamics.

(Source: https://www.marketresearchfuture.com/reports/auto-parts-market-11564)

INDIAN AUTOMOTIVE COMPONENTS INDUSTRY

Introduction

The automotive components industry experienced a 11% YoY growth, reaching Rs. 3.32 lakh crore (US$ 38.4
billion) in the first half of FY25. India has become the fastest-growing economy in the world in recent years. This
fast growth, coupled with rising incomes, a boost in infrastructure spending and increased manufacturing incentives,
has accelerated the automobile industry. The two-wheeler segment dominated the automobile industry because of
the Indian middle class, with automobile sales standing at 23.85 million units in FY24.

Significant demand for automobiles also led to the emergence of more original equipment and auto components
manufacturers. As a result, India developed expertise in automobiles and auto components, which helped boost
international demand for Indian automobiles and auto components. Hence, the Indian automobile industry has a
considerable impact on the auto component industry.In 2024, India produced 100,000 electric cars and 900,000
electric two-wheelers. However, Internal Combustion Engine (ICE) vehicles still dominate with 20 million two-
wheelers and 5 million cars produced. India’s auto component industry is an important sector driving
macroeconomic growth and employment. The industry comprises players of all sizes, from large corporations to
micro entities, spread across clusters throughout the country. The auto components industry accounted for 2.3% of
India’s GDP and provided direct employment to more than 1.5 million people. By 2026, the automobile component
sector will contribute 5-7% of India's GDP. The Automotive Mission Plan (2016-26) projects to provide direct
incremental employment to 3.2 million by 2026.

The industry is a leader in exports and provides jobs to over 3.7 crore people. In FY24, the export value of auto
components/parts was estimated at US$ 21.2 billion. North America, which accounts for 33% of total exports,
increased by 5%, while Europe and Asia, which account for 32% and 24% of total exports, increased by 12% and
growth for Asia remained flat, respectively. The key export items included drive transmission and steering, engine
components, body/chassis, suspension and braking etc.
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Market Size

India’s auto components industry’s market share has significantly expanded, led by increasing demand for
automobiles by the growing middle class and exports globally. Due to the demand for Indian auto components,
several Indian and international players have entered the industry. India’s auto component industry is broadly
classified into organised and unorganised sectors. While the unorganised sector consists of low-valued items and
mostly serves the aftermarket category, the organised sector serves OEMs and includes high-value precision
instruments. The automobile component industry turnover stood at Rs. 6.14 lakh crore (US$ 74.1 billion) during
FY24, registering a revenue growth of 9.8% as compared to FY23. Domestic OEM supplies contributed

~54% to the industry’s turnover, followed by domestic
aftermarket (~10%) and exports (~18%), in FY24. The

component sales to OEMs in the domestic market grew 25,000 P
by 8.9% to Rs. 5.18 lakh crore (US$ 62.4 billion). The 20314 |
aftermarket for auto components grew by 10.0% during 0o '
FY24 reaching Rs. 9.38 lakh crore (US$ 11.3 billion). 15.000

Over FY16 to FY24, the automotive components

industry registered a CAGR of 8.63%, reaching 10,000

US$74.1 billion in FY24. s 4ssT 4001

In FY25 (April-December), domestic sales of two- : | — :

wheelers, passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, Fenicies. Nencies o8 Thieeineciers
three- wheelers, and amounted to 31,39,288, 6,83,471, . S

5,62,652 and 1,50,39,570 units, respectively. St ACNA

INVESTMENT

The Indian automobile sector recorded an inflow of huge investments from domestic and foreign manufacturers. FDI
inflow in the sector stood at Rs. 3,22,015 crore (US$ 37.21 billion) between April 2000-September 2024 which is
around 5% of the total FDI inflows in India during the same period. Some of the recent investments made/planned
for the auto component sector are as follows:

e As part of the Union Budget 2025-26, the government has announced duty exemptions on lithium-ion battery
scrap and other essential minerals. This initiative also includes adding 35 capital goods for electric vehicle
production to the exemption list, with the goal of enhancing domestic production.

e Craftsman Automation Ltd., a prominent producer of automotive and industrial components, has disclosed
intentions to construct a state-of-the-art manufacturing facility within the SIPCOT Industrial Park in
Shoolagiri, Hosur. The company is set to invest approximately Rs. 150 crore (US$ 17.3 million) in this
strategic expansion project.

e A new plant for manufacturing automotive parts for BMW will be set up in Punjab.

e Accuron Technologies and Hyundai CRADLE have co-invested in Xnergy, a startup focused on developing
contactless charging solutions for electric and autonomous vehicles.

e India and Uzbekistan signed a Bilateral Investment Treaty (BIT) to enhance investor confidence in both
countries. FDI from India to Uzbekistan reached US$ 20 million from April 2000 to August 2024, with
significant investments in pharmaceuticals, amusement parks, automobile components, and hospitality
sectors.

e Honda R&D (India) Private Limited, has inaugurated its new Solution R&D Center in Bengaluru, Karnataka.
The company has established a global objective to attain carbon neutrality across all its products and
corporate activities by the year 2050.

e Apollo tires, which holds a 25% share of India's passenger-car radial segment in the aftermarket, aims to
enhance its presence in rural areas across the country.

e Bharat Forge will invest Rs. 1,000 crore (US$ 119 million) over a period of five years in Tamil Nadu to
enhance production capacity for the long term.

e In October 2023, Tata Motors signed a definitive agreement to acquire a 27% stake in Freight Tiger, a
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Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) company, for Rs. 150 crore (US$ 17.99 million).

e Auto components maker Happy Forgings to launch IPO on December 19th, 2023. It comprises a fresh equity
issue of Rs. 400 crore (US$ 47.99 million) and an Offer For Sale (OFS) of 71.59 lakh shares.

e Ola Electric IPO was first auto company in India to launch an IPO in over two decades (20 years). It had and
IPO size of Rs. 8,500 crore (US$ 1.01 billion).

¢ In August 2023, Bosch earmarks Rs. 480 crore (US$ 58.11 million) for R&D and an additional capex of Rs.
480 crore (US$ 58.11 million).

e In June 2023, Tata Motors will invest US$ 2 billion towards developing new products and platforms over the
next four years.

e In May 2023, Apollo tires would be making an investment around Rs. 1,100 crore (US$ 133.17 million) in
FY24.

e In May 2023, Gabriel India inks a pact with Inalfa, to invest Rs. 170 crore (US$ 20.58 million) to set up a
new manufacturing facility. Inalfa Gabriel Sunroof Systems (IGSS), in Chennai which will become
operational in the first quarter of 2024.

e In May 2023, With Tesla proposing a manufacturing plant in India, the government plans to come out with
a modified Production-Linked Incentive scheme (PLI 2.0) for electric vehicles and advanced chemistry cell
batteries to invite fresh investments.

e In May 2023, Bridgestone looks to expand its retail footprint in India by 20-25%.

e In May 2023, Tata Technologies on Monday announced a partnership with TIHAN IIT Hyderabad, to
collaborate in the areas of Software Defined Vehicles (SDV) and Advanced Driver Assistance Systems
(ADADS) that incorporate the latest technologies.

e In April 2023, GreenCell Mobility invested US$ 181.59 million to double EV buses supply in India.

e By 2030, Chinese EV manufacturer BYD hopes to control 40% of the Indian EV market. It already has a
manufacturing setup in India, and the current plant's capacity may be increased by another 10,000-15000
units.

e 1In 2022-23, Tamil Nadu attracted investment proposals worth Rs. 18,063 crore (US$ 2.20 billion) Tamil
Nadu is capitalizing on its previous automotive expertise to enter the EV industry.

e In February 2023, Bridgestone India, a global leader in tires and sustainable mobility solutions, announced
that it would be investing over US$ 73.39 million (Rs. 600 crore) to meet the increasing demand for quality
passenger tyres in the country.

e In January 2023, NXP Semiconductors inaugurated a new state-of-the-art Systems & Silicon Innovation lab
at NXP Semiconductors Campus in Manyata Tech Park, Bengaluru.

e In 2022, the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways mandated that all vehicles must be equipped with a
driver airbag in accordance with Automotive Industry Standard (AIS) 145.

e In November 2022, Continental Tires, a leading premium tyre manufacturer inaugurates Its First Commercial
Vehicle Alignment Center in Jaipur.

e InNovember 2022, auto components maker Sona BLW precision forgings Itd. announced its plans to increase
capex by Rs. 1,000 crore (US$ 123.28 million) for its electric vehicles business.

e In March 2022, Minister of State for Power and Heavy Industries Mr. Krishan Pal Gurjar, said that Indian
and foreign automobile manufacturers have taken initiatives to develop hydrogen fuel cell vehicles.

e In June 2022, German auto component major ZF inaugurated and expanded its new tech centre in India.

e In January 2022, e-bike maker Emotorad announced plans to raise US$ 25 million to expand in the US
markets.

Government Initiatives

The Government has reaffirmed its commitment towards EVs and its mission for 30% electric mobility by 2030.
Budget announced customs duty exemption on the import of capital goods and machinery required for the
manufacture of lithium-ion batteries that typically power EVs.

The Bharat New Car Assessment Program (BNCAP) will not only strengthen the value chain of the auto component

sector, but it will also drive the manufacturing of cutting-edge components, encourage innovation, and foster global
excellence.
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The FAME Scheme was extended for a further period of 2 years up to 31st March 2024.

The Government of India’s Automotive Mission Plan (AMP) 2006-26 has been instrumental in ensuring growth
for the sector. The Indian automobile industry is expected to achieve a turnover of US$ 300 billion by 2026 by
expanding at a CAGR of 15% from its current revenue of US$ 74 billion.

In September 2021, the Indian government issued notification regarding a PLI scheme for automobile and auto
components worth Rs. 25,938 crore (US$ 3.49 billion). In February 2022, the government received investment
proposals worth Rs. 45,016 crore (US$ 6.04 billion) from 20 automotive companies under the PLI Auto scheme.
This scheme is expected to create an incremental output of Rs. 2,31,500 crore (US$ 31.08 billion).

The government’s AMP 2016-26 will help the automotive industry grow and will benefit the economy in the
following ways:

o The auto industry’s GDP contribution will rise to over 12%.
o Additional ~65 million direct and indirect jobs will be created.
. End-of-life policy will be implemented for old vehicles.

Road Ahead

The rapidly globalising world is creating newer opportunities for the transportation industry, especially while
shifting towards electric, electronic and hybrid cars, which are deemed more efficient, safe and reliable modes of
transportation. Over the next decade, this will lead to newer verticals and opportunities for auto component
manufacturers. To help them adjust to the shifting dynamics of the sector, the Indian government has already offered
various production incentives. India is also investing heavily in electric car infrastructure.

Manufacturers in this industry are focusing on developing sustainable solutions, lightweight materials, and efficient
production processes to meet the evolving needs of the automotive sector. Additionally, there is a growing emphasis
on digitalization and data analytics to optimize operations and enhance product performance. As the automotive
industry continues to evolve, the auto components sector will play a crucial role in shaping the future of mobility.
Collaboration with automakers, investment in research and development, and adaptation to changing regulations
will be key factors for success in this dynamic and competitive market.

According to ICRA, the domestic Passenger Vehicle (PV) market is expected to expand by six to nine percent in
the current fiscal year compared to the previous year.

The number of charging stations stood at 1,800 in March 2021 and is expected to reach 4 lakh by 2026. This would
make it easier for the auto component industry to take advantage of the EV opportunity and expertise in EV
components manufacturing, thus helping India on a global scale. The Indian government is exempting imports of
capital goods and machinery essential to produce lithium-ion cells used in EV batteries from customs duty. This,
coupled with the shift in global supply chains, will help the Indian global automotive component trade to expand
4-5% yearly to US$ 80 billion by 2026. Moreover, the Indian auto component industry is the third largest in the
world.

(Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/autocomponents-india)
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in Equity Shares,
Shareholders should read this entire Red Herring Prospectus. An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree
of risk. For a discussion of certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares, you should read “Risk
Factors” on page 25 for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as “Financial
Statements” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on
pages 212 and 214 respectively, for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition
or results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-
looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this section is derived from our
Restated Financial Statements.

OUR COMPANY OVERVIEW

Our Company was originally formed as a Partnership Firm under the Partnership Act, 1932 (“Partnership Act”) in
the name and style of “Kashi Enterprises” pursuant to Deed of Partnership dated August 20, 2005. Further, “Kashi
Enterprises” was thereafter converted from Partnership Firm to a Private Limited Company under Part I chapter
XXI of the Companies Act, 2013 with the name and style of “KVS Castings Private Limited” and received a
Certificate of Incorporation bearing CIN U27100UR2019PTC012217 from the Registrar of Companies, Delhi dated
June 10, 2019.

Subsequently, pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting
held on July 02, 2024, our Company was converted from a Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company
and consequently, the name of our Company was changed to “KVS Castings Limited” and a Fresh Certificate of
Incorporation pursuant to Conversion was issued on September 09, 2024, by the Registrar of Companies, Central
Processing Center.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the Corporate Identity Number of our Company is
U27100UR2019PLCO12217.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

As the Foundry Division of the KVS Premier Group, Our Company specializes in quality ferrous castings. Our
Company is involved in the manufacturing and production of Cast Iron and Ductile Iron castings. We deliver
comprehensive casting solutions tailored to meet our customers' needs. From cast iron to stainless steel, we offer a
total casting solution under one roof, with a portfolio of more than 150 products, including Suspension Brackets,
Brake Drums, Gear Box Housing, Pump Body, Oil Filters and more.

We ensure maintaining the required quality standards, we are accredited with certifications in IATF 16949:2016,
ISO 9001:2015 and Certified by the RDSO (Research and development organization under the Ministry of Railways
in India).

We are the castings supplier for various industries, including:

Automobile including passenger and commercial vehicles
Railway

Heavy Machinery and Equipment

Energy and Power Generation

Infrastructure and Construction

Agricultural Machinery includes Tractor

YVVVYVYVYYVY
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OUR COMPANY MISSION AND VISION

VISION:

To be the most admired *Green Sand-Casting Company delivering superior value to investors, customers,
communities and employees through innovation and leadership in operational excellence.

MISSION:

We shall collaboratively provide superior castings which enhance the performance of application, applying
innovative and sustainable processes in an enabling work environment.

*Green Sand Casting is a metal casting process that uses "green sand" as the mold material.
OUR JOURNEY

Year Achievements
Company has started with Hand Molding Facilities

2007 Main Customer were Sugar Industries & Cement Industries
2008 Started manufacturing manganese steel casting manufacturing
Installed heat treatment furnace with water quenching facility
2009 Started supply for Sponge Iron Plants
Company have certified for ISO 9001:2008
2010 Successfully installed Sand Plant and Machine Molding
Business awarded from M/S Advik Hitech Pvt. Ltd
2012 In-house machining setup established

Company have certified in RDSO Class 'A' Foundry
2014 Company have certified for ISO 16949:2009

Pursuant to the NCLT order dated June 15, 2020, M/s Kamlapati Infrastructure Limited, M/s

2020* Sidhivinayak Horticulture Limited, M/s Sharma Investments Limited and M/s Tomar Investments
Limited has been merged into our Company

2021 Business awarded from M/S Escorts Railway Equipment Division

2023 Business awarded from M/S JBM EV projects
Successfully supplying Assembly parts to JBM (For EV)

2004 HMC (Horizontal milling machine) installed for the Steering housing machining (For Commercial

Vehicles)
*For further details regarding the Amalgamation, see “Capital Structure” on page 62 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.
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OUR PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Automobile Industry Products Railway Sector Products Heavy Machinery & Equipment
Products

Energy & Power Generation Agricultural Machinery
Products Products

Automobile Industry Products

We specialize in precision-engineered castings for engine components, transmission systems, chassis parts, and
more. Our castings adhere to the rigorous standards of the automotive industry, guaranteeing optimal performance
and durability. This includes Two wheelers, Passenger Cars, Medium and Heavy Vehicles and Electric Buses.
Some of products falls under this category are as follows:

Product Name Product Photo Product Description

Two-Wheeler

Gear Shifter Gear Transmission part of Two-wheeler

Passenger Car

Cover Housing for Passenger Car Air Conditioning

Compressor Front Housing System
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Gear Shifting lever of Passenger Car for Gear

Leaver Shift Transmission System

0il Filter Assembly part of Oil filtration system for passenger
car

Medium and Heavy Commercial vehicles

Ace Brake Drum Rear. Brake Drum of Light Commercial Vehicle
Braking System

Alternator Bracket Moun_tl.ng_ Bracket for Commercial Vehicle Air
Conditioning System

Axle Mounting Bracket Axle mounting Bracket of Long Commercial Vehicle

Rear Brake Drum of Medium Commercial Vehicle

Brake Drum Braking System

Engine Mounting Arm
Bracket

Mounting Bracket of Commercial Vehicle for Engine
Mounting
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Hub for Front Hub Assembly of Commercial Vehicle
supports for ABS and the traction control system

Front Hub (TCS)

Adaptor of Power take-offs (PTOs) Gearboxes for
PTO Adaptor Commercial vehicle
PTO Husing Housing of Power take-offs (PTOs) Gearboxes for

Commercial vehicle

Steering Housing Housing of Steering System for Commercial Vehicle

Valve Housing of Steering System for Commercial

Stearing Valve Housing Vehicle

Torque Rod Bracket Axle mounting Bracket of Long Commercial Vehicle

Water Pump Body housing for Commercial Vehicle

Water Pump Body Engine Cooling System

Electric Bus ‘
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Casted Plate Mounting Plate of Electric Bus for Chassis Support

Suspension Bracket of Electric Bus for Chassis

Suspension Bracket Support

Railway Sector Products ‘

Our castings are essential in the railway sector, where safety and reliability are of utmost importance. We provide
castings for vital railway components, including brake systems, bogie frames, and couplers, ensuring they meet
the stringent standards set by railway authorities. Some of products falls under this category are as follows:

Product Name Product Photo Product Description

Railway Component

Railways Air Brake System Assembly parts for

Bottom Cover Indian Railways

Railways Air Brake System Assembly parts for

Check Valve Indian Railways

Railways Air Brake System Assembly parts for

Control Chamber Indian Railways

Railways Air Brake System Assembly parts for

Intermediate Flange Indian Railways
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R Chareer Railways Air Brake System Assembly parts for
g Indian Railways
Railways Air Brake System Assembly parts for
Brake Beam Indian Railways
Buffer Casin Casing of Shock-Absorbing system between two
& bogies for Indian Railways
Buffer Pluneer Plunger of Shock-Absorbing system between two
& bogies for Indian Railways

Agricultural/ Farm Machinery Products ‘

We provide agricultural machinery manufacturers with castings for tractor parts, plows, cultivators, and
harvesting equipment. Our castings are engineered to improve the efficiency and productivity of agricultural
operations. Some of products falls under this category are as follows:

Product Name Product Photo Product Description

Tractor Commodity ‘

Brake Housing Used as an assembly part in the braking system of
tractors.
Manifold Is an assembly part used in exhaust system of Engine

of Tractors.
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It is a part of Power Take-Off (PTO) mechanism
which is an attachment that connects to a vehicle, like
PTO Housing a tractor and provides a power source for external
accessories like wood chippers / agriculture
equipment.
Retainer Transmission This is a Housing of Bearing of Transmission
Output Shaft Bearing connected to clutch
Water Pump Body Part used in cooling system of Engines of Tractors
Water Pump Pulley Flange Part used in cooling system of Engines of Tractors
Water Pump Pulley Part used in cooling system of Engines of Tractors

Other Machineries such as Heavy Engineering, Sugar Industry, Energy and Power Generation ‘

Our castings support manufacturers of heavy machinery and equipment in industries such as construction, mining,
rolling mills. We deliver robust and durable castings for gearbox housings, hydraulic pump components, and other
critical parts, ensuring reliability and performance.

Further, we also supply castings for turbines, generators, and other components used in power plants and renewable
energy projects. Our castings are engineered to endure the demanding conditions of power generation
environments, ensuring reliable performance and longevity. Some of products falls under this category are as
follows:

Product Name Product Photo Product Description
Sugar Industry ‘
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Crown Pinion

Casting for gear Box used in heavy Industries/Sugar
Industries

Gear

Insulator Cap

Casting for gear Box used in heavy Industries/Sugar
Industries

Energy and Power Generation

Casting used as an assembly part in the production of
11 KV and 33 KV insulators for power transmission.

BUSINESS PROCESS

Inquiry from
customers

Purchase order
from customer

Manufacturing
of products

1. Inquiry from Customers

Feasiblity Check
of order

Sample product
for approval

Final testing

Quotation
approval from
Customer

Quotation
Preparation

Tooling and
Fixture
Development

Development of
Timeline

Dispatch

Receive inquiries from customers outlining product requirements as, specifications, and project timelines. This
is the starting point for understanding customer needs and expectations.

2. Feasibility Check (Commercial & Technical)

The Development department reviews the customer’s requirements to assess whether the product can be
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10.

11.

manufactured both technically (design, material, process compatibility) and commercially (costs, lead times,
profitability).

Quotation Preparation

Based on the feasibility study, prepare a formal quotation. This includes costs for materials, tooling,
development, production, and any other associated fees, ensuring all aspects of the project are covered.

Approval of Quotation

Once the quotation is sent to the customer, we wait for their approval. This step ensures that both parties agree
on pricing, terms, and conditions before moving forward with development.

Development of Advanced Product Quality Planning (APQP) timeline

Develop an Advanced Product Quality Planning (APQP) timeline that outlines the stages of product
development, quality control measures, and approval procedures. Share it with the customer for their approval
to align on development milestones.

Tooling and Fixture Development

Design and manufacture the necessary tooling, patterns, and fixtures required to produce the casting. These
are created based on the approved customer specifications and are critical to ensuring accurate production.

Sample Product for Approval

Produce a sample or prototype of the casting using the machineries and tools. This sample is then shared with
the customer for inspection and approval before proceeding to mass production.

Purchase Order from Customers

Once the customer approves the sample, they issue a purchase order for the regular production of the casting.
This formalizes the agreement and initiates the mass production process.

Manufacturing of Products

After getting an order from the customer, our company manufactures the products as per the purchase order.
The detailed process of manufacturing our products has been defined below.

Final testing of finished product

Before dispatching, the castings go through a thorough final inspection. Dimensional checks, visual
inspections, and quality testing ensure the product meets customer specifications and industry standards.

Dispatch

After packing, the castings are dispatched to the customer. Shipping and logistics ensure that the products reach
their destination safely and within the agreed timeline.
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MANUFACTURING PROCESS

Bills of
Material
creation

Knock-Out
and De-gating
Process

Metallurgical
Testing

Dispatch

Material
Request

Melting and
pouring

Shot Blasting

Packaging

Raw Material
Purchase and
its Inspection

Mould making

Fettling

Machining
Process (CNC,
VMC, HMC)

Issue Material

Green Sand
Preparation

Powder
Coating and
Painting

Final
Inspection

The brief of the manufacturing process are as follows:

1.

Bill of Materials (BOM) Creation

A Bill of Materials (BOM) is created for mass production, listing all raw materials, components, and quantities
required. This is shared with the production department to ensure the necessary materials are available.

Material Request

The production department requests the required raw materials from the purchasing department, ensuring that
the necessary resources are available for casting production.

Raw Material Purchase and its Inspection

Upon receiving the raw materials, the Quality Control team inspects them to ensure they meet the required
standards and specifications before they are used in production.

Issue Material to Relevant Departments (Core Shop, Moulding Shop)

Raw materials, such as sand, binders, and metal alloys, are issued to the Core Shop and Moulding Shop to
begin the casting process. Each department prepares its specific materials according to the production
requirements.

Green Sand Preparation

The moulding sand is mixed with water and clay to create "green sand." This sand is used to form the moulds
into which the molten metal will be poured. The preparation ensures the right consistency and strength for
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

creating durable moulds.

Mould Making and Closing

Moulds are formed by packing the green sand around a pattern that represents the desired shape of the casting.
Once the mould is shaped, it is closed and prepared for the pouring of molten metal. Core placement happens

here if required.

Melting and Pouring

The metal, typically iron or steel for ferrous casting, is melted in a furnace at high temperatures. Once molten,
the metal is carefully poured into the prepared moulds. This step requires precision to ensure the proper filling
of the mould cavities.

Knock-Out and De-gating Process

After the metal has solidified and cooled, the mould is broken (knock-out) to retrieve the casting. The casting
is then *de-gated, where the excess metal (such as runners and risers) is removed from the main casting.

*De-gating involves cutting or trimming this excess material from the finished part.

Metallurgical Testing
Samples from the castings undergo metallurgical testing to verify that the material meets the required

specifications, including chemical composition, hardness, and strength. This ensures the casting meets
customer and quality standards before final processing.

Shot Blasting

Castings are subjected to shot blasting to clean off any remaining sand, scale, or other surface impurities. This
process helps to smooth and prepare the casting for further operations or finishing.

Fettling

The castings undergo fettling, where excess material, such as sprues, runners, and sharp edges, are removed.
This can involve grinding, cutting, or other methods to clean and refine the casting’s surface.

Powder Coating and Painting (Wherever Required)
If specified, castings are powder coated or painted to enhance corrosion resistance, appearance, or other
surface properties. This step is typically applied based on customer requirements for final product appearance
and durability.
Machining Process (CNC, VMC, HMC), If Required
If precision machining is needed, the castings are processed using CNC (Computer Numerical Control), VMC
(Vertical Machining Center), or HMC (Horizontal Machining Center) machines. This step is essential for
achieving tight tolerances and critical dimensions on the casting.

Final Inspection

Before shipment, the castings go through a thorough final inspection. Dimensional checks, visual inspections,
and quality testing ensure the product meets customer specifications and industry standards.

Page 133 of 327



. Oy

Foundry Division

15. Packing
Once the castings pass final inspection, they are carefully packed to prevent damage during transportation.

Packaging may include protective layers like wrapping, boxing, or crating depending on the product size and
customer requirements.

16. Dispatch

After packing, the castings are dispatched to the customer. Shipping and logistics ensure that the products reach
their destination safely and within the agreed timeline.

OUR MANUFACTURING UNIT

Our manufacturing facility is equipped with advanced technology and have facilities for producing quality castings.
Our comprehensive setup includes a Melting Shop, Pattern Shop, Moulding Shop, Fettling Department, Heat
Treatment Facility, Machine Shop Facility, Quality Control Department, and Lab Testing Equipment.

Some of the snapshots for our manufacturing facility unit 1 are as follows:
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LAB TESTING EQUIPMENT

In order to test our products, we have installed various machineries and equipments, the details of which are as

follows:

Equipment Name

Equipment Photo

Equipment Description & Usage

Spectro Analyzer

Our spectro analyser performs chemical analysis to
verify metal compositions, ensuring they meet
required specifications.

Microscope

|'We use microscopes to examine casting surfaces
| for defects and irregularities that may affect
| | quality.

Universal Testing Machine
(UTM)

The UTM tests mechanical properties of materials,
including tensile strength, yield strength, and
elongation, providing essential quality control
data.

Permeability Tester

The permeability tester measures the permeability
of molding sand, ensuring its suitability for the
casting process and optimal mold quality.

Sand Shatter Tester

SAND-SHATTER

The sand shatter tester evaluates the friability of
molding sand, providing insights into its durability
and performance in casting.

Sieve Shaker

We use sieve shakers for particle size analysis of
molding sand, ensuring consistency and uniformity
for optimal casting results.

Coordinate Measuring Machine
(CMM)
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Our CMM performs dimensional inspections of
castings to verify accuracy and conformity to
design specifications.
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Optical Hardness Tester

OPTICAL-HARDNESS

The optical hardness tester measures material
hardness using optical principles, providing
valuable data on the mechanical properties of
castings.

Profile Projector

Profile projectors accurately measure casting
profiles and dimensions, ensuring precision and
consistency in manufacturing.

GCS Machine

The GCS machine combines gas chromatography
and mass spectrometry for precise separation and
identification of complex compounds.

HTS Machine

This machine is used to test the hot tensile strength
of resin-coated sand, which is used in the
production of shell cores.

Muffle Furnace

A muffle furnace is a laboratory instrument used to
heat materials to extremely high temperatures
whilst isolating them from fuel and the byproducts
of combustion from the heat source.

Gas Determinator

Used to measure the gaseous content present in
resin-coated sand.
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OUR PLACE OF BUSINESS

Our company carryout these activities from our registered offices and Manufacturing Plant Unit-1, details of which
are as following:

Facility Address

. B-25, 29, Industrial Estate Bazpur Road, Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur,
Registered Office Uttarakhand, India, 244713

B-26-28, Industrial Estate Bazpur Road, Udham Singh Nagar, Kashipur,
Uttarakhand, India, 244713

Village Baghelewala, Tehsil Kashipur, Distt, Udham Singh Nagar
Uttarakhand

Manufacturing Plant Unit-1

Manufacturing Plant Unit-2*

*The manufacturing activities has not been commenced yet and the installation of new plant and machineries is
still pending in Manufacturing unit 2.

Note: For detailed information of above-mentioned places of business please refer “Land & Properties” in section
“Our Business” on page no. 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

PLANT AND MACHINERIES
The details of the Plant and Machineries are as follows:

S. . . Machine Capacity /
No. Details of Machine ID No. Made by Specification

1 |Bucket Elevator - 1 SP-1 DUNLOP - 1
2 | Bucket Elevator - 2 SP-2 DUNLOP - 1
3 g(l)s;rlbutlon Sand Belt Conveyor with Gear SP-3 DUNLOP i 1
4 | Feeder Belt Conveyor with Gear box SP-4 DUNLOP - 1
5 |Intensive mixer - 1 SP-5 SSEC 500 Kg. 1
6 |Intensive mixer - 2 SP-6 SSEC 500 Kg. 1
7 g:)l)c()ckout Sand Belt Conveyor with Gear Sp.7 DUNLOP i 1
8 |Polygonal Siever SP-8 SSEC 6 TPH 1
9 groefared Sand Belt Conveyor with Gear SP-9 DUNLOP ) 1
10 gz:/(ermble Sand Belt Conveyor with Gear SP-10 DUNLOP i 1
1 g(())sper switching Belt Conveyor with Gear SP-11 DUNLOP ) |
12 |Sand cooler SP-12 SSEC 12 TPH 1
13 |Sand hopper - 1 SP-13 SSEC 40 MT 1
14 | Sand hopper - 2 SP-14 In House 60 MT 1
15 /OBMS SP-15 SSEC - 1
16 |Moulding Machine-1 MM-1 SSEC 300 SJS 1
17 | Moulding Machine-2 MM-2 SSEC 300 SJS 1
18 | Moulding Machine-5 MM-5 SSEC 300 SJS 1
19 |Moulding Machine-6 MM-6 SSEC 300 SJS 1
20 |Moulding Machine-3 MM-3 DISA ARPA 450 1
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21 |Moulding Machine-4 MM-4 DISA ARPA 450 1

22 |Moulding Machine-5 MM-5 Darpa DARPA 450 1

23 |Moulding Machine-6 MM-6 Darpa DARPA 450 1

1 | Oil fired heat treatment furnace F-1 - 6 MT 1

2 |Induction furnace-1 F-2 Electrotherm 1 MT 1

3 |Induction furnace-2 F-3 Electrotherm 1 MT 1

4 | Induction furnace-3 & 4 F-4&5 Megatherm 500 Kg. 2

1 |33 KV Sub Station - - - 1

2 | Air dryer AD-1 Elgi Equip. Ltd. 100 CFM 1

3 | Air dryer AD-2 Elgi Equip. Ltd. 200 CFM 1

4 | Air dryer AD-3 Airflic 50 CFM 1

5 | Air dryer AD-4 Airflic 25 CFM 1

Model- CS 650
. Trident pneumatic pvt Sr no-
6 | Airdryer AD-5 a0 comsianeso !
CFM

7 |Bundle press machine BPM-1 Mishra hydralics 10" x 12" 1

8 | Bundle press machine BPM-2 Mishra hydralics 9"x9"x 15" 1

9 | Cooling tower CT-1 - 100 TR 1

10 |Cooling tower CT-2 - 100 TR 1
: Susha founders &

11 | Core shooter machine-1 CSM-1 . 1215 VTA 1
Engineers, Surat

12| Core shooter machine-2 csM.p | Sushafounders & 1518 VTS 1
Engineers, Surat

13 | Core shooter machine-3 CSM-3 | Galaxy machine, Pune - 1

14 | Core shooter machine-4 CSM-4 Sushg founders & 1215 VTA 1
Engineers, Surat

15 Core shooter machine-5 csM.s | Susha founders & 1518 VTS 1
Engineers, Surat

16 |Core shooter machine-6 CSM-6 Sushg founders & 1215 VTA 1
Engineers, Surat

17 |Core shooter machine-7 CSM-7 Sushg founders & 1215 VTA 1
Engineers, Surat

18 | Cold-box core shooter machine-8 CSM-8 | Galaxy machine, Pune - 1

19 |Core shooter machine-9 CSM-9 | Galaxy machine, Pune - 1

20 |Cold-box core shooter machine-10 CSM-10 CFM, Rajkot 20 Liters 1

21 |D.G. Set DG Jakson 225 KVA 1

22 |E.O.T. Crane (Prod. Shed) CR-1 New Age Enterprises 7.5/3MT 1

23 |E.O.T. Crane (Prod. Shed) CR-2 New Age Enterprises 7.5/3MT 1

24 |E.O.T. Crane (H/T Furnace) CR-3 - 5SMT 1

25 | Lifting Magnet MAGNET | Superlift gggnets PVE pia1200MM |

26 |Chain Hoist CH-1to 8 INDEF IMT 8

27 | Chain Hoist cho& INDEF IMT 2
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WRH-1 to

28 | Wire rope Hoist 3 INDEF 2 MT 3

29 | Wire rope Hoist WR};_I o INDEF 3MT 3

30 |Wire rope Hoist WRH-4 INDEF 2MT 1

31 |Magnet Separator MS - - 1

32 | Screw type air compressor E-45-10 AC-1 Elgi Equip. Ltd. 250 CFM 1

33 |Screw type air compressor EG-11-7.5 AC-2 Elgi Equip. Ltd. 70 CFM 1

34 |Screw type air compressor EG-22-7.5 AC-3 Elgi Equip. Ltd. 130 CFM 1
35 | Screw type air compressor E-45-7.5 AC-4 Elgi Equip. Ltd. 250 CFM 1
36 | Screw type air compressor BAT-22AZ AC-5 Blue Air Technology 120CFM 1

. First Air FS compressor

37 |Screw Type Air Compressor FAS-75-A100 AC-6 india pvt Itd (FS curtis) 487CFM 1
38 |Submersible Pump SBP - 10 HP 1
39 |Swing Grinder SG - 7.5 HP 1

40 Transformer - 1 TE-1 Mehi Power 1200 KVA 1

Transformers
41 Transformer - 2 TF-2 Mehi Power 1000 KVA 1
Transformers
42 | Transformer - 3 TF-3 Elec“"thi‘;‘;‘ (INDIA) 1900 kvA I
Machine Shop
1 | Driil Machine DM-1 Bravo - 1
2 | Driil Machine DM-2 Bravo - 1
3 | Drill Machine DM-3&4 ITCO - 2
4 | Drill Machine DM-5 Alfa Enterprises - 1
5 | Drill Machine DM-6 VICTOR - 1
6 |Lathe Machine LM-1 Bravo 10 Feets 1
7 |Lathe Machine LM-2 & 3 Bravo 8 Feets 2
8 | Lathe Machine Lg[l_ é ! Bravo 4 Feets 5
9 |Lathe Machine LM-16 Alfa Enterprises 16 Feets 1
10 |Lathe Machine LM;)I to Bravo 12 Feets 3
. LM-24 to Banka Machines,
11 |Lathe Machine 23 Rajkot 6 Feets 5
12 | Lathe Machine LM§%)9 & RS Enterprises 12 Feets 2
13 | Milling Machine MMC BHAMBAR Engrs. - 1
14 | Self-Centring Machine (SPM) SPM Rimaco, Ghaziabad - 1
. . Kleenwell fabricators, %
15 | Shot blasting machine (Rotary Type) SBM-1 Jalandhar 36%42 1
. . Kleenwell fabricators, *
16 |Shot blasting machine (Rotary Type) SBM-2 Jalandhar 36%42 1
17 | Shot blasting machine (Table Type) SBM-3 | Quality Spare Faridabad - 1
Shiv Shakti Engg. &
18 | Shot blasting machine (Hanger Type) SBM-4 Foundry Solution, - 1
Jalandhar

19 | Stand Grinder SG-1to10 In House - 10
20 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-1&2 ACE Micromatic - 2
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21 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC4-3 & Okuma M/c Tools Inc. - 2
22 | CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-5 BFW - 1
23 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-6 BFW - 1
24 | CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-7&8 Electronica - 2
. CNC- . .
25 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) 9&10 ACE Micromatic - 2
26 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-11 Alex- Tech - 1
27 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-12 ACE Micromatic - 1
28 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-13 ACE Micromatic - 1
29 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-14 ACE Micromatic - 1
30 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-15 ACE Micromatic - 1
31 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-16 ACE Micromatic - 1
32 |CNC (Computer Numerical Control) CNC-17 ACE Micromatic - 1
33 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VM(23—1 & BFW - 2
34 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-3 AMS - 1
35 |VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-4 AMS - 1
36 |VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-5 DAEVOO - 1
37 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-6 AMS - 1
38 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-7 TAL - 1
39 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-8 AMS - 1
40 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-9 BFW - 1
41 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-10 BFW - 1
42 | VMC (Vertical Machining Center) VMC-11 AMS - 1
43 |HMC (Horizontal Machining Center) HMC-1 BFW - 1
44 |Rotary Production System Inbuilt in UCAM - 1
VMC-11
45 | Leak Test Machine rry | Universal Hydraulic - 1
System

46 | Washing Machine WM - - 1
47 | Wheel Balancing Machine WBM Micro Test Engineers - 1
48 |Co-ordinate Measuring Machine CMM Carl Zeiss - 1
49 |Powder coating equipment PCE Pride Tfnc(?i{:)k)gles -

50 Scregn Guard Cutting Machine (Lazer SGCM Jitai Interna'tlonal Co. ) |

marking) India

Laboratory Equipments
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1 | Spectrometer AMETEK - 1
2 | Wet Analysis (Complete) - - 1
3 | Clay Washer Versatile - 1
4 | Compactibity Tester Versatile - 1
5 |Mouldibility Tester Versatile - 1
Sieve Size 53
6 |Sieve Shaker Versatile Microns to 1
1700Microns
7 |Core Hardness Tester Versatile - 1
8 |Mould Hardness Tester Versatile - 2
9 |Compression Strength M/c Versatile - 1
10 |Digital Compression Strength M/c Versatile - 1
11 |Permeability Tester Versatile - 1
12 | Digital Permeability Tester Versatile - 1
13 |Rapid Moisture Tester Versatile - 2
14 | Sand Rammer Versatile - 1
15 |Hot Tensile Strength Versatile - 1
16 |Rockwell Hardness Tester Precision - 1
17 |Impact Testing M/c Canon - 1
18 |UTM PSI 40 MT 1
19 | Core Gas Determination Tester Versatile - 1
20 |Carbon Silicon Analyzer Suyash - 1
21 |Portable Pyrometer Suyash 1700 deg. C max 3
22 |Hardness Tester (OPTICAL) FIE 3000 kg 1
23 |Sand Shatter index Abot & Abot - 1
24 | Microscope Abot & Abot 1200x 1
25 |Electric oven Kishor Scientific - 1
26 Impact Testing Machine Charpy & Izod ) 300 JOULE 1
Analgoue Type
27 |Muftle Furnace - - 1
28 |Ultrasonic Flaw Detector Modsonic - 1
. Suvidha Inspection SIMS Y A/D
29 |MPI Machine Methods&System.HYD (220 V, 50 Hz 1
2.2 Amps)
30 | Surface Roughness Tester Mitutoyo - 1
31 |Profile Projector RB Metrology - 1
32 |Impact testing Temperature Chamber Truemet - 1

This Space has been left blank intentionally
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRCUTURE

l Board Members & KMP

Puneet

Devendra Jaswinder Singh

e /Al Arpan Jindal Venu Jindal Rekha Agarwal Madhup Misra Sudhir Agarwal Ahluwalia Mohinder
g Managing (Non- Executive (Non-Executive (Independent (Independent :

(Non- Executive ( 5 5 . . B (Independent (Non-Executive
Director) Director) Director) Director) Director) Director) Director) Director)

Shweta
Mehrotra (CS)

OUR STRENGTHS
We believe that the following are our primary competitive strength:
1. Diversified Customer Base

We have established long-standing relationships with our diverse customer base, including Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEMs) and Tier-1 customers in the commercial vehicle, tractor, railways, and off-highway vehicle
segments across India. We manufacture brake systems for Indian Railways. Our Company provides almost the
entire range of the casting portion for break assembly. We handle casting, machining, painting/powder coating,
and leakage testing all under one roof.

2. Diversified Product Portfolio

In addition to a wide customer base across various industries and geographies, Our Company prides itself on
being a one-stop shop for our customers. We supply castings of several different grades and sizes:

a) Material Grades Produced:
o All Standard grades of Grey & Ductile Iron
¢ High Silicon-Molybdenum Ductile Iron for high-temperature exhaust elbows
e Solution Strengthened Ferritic grades of Ductile Iron
e Ductile Iron Castings with strong impact properties at low temperatures for railway braking

b) Weight Range for Grey Iron and Ductile Iron:
¢ (0.5kg — 95 kg

¢) Production Capacity:
e Ability to produce components ranging from 50 parts/month to 90,000 parts/month
e Components can be supplied as rough castings or fully machined sub-assemblies through in-house
facilities
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3. Strategic Location

Our plant in Kashipur is strategically located just 50 km from Rudrapur, a major manufacturing hub with several
leading global automotive companies. This proximity forms a key customer base and a reliable source of steel
scrap, a critical raw material. Kashipur is well connected through road and rail transportation useful for input and
finished products supplies.

4. In-House Tool and Pattern Making Facilities

Our Company has its own in-house pattern facility and Machining Centre which enables us to maintain high
quality production standards and also helps us in minimizing production time and bringing cost effectiveness.

Our in-house tool and pattern making facilities include:
e Computerized design and development using CAD/CAM/CAE tools
e Manufacturing of tooling through CNC and VMC machines
e By making all tools and patterns in-house as per customer requirements, we save development
time and build customer confidence, giving us an edge over other suppliers.
o Well-Equipped Machining Facility with CNC Machines

5. Dedicated and Experienced Workforce

We have an experienced management team with an established process led by our Individual promoter and
managing director, Mr. Arpan Jindal, who has significant industry experience of 16 years in the Castings
Industries. Our management and employees team combine expertise and experience in foundry and casting which
helps for the future development of the Company. We believe that our qualified management team helps us in
capitalizing the market opportunities and enables us to function effectively and efficiently.

OUR STRATEGIES:

1. Enhancing Production Capacity and Automation with purchase of new plant and machineries

As mentioned in our object, the company plans to procure machinery for use in the Manufacturing Plant (Unit-02)
as part of its strategic initiative to automate processes. This automation aims to optimize capacity utilization and
ensure timely product deliveries while maintaining expected quality standards. Currently, the facility has a
production capacity of up to 600 metric tons per month, with the installation of the new plant and machinery, this
capacity will be increased to 1,000 metric tons per month. For further details, please refer to the object to the issue
on page 81 of the Red Herring Prospectus.

2. Advancing Casting and Manufacturing Processes with Technological Integration

The latest casting technologies will be adopted to reduce human dependency and improve product quality.
Additionally, computerized design and development tools (CAD/CAM/CAE) and CNC/VMC machines will be
implemented for tooling and pattern making. These technological integrations will streamline the manufacturing
processes, ensuring precision and high-quality outcomes in casting and manufacturing.

3. Expanding and Strengthening OEM Partnerships for Future Growth

Efforts will be made to increase supply capacity to existing OEMs. Furthermore, the company will explore new
OEM partnerships in the automotive, railways, tractor, and defense sectors. These initiatives will not only solidify
current relationships but also open new avenues for growth and expansion in diverse industries.
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4. Broadening Casting Solutions and Services through Product Portfolio Diversification

The development of a wide range of casting products, including Grey Iron, Ductile Iron, and Alloy Steel Castings,
will continue. The focus will also be on providing complete casting solutions, encompassing machining, painting,
powder coating, and leakage testing. This diversification will ensure a comprehensive service offering, catering to
varied customer needs and enhancing market competitiveness.

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Over the years, we have been recipients of multiple awards, some of the snapshots of the awards are as follows:

ADVIK
Best Delivery Award

KASHI ENTERPRISES

apan Komar Mvtaputrs ;.n =y
L ADVIK HI- ll(llr\‘l LD

ALVTR TN YL LT
CREATING A WERNING WAY

GUALITY AWARD - FLATIRDW
KASIE

CAPACITY UTILIZATION

The details of the capacity utilization are as follows:

(In MTPA except %)
Particulars | March 312025 | March 312024 | March 312023

Installed Capacity (In MTPA) 7,200 7,200 7,200
Actual Production (In MTPA) 5487 5,885 6,113
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| Capacity Utilization (In %) 76.20% 81.74% 84.90%

UTILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES

Our registered office and factory are well-equipped for our business operations to function smoothly.

Power

We have made the necessary arrangements for a regular, uninterrupted power supply at our manufacturing unit and
registered office. We have availed a power connection from Uttarakhand Power Corporation Limited for our
manufacturing unit-1 premises with a sanctioned load of 2,500 KVA, which is sufficient to meet our plant's
requirements. Further, we have applied for the power connection with the Uttarakhand Power Corporation limited
with a sanctioned load of 3,500 KVA for the manufacturing facility-2.

Water

Water is mainly required for the production process, washing of the products, casting of the products, fire safety,
drinking, and sanitation purposes. Our company consumes water from the borewell for our manufacturing unit-1
and registered office. Further, we have the borewell facility at our manufacturing facility- 2.

Logistics

Raw Materials

Raw materials are transported to our manufacturing facility either through our suppliers' proprietary vehicles or
third-party transport agencies.

Finished Products

To deliver our finished products to customers, we utilize third party transport agencies as per the requirements.

Procurement of Raw Materials and Management

For our business we require CRC (Cold Rolled Cuttings), SCRAP and MS (Mild Steel) Scrap which is a byproduct
of sheet metal industry. We procured these raw materials from suppliers to the domestic markets. We usually do
not enter into long-term supply contracts with any of our raw material suppliers due to constant fluctuation in the
prices. The raw material is purchased as and when required on the basis of the rates offered by various suppliers.
Raw materials are mainly stored on-site at the factory.

Inventory Management

Our company does not have a separate warehouse. Instead, we have allocated space in the factory for storage. Our
finished products are mainly stored on-site at the factory. For finished product supply, we use the First In, First Out
(FIFO) method. We produce finished products based on a combination of confirmed and expected orders.
COLLABORATIONS/ JOINT VENTURES

Our Company do not have any Collaborations or Joint Ventures as on date of Red Herring Prospectus.

EXPORT AND EXPORT OBLIGATION

Our Company does not have any export obligation as on date.
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HUMAN RESOURCE

We believe that a motivated and empowered employee base is the key to our operations and business strategy. We
have developed a large pool of skilled and experienced personnel. As on March 31, 2025, our Company has
employed 121 permanent employees which are on our company’s payroll.

S. No. Particulars Number of Employees
1. Senior Management 1
2. Finance and Accounts (Including Stores/Purchase) 5
3. Human Resources 2
4. Marketing and Sales 4
5. Operations (Production) 81
6. Secretarial 1
7. Technical 21
8. Legal 1
9. Admin and Commercial 5
TOTAL 121
Note Our Company does not have any contractual employees.
INDUSTRIES OR SECTOR WISE PRODUCT REVENUE BREAKUP
The Industries or Sector wise Product Revenue Breakup of the Company are as follows:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars For the| % of| For the | % of For the | % of
period ended | Revenue | period ended| Revenue | periodended| Revenue
31 March, from 31t March, from 31 March, from

2025 operations 2024 operations 2023 operations

Auto components

(Commercial  and 3733.44 74.50% 4561.83 84.23% 4589.62 80.15%

passenger)

Farm Tractor 493.95 9.86% 540.23 9.98% 802.61 14.02%

Railways 443.87 8.86% 247.70 4.57% 253.50 4.43%

Others (Heavy

engineering, Earth 339.68 6.79% 66.00 1.22% 80.62 1.41%

moving, power

generation, sugar)

Total Revenue

from operations 5010.94 100.00% 5415.76 100.00% 5726.34 100.00%

GEOGRAPHICAL WISE REVENUE BREAKUP

The Geographical Wise Revenue Breakup of the Company are as follows:
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(Rupees in Lakhs)

State Name For the % of For the % of For the period % of
period ended | Revenue | period ended REENE ended 31* REENE
31%*March, from 31%*March, from March, 2023 from
2025 operations 2024 operations operations
Uttarakhand 3590.34 71.65% 3957.44 73.07% 474527 82.87%
Jharkhand 273.59 5.45% 687.39 12.69% 160.99 2.81%
Delhi NCR 89.68 1.78% 457.23 8.44% 369.18 6.45%
Uttar Pradesh 252.97 5.04% 198.14 3.66% 386.2 6.74%
Haryana 602.17 12.04% 107.45 1.98% 50.54 0.88%
Rajasthan 0.01 00% 8.10 0.15% 14.16 0.25%
Others - -
(Northeast) 202.20 4.03% ) )
Total 5010.94 100.00% 5415.75 100.00% 5726.34 100.00%
Revenue
from
Operations
TOP 10 CUSTOMERS
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

For
Financial

ended March 31,
2025

the
Year

For

2024

Financial
ended March 31,

the
Year

Year
March 31, 2023

For the Financial

ended

Revenue from Operations 5010.90 5,415.75 5,726.34
Top One (1) Customer 946.00 1,070.31 1,036.15
Top Five (5) Customers 3308.19 4,231.30 3,959.91
Top Ten (10) Customers 4227.44 5,402.05 5,474.44
% of Top One (1) Customers to Revenue 18.88% 19.76% 18.09%
from Operations*

% of Top Five (5) Customers to Revenue 66.02% 78.13% 69.15%
from Operations*

% of Top Ten (10) Customers to Revenue 83.36% 99.75% 95.60%
from Operations*

*The % has been derived by dividing the total amount received from top ten customers with the Revenue from
operations of the company in the relevant year as mentioned in the Profit and Loss Statement as given in restated

financials of the company.

TOP 10 SUPPLIERS

Particulars

For the Financial

For the Financial

(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Financial

Year ended March | Year ended | Year ended

31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Raw Material Purchase 1850.69 2,152.59 2,478.39
Top One (1) Supplier 598.45 724.62 456.49
Top 5 (Five) Suppliers 1420.31 1,646.66 1,445.04
Top ten (10) Suppliers 1737.81 1,833.06 1,545.70
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% of Top One (1) Suppliers to Total Raw 32.34% 39.53% 29.53%
material Purchased*
% of Top Five (5) Suppliers to Total Raw 76.74% 76.50% 58.31%
material Purchased*
% of Top Ten (10) Suppliers to Total Raw 93.63% 85.16% 62.37%
material Purchased®

*The % has been derived by dividing the total amount received from top ten Suppliers with the Total Raw Material
Purchased of the company in the relevant year as mentioned in the Profit and Loss Statement as given in restated
financials of the company.

COMPETITON

We operate in a highly competitive market. We face competition from other companies operating in the
foundry/castings industry, in the same geographies as ours. Our competition depends on various factors, such as
the type of project, total contract value, potential margins, location of the project and client relationships.
Competition in our industry primarily involves factors such as:

e quality and capability of plant and machinery
e ability to meet the customer’s schedule

e experience and reputation

e price of the offerings

While service quality, technical ability, performance record, experience, health and safety records and the
availability of skilled personnel are key factors in client decisions among competitors, price often is the deciding
factor in most tender awards. Some of our competitors may have greater resources than those available to us.

Some of our Listed competitors are:
e Universal Autofoundry Limited
e Thaai Casting Limited

MARKETING

Our company prioritizes building robust and trust-based relationships with our customers and our employees. Our
marketing approach revolves around nurturing these relationships and emphasizing our commitment to meeting
industries’ needs effectively. By consistently delivering value and maintaining trustworthy relationships, we not
only sustain our current relationships but also attract new customers and opportunities for growth. Our company
utilizes email marketing, leverage personal contacts and set up stalls to promote our products. Our marketing
strategies ensure:

e Continuously monitoring the industry trends
e Supply of quality products
e Timely execution and delivery of products

INSURANCE

Some of the Insurance Policies of our Company are as follows:

Insurer Company Description of Policy No. Expiry Date Insured

Services Amount
(In Rs.)
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The New India Assurance Compan Electronic
1 dW U PAY 1 Equipment 32310244235800000001 |  12/06/2026 = 31,46,000
Insurance Policy
. Electronic
2 g‘rfml\izw India Assurance Company | o ionene32310244245800000006 200022026 | 12,55,700
Insurance Policy
3 g‘rflizw India Assurance Company | por o poioo132310211259600000011  12/07/2026 |31,00,00,000
4 TheNew India Assurance Company | Fire Policy 53,5 11548700000000  13/03/2026 | 2.10,00,000
Limited (Stock)
Policy Schedule
. for Burglary
5 Eﬁiiﬁw India Assurance Company | i 1o~ 132310246240100000000  13/03/2026 | 6,00,00,000
Location)
Insurance
6 |Iffco-Tokio General Insurance Co. ERECTION 32235124 14/10/2025 89,21,34,000
. Machinery
7 Ehe.lj‘:lw India Assurance Company | g o4 qown  32310244245100000007  03/01/2026 |19.25,63,165
tmite Insurance Policy
. Electronic
8 E‘Ifntlizw India Assurance Company | g ooment 132310246241100000007 20/02/2026 3,87,000
Insurance Policy
g TheNewIndia Assurance Company | Marine Cargo 3,3, 551940200000017  10/02/2026 |12.50,00,000
Limited Open Policy
10 | The New India Assurance Company | Marine Cargo 3,055 1940200000018 | 10/02/2026 |70,00,00,000
Limited Open Policy
11 | The New India Assurance Company | Cash in Transit |3, ) 4040300000007 23/09/2025 3500000
Limited Policy
12 Efr;fi‘t’gdlndla Insurance Company Tractor —1503023124P116467400  19/01/2026 | 2,46,384
13 [Ljinnllti‘:gdlndla Insurance Company Tractor 15 503023124P112375160|  08/11/2025 1,39,764

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

The details of the trademarks used by the Company registered under the Trademarks Act, 1999 are as follows:

S. Description Application| Date of Class Current Status Owner
No. Number Application
1 3160562 17-01-2016 Registered M/s Kashi Vishwanath
M / Steel Private Limited
2 KVS PREMIER 3136351 23-12-2015 6 Registered M/s Kashi Vishwanath
Steel Private Limited

Further, the company has entered into the trademark permitted user agreement for the use of these intellectual
properties on April 01, 2024.
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Domain Details

The Details of Domain names registered in the name of the Company:

Domain Name and ID | Sponsoring registrar and ID Creation Date

kvscastings.com

BigRock

May 30, 2024

Expiry Date
May 30, 2029

Active

LAND AND PROPERTY

The following are the details of Land and Properties used by our company:

S. No. |[Name of Address of Property Owned/| Area |Tenure/Term Usage
Lessor Leased
M/s Kumaon |Plot No B-25 & 26, Government 15 Years Registered
1 Plastic Industrial Area, Bazpur Road, Leased 2,235 Sq (wef office and
) Weavers & |Kashipur-244713, (U S  Nagar) Yards 26/1 0'/2'0'2 0) Manufacturing
Laminators | Uttarakhand Plant Unit -1
2 Governor of |Plot No. B-29, Industrial Area, Leased 2372 Sq 9?\3{:2?8 Registered
Uttarakhand | Bazpur Road, Kashipur,244713 Yards 15/02/1977) office
Annl\:/irna Plot No B-27 and B-28, Government 15 Years
3 3 teI::ls Industrial Area, Bazpur Road, Leased 2,499 Sq (wef Manufacturing
) . Kashipur-244713, (U S Nagar) Yards Py Plant Unit -1
Private 01/04/2023)
. Uttarakhand
Limited
M/S KVS | Plot No B-20, Government Industrial 5 Years )
. 578 Sq Manufacturing
4. Infraatech |Area, Bazpur Road, Kashipur- | Leased Yard (w.e.f. Plant Unit -1
LLP 244713, (U S Nagar) Uttarakhand S 1 01/04/2021 | FAntnt-
5 Governor of | Plot No. C-25, C-26, and C-27, Leased 2495 Sq 9?\::?“ Manufacturing
Uttarakhand | Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand Yards 26/08/1977)* Plant Unit -1
M/s Kashi
Vishwanath Vlllage Baghelewala,' Tehsil 10357.6 20 Years Manufacturing
6. Steels Kashipur, Distt, Udham Singh Nagar | Leased Sq Yards (w.e.f. Plant Unit -2 ©
Private | Uttarakhand d 01/08/2024)
Limited
*These properties has been taken on lease by our company pursuant to the supplementary lease deed dated October
06, 2023.
Note:
1. Our registered office is located at Unit No. B-25 and B-29 with separate agreements for each unit

2.

3.

from different parties.
The property mentioned under manufacturing unit-1 have been acquired by different lessors, thus
mentioned under different heads.
The manufacturing activities has not been commenced yet and the installation of new plant and
machineries is still pending in Manufacturing Unit 2.

This Space has been left blank intentionally
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KEY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

The business of our Company requires, at various stages, the sanction of the concerned authorities under the relevant
Central, State legislation and local laws. The following description is an overview of certain laws and regulations in
India, which are relevant to our Company. Certain information detailed in this chapter has been obtained from
publications available in the public domain. The regulations set out below are not exhaustive and are only intended
to provide general information to Applicants and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional
legal advice.

The statements below are based on current provisions of Indian law, and the judicial and administrative
interpretations thereof, which are subject to change or modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory,
administrative or judicial decisions.

1. INDUSTRIAL LAWS
1.1 The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSME Act)

The MSME Act is a central law which primarily provides for facilitating the promotion and development and
enhancing the competitiveness of micro, small and medium enterprises in India. The industries/enterprises under
the MSME Act are categorized as micro, small and medium industries depending upon the following criteria
(applicable from April 1, 2025):
(a) a micro enterprise, where the Investment in Plant and Machinery or Equipment not more than Rs. 2.5
crore and Annual Turnover not more than Rs. 10 crore;
(b) a small enterprise, where the Investment in Plant and Machinery or Equipment not more than Rs. 25
crore and Annual Turnover not more than Rs. 100 crore;
(c) a medium enterprise, where the Investment in Plant and Machinery or Equipment not more than Rs.
125 crore and Annual Turnover not more than Rs. 500 crore.

In terms of the MSME Act, any buyer who fails to make payment to MSMEs, as per agreed terms or a maximum
of 45 days, would be liable to pay monthly compounded interest at three times the bank rate notified by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

1.2 Industrial Disputes Act 1947 (ID Act)

The ID Act and the Industrial Dispute (Central) Rules 1957 (ID Rules) lay down the provisions for the
investigation and settlement of industrial disputes. Workmen under the ID Act have been provided with several
benefits and are protected under its provisions, however the employees classified as managerial employees and
earning salary beyond prescribed amount are not covered under the protection of the ID Act.

The ID Act also sets out certain requirements in relation to the termination of the services of the workman. The
ID Act includes detailed procedure prescribed for resolution of disputes with labour, removal and certain financial
obligations up on retrenchment. The ID Rules specify procedural guidelines for lockouts, closures, lay-offs and
retrenchment.

1.3 The industries (Development and Regulation) Act 1951 (Industries Regulation Act)

The Industries Regulation Act is an Act to govern the development and regulation of industries in India. The main
objectives of the Industries Regulation Act are to empower the Government: (i) to take necessary steps for the
development of industries; (ii) to regulate the pattern and direction of industrial development; (iii) to control the
activities, performance and results of industrial undertakings in the public interest. The Industries Regulation Act
applies to the Scheduled Industries listed in the First Schedule of the Act.
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However, small scale industrial undertakings and ancillary units are exempted from the provisions of the
Industries Regulation Act.

The Industries Regulation Act is administered by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade
(DPIIT). The DPIIT is responsible for formulation and implementation of promotional and developmental
measures for growth of the industrial sector. It monitors the industrial growth and production, in general, and
selected industrial sectors. Certain specified categories of industries require industrial licensing under the
Industries Regulation Act.

1.4 Factories Act 1948 (Factories Act)

Factories Act primarily lays down the provisions to regulate the working conditions in factories, regulate health,
annual leave, safety, welfare, and to establish special provisions related to young people, women, and children
working in factories. It is applicable to factories manufacturing goods, including weaving cloth, knitting of hosiery
and other knitwear, clothing, and footwear production, dyeing and finishing textiles, manufacturing footwear, etc.

2. CORPORATE AND COMMERCIAL LAWS
2.1 Bureau of Indian Standards Act 2016 (BIS Act)

The BIS Act provides for the establishment of a national standards body for the harmonious development of the
activities of standardization, conformity assessment and quality assurance of goods, articles, processes, systems
and services and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

BIS Act has enabling provisions for the Government to bring under compulsory certification regime any goods
or article of any scheduled industry, process, system or service which it considers necessary in the public interest
or for the protection of human, animal or plant health, safety of the environment, or prevention of unfair trade
practices, or national security. Enabling provisions have also been made for making hallmarking of the precious
metal articles mandatory.

2.2 The Information Technology Act 2000 (IT Act)

The IT Act aims to provide for the legal framework so that legal sanctity is accorded to all electronic records and
other activities carried out by electronic means. The IT Act states that unless otherwise agreed, an acceptance of
contract may be expressed by electronic means of communication and the same shall have legal validity and
enforceability.

2.3 The Companies Act 2013 (Companies Act)

The Companies Act deals with incorporation and post incorporation. The conversion of private company into public
company and vice versa is also laid down under the Companies Act. The provisions of the Companies Act shall
also apply to banking companies, companies engaged in generation or supply of electricity and any other company
governed by any special act for the time being in force. A company can be formed by seven or more persons in case
of public company and by two or more persons in case of private company. A company can even be formed by one
person i.e. One Person Company. The provisions relating to formation and allied procedures are mentioned in the
act. The Companies Act repealed the erstwhile Companies Act 1956.

2.4 The Competition Act 2002 (Competition Act)

The Competition Act prohibits anti-competitive agreements, abuse of dominant positions by enterprises and
regulates combinations in India. The Competition Act also established the Competition Commission of India (CCI)
as the authority mandated to implement the Competition Act. The provisions of the Competition Act relating to
combinations were notified recently on 4 March 2011, and came into effect on 1 June 2011. Combinations which
are likely to cause an appreciable adverse effect on competition in a relevant market in India are void under the
Competition Act. A combination is defined under Section 5 of the Competition Act as an acquisition, merger or
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amalgamation of enterprise(s) that meets certain asset or turnover thresholds.

There are also different thresholds for those categorized as Individuals and Group. The CCI may enquire into all
combinations, even if taking place outside India, or between parties outside India, if such combination is Likely to
have an appreciable adverse effect on competition in India. Effective 1 June 2011, all combinations have to be
notified to the CCI within 30 days of the execution of any agreement or other document for any acquisition of
assets, shares, voting rights or control of an enterprise under Section 5(a) and (b) of the Competition Act (including
any binding document conveying an agreement or decision to acquire control, shares, voting rights or assets of an
enterprise); or the board of directors of a company (or an equivalent authority in case of other entities) approving a
proposal for a merger or amalgamation under Section 5(c) of the Competition Act. The obligation to notify a
combination to the CCI falls upon the acquirer in case of an acquisition, and on all parties to the combination jointly
in case of a merger or amalgamation.

2.5 The Indian Stamp Act 1899 (Stamp Act)

Stamp duty is payable on all instruments/ documents evidencing a transfer or creation or extinguishment of any
right, title or interest in immoveable property. The Stamp Act provides for the imposition of stamp duty at the
specified rates on instruments listed in Schedule I of the Stamp Act. However, under the Constitution of India, the
states are also empowered to prescribe or alter the stamp duty payable on such documents executed within the state.
Instruments chargeable to duty under the Stamp Act but which have not been duly stamped, are incapable of being
admitted in as evidence of the transaction contained therein. The Stamp Act also provides for impounding of
instruments by certain specified authorities and bodies and imposition of penalties, for instruments which are not
sufficiently stamped or not stamped at all Instruments which have not been properly stamped instruments can be
validated by paying a penalty of up to 10 times of the total duty payable on such instruments.

2.6 The Prevention of Money Laundering Act 2002 (PMLA)

PMLA is an Act of the Parliament of India to prevent money-laundering and to provide for confiscation of property
derived from money-laundering. PMLA and the Rules notified thereunder came into force with effect from 1 July
2005.

2.7 The Fugitive Economic Offenders Act 2018 (FEOA)

2.8

2.9

FEOA provides the measures to deter fugitive economic offenders from evading the process of law in India by
staying outside the jurisdiction of Indian courts to preserve the sanctity of the rule of law in India and for matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto.

The Companies (Donations to National Fund) Act 1951

An Act to enable companies to make donations to national funds.

Insolvency And Bankruptcy Code 2016

An Act to consolidate and amend the laws relating to reorganisation and insolvency resolution of corporate persons,

partnership firms and individuals in a time bound manner for maximisation of value of assets of such persons, to
promote entrepreneurship, availability of credit and balance the interests of all the persons.

2.10 The Indian Contract Act 1872 (Contract Act)

The Contract Act codifies the way in which a contract may be entered into, executed, implementation of the
provisions of a contract and effects of breach of a contract. A person is free to contract on any terms he chooses.
The Contract Act consists of limiting factors subject to which contract may be entered into, executed and the breach
enforced. It provides a framework of rules and regulations that govern formation and performance of contract. The
contracting parties themselves decide the rights and duties of parties and terms of agreement.
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b)

d)

. LABOUR AND EMPLOYMENT LAWS

India has extensive labour related legislations. Certain other laws and regulations that may be applicable to the
Company in India include the following which is an indicative list of labour laws applicable to the business and
operations of Indian companies engaged in manufacturing activities:

*  Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act 1970;

*  Employees' Compensation Act 1923;

*  Employees (Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1952;

*  Employees' State Insurance Act 1948;

*  Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act 1946;

e Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act 1986

*  Maternity Benefit Act 1961;

*  Minimum Wages Act 1948;

*  Payment of Bonus Act 1965;

*  Payment of Gratuity Act 1972;

*  Apprentices Act 1961;

*  Weekly Holidays Act 1942

*  Payment of Wages Act 1936;

*  Equal Remuneration Act 1976;

*  Public Liability Insurance Act 1991;

*  Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal ) Act 2013;

e The Trade Unions Act 1926;

*  Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act 1979;

»  State specific shops & establishments laws;

»  State specific labour welfare fund laws;

»  State specific Industrial Establishments (National and Festival Holidays and Casual and Sick Leave)
laws; and

*  Employer's Liability Act 1938

In order to rationalize and reform labour laws in India, the Government of India has framed four labour
codes, namely:

The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code 2020 received the assent of the President of India
on 28 September 28 2020, and proposes to subsume certain existing legislations, including the Factories Act 1948,
the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act 1970, and the Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of
Employment and Conditions of Service) Act 1979. This code proposes to provide for, among other things,
standards for health, safety and working conditions for employees of establishments, and will come into effect on
a date to be notified by the Central Government.

The Industrial Relations Code 2020 received the assent of the President of India on 28 September 2020, and
proposes to subsume three existing legislations, namely, the Industrial Disputes Act 1947, the Trade Unions Act,
1926 and the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act 1946. The Industrial Relations Code 2020 will come
into effect on a date to be notified by the Central Government.

The Code on Wages 2019 received the assent of the President of India on 8 August 2019. Through its notification
dated 18 December 2020, the Government of India brought into force certain sections of the Code on Wages 2019.
The remaining provisions of this code will be brought into force on a date to be notified by the Government of
India. It proposes to subsume four separate legislations, namely, the Payment of Wages Act 1936, the Minimum
Wages Act 1948, the Payment of Bonus Act 1965 and the Equal Remuneration Act 1976.

The Code on Social Security 2020 received the assent of the President of India on 28 September 2020. Through

its notification dated 30 April 2021, the Government of India brought into force section 142 of the Code on Social
Security 2020. The remaining provisions of this code will be brought into force on a date to be notified by the
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3.1

3.2

3.3

Government of India. It proposes to subsume several separate legislations including the Employees' Compensation
Act 1923, the Employees' State Insurance Act 1948, the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act 1952, the Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959, the
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Some of the important labour legislations are explained below:
Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act 1970

An Act to regulate the employment of contract labour in certain establishments and to provide for its abolition in
certain circumstances and for matters connected therewith.

Employees' Compensation Act 1923 (EC Act)

The EC Act provides for payment of compensation to injured employees or workmen by certain classes of
employers for personal injuries caused due to an accident arising out of and during the employment. Under the
EC Act, the amount of compensation to be paid depends on the nature and severity of the injury. There are separate
methods of calculation or estimation of compensation for injury sustained by the employee. The employer is
required to submit to the Commissioner for Employees’ Compensation a report regarding any fatal or serious
bodily injury suffered by an employee within seven days of receiving a notice.

The Employees Provident Fund Act 1952 (EPF Act)

The EPF Act is a social welfare legislation to provide for the institution of provident fund, pension fund and
deposit linked insurance fund for employees working in factories and other establishments. The EPF Act aims at
providing social security and timely monetary assistance to industrial employees and their families when they are
in distress.

The EPF Act is administered by the Government of India through the Employees' Provident Fund Organisation
(EPFQ). The following three schemes have been framed under the EPF Act by the Central Government:

(a) The Employees Provident Fund Schemes 1952;
(b) The Employees' Pension Scheme 1995; and
(c) The Employees' Deposit-Linked Insurance Scheme 1976.
The Central Government has constituted Employees' Provident Funds Appellate Tribunal to exercise the powers
and discharge the functions under the EPF Act.
The EPF Act is applicable to:
e ecvery factory engaged in any industry specified in Schedule 1 in which 20 or more persons are
employed;
e every other establishment employing 20 or more persons or class of such establishments which the
Central Government may notify; and
e any other establishment so notified by the Central Government even if employing less than 20 persons.

3.4 Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act 1986

3.5

Under the child labour law in India, adolescents between the age of 14 and 18 are prohibited from working in
any hazardous or dangerous occupations and processes. They can only work in certain government declared
non-hazardous occupations or in a family business or as an artist.

Payment of Wages Act 1936 (PWA)
The PWA is applicable to the payment of wages to persons in factories and other establishments. PWA ensures

that wages that are payable to the employee are disbursed by the employer within the prescribed time limit and
no deductions other than those prescribed by the law are made by the employer.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Equal Remuneration Act 1976 (ER Act)

The ER Act provides for the payment of equal remuneration to men and women workers for same or similar
nature of work and prevention of discrimination, on the ground of sex, against women in the matter of
employment and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. Under the ER Act, no discrimination is
permissible in recruitment and service conditions, except where employment of women is prohibited or
restricted by law. It also provides that every employer should maintain such registers and other documents in
relation to the workers employed by him/ her in the prescribed manner.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013
(SHWPPR Act)

The SHWPPR Act aims to provide women protection against sexual harassment at the workplace, prevention
of sexual harassment at the workplace and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment. The Act defines
sexual harassment to include any unwell come sexually determined behavior (whether directly or by
implication). Workplace under the SHWPPR Act has been defined widely to include government bodies,
private and public sector organisations, non-governmental organisations, organizations carrying on
commercial, vocational, educational, entertainment, industrial, financial activities, hospitals and nursing
homes, educational institutes, sports institutions and stadiums used for training individuals. The SHWPPR Act
requires an employer to set up an internal complaints committee' at each office or branch, of an organization
employing at least 10 employees. The government in turn is required to set up a local complaint committed
the district level to investigate complaints regarding sexual harassment from establishments where the internal
complaints committee has not been constituted.

The Employees' State Insurance Act 1948 (ESI Act)

The ESI Act provides for certain benefits to employees in case of sickness, maternity and employment injury.
All employees in establishments covered by the ESI Act are required to be insured with an obligation imposed
on the employer to make certain contributions in relation thereto. In addition, the employer is also required to
register itself under the ESI Act and maintain prescribed records and registers.

The Payment of Bonus Act 1965 (Bonus Act)

The Payment of Bonus Act was enacted to provide for the payment of bonus to persons employed in
establishments where 20 or more persons are employed on any day during an accounting year. The Payment
of Bonus Act ensures that a minimum annual bonus is payable to every employee regardless of whether the
employer any allocable surplus in the accounting year in which the bonus is payable. Under the Payment of
Bonus Act, every employer is bound to pay to every employee, in respect of the accounting year, a minimum
bonus which is 8.33% of the salary or wage earned by the employee during the accounting year or INR 100,
whichever is higher. Contravention of the provisions of the Payment of Bonus Act by a company is punishable
with imprisonment for a term of up to six months or a fine of up to INR 1,000 or both, against persons in
charge of, and responsible to the company for the conduct of the business of the company at the time of
contravention, as well as the company.

The Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 (Payment of Gratuity Act)

The Payment of Gratuity Act provides for payment of gratuity to an employee at the time of termination of
services. Payment of Gratuity Act establishes a scheme for the payment of gratuity to employees engaged in
establishments in which ten or more persons are employed or were employed on any day of the preceding 12
months; and as the Central Government may, by notification, specify. Gratuity under the Payment of Gratuity
Act is payable to an employee after he has rendered his services for a period not less than five years: (a) on his
/ her superannuation; (b) on his / her retirement or resignation; or (c) on his / her death or disablement due to
accident or disease (in this case the minimum requirement of five years does not apply). Under the Payment
of Gratuity Act, the maximum gratuity payable may not exceed INR 20,00,000.
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3.11

3.12

4.1

4.2

4.3

Bonded Labour System (Abolition) Act 1976 (BLA)

BLA provides for the abolition of bonded labour system with a view to preventing the economic and physical
exploitation of the weaker sections of the people and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

The Maternity Benefit Act 1961 (Maternity Benefit Act)

The Maternity Benefit Act regulates the employment of pregnant women and ensures that they get paid leave
for a specified period during and after their pregnancy. The Maternity Benefit Act is applicable to
establishments in which 10 or more employees are employed or were employed on any day of the preceding
12 months. Under the Maternity Benefit Act, a mandatory period of leave and benefits should be granted to
female employees who have worked in the establishment for a minimum period of 80 days in the preceding
12 months from the date of her expected delivery. Such benefits essentially include payment of average daily
wage for the period of actual absence of the female employee. The maximum period for which any woman
shall be entitled to maternity benefit shall be 26 weeks, of which not more than 8 weeks shall precede the date
of her expected delivery.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LAWS
Trademarks Act 1999 (TM Act)

A trademark is used in relation to goods so as to indicate a connection in these of trade between the goods and
aperson having the right as proprietor or user to use the mark. The TM Act governs the registration, acquisition,
transfer and infringement of trademarks and remedies available to a registered proprietor or user of a
trademark. Registration is valid for a period of 10 years but can be renewed in accordance with the specified
procedure. As per the Trademarks (Amendment) Bill 2009, Registrar of Trade Marks is empowered to deal
with international applications originating from India as well as those received from the International Bureau
and maintain a record of international registrations. It also removes the discretion of the Registrar to extend
the time.

Copyrights Act 1957 (Copyright Act)

The Copyrights Act governs copyright protection in India. Under the Copyright Act, copyright may subsist in
original literary, dramatic, musical or artistic works, cinematograph films, and sound recordings. Following
the issuance of the International Copyright Order 1999, subject to certain exceptions, the provisions of the
Copyright Act apply to nationals of all member states of the World Trade Organization.

While copyright registration is not a prerequisite for acquiring or enforcing a copyright, registration creates a
presumption favoring ownership of the copyright by the registered owner. Copyright registration may expedite
infringement proceedings and reduce delay caused due to evidentiary considerations. Once registered, the
copyright protection of a work lasts for the entire lifetime of the author and 60 years thereafter.

The remedies available in the event of infringement of a copyright under the Copyright Act include civil
proceedings for damages, account of profits, injunction and the delivery of the infringing copies to the
copyright owner. The Copyright Act also provides for criminal remedies, including imprisonment of the
accused, imposition of fines and seizure of infringing copies

Patents Act 1970 (Patent Act)

The purpose of the Patent Act in India is to protect inventions. Patents provide the exclusive rights for the owner
of a patent to make, use, exercise, distribute and sell a patented invention. The patent registration confers on the
patentee the exclusive right to use, manufacture and sell his invention for the term of the patent. An application
for a patent can be made by (a) person claiming to be the true and first inventor of the invention; (b) person
being the assignee of the person claiming to be the true and first invention in respect of the right to make such
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an application; and (c) legal representative of any deceased person who immediately before his death was
entitled to make such an application. Penalty for the contravention of the provisions of the Patents Act include
imposition of fines or imprisonment or both.

4.4 Design Act 2000

It is an act to consolidate and amend the law relating to the protection of designs. The important purpose of
design registration is to see that the creator, originator or artisan of any design is not deprived of his reward for
creating that design by others copying it to their goods or products.

5. PROPERTY RELATED LAWS
5.1 Transfer Of Property Act 1882 (TPA)

The transfer of property, including immovable property, between living persons, as opposed to the transfer of
property by operation of law, is governed by the TPA. The TPA establishes the general principles relating to the
transfer of property, including among other things, identifying the categories of property that are capable of
being transferred, the persons competent to transfer property, the validity of restrictions and conditions imposed
on the transfer and the creation of contingent and vested interest in the property. The TPA recognizes, among
others, the following forms in which an interest in an immovable property may be transferred:

e Sale: the transfer of ownership in property for a price paid or promised to be paid.

e Mortgage: the transfer of an interest in property for the purpose of securing the payment of a loan, existing or
future debt, or performance of an engagement which gives rise to a pecuniary liability. The TPA recognizes
several forms of mortgages over a property.

e Charges: transactions including the creation of security over property for payment of money to another which
are not classifiable as a mortgage. Charges can be created either by operation of law, e.g. decree of the attaching
to specified immovable property, or by an act of the parties.

o Leases: the transfer of a right to enjoy property for consideration paid or rendered periodically or on specified
occasions

5.2 The Registration Act 1908 (Registration Act)

The Registration Act has been enacted with the objective of providing public notice of the execution of documents
affecting, inter alia, the transfer of interest in immovable property. The purpose of the Registration Act is the
conservation of evidence, assurances, title and publication of documents and prevention of fraud. It details the
formalities for registering an instrument. Section 17 of the Registration Act identifies documents for which
registration is compulsory and includes, among other things, any non-testamentary instrument which purports or
operates to create, declare, assign, limit or extinguish, whether in present or in future, any right, title or interest,
whether vested or contingent, in any immovable property of the value of one hundred rupees or more, and a lease
of immovable property for any term exceeding one year or reserving a yearly rent. A document will not affect the
property comprised in it, nor be treated as evidence of any transaction affecting such property (except as evidence
of a contract in a suit for specific performance or as evidence of part performance under the TPA or as collateral),
unless it has been registered. Evidence of registration is normally available through an inspection of the relevant
land records, which usually contains details of the registered property. Further, registration of a document does not
guarantee title of land.

5.3 Indian Easements Act 1882 (Easement Act)

An easement is a right which the owner or occupier of land possesses for the beneficial enjoyment of that land, and
which permits him to do or to prevent something from being done, in or upon, other land not his own. Under the
Easements Act, a license is defined as a right to use property without any interest in favour of the licensee. The
period and incident may be revoked and grounds for the same may be provided in the license agreement entered in
between the licensee and the licensor.
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5.4 The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act 2016

This Act was notified by the Parliament on 26 March 2016 and extends to the whole of India. It establishes the Real
Estate Regulatory Authority for regulations and promotions of the real estate sector and to ensure sale of plot,
apartment or building, as the case may be, or sale of real estate project, in an efficient and transparent manner and
to protect the interest of consumers in the real estate sector and to establish an adjudicating mechanism for speedy
dispute redressal and also to establish the Appellate Tribunal to hear appeals from the decisions, directions or orders
of the Real Estate Regulatory Authority and the adjudicating officer and for matters connected therewith or
incidental thereto.

The salient features of the Act are as following:

Under the Act, instead of a regular forum of consumers, the purchasers of real estate units from a developer would
have a specialized forum called the "Real Estate Regulatory Authority" which will be set up within one year from
the date of coming into force of the Act. In the interim, the appropriate Government (i.e., the Central or State
Government) shall designate any other regulatory authority or any officer preferably the Secretary of the department
dealing with Housing, as the Regulatory Authority.

The promoter has to register their project (residential as well as commercial) with the Regulatory Authority before
booking, selling or offering apartments for sale in such projects. In case a project is to be promoted in phases, then
each phase shall be considered as a standalone project, and the promoter shall obtain registration for each phase.

Under the Act, developers can sell units only on carpet area, which means the net usable floor area of an apartment.
This excludes the area covered by the external walls, areas under services shafts, exclusive balcony or verandah
area and exclusive open terrace area, but includes the area covered by the internal partition walls of the apartment.

The Act mandates that a promoter shall deposit 70% of the amount realised from the allottees, from time to time,
in a separate account to be maintained in a scheduled bank. This is intended to cover the cost of construction and
the land cost, and the amount deposited shall be used only for the concerned project.

Stringent penal provisions have been prescribed under the Act against the promoter in case of any contravention or
non-compliance of the provisions of the Act or the orders, decisions or directions of the Regulatory Authority or
the Appellate Tribunal which are the following: (a) If promoter does not register its project with the Regulatory
Authority - the penalty may be up to 10% of the estimated cost of the project as determined by the Regulatory
Authority; (b) If promoter does not comply with the aforesaid order of the Regulatory Authority - imprisonment of
up to three years and a further penalty of up to 10% of the estimated cost, or both; and (c¢) In case the promoter
provides any false information while making an application to the Regulatory Authority or contravenes any other
provision of the Act - the penalty may be up to 5% of the estimated cost of the project or construction.

5.5 The Right to Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Resettlement
Act 2013 (Land Acquisition Act)

Land Acquisition Act is an Act of Indian Parliament that regulates land acquisition and lays down the procedure
and rules for granting compensation, rehabilitation and resettlement to the affected persons in India. The Land
Acquisition Act has provisions to provide fair compensation to those whose land is taken away, brings transparency
to the process of acquisition of land to set up factories or buildings, infrastructural projects and assures rehabilitation
of those affected. The Land Acquisition Act establishes regulations for land acquisition as a part of India's massive
industrialisation drive driven by public-private partnership. The Land Acquisition Act replaced the Land
Acquisition Act 1894, a nearly 120-year-old law enacted during British regime.

6. ENVIRONMENT LAWS
6.1 The Environment Protection Act 1986 (Environment Protection Act)

The purpose of the Environment Protection Act is to act as an "umbrella" legislation designed to provide a
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framework for Central government co-ordination of the activities of various central and state authorities established
under previous laws. The Environment Protection Act authorizes the central government to protect and improve
environmental quality, control and reduce pollution from all sources, and prohibit or restrict the setting and /or
operation of any industrial facility on environmental grounds. The Act prohibits persons carrying on business,
operation or process from discharging or emitting any environmental pollutant in excess of such standards as may
be prescribed. Where the discharge of any environmental pollutant in excess of the prescribed standards occurs or
is apprehended to occur due to any accident or other unforeseen act, the person responsible for such discharge and
the person in charge of the place at which such discharge occurs or is apprehended to occur is bound to prevent or
mitigate the environmental pollution caused as a result of such discharge and should intimate the fact of such
occurrence or apprehension of such occurrence; and (b) be bound, if called upon, to render all assistance, to such
authorities or agencies as may be prescribed.

6.2 Air (Prevention of Pollution Control Act) 1981 (Air Act)

Air Act was enacted with an objective to protect the environment from smoke and other toxic effluents released in
the atmosphere by industries. With a view to curb air pollution, the Air Act has declared several areas as air pollution
control area and also prohibits the use of certain types of fuels and appliances. Prior written consent is required of
the board constituted under the Air Act, if a person intends to commence an industrial plant in a pollution control
area.

6.3 The Water (Prevention and Control Of Pollution) Act 1974 (Water Act)

The Water Act was enacted with an objective to protect the rivers and streams from being polluted by domestic and
industrial effluents. The Water Act prohibits the discharge of toxic and poisonous matter in the river and streams
without treating the pollutants as per the standard laid down by the Pollution control boards constituted under the
Water Act. A person intending to commence any new industry, operation or process likely to discharge pollutants
must obtain prior consent of the board constituted under the Water Act.

6.4 National Environmental Policy 2006 (Policy)

The Policy seeks to extend the coverage, and fill in gaps that still exist, in light of present knowledge and
accumulated experience. This Policy was prepared through an intensive process of consultation within the
Government and inputs from experts. It does not displace, but builds on the earlier policies. It is a statement of
India's commitment to making a positive contribution to international efforts. This is a response to the national
commitment to a clean environment, mandated in the Constitution in Articles 48 A and 51 A (g), strengthened by
judicial interpretation of Article 21. The dominant theme of this policy is that while conservation of environmental
resource is necessary to secure livelihoods and well-being of all, the most secure basis for conservation is to ensure
that people dependent on particular resource obtain better livelihoods from the fact of conservation, than from
degradation of the resource. Following are the objectives of Policy:

Conservation of Critical Environmental Resources

Intra-generational Equity: Livelihood Security for the Poor

Inter-generational Equity

Integration of Environmental Concerns in Economic and Social Development
Efficiency in Environmental Resource Use

Environmental Governance

Enhancement of resource for Environmental Conservation

6.5 The Noise Pollution (Regulation & Control) Rules 2000 (Noise Regulation Rules)

The Noise Regulation Rules regulate noise levels in industrial, commercial and residential zones. The Noise
Regulation Rules also establish zones of silence of not less than 100 meters near schools, courts, hospitals, etc. The
rules also assign regulatory authority for these standards to the local district courts. Penalty for non-compliance
with the Noise Regulation Rules shall be under the provisions of the Environment (Protection) Act 1986.
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6.6 The National Green Tribunal Act, 2010

7.

An Act to provide for the establishment of a National Green Tribunal for the effective and expeditious disposal of
cases relating to environmental protection and conservation of forests and other natural resources including
enforcement of any legal right relating to environment and giving relief and compensation for damages to persons
and property and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

TAXATION LAWS

7.1 Income Tax Act 1961 (Income Tax Act)

The Government of India imposes an income tax on taxable income of all persons including individuals, Hindu
Undivided Families (HUFs), companies, firms, association of persons, body of individuals, local authority and any
other artificial judicial person. Levy of tax is separate on each of the persons. The levy is governed by the Income
Tax Act. The Indian Income Tax Department is governed by CBDT and is part of the Department of Revenue under
the Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India. Income tax is a key source of funds that the government uses to fund its
activities and serve the public. The quantum of tax determined as per the statutory provisions is payable as: (a)
Advance Tax; (b) Self-Assessment Tax; (c) Tax Deducted at Source (TDS); (d) Tax Collected at Source (TCS);
and (e) Tax on Regular Assessment.

7.2 Goods And Services Tax Act 2017

8.

The Constitution (One Hundred and First Amendment) Act 2016 which received presidential assent on 8 September
2016 paved the way for introduction of goods and services tax (GST) by making provisions with respect to goods
and services tax. GST is a single tax on the supply of goods and services, right from the manufacturer to the
consumer. Credits of input taxes paid at each stage will be available in the subsequent stage of value addition, which
makes GST essentially a tax only on value addition at each stage. The final consumer will thus bear only the GST
charged by the last dealer in the supply chain, with set-off benefits at all the previous stages.

MISCELLANEOUS LEGISLATIONS

8.1 Consumer Protection Act 2019 (COPRA)

The COPRA aims at providing better protection to the interests of consumers and for that purpose makes provisions
for the establishment of authorities for the settlement of consumer disputes. The COPRA provides a mechanism for
the consumer to file a complaint against a trader or service provider in cases of unfair trade practices, restrictive
trade practices, defects in goods, deficiency in services, price charged being unlawful and goods being hazardous
to life and safety when used. The COPRA provides for a three-tier consumer grievance redressal mechanism at the
national, state and district levels. Non- compliance of the orders of these authorities attracts criminal penalties.

8.2 Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 (FEMA)

The Foreign investment in India is governed primarily by the provisions of the FEMA which relates to regulation
primarily by the RBI and the rules, regulations and notifications there under, and the policy prescribed by the
Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India. As laid
down by the FEMA Regulations no prior consents and approvals are required from the Reserve Bank of India, for
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) under the automatic route within the specified sectoral caps. In respect of all
industries not specified as FDI under the automatic route, and in respect of investment in excess of the specified
sectoral limits under the automatic route, approval may be required from the FIPB and/or the RBI. The Government
of India, in exercise of its power under the FEMA, has notified the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt
Instruments) Rules 2019 (NDI Rules) to regulate the foreign investment (i.e., the investment made by persons
resident outside India) and provide for the terms and conditions applicable to such foreign investment, including
the procedure of investment, general conditions around the investment, the method to be adopted for valuation of
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the investment instruments, time frame for completion of the investment procedure, reporting requirement etc. The
NDI Rules imposes a general condition on the persons resident outside India to comply with the provisions of the
NDI Rules in case it intends to make an investment into Indian entities. Similarly, the entities in India are not
allowed to receive investment from a person resident outside India unless such investment complies with the
provisions of the NDI Rules.

8.3 Insurance Act 1938

It is an enactment by the legislation to regulate the insurance sector. It provides the broad legal framework within
which the industry operates.

8.4 The Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996
An Act to consolidate and amend the law relating to domestic arbitration. international commercial arbitration and

enforcement of foreign arbitral awards as also to define the law relating to conciliation and for matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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OUR HISTORY AND CERTAIN OTHER CORPORATE MATTERS

Our Company was originally formed as a Partnership Firm under the Partnership Act, 1932 (“Partnership Act”) in
the name and style of “Kashi Enterprises” pursuant to Deed of Partnership dated August 20, 2005. Further, “Kashi
Enterprises” was thereafter converted from Partnership Firm to a Private Limited Company under Part I chapter
XXI of the Companies Act, 2013 with the name and style of “KVS Castings Private Limited” and received a
Certificate of Incorporation bearing CIN U27100UR2019PTC012217 from the Registrar of Companies, Delhi dated
June 10, 2019.

Subsequently, pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting
held on July 02, 2024, our Company was converted from a Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company
and consequently, the name of our Company was changed to “KVS Castings Limited” and a Fresh Certificate of
Incorporation pursuant to Conversion was issued on September 09, 2024, by the Registrar of Companies, Central
Processing Center.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the Corporate Identity Number of our Company is
U27100UR2019PLCO12217.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

As the Foundry Division of the KVS Premier Group, Our Company specializes in quality ferrous castings. Our
Company is involved in the manufacturing and production of Cast Iron and Ductile Iron castings. We deliver
comprehensive casting solutions tailored to meet our customers' needs. From cast iron to stainless steel, we offer a
total casting solution under one roof, with a portfolio of more than 150 products, including Suspension Brackets,
Brake Drums, Gear Box Housing, Pump Body, Oil Filters and more.

We ensure maintaining the required quality standards, we are accredited with certifications in IATF 16949:2016,
ISO 9001:2015 and Certified by the RDSO (Research and development organization under the Ministry of Railways
in India).

We are the castings supplier for various industries, including:

Automobile including passenger and commercial vehicles
Railway

Heavy Machinery and Equipment

Energy and Power Generation

Infrastructure and Construction

Agricultural Machinery includes Tractor

YVVVYYVYYVY

BACKGROUND OF PROMOTERS

We have four Individual Promoters, Mr. Arpan Jindal, Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, Ms. Rekha Agarwal, Ms.
Venu Jindal and one Corporate Promoter M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private
Limited. For details, please see “Our Promoters” on page 188 of this Red Herring Prospectus respectively.

CHANGES IN OUR REGISTERED OFFICE

The Registered Office of the Company is presently situated at B-25, 29, Industrial Estate Bazpur Road, Udham
Singh Nagar, Kashipur, Uttarakhand, India, 244713.
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The details of the change of Registered Office of the Company are as follows:

Shifted from Shifted to Reason for change

19/02/2021 | D-6, Vivek Vihar, | B-25, 29, Industrial Estate | To have better administrative
Shahdara, Delhi, East | Bazpur Road, Udham Singh | control
Delhi, India, 110092 Nagar, Kashipur, Uttarakhand,
India, 244713

MAIN OBJECTS OF OUR COMPANY

The object clauses of the Memorandum of Association of our Company enable us to undertake our present activities.
The main objects of our Company are:

1. To become vested with and continue the partnership business now being carried on under the name and style
of “M/s KASHI ENTERPRISES” including all its assets, rights, benefits, titles, interest, approvals, licenses,
debts, liabilities and obligations. The Partnership Firm-M/s KASHI ENTERPRISES and the rights and
liabilities of the parties hereto in the said partnership business and in connection therewith shall cease to exist
on incorporation of this Company under the provisions of Part XXI of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. To carry on the business of manufacturing of CI Castings, SG Iron Castings, SS Castings, MS Castings, High
Carbon Steel Castings, Aluminum Castings, High Manganese Castings, Gun Metal Castings, Brass Castings
and Raw as well as Machined Castings of all such metals and all other products incidental thereto and
connected therewith.

3. To carry on the business of machining via Horizontal Lathe Machine, Vertical Lathe Machine, Shaper, Planaur
Machine, Computer Navigated Vertical Machining Centre, Horizontal Machining Centre and Hobbing
Machining of CI Castings, SG Iron Castings, SS Castings, MS Castings, High Carbon Steel Castings,
Aluminum Castings, High Manganese Castings, Gun Metal Castings and Brass Castings and all other products
incidental thereto and connected therewith.

4. To search prospect, win, work, get, raise, quarry, smelt, refine, dress, manipulate, convert, make merchantable,
sell, buy, supply, distribute, stock, procure, carry, import, export or otherwise trade and deal in all kinds of
Scrap, Ferro Alloys, Silica Sand, Resin Coated Sand, Quartz Sand and Chromite Sand, CI Castings, SG Iron
Castings, SS Castings, MS Castings, High Carbon Steel Castings, Aluminum Castings, High Manganese
Castings, Gun Metal Castings, Brass Castings and Raw as well as Machined Castings of all such metals and
all other products incidental thereto and connected therewith.

5. To manufacture, trade, import, export or otherwise deal in steel and alloy steel ingots, steel and alloy steel
billets and all kinds & sizes of re rolled sections i.e. flats, angels, rounds, squares, hexagon, octagons, rails

joints, channel, steel strips, sheets, plates, deformed bars, plain and cold twisted bars, bright bars, shafting and
steel structural and all types of steel items.

AMENDMENTS TO THE MOA OF OUR COMPANY SINCE INCORPORATION:

Since incorporation, there has been following amendment made to the MoA of our Company:

Date of
Ase0 Particulars of Amendment
Amendment
‘ July 15,2019 ‘ Alteration in Memorandum of Association due to change in Object Clause ‘
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June 15,2020 Alteration in authorised share capital of the company pursuant to Amalgamation and the
authorised share capital was increased from Rs. 15,00,000 to Rs. 16,15,00,000 /-.

February 19, Alteration in Registered Office of the company from the NCT of Delhi to State of

2021 Uttarakhand.

June 13, 2024 Alteration in authorised share capital of the company and the authorised share capital was
increased from Rs.16,15,00,000 to Rs. 22,50,00,000 /-.

September 09, Alteration in Clause -1, Name Clause of the company and subsequently the company was

2024 converted from KVS Castings Private Limited to KVS Castings Limited.

KEY EVENTS AND MILESTONES:

The following table sets forth the key events and milestones in the history of our Company, since incorporation:

Company has started with Hand Molding Facilities

2007 Main Customer were Sugar Industries & Cement Industries
2008 Started manufacturing manganese steel casting manufacturing
Installed heat treatment furnace with water quenching facility
2009 Started supply for Sponge Iron Plants
Company have certified for ISO 9001:2008
2010 Successfully installed Sand Plant and Machine Molding
Business awarded from M/S Advik Hitech Pvt. Ltd
2012 In-house machining setup established

Company have certified in RDSO Class 'A' Foundry
2014 Company have certified for ISO 16949:2009

Pursuant to the NCLT order dated June 15, 2020, M/s Kamlapati Infrastructure Limited, M/s

2020* Sidhivinayak Horticulture Limited, M/s Sharma Investments Limited and M/s Tomar Investments
Limited has been merged into our Company

2021 Business awarded from M/S Escorts Railway Equipment Division

2023 Business awarded from M/S JBM EV projects

Successfully supplying Assembly parts to JBM (For EV)

HMC (Horizontal milling machine) installed for the Steering housing machining (For Commercial
Vehicles)

*For further details regarding the Amalgamation, see “Capital Structure” on page 62 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

2024

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS RECEIVED BY OUR COMPANY

Our Company has various awards and accreditations. For details please see “Our Business” on page 122 of this Red
Herring Prospectus respectively.

DETAILS OF BUSINESS OF OUR COMPANY

For details on the description of Our Company’s activity, business model, marketing strategy, strength, completion
of business, please see “Our Business”, “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions” and “Basis
for Issue Price” on page 122, 214 and 90 of this Red Herring Prospectus respectively.

HOLDING COMPANY OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company does not have any holding company as on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus.
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SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company has no subsidiary and associate companies as on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus.
However, our Corporate Promoter M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited
holds 35,75,610 equity shares constituting 25.94% of shareholding of our Company. Hence our company becomes
associate company of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited.

OTHER DECLARATIONS AND DISCLOSURES

Our Company is not a listed entity and its securities have not been refused listing at any time by any recognized
stock exchange in India or abroad. Further, Our Company has not made any Public Issue or Rights Issue (as defined
in the SEBI ICDR Regulations) in the past. No action has been taken against Our Company by any Stock Exchange
or by SEBI. Our Company is not a sick company within the meaning of the term as defined in the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985. Our Company is not under winding up nor has it received a notice for
striking off its name from the relevant Registrar of Companies.

FUND RAISING THROUGH EQUITY OR DEBT

For details in relation to our fund-raising activities through equity and debt, please refer to the chapters titled,
“Capital Structure” beginning on page number 62 respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus.

REVALUATION OF ASSETS
Our Company has not re-valued its assets since its incorporation.

CHANGES IN THE ACTIVITIES OF OUR COMPANY HAVING A MATERIAL EFFECT

Other than as stated in this Red Herring Prospectus, there has been no change in the activities being carried out by
our Company since incorporation till the date of this Red Herring Prospectus which may have a material effect on
the profits / loss of our Company, including discontinuance of lines of business, loss of agencies or markets and
similar factors.

INJUNCTIONS OR RESTRAINING ORDERS
Our Company is not operating under any injunction or restraining order.

DEFAULTS OR RESCHEDULING OF BORROWINGS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS /
BANKS

There have been no Defaults or Rescheduling of borrowings with financial institutions/banks.

STRIKES AND LOCK-OUTS

Our Company has, since incorporation, not been involved in any labour disputes or disturbances including
strikes and lock- outs. As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our employees are not unionized.

TIME AND COST OVERRUNS IN SETTING UP PROJECTS

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, there have been no time and cost overruns in any of the projects
undertaken by our Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ AGREEMENT

Our Company does not have any subsisting shareholders’ agreement as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.
OTHER AGREEMENTS

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus our Company has not entered into any agreements other than those
entered into in the ordinary course of business and there are no material agreements entered into more than two
years before the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

STRATEGIC PARTNERS

Our Company does not have any strategic partner(s) as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.
FINANCIAL PARTNERS

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any financial partners.
ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS / UNDERTAKINGS

Except as disclosed below, there is no Merger, Amalgamation, Acquisition of Business or Undertaking etc. with
respect to our Company and we have not acquired a business undertaking since inception.

Pursuant to the NCLT order dated June 15, 2020, M/s Kamlapati Infrastructure Limited (Transferor-1), M/s
Sidhivinayak Horticulture Limited (Transferor-2), M/s Sharma Investments Limited (Transferor-3) and M/s Tomar
Investments Limited (Transferor-4) has been merged into our Company (Transferee) and Authorised Share capital
has been increased from Rs.15,00,000 to Rs.16,15,00,000. Further Our Company issued 56,254 Equity shares of
face value of Rs. 10.00/- each on December 31, 2020, pursuant to order of Amalgamation passed by NCLT. For
further details please refer to the Chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 62 of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

DIVESTMENT OF BUSINESS / UNDERTAKING BY COMPANY IN THE LAST TEN YEARS

There has been no divestment by the Company of any business or undertaking since inception.

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDER OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company has 19 (Nineteen) shareholders as on dated August 22, 2025. For further details on the Shareholding
Pattern of our Company, please refer to the Chapter titled “Capital Structure® beginning on page 62 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

DETAILS OF PAST PERFORMANCE

For details of Change of management, please see chapter titled “Our Business” and “Our History and certain
corporate matters” on page 122 and 163 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus.
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DETAILS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For details in relation to our financial performance in the previous three financial years, including details of non-
recurring items of income, refer to section titled “Restated Financial Statements™ beginning on page 212 of this
Red Herring Prospectus.

COLLABORATION AGREEMENT

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has not entered into any collaboration agreements. For
details, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Business” on page number 122 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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OUR MANAGEMENT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, we are required to have not less than 3 (Three) Directors
and not more than 15 (Fifteen) Directors on its Board, subject to provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act,
2013. As on date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Board consist of Six (6) Directors, out of which One (1)
are Executive Director and Five (5) is Non-Executive Director out of which Two (2) Directors are Independent

Directors. Mr. Arpan Jindal is Managing Director of the Company.

S.N. | Name DIN/PAN

Designation

Category

1. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 00223527 Executive Managing Director

2. | Mr. Devendra Kumar 00753173 Non-Executive Director
Agarwal

3. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 02212986 Non- Executive Director

4, Ms. Venu Jindal 10648138 Non- Executive Director

5. | Mr. Puneet Mohindra 07169233 Non- Executive Director

6. | Mr. Jaswinder Singh 03311764 Non- Executive Independent Director
Ahluwalia

7. | Mr. Madhup Misra 10706343 Non- Executive Independent Director

8. | Mr. Sudhir Agarwal 08602216 Non- Executive Independent Director

As the Company is coming with an issue in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the
requirement specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V is not applicable to the Company, although
the company require to comply with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable. The
Company has complied with the corporate governance requirement, particularly in relation to appointment of
independent directors including woman director on the Board, constitution of an Audit Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

We hereby confirm that the company has complied the provisions of Companies Act 2013, and relevant rule
made thereunder.

The following table sets forth certain details regarding the members of our Company’s Board as on the date of
this Red Herring Prospectus:

Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Age No. of Equity Other Directorship/partner
Qualification, Shares held &
Designatio % of pre issue
n, Occupation, Address, Nationality shareholding
and Term
1. Mr. Arpan Jindal Indian Private
41 Eaui Companies:
Designation: Managing Director Years quity Ehares 1.M/s Devarpan Foods Private
(049%of 1 1 iited.
Address:530 Nand Niwas Ramnagar the Pre—1s§ue 2. M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited
Road Kashipur, Udham Singh Nagar shareholdings) | 3 \y/5 Kumaun Garhwal
Uttarakhand-244713 Infrastructural Industrial
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Date of Birth: 26/04/1984
Qualification: Master of Business
Administration

Occupation: Business

Experience: More than 16 Years in
Management and Casting Industries

Nationality: Indian

Term: 5 years from 10/08/2024

Corporation Private Limited.
4. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels

Private Limited.
5. M/s Annapurna Steels Private

Limited.

Indian Public Companies: Nil
Section 8 companies: Nil
Indian LLPs:

1. M/s KVS Infraatech LLP
2.

Kashipur, Udham Singh Nagar,
Uttarakhand- 244713

Date of Birth: 17/06/1957

Qualification: B. Tech (Chemical
Engineering)

Occupation: Business

Experience: 33 Years in Castings
Industries including Auto components
castings and other castings
Nationality: Indian

Date of Appointment: 10/06/2019

DIN: 00753173

Other Entities: Nil
Date of First Appointment:
10/06/2019
Date of Appointment as Managing
Director: 10/08/2024
DIN: 00223527

2. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal

Indian Private

Designation: Non-Executive Director| 68 Equity Shares Companies:
Years (9.48% of 1. M/s Kumaun  Garhwal

Address:.530, Nand Niwas, the Pre-issue Infrastructural Industrial
Ramnagar Road, Katoratal Poorvi, shareholdings)

Corporation Private Limited.

2. M/s
Limited.

KVS ISPAT Private

3. M/s Annapurna Steels Private
Limited.

4. M/s Devarpan Foods Private
Limited.

5. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels
Private Limited.

Indian Public Companies: Nil
Section 8 companies: Nil

Indian LLPs:
1. M/s KVS Infraatech LLP

Other Entities: Nil
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Designation: Non-Executive Director
Date of Birth: 07/06/1986

Experience: More than 7 years’
experience in Digital Marketing

Qualification: Diploma in
Animation

Occupation: Professional
Nationality: Indian

Date of Appointment: 17/06/2024

DIN:10648138

3. Ms. Rekha Agarwal 63 Equity Shares Indian Private
Years (9.48% of Companies- Nil
Address: 530, Nand Niwas Ramnagar the Pre-issue
Road Katoratal Poorvi Kashipur shareholdings) | [pdian Public Companies-
Udham Singh Nagar Uttarakhand- Nil
244713
Section 8 Companies- Nil
Designation: Non-Executive Director
Indian LLPs — Nil
Date of Birth: 10/12/1961
Other Entities: Nil
Experience: More than 6 years in
Managing Company’s CSR Activities
Qualification: Master of Arts
in English Literature
Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian
Date of Appointment: 17/06/2024
DIN: 02212986
4. Ms. Venu Jindal 39 Equity Shares | Indian Private
Years (9.17% of Companies- Nil
Address: 530 Ram Nagar Katoratal Pre-issue
Poorvi Kashipur Udham Singh shareholding | Indian Public Companies-
Nagar Uttarakhand- 244713 s) Nil

Section 8 Companies- Nil

Indian LLPs — Nil

Other Entities: Nil
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Designation: Independent Director
Address: AD-20 Mansarovar
Apartments, Plot No.3, Sector 5,
Dwarka, South West Delhi, Delhi,
110075

Date of Birth: 21/09/1958
Qualification: MBA

Experience: 17 years of experience in

logistics and supply chain

management

Occupation: Professional
Nationality: Indian

Date of Appointment: 17/02/2025

DIN: 03311764

5. Mr. Puneet Mohindra 62
Years NIL Indian Private =~ Companies-
Designation: Non-Executive Director 1. Devarpan Foods Private Limited
Address: Basant Vihar’ QGiri Taal’ 2. Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private
Kashipur, Udham Nagar, Uttrakhand- Limited
244713 3. Annapurna Steels Private Limited
Date of Birth: 07/06/1963 Indian Public Companies- Nil
Qualification: Chartered Accountant Section 8 companies- Nil
) Indian LLPs — Nil
Experience: More than 20 Years in
automobile Industry
Other Entities: Nil
Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian
Date of Appointment: July 24, 2025
DIN: 07169233
6. Mr. Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia . . .
66 NIL Indian Private = Companies-

1. Aggarwal Packers and Logistic
Private Limited

2. APM Infrastructure Private
Limited

3. Tarun Vanijya Pvt Ltd
Indian Public Companies- Nil
Section 8 companies- Nil
Indian LLPs — Nil

Other Entities: Nil
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Designation: Additional Independent
Director

Address: Sai  Vihar, Phase 1-2
Taimurpur Deepa, Near Mittal Petrol
Pump, Bairaj Road, Bijnor, Uttar
Pradesh-246701

Date of Birth: 20/01/1962

Qualification: B. Tech in Chemical
Engineering

Experience: More than 38 years of
experience in Chemical industry

Occupation: Service
Nationality: Indian

Date of Appointment: 18/08/2025

7. Mr. Madhup Misra Indian Private
62 NIL Companies- Nil
Designation: Independent Direct Years
estgnation: Hdependettt Lttecior Indian Public Companies — Nil
Address: B-2, Ward 24, IGL Colony, Section 8 companies- Nil
Bazpur Road, Kashipur, Udham . .
Indian LLPs — Nil
Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand- 244713 fidian o
Other Entities: Nil
Date of Birth: 13/02/1963
Qualification: Fellow  Chartered
Accountant
Experience: 21 Years in Accounts,
Indirect Taxation, GST, Inventory
Control and Strategic Planning
Occupation: Chartered Accountant
Nationality: Indian
Date of Appointment: 10/08/2024
DIN: 10706343
8. Mr. Sudhir Agarwal 63 NIL Indian Private
years Companies- Nil

Indian Public Companies — Nil
Section 8 companies- Nil

Indian LLPs — Nil

Other Entities:
1. A S TechnoServe

2. Sudhir Agarwal & Associates
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DIN: 08602216

BRIEF PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Mr. Arpan Jindal, aged 41 years, is the Promoter and Managing Director of our company. He has been appointed
as Director of our company since incorporation and Managing Director from August 10, 2024. He has completed
his Master of Business Administration from Amity University. He served as a partner at Kashi Enterprises, a
partnership firm created in 2005.With more than 16 years of experience in management and Castings Industry,
He played a pivotal role in the modernization and expansion of the company and is entrusted with the
responsibility of looking after the overall management and operation of the company.

Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, aged 68 years, is the Promoter and Non-Executive Director of the company.
He has been appointed as Non-Executive Director on July 10, 2019. He has completed his Chemical Engineering
from Kanpur University. He has vast experience of 33 Years in Castings Industries including Auto components
castings and other castings. He has led the KVS Premier Group to remarkable growth and progress.

Ms. Rekha Agarwal, aged 63 years, is the Promoter and Non-Executive Director of the company. She has been
appointed as Director on June 17, 2024. She has completed Master of Arts in English Literature from Rohilkhand
University. (Bareilly) She had an experience of more than 6 years in managing company’s CSR activities and is
the Chairperson of KVS Premier Foundation.

Ms. Venu Jindal, aged 39 years, is the Promoter and Non-Executive Director of the company. She has been
appointed as Director on June 17, 2024. She has more than 7 years’ experience in Digital Marketing. She is a
guiding force behind all the Corporate Digital Marketing Activities of the group.

Mr. Puneet Mohindra, aged 62 years, is the Non-Executive Director of the company. He has been appointed as
Additional Director on July 24, 2025. He has more than 20 years’ experience in Castings Industry. He played a
pivotal role in managing the operation of the company.

Mr. Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia, aged 66 years, is the Independent Director of the company. He has been
appointed as an Independent Director on February 17, 2025 till the . He has completed his Master of Business
Administration from Punjab Agricultural University, Ludhiana. He has an experience of more than year 17 years
in the logistic and supply chain management. His guidance and expertise will help in ensuring that the company
makes sound and strategic business decision.

Mr. Madhup Misra, aged 62 years, is the Independent Director of the company. He has been appointed as
Director on August 10, 2024. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant with more than 21 years in manufacturing and
marketing companies with exposure to Accounts, Indirect Taxation, GST, Inventory Control and Strategic
planning as required including major raw material Procurement. His leadership and strategic vision are pivotal in
enhancing the company's growth.

Mr. Sudhir Agarwal, aged 63 years is the Additional Independent Director of the Company. He has been
appointed as Additional Independent Director on August 18, 2025 till the Annual General Meeting of the
company. He has done B. Tech in Chemical Engineering from Harcourt Butler Technological Institute. Mr.
Agarwal has more than 38 years of experience in the field of Chemical Industry.

Page 174 of 329



As

a)

b)

d)
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on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

None of our Directors is or was a director of any listed company during the last five years preceding the date
of this Red Herring Prospectus, whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on the BSE,
during the term of their directorship in such company.

None of the Directors are on the RBI List of wilful defaulters.

None of our Directors are categorized as a wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower, as defined under
Regulation 2(1) (lll) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

None of our Directors is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 of the Fugitive Economic
Offenders Act, 2018. None of the above-mentioned Directors are on the RBI List of wilful defaulters as on
the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

None of the Promoters, persons forming part of our Promoter Group, our Directors or persons in control of
our Company or our Company are debarred by SEBI from accessing the capital market.

None of the Promoters, Directors or persons in control of our Company, have been or are involved as a
promoter, director or person in control of any other company, which is debarred from accessing the capital
market under any order or directions made by SEBI or any other regulatory authority.

ORGANISATIONAL CHART

Please refer to the Chapter “Our Business” on page no. 122 of this Red Herring prospectus.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other as per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Name of the Director Relationship with other Director

Son of Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal & Ms.

1. Mr. A indal M ing Direct
r. Atpan Jinda anaging DHECOr | Rekha Agarwal, and Spouse of Ms. Venu Jindal.
. Father of Mr. Arpan Jindal and Spouse of Ms.
Mr. D K -E .
2. r- Devendra Kumar Non ) xecutive Rekha Agarwal and Father-in-law of Ms. Venu
Agarwal Director

Jindal.

Spouse of Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal and
Mother of Mr. Arpan Jindal and Mother-in-Law of
Ms. Venu Jindal

Non-E ti
3. Ms. Rekha Agarwal on : xecutive
Director

Non-Executive Spouse of Mr. Arpan Jindal and Daughter in law of

4. Ms. Venu Jindal . Ms. Rekha Agarwal & Mr. Devendra Kumar
Director
Agarwal
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Details of current and past directorship(s) in listed companies whose shares have been / were suspended
from being traded on the stock exchanges and reasons for suspension.

None of our Directors is / was a director in any listed company during the last five years before the date of filing
of this Red Herring Prospectus, whose shares have been / were suspended from being traded on the any stock

exchange.

Details of current and past directorship(s) in listed companies which have been/ were delisted from the
stock exchange(s) and reasons for delisting.

None of our Directors are currently or have been on the board of directors of a public listed company whose shares
have been or were delisted from any stock exchange.

Details of arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, consumers, suppliers or others,
pursuant to which of the Directors were selected as a director or member of senior management.

There are no arrangements or understandings with major shareholders, consumers, suppliers or any other entity,
pursuant to which any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel were selected as a director or member of the
senior management.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

i. Executive Directors

M- Arpan Jindal

Designation Managing Director (MD)

Period 5 Years from August 10, 2024

Date of Appointment as MD 10/08/2024

Remuneration payable (FY 2024-25) Rs. 2,25,000 Per Month

Remuneration payable (FY 2025-26) Rs. 2,25,000 Per Month

Perquisite 1.To use company car for official use.
2. Reimbursement of Medical Expenditure incurred in India.
3. Leave Travel Concession for self and Family once a year.
4. Other perquisites approved by the board.

ii. Non-Executive Directors and Independent Director
Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors and Independent Directors are not entitled to any remuneration except
sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board, or of any committee of the Board. They are entitled to a sitting

fee for attending the meeting of the Board and the Committee thereof respectively.

The independent directors of our Company through appointment letters would be entitled to a sitting fee of Rs.
20,000/- for attending every meeting of the Board and Rs. 20,000/- for attending every committee meeting.

Note: No portion of the compensation as mentioned above was paid pursuant to a bonus or profit-sharing plan.
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SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS IN OUR COMPANY

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, a director is not required to hold any shares in our Company
to qualify him for the office of the Director of our Company. The following table details the shareholding in our
Company of our Directors in their personal capacity, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. | Name of the Directors No. of Equity Shares held = % of pre-issue paid-up Equity
No. Share capital in our Company

1. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 9.49%

2. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 13,06,793 9.48%

3. | Ms. Venu Jindal 12,63,292 9.17%

4. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 13,06,424 9.48%
INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

All of our Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of fees payable to them (if any) for attending
meetings of the Board or a committee thereof as well as to the extent of remuneration payable to them for their
services as Directors of our Company and reimbursement of expenses as well as to the extent of commission and
other remuneration, if any, payable to them under our Articles of Association. Some of the Directors may be deemed
to be interested to the extent of consideration received/paid or any loans or advances Provided to any body corporate
including companies and firms, and trusts, in which they are interested as directors, members, partners or trustees.

All our Directors may also be deemed to be interested to the extent of Equity Shares, if any, already held by them
or their relatives in our Company, or that may be subscribed for and allotted to our non-promoter Directors, out of
the present Issue and also to the extent of any dividend payable to them and other distribution in respect of the said
Equity Shares.

The Directors may also be regarded as interested in the Equity Shares, if any, held or that may be subscribed by
and allocated to the companies, firms and trusts, if any, in which they are interested as directors, members, partners,
and/or trustees.

Our Directors may also be regarded interested to the extent of dividend payable to them and other distribution in
respect of the Equity Shares, if any, held by them or by the companies/firms/ventures promoted by them or that
may be subscribed by or allotted to them and the companies, firms, in which they are interested as Directors,
members, partners and promoters, pursuant to this Issue. All our Directors may be deemed to be interested in the
contracts, agreements/ arrangements entered into or to be entered into by the Company with either the Directors
himself, other company in which they hold directorship or any partnership firm in which they are partners, as
declared in their respective declarations.

Interest in promotion of Our Company

Except Promoters, none of our directors have any interest in the promotion of our Company.

Interest in the property of Our Company

Our directors have no interest in any property acquired by our Company neither in the preceding two years from
the date of this Red Herring Prospectus nor in the property proposed to be acquired by our Company as on the date
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of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus. Our directors also do not have any interest in any transaction regarding the
acquisition of land, construction of buildings and supply of machinery, etc. with respect to our Company.

Interest in the business of Our Company

Save and except as stated otherwise in “Related Party Transaction” in the chapter titled “Financial Information”
beginning on page number 212 of this Red Herring Prospectus, our directors do not have any other interests in our
Company as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. Our directors are not interested in the appointment of
Underwriters, Registrar and Bankers to the Issue or any such intermediaries registered with SEBI.

Details of service contracts

None of our directors have entered into any service contracts with our company except for acting in their individual
capacity as director and no benefits are granted upon their termination from employment other than the statutory
benefits provided by our company.

Except statutory benefits upon termination of their employment in our Company or retirement, no officer of our
Company, including the directors and key Managerial personnel, are entitled to any benefits upon termination of or

retirement from employment.

Bonus or profit-sharing plan for the directors

There is no bonus or profit-sharing plan for the Directors of our Company.
Contingent and deferred compensation payable to directors

No Director has received or is entitled to any contingent or deferred compensation.
Other indirect interest

Except as stated in chapter titled “Restated Financial Statements” beginning on page 212 of this Red Herring
Prospectus, none of our sundry debtors or beneficiaries of loans and advances are related to our directors.

Borrowing power of the Board

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an Extra Ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on September
10, 2024 and pursuant to provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company have been authorized to borrow
monies from time to time, any sum or sums of money on such security and on such terms and conditions as the
Board may deem fit, notwithstanding that the money to be borrowed together with the money already borrowed by
our Company may exceed in the aggregate, its paid up capital and free reserves and security premium (apart from
temporary loans obtained / to be obtained from bankers in the ordinary course of business), provided that the
outstanding principal amount of such borrowing at any point of time shall not exceed in the aggregate of X 70 crores
(Rupees Seventy Crores).

CHANGES IN THE BOARD FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS
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Save and except as mentioned below, there had been no change in the Directorship during the last three (3) years:

Name of Director Date of Event Reason for Change

Ms. Rekha Agarwal 31/05/2024 Appointment as Additional Director.

Ms. Venu Jindal 31/05/2024 Appointment as Additional Director

Ms. Rekha Agarwal 17/06/2024 Change in Designation from Additional Director to
Director.

Ms. Venu Jindal 17/06/2024 Change in Designation from Additional Director to
Director.

Mr. Vivek Karnavat 08/07/2024 Appointment as Additional Director (Independent Director)

Mr. Madhup Misra 17/07/2024 Appointment as Additional Director (Independent Director)

Mr. Madhup Misra 10/08/2024 Change in Designation from Additional Director

to Independent Director
Mr. Vivek Karnavat 10/08/2024 Change in Designation from Additional Director
to Independent Director

Mr. Arpan Jindal 10/08/2024 Change in Designation from Director to Managing Director

Mr. Vivek Karnavat 17/02/2025 Resignation from the Independent Director

Mr. Jaswinder Singh 17/02/2025 Appointment as an Additional Director (Non Executive

Ahluwalia & Independent)

Mr. Jaswinder Singh 10/06/2025 Change in Designation from Additional Independent

Ahluwalia Director to Independent Director.

Mr. Puneet Mohindra 24/07/2025 Appointment as an Additional Director

Mr. Sudhir Agarwal 18/08/2025 Appointment as an Additional Director (Independent
Director)

Management Organizational Structure

For Management Organizational Structure please refer chapter titled “Our Business” on page number 122 of this
Red Herring Prospectus.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In additions to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the Corporate Governance,
provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations will be applicable to our company immediately up on the listing of
Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. As on date of this Red Herring Prospectus, as our Company is coming
with an issue in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time, the
requirement specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24,25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation
(2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V is not applicable to our Company, although we require to
comply with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable. Our Company has complied with the
corporate governance requirement, particularly in relation to appointment of independent directors including
woman director on our Board, constitution of an Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Our Board functions either on its own or through committees
constituted thereof, to oversee specific operational areas.

The Board functions either as a full Board or through various committees constituted to oversee specific
operational areas. Our Company has constituted the following Committees of the Board:

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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3.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was constituted vide Board resolution dated September 10, 2024 and subsequently Mr.
Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia was appointed as member in the Audit committee dated March 10, 2025, pursuant to
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the Audit Committee
comprises of:

Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship

Mr. Madhup Misra Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Arpan Jindal Member Managing Director
Mr. Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia Member Independent Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as the secretary of the Committee.
The scope of Audit Committee shall include but shall not be restricted to the following:

“we@E Mo ao o

Oversight the Company‘s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information toensure
that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement orremoval
of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for

approval, with particular reference to:

Matters required being included in the Directors Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board‘s report
in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

Disclosure of any related party transactions.

Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to
take up steps in this matter.

Approval of any transactions of the Company with Related Parties, including any subsequent modification
thereof.

use/application of the funds raised through the proposed initial public offer by the Company;

Approval or any subsequent modifications of transactions of the Company with related parties and omnibus
approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to such conditions
as may be prescribed;

10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
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12. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.
13.Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of theinternal

control systems.

14.Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.

15. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon.

16.

18.

19.
20.

21.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit aswell as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing.

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background,
etc. of the candidate.

Carrying out any other function as it mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee enjoys following powers:

a)
b)
¢)
d)
e)

To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

To seek information from any employee

To obtain outside legal or other professional advice

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise if it considers necessary

The audit committee may invite such of the executives as it considers appropriate (and particularly head of
the finance function) to be present at the meetings of the committee, but on the occasions it may also meet
without the presence of any executives of the Issuer. The finance director, head of the internal audit
committee.

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1.
2.

Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
management.

Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review
by the audit committee and statement of deviations:

a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations;

b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Meetings and relevant quorum of the Audit Committee

L.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times in a year and not more than one hundred and twenty days
shall elapse between two meetings.
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2. The quorum shall be either two members or one third of the members of the audit committee whichever is
greater, but there shall be minimum of two independent members present.

Removal or Ceasing as a Member of the Committee

Any members of this committee may be removed or replaced any time by the board, any member of this
committee ceasing to be a director shall be ceased to be a member of this committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on
September 10, 2024 and subsequently Mr. Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia was appointed as Chairman in the
Nomination and Remuneration committee dated March 10, 2025. As on the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of’

Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship ‘

Mr. Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Madhup Misra Member Independent Director
Mr. Arpan Jindal Member Managing Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer will act as the secretary of the Committee.
The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes, but not restricted to, the following:

1. formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;

2. for the appointment of an independent director, the committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the board of directors of the
Company for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description.
For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of external agencies, if required;
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
c. Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

3. formulation of criteria for evaluation of the performance of independent directors and the Board;

4. devising a policy on diversity of our Board;

5. identifying persons, who are qualified to become directors or who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their appointment and removal and
carrying out evaluation of every director’s performance;

6. determining whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

7. recommending remuneration of executive directors and any increase therein from time to time within the
limit approved by the members of our Company;

8. recommending remuneration to non-executive directors in the form of sitting fees for attending meetings of
the Board and its committees, remuneration for other services, commission on profits;
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recommending to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management;

. performing such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the SEBI

(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, as amended;

engaging the services of any consultant/professional or other agency for the purpose of recommending
compensation structure/policy;

analyzing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;

reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current Indian
market in accordance with applicable laws;

framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no violation, by an employee of any applicable
laws in India or overseas, including:

a. The SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended; or

b. The SEBI (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to the Securities Market)
Regulations, 2003, as amended,;

Performing such other functions as may be delegated by the Board and/or prescribed under the SEBI Listing
Regulations, Companies Act, each as amended or other applicable law.

Our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer will act as the secretary to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

Meetings and relevant quorum of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

. The committee shall meet as and when the need arises, subject to at least one meeting in a year.
. The quorum for the meeting shall be either two members or one third of the total strength of the committee

or two members, whichever is higher, with atleast One (1) Independent Director.

Removal or Ceasing as a Member of the Committee

. Any members of this Committee may be removed or replaced by the Board of Directors at any time, by

giving reasons thereof.

. Any member of this committee ceasing to be a director shall also be ceased to be a member of this Committee.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been formed by the Board of Directors, at the meeting held on

September 10, 2024 and subsequently Mr. Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia was appointed as member in the
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee dated March 10, 2025. As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus
the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee comprises of:

Name of the Director Designation in the Committee Nature of Directorship ‘

Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive Director
Mr. Jaswinder Singh Ahluwalia Member Independent Director
Mr. Arpan Jindal Member Managing Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as the secretary of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Regulation 20 and Part D of

Page 183 of 327



HMLS

Foundry Division

Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 shall be as under:

—

w

10.

11.
12.

13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

Consider and resolve grievances of security holders of the Company, including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc.;

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company;

Formulation of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of various requests
received from shareholders from time to time;

To handle the grievances of the stakeholders in connection with the allotment and listing of shares;

Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances;

Carrying out any other functions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 and/or other documents (if
applicable), as and when amended from time to time; and

To approve, register, refuse to register transfer or transmission of shares and other securities;

To review, approve or reject the request for split, sub-divide, consolidate, renewal and or replace any share
or other securities certificate(s) of the Company;

To authorize affixation of common seal of the Company;

To issue duplicate share or other security(ies) certificate(s) in lieu of the original share/security(ies)
certificate(s) of the Company;

To approve the transmission of shares or other securities arising as a result of death of the sole/any joint
shareholder;

To dematerialize or rematerialize the issued shares;

To do all other acts and deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the above;

To perform such functions as may be delegated by the Board and to further delegate all or any of its power
to any other employee(s), officer(s), representative(s), consultant(s), professional(s), or agent(s); and

Such terms of reference as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations
or other applicable law.

Meetings of the Committee and relevant quorum

1.

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee shall meet at least once in a year, and shall report to the Board on
a quarterly basis regarding the status of redressal of the complaints received from the shareholders of the
Company.

Removal or Ceasing as a Member of the Committee

1.

2.

Any members of this Committee may be removed or replaced by the Board of Directors at any time, by
giving reasons thereof.
Any member of this committee ceasing to be a director shall also be ceased to be a member of this Committee.

Any members of this committee may be removed or replaced any time by the board, any member of this

committee ceasing to be a director shall be ceased to be a member of this committee.
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Compliance with SME Listing Regulations

The provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures) Regulations, 2015 will be applicable to our
Company immediately upon the listing of Equity Shares of our Company on SME Platform of BSE.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Our Company is managed by our Board of Directors, assisted by qualified professionals, who are permanent
employees of our Company. Below are the details of the Key Managerial Personnel of our Company:

Name :  Mr. Arpan Jindal

Designation :  Managing Director

Date of Appointment as MD . 10/08/2024

Term of Office : 5 Years from 10/08/2024

Qualification . Master of Business Administration

Overall Experience :  More than 16 Years’ experience in Management and
Castings
Industry

Remuneration payable inF.Y. : Rs.27.00 Lakhs Per Annum

2025-26)

Remuneration payable inF.Y. : Rs.27.00 Lakhs Per Annum

2024-25)

Designation :  Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Date of Appointment ;. 30/07/2024

Qualification :  Company Secretary

Previous Employment :  PGT Economics at Vision Valley, Kashipur

Overall Experience :  She is the Company Secretary of our company & has been
appointed on 30/07/2024. She has an overall experience of 10
Years in the
Secretarial Department.

Remuneration payable inF.Y. : Rs. 30,000 Per month

2025-26)

Remuneration payable inF.Y. : Rs. 30,000 Per month

2024-25)

Name :  Mr. Raj Kumar Arora

Designation : Chief Financial Officer

Date of Appointment :30/07/2024

Qualification . Master of Business Administration in financial and
operational
management

Previous Employment :  Uniko Plast Private Limited as a General Manager

Overall Experience . More than 37 Years in Finance, Taxation, Management and
Legal
Matters

Remuneration payable in F.Y. : Rs.9,00,000 per annum

2025-26)

Remuneration payable in F.Y. : Rs.9,00,000 per annum

2024-25)
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Notes:
v All of our Key Managerial Personnel mentioned above are on the payrolls of our Company as permanent
employees.

»  There is no agreement or understanding with major shareholders, consumers, suppliers or others pursuant
to which any of the above mentioned personnel was selected as a director or member of senior management.

»  None of our Key Managerial Personnel has entered into any service contracts with our company and no
benefits are granted upon their termination from employment other than statutory benefits provided by our
Company. However, our Company has appointed certain Key Managerial Personnel for which our
company has not executed any formal service contracts, although they are abide by their terms of
appointments.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN KMP

None of the KMP of the Company are related to each other as per section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.
BONUS AND/ OR PROFIT-SHARING PLAN FOR THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Our Company does not have any bonus and / or profit-sharing plan for the key managerial personnel.

CONTINGENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE TO KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

None of our Key Managerial Personnel has received or is entitled to any contingent or deferred compensation.
SHAREHOLDING OF THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

None of our Key Managerial Personnel holds any Equity Shares in our Company as on the date of this Red
Herring Prospectus except the following.

S. No. | Name of the Key Managerial No. of Equity % of pre-issue paid-up Equity

Personnel Shares held % of Share capital in our
Company
1. Mr. Arpan Jindal 13,08,515 9.49%

INTEREST OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
None of our key managerial personnel have any interest in our Company other than to the extent of the
remuneration or benefits to which they are entitled to our Company as per the terms of their appointment and

reimbursement of expenses incurred by them during the ordinary course of business.

CHANGES IN OUR COMPANY’S KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE LAST THREE
YEARS

Following have been the changes in the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the last three years:

Name of the Key Managerial Date of Event Reason for change

Personnel
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Mr. Raj Kumar Arora 30/07/2024 Appointment as Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Shweta Mehrotra 30/07/2024 Appomtment as Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

10/08/2024 Change in designation from Director to

Mr. Arpan Jindal

Managing Director

Note: Other than the above changes, there have been no changes to the key managerial personnel of our
Company that are not in the normal course of employment.

SCHEME OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS OR EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE

Our Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme or other similar scheme giving options in our
Equity Shares to our employees.

LOANS TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Except as provided in restated financial statement in the chapter “Restated Financial Statements” beginning on
page 212 of the Red Herring prospectus, there are no loans outstanding against the key managerial personnel as
on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS TO OFFICERS OF OUR COMPANY (NON-SALARY RELATED)

Except for the payment of salaries and perquisites and reimbursement of expenses incurred in the ordinary course
of business, and the transactions as enumerated in the chapter titled “Restated Financial Statements” and the
chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on pages 212 and 122 respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus,
we have not paid/given any benefit to the officers of our Company, within the two preceding years nor do we
intend to make such payment/ give such benefit to any officer as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Except statutory benefits upon termination of their employment in our Company or superannuation, no officer
of our Company is entitled to any benefit upon termination of his employment in our Company.
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OUR PROMOTERS
The Promoters of our Company are:

S. No. Name Category No. of Shares
1. Mr. Arpan Jindal Individual 13,08,515
2. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Individual 13,06,793
3. Ms. Rekha Agarwal Individual 13,06,424
4. Ms. Venu Jindal Individual 12,63,292
5. M/s Kgmauq Garl}w?ll Infrastructural Industrial Corporate Promoter 35,75,610

Corporation Private Limited

For details of the build-up of our promoters' shareholding in our Company, see section titled “Capital

Structure” beginning on page 62 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Brief Profile of Our Individual Promoters is as under:

Mr. Arpan Jindal, aged 41 years, is the Promoter and Managing Director
of our company. He has been appointed as Director of our company since
incorporation and Managing Director from August 10, 2024. He has
completed his Master of Business Administration from Amity University.
He served as a partner at Kashi Enterprises, a partnership firm created in
2005. With more than 16 years of experience in Management and in Castings
Industry, He played a pivotal role in the modernization and expansion of the
company and is entrusted with the responsibility of looking after the overall
management and operation of the company.

Mr. Arpan Jindal

Age 41 Years

Date of Birth April 26, 1984

Address 530, Nand Niwas, Ramnagar Road, Kashipur, Udham Singh Nagar,
Uttarakhand- 244713

PAN AEXPJ9475M

Occupation Business

Experience More than 16 Years in Management and Casting Industries

No. of Equity Shares & %
Of Shareholding (Pre-Issue)

13,08,515 (9.49% of Pre issue paid up capital)

Directorship &
Other Ventures

Indian Private Companies:
1. M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited
2. M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited
3. M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation
Private Limited
4. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited
5. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited

Indian Public Companies:
NIL
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Section 8 Companies:
NIL

Indian LLPs:
M/s KVS Infraatech LLP

Other Entities:
M/s Arpan Jindal HUF

Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, aged 68 years, is the Promoter and Non-
Executive Director of the company. He has been appointed as Non-
Executive Director on July 10, 2019. He has completed his Chemical
Engineering from Kanpur University. He has vast experience of 33 Years
in Castings Industries including Auto components castings and other
castings. He has led the KVS Premier Group to remarkable growth and
progress.

Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal

Age 68 Years

Date of Birth June 17, 1957

Address 530, Nand Niwas, Ramnagar Road, Katoratal Poorvi, Kashipur, Udham
Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand- 244713

PAN AAOPA4353Q

Occupation Business

Experience 33 Years in Castings Industries including Auto components castings and

other castings

No. of Equity Shares & %
Of Shareholding (Pre-Issue)

13,06,793 (9.48% of Pre issue paid up capital)

Directorship &
Other Ventures

Indian Private Companies:
1. M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited
2. M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation
Private Limited
3. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited
4. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited
5. M/s Devarpan Food Private Limited

Indian Public Companies:
NIL

Section 8 Companies:
NIL

Indian LLPs:
M/s KVS Infraatech LLP

Other Entities:
M/s Devendra Kumar Agarwal HUF

Page 189 of 327



Name Ms. Rekha Agarwal

Ms. Rekha Agarwal, aged 63 years, is the Promoter and Non-Executive
Director of the company. She has been appointed as Director on June 17,
2024. She has completed Master of Arts in English Literature from
Rohilkhand University (Bareilly) . She has more than 6 years’ experience in
managing the company’s CSR activities and is the Chairperson of KVS
Premier Foundation.

Age 63 Years

Date of Birth December 10, 1961

Address 530, Nand Niwas, Ramnagar Road, Katoratal Poorvi, Kashipur, Udham
Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand- 244713

PAN ABIPA1534G

Occupation Business

Experience More than 6 years in Managing Company’s CSR Activities

No. of Equity Shares & %
Of Shareholding (Pre-Issue)

13,06,424 (9.48% of Pre issue paid up capital)

Directorship &
Other Ventures

Indian Private Companies: NIL
Indian Public Companies: NIL
Section 8 Companies: NIL

Indian LLPs: NIL

Name

Ms. Venu Jindal, aged 39 years, is the Promoter and Non-Executive
Director of the company. She has been appointed as Director on June 17,
2024. She has more than 7 years’ experience in Digital Marketing. She is
a guiding force behind all the Corporate Digital Marketing Activities of the

group.

Ms. Venu Jindal ‘

Age 39 Years

Date of Birth June 07, 1986

Address 530, Nand Niwas, Ramnagar Road, Katoratal Poorvi, Kashipur, Udham
Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand- 244713

PAN AIXPB9932D

Occupation Business

Experience More than 7 years’ experience in Digital Marketing

No. of Equity Shares & %
Of Shareholding (Pre-Issue)

12,63,292 (9.17% of Pre issue paid up capital)

Directorship &

Indian Private Companies: NIL
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Other Ventures

M/s Kumaun Garhwal
Infrastructural Industrial
Corporation Private Limited

Indian Public Companies: NIL
Section 8 Companies: NIL

Indian LLPs: NIL

Corporate Promoter

M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private
Limited was incorporated in 2004 as a Public Limited company under
Companies Act, 1956. Subsequently the company converted into Private
Limited, and name of the Company changed from “M/s Kumaun Garhwal
Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Limited” to “M/s Kumaun Garhwal
Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited”. The company is in
the business of Infrastructural Projects. As on the date of this red herring
prospectus, it holds 35,75,610 Equity shares of our company which
constitutes 25.94% of the total pre-issue share capital of our Company.

CIN U45202DL2004PTC126897
PAN AACCK6286B
Incorporation Date 11/06/2004

Registered Office Address

D-6, Block-D, Vivek Vihar, Ph-1, East Delhi, Delhi, India, 110095

Present Business Activities

1. To act as developer, promoter, converter of land and other
infrastructure facilities viz. development, sale purchase of industrial
estate and land, to construct and develop bridges, roads, colonies,
power line, markets, educational institutions, tourist spots, buildings,
industrial structure and other relevant activities for promotion and
growth of national economy.

2. To set up basic industries supporting infrastructure development viz.
casting, forging rolling, re-rolling industries of ferrous and non-
ferrous metals, to set up the business as manufacturer of all kinds of
paper, boards and pulps including writing, printing, absorbent, filter,
packaging papers, to establish business of combers, spinners,
weavers, knitters, manufacturers, dyers, bleachers or otherwise
processors of any fibrous or textile material made of and man-made
fibres including manufacturers, processors of fabric, garments and
other items made of fabrics to establish detergent based industries
including detergent cake, detergent powers, cleaners, liquid soap,
bath soaps.

3. To carry on the business of farming, horticulture, floriculture,
cultivator, tissue culture of all kind of field grains, trees, plants,
shrubs, herbs, seeds, fruits and other agro based products including
processing and packaging of such edible and non edible products,
oils.

4. To set up power generation facility and power distribution system to
feed power to infrastructure facilities and also for feed into grid.

5. To engage in mining business.

6. To act as consultants in respect to the matters referred to in the
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above clause 1 to 5.

Details of Change in Control

There has been no change in the control or management of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial
Corporation Private Limited during last three years immediately preceding the filing of the Red Herring Prospectus.

Details of Change in Activity

M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited has not changed its activities from
the date of its incorporation.

Details of Promoters

The Promoters of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited are:

S.No. | Name No. of Shares % of total
shares

1. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 35,000 1.29
2. Mr. Arpan Jindal 5,000 0.18

Board of Directors

The Directors of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited as on the date of
this Red Herring Prospectus are as follows:

S. No. Name of the Directors Designation |
1. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Director
2. Mr. Arpan Jindal Director
3. Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Agarwal Director
Shareholding Pattern

The shareholding pattern of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited as on
March 31, 2025, is as follows:

. | Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares % of total
| holdin

1 M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 12,55,000 46.13%
2 M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 14,10,900 51.86%
3. M/s KVS Castings Private Limited 4,500 0.17%
4. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 35,000 1.29%
5 Ms. Rekha Agarwal 5,000 0.18%
6 Mr. Arpan Jindal 5,000 0.18%
7 Ms. Venu Jindal 5,000 0.18%

Total 27,20,400 100%
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Financial Performance on Standalone Basis

Certain details of the financials of M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Limited

are set forth below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 2021-2022
Total Income 4.93 6.25 36.63
Net Profit/ (Loss) 3.11 4.67 (57.38)
Share Capital 272.04 272.04 272.04
Reserve and Surplus 300.13 297.01 292.33
Net Worth 572.17 569.05 564.37
NAV per shares (in rupees) 21.03 20.92 20.75
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in rupees)
e Basic 0.11 0.17 (2.11)
e Diluted 0.11 0.17 (2.11)
No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (in numbers) 27,20,400 27,20,400 27,20,400

Our Company confirms that the Permanent Account Number, Bank Account Number and Company registration
Number of M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited along with the address of the Registrar of Companies
where it was registered, shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing this Red Herring Prospectus

Relationship of Promoters with our Directors

Our Promoters are part of our board of directors. Except as disclosed herein, none of our Promoter(s) are related
to any of our Company’s Directors within the meaning of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Name of Promoter

Name of the Director

‘ Designation

‘ Relation

Mr. D dra K S
Mr. Arpan Jindal - evendra umar Director on
Agarwal
Mr. Arpan Jindal Ms. Rekha Agarwal Director Son
Mr. Arpan Jindal Ms. Venu Jindal Director Spouse
Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Mr. Arpan Jindal Managing Director | Father
Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Ms. Rekha Agarwal Director Spouse
Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Ms. Venu Jindal Director Father-in-law
Ms. Rekha Agarwal Mr. Arpan Jindal Managing Director | Mother
Mr. D dra K S
Ms. Rekha Agarwal - evendia humar Director potise
Agarwal
Ms. Rekha Agarwal Ms. Venu Jindal Director Mother-in-law
Ms. Venu Jindal Mr. Arpan Jindal Managing Director | Spouse
Ms. Venu Jindal Mr. Devendra Kumar . Daughter-in-law
Director
Agarwal
Ms. Venu Jindal Ms. Rekha Agarwal Director Daughter-in-law

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS AND CONFIRMATIONS
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*  Our Company undertakes that the details of Permanent Account Number, Bank Account Number, Aadhar,
Driving License and Passport Number of the Promoters will be submitted to the SME Platform of BSE, where
the securities of our Company are proposed to be listed at the time of submission of Red Herring Prospectus.

*  Our Promoters have confirmed that they have not been identified as wilful defaulters.

* No violations of securities laws have been committed by our Promoters in the past or are currently pending
against them.

* None of our Promoters are debarred or prohibited from accessing the capital markets or restrained from
buying, selling, or dealing in securities under any order or directions passed for any reasons by the SEBI or
any other authority or refused listing of any of the securities issued by any such entity by any stock exchange
in India or abroad.

INTEREST OF PROMOTERS

Interest in promotion of Our Company

Our Promoters are interested in the promotion of our Company in their capacity as a shareholder of our Company
and having significant control over the management and influencing policy decisions of our Company.

Interest in the property of Our Company

The registered office and manufacturing plant Unit-1 situated at Plot No B-25 & 26, Government Industrial Area,
Bazpur Road, Kashipur-244713, (U S Nagar) Uttarakhand is owned by M/s Kumaon Plastic Weavers &
Laminators, Sole Proprietorship of Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, Promoter and Non- Executive Director of the
Company.

Except disclosed above, none of our promoters are interested in the property of our company. Furthermore, our
promoters have no interest in any property acquired by our Company neither in the preceding two years from the
date of this Red Herring Prospectus nor in the property proposed to be acquired by our Company as on the date
of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus. Our Promoters also do not have any interest in any transaction regarding
the acquisition of land, construction of buildings and supply of machinery, etc. with respect to our Company.

Interest as member of Our Company

Our Promoters jointly hold 87,60,634 Equity Shares aggregating to 63.56% of pre-issue Equity Share Capital in
our Company and are therefore interested to the extent of their respective shareholding and the dividend declared,
if any, by our Company. Except to the extent of their respective shareholding in our Company and benefits
provided to promoters given in the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page number 169 of this Red
Herring Prospectus, our Promoters hold no other interest in our Company.

Interest as Director of our Company

Except as stated in the “Related Party Transactions” in the chapter Financial Statement as Restated on page
number 212 of the Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters / Directors, may be deemed to be interested to the
extent of fees, if any, payable to them for attending meetings of our Board or Committees thereof as well as to the
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extent of remuneration and/or reimbursement of expenses payable to them for services rendered to us in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act and in terms of our AOA.

OTHER VENTURES OF OUR PROMOTERS

Save and except as disclosed in the chapters titled “Our Group Companies” beginning on page 199 of the Red
Herring Prospectus, there are no other ventures of our Promoters in which they have business interests/other
interests.

CHANGE IN THE CONTROL OF OUR COMPANY

Our Promoters, Mr. Arpan Jindal, Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal and M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural
Industrial Corporation Private Limited are the subscriber to the memorandum of association. Further Ms. Rekha
Jindal and Ms. Venu Jindal become promoters of our company for future growth and equitable decisions. As on
date of this Red Herring Prospectus Our company have 4 Individual Promoters and 1 Corporate Promoter.

EXPERIENCE OF PROMOTERS IN THE LINE OF BUSINESS

Our Individual Promoters Mr. Arpan Jindal and Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, have 16 years and 33 years of
experience in the Casting Industries including automobile castings and other castings. The Company shall also
endeavour to ensure that relevant professional help is sought as and when required in the future.

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR PROMOTERS

For details of legal and regulatory proceedings involving our Promoters, please refer chapter titled
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on page 234 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS TO OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP DURING THE LAST
TWO YEARS

Save and except as disclosed under “Statement of Related Party Transactions”, as Restated appearing in chapter
“Restated Financial Statements” beginning on page number 212 of the Red Herring Prospectus, there has been
no Payment or benefit to promoters during the two (2) years preceding the date of filing of this Red Herring
Prospectus, nor is there any intention to pay or give any benefit to our Promoters as on the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

COMPANIES / FIRMS FROM WHICH THE PROMOTER HAVE DISASSOCIATED THEMSELVES
IN THE LAST (3) THREE YEARS

Our Promoters (Mr. Arpan Jindal, Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal, Ms. Rekha Agarwal and Ms. Venu Jindal) have
not disassociated themselves from any of the Companies, Firms or other entities during the last three years

preceding the date of this Red herring Prospectus.

Other Confirmations

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group have not been
prohibited by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority from accessing capital markets for any
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reasons. Further, our Promoters were not and are not promoters or persons in control of any other company that
is or has been debarred from accessing the capital markets under any order or direction made by SEBI or any
other authority. There is no litigation or legal action pending or taken by any ministry, department of the
Government or statutory authority against our Promoters during the last five (5) years preceding the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus, except as disclosed under chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material
Developments” beginning on page 234 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group have neither been declared as a wilful defaulters nor as a
fugitive economic offender as defined under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, and there are no violations of
securities laws committed by our Promoters in the past and no proceedings for violation of securities laws are
pending against our Promoters.

Guarantees

Except as stated in the section titled "Restated Financial Statements" beginning on page 212 of this Red Herring
Prospectus, there are no material guarantees given by the Promoters to third parties with respect to specified
securities of the Company as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Related Party Transactions

For details of related party transactions entered into by our Company, please refer to “Statement of Related
Party Transactions”, as Restated appearing in the section titled "Restated Financial Statements" beginning on
page 212 of the Red Herring Prospectus.

Information of our group companies

For details related to our group companies please refer “Our Group Companies” on page no. 199 of this Red
Herring Prospectus.

DISASSOCIATION BY THE PROMOTERS IN THE LAST THREE YEARS

None of our promoters have disassociated themselves from any entities/firms during the preceding three years.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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OUR PROMOTER GROUP

Our Promoters and Promoter Group in terms of Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations is as under

A. Natural Persons who form part of our Promoter Group:

The following natural persons being the immediate relatives of our Promoters in terms of the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations 2018 form part of our Promoter Group:

Promoters Mr. Arpan Jindal | Mr. Devendra Ms. Rekha Agarwal Ms. Venu
Kumar Agarwal Jindal

Father Mr. Devendra Late Mithlesh Late Raj Kumar Mr. Umesh
Kumar Agarwal Kumar Agarwal Agarwal Kumar
Agarwal
Mother Ms. Rekha Late Vinod Devi Ms. Satyawati Devi Ms. Rajni
Agarwal
Spouse Ms. Venu Jindal | Ms. Rekha Agarwal | Mr. Devendra Kumar Mr. Arpan
Agarwal Jindal
Brothers NA Mr. Yogesh Kumar Mr. Ravi Prakash Mr. Raghav
Jindal Agarwal Bansal
Late Yogendra Mr. Naveen Prakash
Kumar Jindal Agarwal
Sister Ms. Shivangi NA NA Mr. Garvita
Jindal Mangal
Son Master Avirat Mr. Arpan Jindal Mr. Arpan Jindal Master Avirat
Jindal Jindal
Daughters Avika Jindal Ms. Shivangi Jindal Ms. Shivangi Jindal Ms. Avika
Jindal
Spouse Father Mr. Umesh Kumar Late Raj Kumar Late Mithlesh Kumar Mr. Devendra
Agarwal Agarwal Agarwal Kumar
Agarwal
Spouse Mother Ms. Rajni Agrawal | Ms. Satyawati Devi Late Vinod Devi Ms. Rekha
Agarwal
Spouse Brother Mr. Raghav Bansal | Mr. Ravi Prakash Mr. Yogesh Kumar NA
Agarwal Jindal
Mr. Naveen Late Yogendra Kumar
Prakash Agarwal Jindal
Spouse Sister Ms. Garvita NA NA Ms. Shivangi
Mangal Jindal

B. Companies, partnership and proprietorship firms forming part of our Promoter Group are as follows:

Nature of Relationship Name of Entities

Kumaun

Garhwal
Corporation Private Limited

Subsidiary of our Promoter Company i.e. M/s | Nil
Infrastructural

Industrial

Holding company of our Promoter Company i.e. 1.

M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited
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M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial
Corporation Private Limited

M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited

M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steel Private Limited
M/s KVS Castings Private Limited

M/s KVS Infraatech LLP

Anybody corporate in which the promoter holds
twenty per cent. or more of the equity share capital;
and/or anybody corporate which holds twenty per
cent. or more of the equity share capital of the
promoter

Sl e

C. Companies, partnership and proprietorship firms forming part of our Promoter Group are as follows:

Enit |

Any body corporate in which 20% or more | 1. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited
of the share capital is held by the promoters | 2. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited

or an immediate relative of the promoters or | 3. M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited
a firm or HUF in which the promoters or | 4. M/s KVS Infraatech LLP

any one or more of his immediate relative

is a member.

Any body corporate in which a body | 1. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited
corporate (mentioned above) holds 20% of | 2. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited
the total holding 3. M/s KVS Castings Limited
4. M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited
5. M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited
Any Hindu Undivided Family or firm in | 1. M/s Arpan Jindal HUF

which the aggregate share of the promoter | 2. M/s Devendra Kumar Agarwal HUF
and their relatives is equal to or more than

twenty per cent. of the total capital

COMMON PURSUITS OF OUR PROMOTERS

None of our promoter Group companies have business objects similar to our business. However, If any conflict
of interest arises it may have adverse effect on our business and growth. We shall adopt the necessary procedures
and practices as permitted by law to address any conflict situations, as and when they may arise.

This space has been left blank intentionally.

Page 198 of 329



OUR GROUP COMPANIES

As per the Regulation 2 (t) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and on
the basis of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) 110 (Consolidated Financial Statements) below mentioned
are the details of Companies / Entities are the part of our group entities. No equity shares of our group entities
are listed on any of the stock exchange, and they have not made any public or rights issue of securities in the

preceding three years.

B.

AN I S e

The Group Companies of our Company are as follows:

M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited

M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited

M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited
M/s KVS Ispat Private Limited

M/s Kumaon Plastic Weavers & Laminators
M/s KVS Infraatech LLP.

The details of our Group entities are provided as follows:
M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited

Corporate Information

M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited

CIN U74899DL1985PTC021935
Date of Registration 05/09/1985
Registered office D-6, Block-D, Vivek Vihar, Ph-I, East Delhi, India, 110095

Main Object of the Company

To set up steel furnaces and continuous casting forging rolling and re-rolling, mill plant for producing and
manufacturing of steel and alloy steel ingots, steel and alloy steel billets and all kinds & sizes of re rolled
sections i.e. flats, angels, rounds, squares, hectagon, octagons, rails joints, channel, steel strips, sheets, plates,
deformed bars, plain and cold twisted bars, bright bars, sheltings and steel structurals, and all types of steel
items.

To carry on all or any type of business of manufacture processors, importers, exporters of and dealers in all
kinds of ferrous and non-ferrous materials mean for any industrial or non industrial use what so ever and to
carry on the business in cold or hot rolling re rolling sitting edge-milling, sheeting, stamping, pressing,
extruding forging drawing, straightening, heat treatment of all kinds of steel and other metals or any other kind
of steel and other metals or any other kind of scrills, sheets, taces wires or any other sections shapes or forms.

To carry on business of manufacturing trading import and export of all or any kind of iren and steel founders,
steel melters, steel makers, steel shapers, manufacturers and mechanical engineers and fabricators, contractors
tools makers, brass founders, metal workers, manufacturers of steel metal and malleable grey, casting including
ferrous, non ferrous, special and alloy steel, paring steel, forging quality steel manufacturers, processors of all
types of forged components and accessories, alloy nuts, bolt steel, rounder nail tools, types of hardware items,
plate makers, wire drawers tube manufacturers, glavanisers, Japanese, rerolling arinealors, enamelters and
electroplaters.

To search prospect, win, work, get, raise, quarry, smelt, refine, dress, manufacture, manipulate, convert, make
merchantable, sell, buy import, export or otherwise deal in iron ore, all kinds of metals, mettalligerous ores
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and all other mineral and substances whatsoever and to manufacture sell buy import, export or otherwise deal
in any of such articles and commodities

5. To act as consultants in matter referred to in clause (1) to (4) above.

Board of Directors

The Directors of M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus are as

follows:
5 Name of the Directors Designation
1. Mr. Arpan Jindal Director
2. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Director
3. Mr. Puneet Mohindra Director
4. Mr. Braham Parkash Goel Director
Shareholding Pattern

The shareholding pattern of M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited as on March 31, 2025, is as follows:

Name of the Equity Shareholders No. of Shares | % of total
holding

1. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 33,410 58.78%
2. M/s KVS Castings Private Limited 675 1.19%
3. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 11,726 20.63%
4. Ms. Rekha Agarwal 1,752 3.08%
5. Mr. Arpan Jindal 3,065 5.39%
6. Ms. Venu Jindal 2,191 3.85%
7. M/s Arpan Jindal HUF 4,019 7.07%
Total 56,838 100%
S. No. Name of the Preference Shareholders No. of Shares | % of total
holding
1. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 507 72.64%
2. Ms. Rekha Agarwal 91 13.04%
3. Mr. Arpan Jindal 66 9.46%
4. Ms. Venu Jindal 34 4.87%
Total 698 100%
Financial Performance
Certain details of the financials of M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited are set forth below:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 2021-2022 ‘
Total Income 9.73 5.00 26.93
Net Profit/ (Loss) 7.52 3.07 (27.72)
Share Capital 57.53 57.53 57.53
Reserve and Surplus 522.79 515.26 512.19
Net Worth 580.33 572.79 569.72
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NAYV per shares (in rupees) 1008.64 995.53 990.20
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in rupees)
e Basic 13.24 5.41 (48.78)
e Diluted 13.24 541 (48.78)
No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (in numbers) 56,838 56,838 56,838
No. of Preference Share of Rs. 100/- each (in 698 698 698
numbers)

2. M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited

Corporate Information

Name M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited

CIN U15316DL2016PTC306040

Date of Registration 19/09/2016

Registered office D-6, Vivek Vihar, Shahdara, East Delhi, India, 110092

Main Object of the Company

1. To carry on the business of process, produce, mix, pack, repack, preserve, freeze, extract, refine, manufacture,
import, export, buy, sell, trade and deal infruits, vegetables, wheat, gram, other grains and cereals, dal, besan,
maida, atta, sooji and other such products like cakes, Bread, biscuits and other baked foods, fried and roasted
snacks, ready to eat foods, fruit juices, preserved fruits and other foods, tea, coffee, noodles, pasta, packaged
food, dry fruits packaged, coated, roasted, salted, in raw form, flakes, dalia and confectionary from flours of
all kinds and description or from fruits and vegetables and to setup factories or mills for the manufacture
thereof as well as to carry on the business of producing, extracting, refining, storing, exporting, importing,
transporting and dealing in flours of all kinds and description whatsoever and processing and storing of fruits,
vegetables and all type of agri based products in and outside India.

2. To carry on the business of processing, farming, manufacturing, distributorship, agency, broker, factors,
stockiest, importer and otherwise deal in all kinds of organic and inorganic foods products and drinking
products, mineral water, soft drinks, aerated mineral water, fruit drinks, artificial flavored drinks, condensed
milk and drinking products of all kinds and consumable provision of every description for human
consumption.

3. To act as consultants in the matter referred in the matters to in the object clause.

Board of Directors

The Directors of M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus are as
follows:

Name of the Directors \ Designation \

1. | Mr. Arpan Jindal Managing Director
2. | Mr. Braham Parkash Goel Director
3. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Director
4. | Mr. Puneet Mohindra Director
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Shareholding Pattern

The shareholding pattern of M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited as on March 31, 2025 is as follows:

S.No. | Name of the Shareholders

No. of Shares

% of total

holding
1. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 7,79,890 9.54%
2. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 7,79,890 9.54%
3. | M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Limited 53,89,800 65.90%
4. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 3,90,000 4.77%
5. | Ms. Venu Jindal 4,78,000 5.84%
6. | M/s KVS Castings Private Limited 3,61,400 4.42%
7. | M/s KVS Infraatech LLP 100 0.00%
8. | M/s Devendra Kumar Agarwal HUF 10 0.00%
9. | M/s Arpan Jindal HUF 10 0.00%
TOTAL 81,79,200 100.00%
Financial Performance
Certain details of the financials of M/s Devarpan Foods Private Limited are set forth below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-2024 ‘ 2022-2023 ‘ 2021-2022 ‘
Total Income 9,428.41 11,647.55 10,374.02
Net Profit/ (Loss) 327.02 384.79 221.39
Share Capital 817.92 817.92 606.70
Reserve and Surplus 2,068.68 1,741.65 723.20
Net Worth 2,886.60 2,559.57 1,329.90
NAYV per shares (in rupees) 35.29 31.29 21.92

Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in rupees)

e Basic 4.00 5.61 3.65
e Diluted 4.00 5.61 3.65
No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (in numbers) 81,79,200 81,79,200 60,67,000

3. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited

Corporate Information

Name M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited

CIN U64201DL1985PTC021933

Date of Registration 05/09/1985

Registered office D-6, Block-D, Vivek Vihar, Ph-I, East Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110095

Main Object of the Company

1. To set up steel furnaces and continuous casting forging rolling and re-rolling mill plant for producing and
manufacturing of steel and alloy steel ingets, steel and alloy steel billets and all kinds & sizes of re rolled sections
l.e. flats, angels, rounds, squares, hectagon, octagons, rails joints, channel, steel strips, sheets, plates, deformed
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bars, plain and cold twisted bars, bright bars, shaftings and steel structurals, and all types of steel items.

2. To carry on all or any type of business of manufacture processors, importers, exporters of and dealers in all kinds
of ferrous and non ferrous materials mean for any industrial or non industrial use what so ever and to carry on
the business in cold or hot rolling re rolling sitting edge-milling, sheeting, stamping, pressing, extruding forging
drawing, straightening, heat treatment of all kinds of steel and other metals or any other kind of steel and other
metals or any other kind of scrills, sheets, taces wires or any other sections shapes or forms.

3. To carry on business of manufacturing trading import and export of all or any kind of iron and steel founders,
steel melters, steel makers, steel shapers, manufacturers and mechanical engineers and fabricators, contractors
tools makers, brass founders, metal workers, manufacturers of steel metal and malleable grey, casting including
ferrous, non ferrous, special and alloy steel, paring steel, forging quality steel manufacturers, processors of all
types of forged components and accessories, alloy nuts, bolt steel, rounder nail tools, types of hardware items,
plate makers, wire drawers tube manufacturers, glavanisers, Japanese, rerolling annealors, enamelters and
electroplater.

4. To search prospect, win, work, get, raise, quarry, smelt, refine, dress, manufacture, manipulate, convert, make
merchantable, sell, buy import, export or otherwise deal in iron ore, all kinds of metals, mettalligerous ores and
all other mineral and substances whatsoever and to manufacture sell buy import, export or otherwise deal in any
of such articles and commodities.

5. To act as consultants in matter referred to in clause (1)to (4) above.

6. To undertake and transact all kinds of agency business and to carry on and promote any business, commercial
or otherwise under sound principles and to act as distributors agents, underwriters, brokers estate agents,
insurance broker, middleman, contract man, representatives, and identing agents or commission basis, as may

be deemed fit in all commodities, merchandise, and other allied/articles and lines of business.

7. To set up power generation facility and power distribution system to feed power to infrastructure facilities and
also for feed into grid for sale of power and for any other purpose.

8. To engage in mining business.
9. To act as consultants in respect to the matters referred to in clause 7 & 8.
Board of Directors

The Directors of M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus
are as follows:

S.No. Name of the Directors

1. Mr. Arpan Jindal Director

2. Mr. Braham Parkash Goel Director

3. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Managing Director

4. Mr. Puneet Mohindra Director
Shareholding Pattern

The shareholding pattern of M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited as on March 31, 2025 is as
follows:
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S. No.| Name of the Shareholders

No. of Shares

% of total

holdin

1. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 56,886 71%

2. | Ms. Rekha Agarwal 14,529 18%

3. | Mr. Arpan Jindal 4,281 5%

4. | Ms. Venu Jindal 1,640 2%

5. | M/s Arpan Jindal HUF 1,400 2%

6. | M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 395 Nil

7. | M/s Kumaun Garwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation 533 1%

Private Limited
Total 79,664 100%
Financial Performance
Certain details of the financials of M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited are set forth below:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars ‘ 2023-2024 ‘ 2022-2023 2021-2022 ‘
Total Income 38,890.64 44,307.69 37,833.39
Net Profit/ (Loss) 585.88 576.79 695.67
Share Capital 79.66 79.66 79.66
Reserve and Surplus 9,475.30 8,889.42 8,321.62
Net Worth 9,554.96 8,969.08 8,392.28
NAV per shares (in rupees) 11,994.07 11,258.64 10,534.60
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in rupees)

e Basic 735.44 724.03 873.29

e Diluted 735.44 724.03 873.29
No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (in numbers) 75,527 75,527 75,527
No. of Equity Shares having differential Right of Rs. 4,137 4,137 4,137

100/- each (in numbers)

4. M/s KVS ISPAT Private Limited

Corporate Information

Name

M/s KVS ISPAT Private Limited

CIN U27106DL2008PTC177615

Date of Registration 05/05/2008

Registered office

D-6, Block-D, Vivek Vihar, Ph-1, East Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110095

Main Object of the Company

1. To carry on business to promote, market, advertise, develop, create, design, display, lease, underwrite and to act
as agent, broker, sponsor, demonstrator, buyer, seller, consultants or otherwise to deal in brand names and to do
all incidental acts things necessary for the attainment of the above objects.

To carry on the business of Producing and manufacturing of steel and alloy steel ingots, steel and alloy Steel

billets, and all kinds & sizes of re-rolled sections, i.e. flats, angles, rounds, squares, hexagon, octagons, rails,
joints, channels, steel strips, sheets, plates, deformed bars, plain and cold twisted bars, bright bars, shaftings and
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steel structurals and all types of steel items. e.t.c.

3. To carry on the business as buyers, exporters, distribution agents commission agents, brokers, factors stockists,
agents and dealers of engineering goods, plant and machinery, equipments, automobile parts, accessories, machine
tools, hand tools, small tools, metals, alloys, iron pipes, pipe fittings, nuts and boils, steel and stainless steel and
other iron products, iron ores and scraps, metallurgical residues, sanitary-wares and fittings and to act as agents
and representatives for local and overseas parties in connection with these businesses.

4. To carry on the business of manufacturers of, dealers in, exporters and importers of, all varieties of steel, special
steel, carbon steel, tool allcy steel, mild steel and any other kind and grades of steel and to carry on and execute
the work of steel engineers including manufacturing and dealing in steel pillets, steel roads, steel ingots, steel
sheets, steel wires and in all kinds of steel products whether forget, rolled or drawn and consequently to
manufacture, sell & deal in all or any of the by-products which will be obtained in the process of manufacturing
these steel products.

5. To carry on the business of miners importers and exporters in and dealers in iron ores, cromium ores magnesite
ores, thorium, uranium, asbestos, nickel, copper lead, tin, bauxite ores and all ferrous ores of every description
and grades whatsoever in any part of country and to carry on the business of processing, cleaning, melting, forging,
grading and machining to convert the ores into marketable metals.

6. To manufacture, deal, import and export pig iron, iron scrap, sponge iron, ferro silicon, ferro chrome ferrous
substances and metals of every descriptions and grades and to manufacture, deal import & export all kind and
varieties of non ferrous raw metals such as aluminium, copper, tin lead etc. and the by-products obtained in
processing and manufacturing these raw metals.

7. To set up steel furnaces and continuous and casting and rolling mill plant for producing steel ingots, billets and
all kinds and all sizes of rerolled sections, i.e. flats, angles, rounds squares, rails, joints, channels, steel strips,

sheets, plates, deformed bars, plain and cold twisted bars, chaftings and stoel structurals.

Board of Directors

The Directors of M/s KVS ISPAT Private Limited as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus are as follows:

1. | Mr. Mithlesh Kumar Agarwal Director

2. | Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Director

3. | Mr. Arpan Jindal Director
Shareholding Pattern

The shareholding pattern of M/s KVS ISPAT Private Limited as on March 31, 2025, is as follows:

S.No. | Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares % of total
holding

1. M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 17,000 7.52%
2. M/s Anapurna Steels Private Limited 1,05,500 46.68%
3. M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation 54,000 23.89%
Private Limited
4. M/s KVS Castings Private Limited 38,500 17.04%
5 Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 5,700 2.52%
6. Ms. Rekha Agarwal 200 0.09%
7. Mr. Arpan Jindal 5,000 2.21%
8. Ms. Venu Jindal 100 0.04%
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| Total 2,26,000 | 100% |
Financial Performance
Certain details of the financials of M/s KVS ISPAT Private Limited are set forth below:
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 ‘ 2021-2022
Total Income 4.40 4.38 433
Net Profit/ (Loss) 0.07 0.06 0.06
Share Capital 22.60 22.60 22.60
Reserve and Surplus (23.78) (23.86) (23.92)
Net Worth (1.18) (1.26) (1.32)
NAV per shares (in rupees) (0.52) (0.56) (0.58)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in rupees)
e Basic 0.03 0.03 0.03
e Diluted 0.03 0.03 0.03
No. of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (in numbers) 2,26,000 2,26,000 2,26,000

M/s Kumaon Plastic Weavers & Laminators
Name M/s Kumaon Plastic Weavers & Laminators
Type of Organization Sole Proprietorship

Name of Sole Proprietor

Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal

Office Address 530, Nand Niwas,Ram Nagar Road,Kashipur,Uttarakhand,244713
PAN AAOPA4353Q
M/s KVS Infraatech LLP
General Information
Name M/s KVS Infraatech LLP
LLPIN AAA-0050
Date of Registration 25/06/2009

Registered office

110095

D-6, Block-D, Vivek Vihar, Ph-I, East Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India,

Main Object of the LLP

Hot/ Cold Steel rolling, trading in steel products, fabrication of steel products, slags, bricks/briquettes
manufacturing infrastructure development and other ancillary business in any other matter as may be decided by
the majority of partners and/or such other business/ or business as may be decided by the partners from time to

time.

To carry on the business of manufacturing, machine, produce, design, develop, modify, refine repair, process,
prepare, fabricate, alter, dismantle, grind, finish, polish, cut, fit, trim all types of CI Castings, SG Iron Castings,
SS Castings, MS Castings, Hight Carbon Steel Castings, Aluminum Castings, High Manganese Castings, Gun
Metal Castings, Brass and other Castings, for sales on job work, contract, sub contract and supply, let on hire,
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import, export and to act as agent, broker, adatia, jobworker, consigner, contractor, vendor, collaborator, stockiest,
distributor or otherwise.

Partners of LLP

The Partners of M/s KVS Infraatech LLP as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus are as follows:

Name of the Partners Designation

1 Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal Designated Partner
2. | Mr. Arpan Jindal Designated Partner
3. | M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation Private Partner
Limited
4. | M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited Partner
5. | M/s KVS Castings Private Limited Partner
6. | M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited Partner
Contributions in LLP

The Contribution of Partners in M/s KVS Infraatech LLP as on 31.03.2025 is as follows:

S.No. | Name of the Partners No. of Shares % of total
I — holdin

1. Mr. Devendra Kumar Agarwal 45,00,000 30%
2. Mr. Arpan Jindal 45,00,000 30%
3. M/s Kumaun Garhwal Infrastructural Industrial Corporation 7,50,000 5%
Private Limited

4, M/s Kashi Vishwanath Steels Private Limited 15,00,000 10%
5. M/s KVS Castings Private Limited 22,50,000 15%
6. M/s Annapurna Steels Private Limited 15,00,000 10%

Total 1,50,00,000 100%

Financial Performance

Certain details of the financials of M/s KVS Infraatech LLP are set forth below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024 2022-2023 ‘
Total Income 12.48 12.50 13.04
Net Profit/ (Loss) 4.99 5.69 (0.80)
Partner Capital

(i) Partner’s Contribution 18.87 18.87 18.87
(i1) Partners Current Account 45.17 40.18 33.21

DECLARATIONS

*  None of the entities in the Promoter Group Companies is restrained by any SEBI Order or have ever become
defunct.

*  None of the entities in the Promoter Group Companies is listed at any Stock Exchange nor have such entities
made any public issue or right issue in the preceding three years.

* None of the entities in the Promoter Group Companies has become a sick company under the meaning of Sick
Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 nor is under winding up or liquidation.
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LITIGATIONS

For details on litigations and disputes pending against our Promoter Group and Group Companies please
refer to the section titled “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” on page 234 of the Red Herring
Prospectus.

DEFUNCT GROUP COMPANIES

There are no defunct Group Companies of our Company as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.
UNDERTAKING / CONFIRMATIONS

Our Promoters and Group Companies confirm that they have not been declared as a willful defaulter by the
RBI or any other governmental authority and there have been no violations of securities laws committed by
them or any entities they are connected with in the past and no proceedings pertaining to such penalties are

pending against them.

None of the Promoters or Promoter Group Companies or persons in control of the Promoters has been:

i. Prohibited from accessing the capital market under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other
authority; or

ii. Refused listing of any of the securities issued by such entity by any stock exchange, in India or abroad.
None of the Promoters is or has ever been a promoter, director or person in control of any other company,
which is debarred from accessing the capital markets under any order or direction passed by the SEBI.

DISASSOCIATION BY THE PROMOTERS IN THE LAST THREE YEARS

None of our promoters have disassociated themselves from any entities/firms during the preceding three
years.

OTHER DETAILS OF GROUP COMPANIES/ENTITIES:

1. There are no defaults in meeting any statutory/ bank/ institutional dues.
2. No proceedings have been initiated for economic offences against our Group Companies/Entities.

Nature And Extent of Interest of Group Companies
1. In the promotion of our Company

None of our Group Companies have any interest in the promotion of our Company or any business
interest or other interests in our Company, except to the extent identified chapter titled “Financial
Information” and, “Related Party Transaction” on page 212 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

2. In the properties acquired or proposed to be acquired by our Company in the past 2 years
before filing the Red Herring Prospectus with Stock Exchange

Our Group Companies do not have any interest in the properties acquired or proposed to be acquired by
our Company in the past 2 years before filing this Red Herring Prospectus with Stock Exchange.
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In transactions for acquisition of land, construction of building and supply of machinery

None of our Group Companies is interested in any transactions for the acquisition of land,
construction of buildings or supply of machinery.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

For details on related party transaction of our Company, please refer to “Annexure VIII” of Restated Financial
Statements beginning on page 212 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Companies Act, an Indian company pays dividends upon a recommendation by its Board of Directors and
approval by a majority of the shareholders, who have the right to decrease but not to increase the amount of dividend
recommended by the Board of Directors, under the Companies Act, dividends may be paid out of profits of a company
in the year in which the dividend is declared or out of the undistributed profits or reserves of the previous years or
out of both.

Our Company does not have a formal dividend policy. Any dividends to be declared shall be recommended by the
Board of Directors depending upon the financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and surplus,
contractual obligations and restrictions, the terms of the credit facilities and other financing arrangements of our
Company at the time a dividend is considered, and other relevant factors and approved by the Equity Shareholders
at their discretion.

Dividends are payable within 30 days of approval by the Equity Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of our
Company. When dividends are declared, all the Equity Shareholders whose names appear in the register of members

of our Company as on the “record date” are entitled to be paid the dividend declared by our Company.

Any Equity Shareholder who ceases to be an Equity Shareholder prior to the record date, or who becomes an
Equity Shareholder after the record date, will not be entitled to the dividend declared by our Company.

We have not declared dividend in any Financial Year.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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SECTION VI - FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF OUR COMPANY

RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars Page No.

Restated Financial Statement with Auditor report F1-F35
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' EXAMINATION REPORT ON THE RESTATED
FINANCIAL

INFORMATION OF KVS CASTINGS LIMITED (Formerly KVS Castings Private
Limited)

To,

The Board of Directors

KVS CASTINGS LIMITED (Formerly KVS Castings Private Limited)
Kashipur,

Uttarakhand-244713

Dear Sir,

We have examined the accompanying Restated Financial Statements of KVS CASTINGS LIMITED
(Formerly KVS Castings Private Limited), hereunder referred to as (“the company “or “issuer”)which
comprises of restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31,.2025, 2024 and 2023 the restated
Statement of Profit and Loss, and restated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ending March 31,2025, 2024
and 2023 along with the restated Statements of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (Collectively, the “Restated Financial Information” or “Restated Financial Statements”),
annexed to this report. These Restated Financial Statements as approved by the Board of Directors of the
company at their meeting held on, have been prepared by the company in connection with its proposed Initial
Public Offer of equity shares (IPO) in accordance with the requirements of:
a) Section 26 of part 1 of Chapter 11l of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies ( prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014;
b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
as amended (the ‘SEBI ICDR Regulations’); and
c) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company prospectus (Revised 2019) (as amended) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), as amended from time to time (“The Guidance

Note™),

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the Restated Financial Statements
for the purpose of inclusion in the RHP/ Prospectus to be filed with Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Stock Exchange and Registrar of Companies, Uttarakhand in connection with the proposed IPO. The Restated
Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of preparation stated in Annexure IV (Note 1) to the
Restated Financial Statements. The Board of Directors’ responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Restated Financial
Statement . The Board of Directors are also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Company

complies with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note as applicable.

We have examined such Restated Financial Statements taking into consideration:
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b)

c)

d)

The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed upon with you in accordance with our
engagement letter in connection with the proposed IPO of equity shares of the Issuer;

The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI;

Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on verification of evidence
supporting the Restated Financial Statement; and

The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations. Our work was performed solely
to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the Act, the ICDR

Regulations and the Guidance Note in connection with the IPO.

This Restated Financial Statements has been compiled by the management from:

a)

b)

c)

Audited financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended March 31, 2025, March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2023 prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under Section
133 of the Act read with (Indian GAAP), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared
by the company in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles and as approved by
board of the company and Audited by M/s Vimal & Associates vide their Audit report dated & August
24, 2023 respectively.

Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025
have been prepared by the company in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles
and as approved by board of the company and Audited by us vide our Audit report dated July 17,2024
and May 23, 2025 respectively.

For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on Auditors’ Report issued by the Previous Auditor M/s
Vimal & Associates (“Previous Auditors™) dated August 24, 2023 for the Financial Year ended March 31,

2023.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us and also as per the

reliance placed on the audit report submitted by the Previous Auditors for the respective years, we report that

the Restated Financial Statements

a) have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting policies, material

errors and regrouping/ reclassifications retrospectively in respective financial period/ years to reflect the
same accounting treatment as per the changed accounting policies and grouping/classifications followed

for all the periods reported, if any;

b) Do Not contain any modification which requires adjustment

c) Are in accordance with the requirements of Part | of Chapter Il of the Act including rules made there

under, ICDR Regulations, Guidance Note and Engagement Letter.

d) Have no extra-ordinary items that need to be disclosed separately in the accounts and requiring

adjustments.



The Restated Financial Statements does not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the
respective dates of the reports on the audited financial statements mentioned above.

Opinion

In accordance with the requirements of the Act including the rules made there under, ICDR Regulations,
Guidance Note and engagement letter, we report that:

(i) The “Restated Statement Of Asset And Liabilities” of the Company as at March 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023
examined by us, as set out in Annexure | to this report read with significant accounting policies in Annexure
IV has been arrived at after making such adjustments and regroupings to the audited financial statements of
the Company, as in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described in notes to the restated summary
statements to this report.

(ii) The “Restated Statement Of Profit And Loss” of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2025, 2024 and 2023 examined by us, as set out in Annexure 11 to this report read with significant accounting
policies in Annexure IV has been arrived at after making such adjustments and regroupings to the audited
financial statements of the Company, as in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described in notes to
the restated summary statements to this report.

(iii) The “Restated Statement Of Cash Flows™ of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,
2024, and 2023 examined by us, as set out in Annexure I11 to this report read with significant accounting
policies in Annexure IV has been arrived at after making such adjustments and regroupings to the audited
financial statements of the Company, as in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described in notes to
restated summary statements to this report.

(iv) The company has made payments to MSME vendors within mutual contractual period which is exceeding
the contractual time limit as per MSMED Act, 2006. Hence, the management has not accounted for interest
provisions as per MSMED Act, 2006.

We, M/s Arora Gupta & Co. (Chartered Accountants) have been subjected to peer review process of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and our peer review certificate is valid as on the date of
signing of this report.

The preparation and presentation of the financial statements referred to above are based on the Audited
Financial Statements of the company and are in a accordance with the provisions of the Act and the ICDR
regulations. The financial statements and information referred to above is the responsibility of the
management of the company.

This report should not in any way be construed as a reissuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit reports
issued by us or the Previous Auditors, nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any of the
financial statements referred to herein.

We have no responsibility to update our report for the events and circumstance occurring after the date of the

report.

In our opinion the above restated financial statements along with note number 1 to 25 of this report read with
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the respective significant accounting policies and notes to accounts are prepared after regrouping as
considered appropriate and have been prepared in accordance with the companies act, ICDR Regulations,
Engagement Letter and Guidance Note.

We have also examined the following other financial information relating to the Company prepared by the
management and as approved by the board of directors of the Company and annexed to this report relating to
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 proposed to be included in the
Offer Document.

Annexure to Restated Financial Statements of the Company:-

I. Summary statement of assets and liabilities, as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE I;

I1. Summary statement of profit and loss, as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE II;

I1l. Summary statement of cash flows as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE llI;

IV. Corporate Information, Significant accounting policies as restated and Notes to reconciliation of restated

profits and net worth as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Notel);

V. Details of share capital as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 2) to this report;

VI. Details of reserves and surplus as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 3) to this report;

VII. Details of long-term borrowings as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 4) to this report;

VIII. Details of short-term borrowings as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 6) to this report;

XI. Details of trade payables as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 7) to this report;

XI1. Details of other current liabilities as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 8) to this report;

XIII. Details of short-term provisions as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 9) to this report;

XIV. Details of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 10)
to this report;

XV. Details of non-current investments as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 11) to this report;

XVI. Details of deferred tax liabilities (net) as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 5) to this report;

Details of other non current assets as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 12) to this report;

XIX. Details of inventories as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 13) to this report;

XX. Details of trade receivables as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 14) to this report;

XXI. Details of cash and bank balances as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 15) to this report;

XXII. Details of short-term loans and advances as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 16) to this
report;

XXIV. Details of revenue from operations as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 17) to this report;

XXV. Details of other income as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 18) to this report;

XXVI. Details of cost of material consumed as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 19) to this
report;

XXVII. Details of Change in inventories of work in progress , finished goods and stock in trade as restated as
appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 20) to this report;

XXVIII.Details of employee benefit expenses as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 21) to this
report;
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XXIX. Details of finance costs as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE 1V (Note 22) to this report;

XXX. Details of depreciation and amortization expense as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note
23) to this report;

XXXI. Details of other expenses as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE IV (Note 24) to this report;

XXXVII. Summary of significant accounting ratios as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE V to this report;

XXXIX. Details of related party transactions as restated as appearing in ANNEXURE VI to this report;

Restriction of Use

Our report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the RHP/ Prospectus to be filed
with Securities and Exchange Board of India, relevant Stock Exchange and Registrar of Companies,
Uttarakhand in connection with the proposed IPO. Our report should not be used, referred to, or distributed
for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into

whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Arora Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants Firm
Registration No. 021313C

S/d/-

CA Amit Arora
(Partner)
M.No: 514828

UDIN: 25514828BMOFOS1040

Place: Rudrapur
Date: 23-05-2025
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Company Name: KVS Castings Limited (Formerly known as KVS Castings Private Limited)

Annexure I- Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st As at As at
March, 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
2025
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 1,378.33 32.46 32.46
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 2,066.62 2,546.08 1,950.98
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 4 - 28.13 295.04
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities 5 30.25 23.82 22.16
Current liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 6 371.79 30.00 202.74
(b) Trade Payables 7
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 167.18 82.83 89.25
enterprises; and
(ii) total outstanding dues of other creditors 173.48 99.38 293.72
(c) Other Current Liabilities 8 118.77 36.39 41.92
(d) Short-Term Provisions 9 468.57 255.76 272.59
TOTAL 4,774.99 3,134.86 3,200.87
II |ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 878.30 840.96 816.33
(i) Capital Work in Progress 11 545.85 - -
(b) Non Current Investments 10 34.35 178.17 176.04
(c) Other Non Current Assets 12 1,493.71 125.19 118.53
Current assets
(a) Inventories 13 249.26 450.55 417.25
(b) Trade Receivables 14 1,179.79 684.46 1,042.96
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 15 147.61 443.86 455.10
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 246.13 411.67 174.66
TOTAL 4,774.99 3,134.86 3,200.87

*The accompanying notes 1- 27 are integral part of restated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For ARORA GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0021313C

Sd/-

AMIT ARORA

PARTNER

M.No. 0514828

Place: Rudrapur

UDIN: 25514828BMOFOS1040
Dated: 23-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of KVS CASTINGS LIMITED

Sd/-

DEVENDRA KUMAR AGARWAL

DIRECTOR
DIN: 00753173

Sd/-

RAJ KUMAR ARORA

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sd/-

ARPAN JINDAL
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00223527

Sd/-

SHWETA MEHROTRA
COMPANY SECRETARY
M. No. A23938
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Company Name: KVS Castings Limited (Formerly known as KVS Castings Private Limited)

Annexure I1- Restated Statement of Profit and Loss
|(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March, 2025 March, 2024 March, 2023
1 Revenue from Operations 17 5,010.94 5,415.75 5,726.34

II  |Other Income 18 32.28 54.57 34.86
III  |Total Income (I + II) 5,043.22 5,470.31 5,761.20

IV |Expenses

(a) Cost of Material Consumed 19 1,853.00 2,187.79 2,491.82

(b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 20 171.01 (10.82) (67.22)

work in Progress and Stock in Trade

(c) Employee Benefits Expenses 21 136.44 112.14 122.05

(d) Finance Costs 23 8.83 32.07 39.05

(e) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 24 78.47 71.99 67.67

(f) Other Expenses 25 1,903.04 2,281.07 2,463.52
Total Expenses 4,150.79 4,674.23 5,116.89

V  [Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and 892.43 796.09 644.31

tax (I1 - IV)

VI  |Exceptional Items & Extraordinary items -
VII (Profit Before Tax (V + VI) 892.43 796.09 644.31
VIII |Tax Expense:

(a) Current Tax 223.47 199.33 158.73
(c) Deferred Tax 6.43 1.66 1.74
Total Tax Expense 229.90 200.98 160.47

IX |Profit After Tax (VII - VIII) 662.53 595.10 483.84

X Earnings Per Share (of Rs. 10 each):

(a) Basic 27 4.81 4.47 3.64
(b) Diluted 4.81 4.47 3.64

As per our report of even date

For ARORA GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0021313C

Sd/-

AMIT ARORA

PARTNER

M.No. 0514828

Place: Rudrapur

UDIN: 25514828BMOFOS1040
Dated: 23-05-2025

*The accompanying notes 1- 27 are integral part of restated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of KVS CASTINGS LIMITED

Sd/-

DEVENDRA KUMAR AGARWAL

DIRECTOR

DIN: 00753173

Sd/-

RAJ KUMAR ARORA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sd/-

ARPAN JINDAL
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00223527

Sd/-

SHWETA MEHROTRA
COMPANY SECRETARY
M. No. A23938




Company Name: KVS Castings Limited (Formerly known as KVS Castings Private Limited)

Annexure I11- Restated Statement of Cash flows
|(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024 March, 2023
Cash Flows from operating Activities
Profit before tax 892.43 796.09 644.31
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amortization expense 78.47 71.99 67.67
Interest expense on borrowings 8.83 32.07 39.05
Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assests 0.00 (7.65) 0.00
Interest on FD and RD (11.76) (30.34) (21.96)
Interest on Security Deposits (8.95) (9.13) (2.10)
Interest on Unsecured loans (10.80) (6.57) (10.92)
Profit Received from partnership firm (0.75) (0.85) 0.12
Operating Profit before working capital changes 947.47 845.59 716.17
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 247.16 (200.76) (98.72)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities (6.32) (5.53) (10.34)
Increase/(decrease) in Short Term Provisions 212.81 (20.68) 137.13
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (495.33) 358.50 (143.57)
Increase/(decrease) in long term provision 0.00 0.00 (4.81)
Decrease/(increase) in Short Term loans and advances 165.54 (237.02) (101.99)
Decrease/(increase) in Inventories 201.29 (33.31) (11.22)
Cash generated from operations 1,272.62 706.80 482.65
Income taxes refunded/ (paid) (219.59) (195.45) (158.73)
Net cash flow from operations (A) 1,053.03 511.35 323.92
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of /Advances for property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets (661.65) (98.47) (135.46)
Profit Received from partnership firm 0.75 0.85 (0.12)
Interest on FD and RD 11.76 30.34 21.96
Interest on Security Deposits 8.95 9.13 2.10
Interest on Unsecured loans 10.80 6.57 10.92
Investment Realized/(Purchased) 143.82 (2.13) (157.60)
Proceeds from Sale of Propert, Plant & Equipment - 9.50 -
Decrease/(increase) in other Non- current assets (1,368.53) (6.66) (69.97)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (1,854.11) (50.86) (328.17)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 200.00 0.00 0.00
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (28.13) (266.92) 94.67
Interest paid (8.83) (32.07) (39.05)
Increase/(decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 341.79 (172.74) 24.05
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities ( C) 504.83 (471.72) 79.67
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (296.27) (11.23) 75.42
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 443.86 455.10 379.68
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the year 147.61 443.86 455.10
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Cash Flow S comprise of following (Refer Note 16):
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024 March, 2023

Cash in hand 1.50 1.62 2.69
Cheques in hand - -
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 1.57 66.96 1.13
In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 144.54 375.27 451.27 |

147.61 443.86 455.10 |

As per our report of even date

For ARORA GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0021313C

Sd/-

AMIT ARORA

PARTNER

M.No. 0514828

Place: Rudrapur

UDIN: 25514828BMOFOS1040
Dated: 23-05-2025

For and on behalf of the